

Appendix 1

Ohio Revised Code Ch. 173

A public notice requirement pertaining to the contract shall be considered as having been met if the public notice is given once a week for at least two consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation within a county in this state in which the council has members and if the notice is posted on the council's internet web site for at least two consecutive weeks before the date specified for receiving bids.

A county, municipal corporation, or township and a special district, school district, or other political subdivision that is a council member may participate in a contract entered into under this section. Purchases under a contract entered into under this section are exempt from any competitive selection or bidding requirements otherwise required by law. A county, municipal corporation, or township or a special district, school district, or other political subdivision that is a member of the council is not entitled to participate in a contract entered into under this section if it has received bids for the same work under another contract, unless participation in a contract under this section will enable the member to obtain the same work, upon the same terms, conditions, and specifications, at a lower price.

Sec. 173.14. As used in sections 173.14 to 173.27 of the Revised Code:

(A)(1) Except as otherwise provided in division (A)(2) of this section, "long-term care facility" includes any residential facility that provides personal care services for more than twenty-four hours for two or more unrelated adults, including all of the following:

(a) A "nursing home," "residential care facility," or "home for the aging" as defined in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code;

(b) A facility authorized to provide extended care services under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C. 301, as amended, including a long-term acute care hospital that provides medical and rehabilitative care to patients who require an average length of stay greater than twenty-five days and is classified by the centers for medicare and medicaid services as a long-term care hospital pursuant to 42 C.F.R. 412.23(e);

(c) A county home or district home operated pursuant to Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code;

(d) An "adult care facility" as defined in section ~~3722.04~~ 5119.70 of the Revised Code;

(e) A facility approved by the veterans administration under section 104(a) of the "Veterans Health Care Amendments of 1983," 97 Stat. 993, 38 U.S.C. 630, as amended, and used exclusively for the placement and care of veterans;

(f) An adult foster home certified under section ~~473.36~~ 5119.692 of the

Revised Code.

(2) "Long-term care facility" does not include a "residential facility" as defined in section 5119.22 of the Revised Code or a "residential facility" as defined in section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

(B) "Resident" means a resident of a long-term care facility and, where appropriate, includes a prospective, previous, or deceased resident of a long-term care facility.

(C) "Community-based long-term care services" means health and social services provided to persons in their own homes or in community care settings, and includes any of the following:

- (1) Case management;
- (2) Home health care;
- (3) Homemaker services;
- (4) Chore services;
- (5) Respite care;
- (6) Adult day care;
- (7) Home-delivered meals;
- (8) Personal care;
- (9) Physical, occupational, and speech therapy;
- (10) Transportation;

(11) Any other health and social services provided to persons that allow them to retain their independence in their own homes or in community care settings.

(D) "Recipient" means a recipient of community-based long-term care services and, where appropriate, includes a prospective, previous, or deceased recipient of community-based long-term care services.

(E) "Sponsor" means an adult relative, friend, or guardian who has an interest in or responsibility for the welfare of a resident or a recipient.

(F) "Personal care services" has the same meaning as in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code.

(G) "Regional long-term care ombudsperson program" means an entity, either public or private and nonprofit, designated as a regional long-term care ombudsperson program by the state long-term care ombudsperson.

(H) "Representative of the office of the state long-term care ombudsperson program" means the state long-term care ombudsperson or a member of the ombudsperson's staff, or a person certified as a representative of the office under section 173.21 of the Revised Code.

(I) "Area agency on aging" means an area agency on aging established under the "Older Americans Act of 1965," 79 Stat. 219, 42 U.S.C.A. 3001, as amended.

Sec. 173.21. (A) The office of the state long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson program, through the state long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson and the regional long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson programs, shall require each representative of the office to complete a training and certification program in accordance with this section and to meet the continuing education requirements established under this section.

(B) The department of aging shall adopt rules under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code specifying the content of training programs for representatives of the office of the state long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson program. Training for representatives other than those who are volunteers providing services through regional long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson programs shall include instruction regarding federal, state, and local laws, rules, and policies on long-term care facilities and community-based long-term care services; investigative techniques; and other topics considered relevant by the department and shall consist of the following:

(1) A minimum of forty clock hours of basic instruction, which shall be completed before the trainee is permitted to handle complaints without the supervision of a representative of the office certified under this section;

(2) An additional sixty clock hours of instruction, which shall be completed within the first fifteen months of employment;

(3) An internship of twenty clock hours, which shall be completed within the first twenty-four months of employment, including instruction in, and observation of, basic nursing care and long-term care provider operations and procedures. The internship shall be performed at a site that has been approved as an internship site by the state long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson.

(4) One of the following, which shall be completed within the first twenty-four months of employment:

(a) Observation of a survey conducted by the director of health to certify a facility to receive funds under sections 5111.20 to 5111.32 of the Revised Code;

(b) Observation of an inspection conducted by the director of mental health to license an adult care facility under section ~~3722.04~~ 5119.73 of the Revised Code.

(5) Any other training considered appropriate by the department.

(C) Persons who for a period of at least six months prior to June 11, 1990, served as ombudsmen through the long-term care ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson program established by the department of aging under division (M) of section 173.01 of the Revised Code shall not be required to

complete a training program. These persons and persons who complete a training program shall take an examination administered by the department of aging. On attainment of a passing score, the person shall be certified by the department as a representative of the office. The department shall issue the person an identification card, which the representative shall show at the request of any person with whom ~~he~~ the representative deals while performing ~~his~~ the representative's duties and which ~~he~~ shall ~~surrender~~ be surrendered at the time ~~he~~ the representative separates from the office.

(D) The state ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson and each regional program shall conduct training programs for volunteers on their respective staffs in accordance with the rules of the department of aging adopted under division (B) of this section. Training programs may be conducted that train volunteers to complete some, but not all, of the duties of a representative of the office. Each regional office shall bear the cost of training its representatives who are volunteers. On completion of a training program, the representative shall take an examination administered by the department of aging. On attainment of a passing score, ~~he~~ a volunteer shall be certified by the department as a representative authorized to perform services specified in the certification. The department shall issue an identification card, which the representative shall show at the request of any person with whom ~~he~~ the representative deals while performing ~~his~~ the representative's duties and which ~~he~~ shall ~~surrender~~ be surrendered at the time ~~he~~ the representative separates from the office. Except as a supervised part of a training program, no volunteer shall perform any duty unless he is certified as a representative having received appropriate training for that duty.

(E) The state ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson shall provide technical assistance to regional programs conducting training programs for volunteers and shall monitor the training programs.

(F) Prior to scheduling an observation of a certification survey or licensing inspection for purposes of division (B)(4) of this section, the state ~~ombudsman~~ ombudsperson shall obtain permission to have the survey or inspection observed from both the director of health and the long-term care facility at which the survey or inspection is to take place.

(G) The department of aging shall establish continuing education requirements for representatives of the office.

Sec. 173.26. (A) Each of the following facilities shall annually pay to the department of aging six dollars for each bed maintained by the facility for use by a resident during any part of the previous year:

(1) Nursing homes, residential care facilities, and homes for the aging as defined in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code;

(2) Facilities authorized to provide extended care services under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C. 301, as amended, including a long-term acute care hospital that provides medical and rehabilitative care to patients who require an average length of stay greater than twenty-five days and is classified by the centers for medicare and medicaid services as a long-term care hospital pursuant to 42 C.F.R. 412.23(e);

(3) County homes and district homes operated pursuant to Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code;

(4) Adult care facilities as defined in section ~~3722.04~~ 5119.70 of the Revised Code;

(5) Facilities approved by the Veterans Administration under Section 104(a) of the "Veterans Health Care Amendments of 1983," 97 Stat. 993, 38 U.S.C. 630, as amended, and used exclusively for the placement and care of veterans.

The department shall, by rule adopted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, establish deadlines for payments required by this section. A facility that fails, within ninety days after the established deadline, to pay a payment required by this section shall be assessed at two times the original invoiced payment.

(B) All money collected under this section shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the office of the state long-term care ombudsperson program fund, which is hereby created. Money credited to the fund shall be used solely to pay the costs of operating the regional long-term care ombudsperson programs.

(C) The state long-term care ombudsperson and the regional programs may solicit and receive contributions to support the operation of the office or a regional program, except that no contribution shall be solicited or accepted that would interfere with the independence or objectivity of the office or program.

Sec. 173.391. (A) The department of aging or its designee shall do all of the following in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code:

(1) Certify a person or government entity to provide community-based long-term care services under a program the department administers if the person or government entity satisfies the requirements for certification established by rules adopted under division (B) of this section and pays the fee, if any, established by rules adopted under division (G) of this section;

(2) When required to do so by rules adopted under division (B) of this section, take one or more of the following disciplinary actions against a person or government entity ~~issued a certificate~~ certified under division

(A)(1) of this section:

- (a) Issue a written warning;
- (b) Require the submission of a plan of correction or evidence of compliance with requirements identified by the department;
- (c) Suspend referrals;
- (d) Remove clients;
- (e) Impose a fiscal sanction such as a civil monetary penalty or an order that unearned funds be repaid;
- (f) Suspend the certification;
- (g) Revoke the certificate certification;
- ~~(g)~~(h) Impose another sanction.

(3) ~~Hold~~ Except as provided in division (E) of this section, hold hearings when there is a dispute between the department or its designee and a person or government entity concerning actions the department or its designee takes ~~or does not take~~ regarding a decision not to certify the person or government entity under division (A)(1) of this section or a disciplinary action under division (A)(1) or (2)(e)(e) to (g)(h) of this section.

(B) The director of aging shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code establishing certification requirements and standards for determining which type of disciplinary action to take under division (A)(2) of this section in individual situations. The rules shall establish procedures for all of the following:

- (1) Ensuring that community-based long-term care agencies comply with section 173.394 of the Revised Code;
- (2) Evaluating the services provided by the agencies to ensure that ~~they~~ the services are provided in a quality manner advantageous to the individual receiving the services;
- (3) Determining when to take disciplinary action under division (A)(2) of this section and which disciplinary action to take;
- (4) Determining what constitutes another sanction for purposes of division (A)(2)(h) of this section.

(C) The procedures established in rules adopted under division (B)(2) of this section shall require that all of the following be considered as part of an evaluation described in division (B)(2) of this section:

- (1) The ~~service provider's~~ community-based long-term care agency's experience and financial responsibility;
- (2) The ~~service provider's~~ agency's ability to comply with standards for the community-based long-term care services that the ~~provider~~ agency provides under a program the department administers;
- (3) The ~~service provider's~~ agency's ability to meet the needs of the

individuals served;

(4) Any other factor the director considers relevant.

(D) The rules adopted under division (B)(3) of this section shall specify that the reasons disciplinary action may be taken under division (A)(2) of this section include good cause, including misfeasance, malfeasance, nonfeasance, confirmed abuse or neglect, financial irresponsibility, or other conduct the director determines is injurious, or poses a threat, to the health or safety of individuals being served.

(E) Subject to division (F) of this section, the department is not required to hold hearings under division (A)(3) of this section if any of the following conditions apply:

(1) Rules adopted by the director of aging pursuant to this chapter require the community-based long-term care agency to be a party to a provider agreement; hold a license, certificate, or permit; or maintain a certification, any of which is required or issued by a state or federal government entity other than the department of aging, and either of the following is the case:

(a) The provider agreement has not been entered into or the license, certificate, permit, or certification has not been obtained or maintained.

(b) The provider agreement, license, certificate, permit, or certification has been denied, revoked, not renewed, or suspended or has been otherwise restricted.

(2) The agency's certification under this section has been denied, suspended, or revoked for any of the following reasons:

(a) A government entity of this state, other than the department of aging, has terminated or refused to renew any of the following held by, or has denied any of the following sought by, a community-based long-term care agency: a provider agreement, license, certificate, permit, or certification. Division (E)(2)(a) of this section applies regardless of whether the agency has entered into a provider agreement in, or holds a license, certificate, permit, or certification issued by, another state.

(b) The agency or a principal owner or manager of the agency who provides direct care has entered a guilty plea for, or has been convicted of, an offense materially related to the medicaid program.

(c) The agency or a principal owner or manager of the agency who provides direct care has entered a guilty plea for, or been convicted of, an offense listed in division (C)(1)(a) of section 173.394 of the Revised Code, but only if none of the personal character standards established by the department in rules adopted under division (F) of section 173.394 of the Revised Code apply.

(d) The United States department of health and human services has taken adverse action against the agency and that action impacts the agency's participation in the medicaid program.

(e) The agency has failed to enter into or renew a provider agreement with the PASSPORT administrative agency, as that term is defined in section 173.42 of the Revised Code, that administers programs on behalf of the department of aging in the region of the state in which the agency is certified to provide services.

(f) The agency has not billed or otherwise submitted a claim to the department for payment under the medicaid program in at least two years.

(g) The agency denied or failed to provide the department or its designee access to the agency's facilities during the agency's normal business hours for purposes of conducting an audit or structural compliance review.

(h) The agency has ceased doing business.

(i) The agency has voluntarily relinquished its certification for any reason.

(3) The agency's provider agreement with the department of job and family services has been suspended under division (C) of section 5111.031 of the Revised Code.

(4) The agency's provider agreement with the department of job and family services is denied or revoked because the agency or its owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee has been convicted of an offense that caused the provider agreement to be suspended under section 5111.031 of the Revised Code.

(F) If the department does not hold hearings when any condition described in division (E) of this section applies, the department may send a notice to the agency describing a decision not to certify the agency under division (A)(1) of this section or the disciplinary action the department proposes to take under division (A)(2)(e) to (h) of this section. The notice shall be sent to the agency's address that is on record with the department and may be sent by regular mail.

(G) The director of aging may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code establishing a fee to be charged by the department of aging or its designee for certification issued under this section.

All fees collected by the department or its designee under this section shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the provider certification fund, which is hereby created. Money credited to the fund shall be used to pay for community-based long-term care services, administrative costs associated with community-based long-term care agency certification

under this section, and administrative costs related to the publication of the Ohio long-term care consumer guide.

Sec. 173.40. (A) As used in sections 173.40 to 173.402 of the Revised Code, "PASSPORT:

"Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"PASSPORT program" means the program created under this section.

"PASSPORT waiver" means the federal medicaid waiver granted by the United States secretary of health and human services that authorizes the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program.

"Unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of the Revised Code.

(B) There is hereby created the preadmission screening system providing options and resources today program, or PASSPORT. The PASSPORT program shall provide home and community-based services as an alternative to nursing facility placement for individuals who are aged and disabled medicaid recipients and meet the program's applicable eligibility requirements. ~~The Subject to division (C) of this section, the program shall have a medicaid-funded component and a state-funded component.~~

(C)(1) Unless the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, all of the following apply:

(a) The department of aging shall administer the medicaid-funded component through a contract entered into with the department of job and family services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code.

~~(b) The medicaid-funded component shall be operated as a separate medicaid waiver component, as defined in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code, until the United States secretary of health and human services approves the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code. The program shall be part of the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under that section if the United States secretary approves the waiver. The department of aging shall administer the program through a contract entered into with the department of job and family services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code. The~~

(c) For an individual to be eligible for the medicaid-funded component, the individual must be a medicaid recipient and meet the additional eligibility requirements applicable to the individual established in rules adopted under division (C)(1)(d) of this section.

(d) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under

section 5111.85 of the Revised Code and the director of aging shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement the ~~program~~ medicaid-funded component.

(2) If the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is created, the departments of aging and job and family services shall work together to determine whether the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program should continue to operate as a separate medicaid waiver component or be terminated. If the departments determine that the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program should be terminated, the medicaid-funded component shall cease to exist on a date the departments shall specify.

(D)(1) The department of aging shall administer the state-funded component of the PASSPORT program. The state-funded component shall not be administered as part of the medicaid program.

(2) For an individual to be eligible for the state-funded component, the individual must meet one of the following requirements and meet the additional eligibility requirements applicable to the individual established in rules adopted under division (D)(4) of this section:

(a) The individual must have been enrolled in the state-funded component on September 1, 1991, (as the state-funded component was authorized by uncodified law in effect at that time) and have had one or more applications for enrollment in the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) denied.

(b) The individual must have had the individual's enrollment in the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) terminated and the individual must still need the home and community-based services provided under the PASSPORT program to protect the individual's health and safety.

(c) The individual must have an application for the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) pending and the department or the department's designee must have determined that the individual meets the nonfinancial eligibility requirements of the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) and not have reason to doubt that the individual meets the

financial eligibility requirements of the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component).

(3) An individual who is eligible for the state-funded component because the individual meets the requirement of division (D)(2)(c) of this section may participate in the component for not more than three months.

(4) The director of aging shall adopt rules in accordance with section 111.15 of the Revised Code to implement the state-funded component. The additional eligibility requirements established in the rules may vary for the different groups of individuals specified in divisions (D)(2)(a), (b), and (c) of this section.

Sec. 173.401. (A) As used in this section:

"Area agency on aging" has the same meaning as in section 173.14 of the Revised Code.

"Long-term care consultation program" means the program the department of aging is required to develop under section 173.42 of the Revised Code.

"Long-term care consultation program administrator" or "administrator" means the department of aging or, if the department contracts with an area agency on aging or other entity to administer the long-term care consultation program for a particular area, that agency or entity.

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

~~"PASSPORT waiver" means the federal medicaid waiver granted by the United States secretary of health and human services that authorizes the PASSPORT program.~~

(B) The Subject to division (C)(2) of section 173.40 of the Revised Code, the department shall establish a home first component of the PASSPORT program under which eligible individuals may be enrolled in the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program in accordance with this section. An individual is eligible for the PASSPORT program's home first component if ~~all~~ both of the following apply:

(1) The individual ~~is~~ has been determined to be eligible for the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program.

~~(2) The individual is on the unified waiting list established under section 173.404 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(3) At least one of the following applies:~~

~~(a) The individual has been admitted to a nursing facility.~~

~~(b) A physician has determined and documented in writing that the~~

individual has a medical condition that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PASSPORT program, will require the individual to be admitted to a nursing facility within thirty days of the physician's determination.

(c) The individual has been hospitalized and a physician has determined and documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PASSPORT program, the individual is to be transported directly from the hospital to a nursing facility and admitted.

(d) Both of the following apply:

(i) The individual is the subject of a report made under section 5101.61 of the Revised Code regarding abuse, neglect, or exploitation or such a report referred to a county department of job and family services under section 5126.31 of the Revised Code or has made a request to a county department for protective services as defined in section 5101.60 of the Revised Code.

(ii) A county department of job and family services and an area agency on aging have jointly documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PASSPORT program, the individual should be admitted to a nursing facility.

(C) Each month, each area agency on aging shall identify individuals residing in the area that the agency serves who are eligible for the home first component of the PASSPORT program. When an area agency on aging identifies such an individual, the agency shall notify the long-term care consultation program administrator serving the area in which the individual resides. The administrator shall determine whether the PASSPORT program is appropriate for the individual and whether the individual would rather participate in the PASSPORT program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility. If the administrator determines that the PASSPORT program is appropriate for the individual and the individual would rather participate in the PASSPORT program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility, the administrator shall so notify the department of aging. On receipt of the notice from the administrator, the department shall approve the individual's enrollment in the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program regardless of the unified waiting list established under section 173.404 of the Revised Code, unless the enrollment would cause the PASSPORT program component to exceed any limit on the number of individuals who may be enrolled in the program component as set by the United States secretary of health and human services in the PASSPORT waiver.

~~(D) Each quarter, the department of aging shall certify to the director of budget and management the estimated increase in costs of the PASSPORT program resulting from enrollment of individuals in the PASSPORT program pursuant to this section.~~

Sec. 173.403. ~~Choices~~ (A) As used in this section:

"Choices program" means the program created under this section.

~~There~~ "Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"Unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of the Revised Code.

~~(B) Subject to division (C) of this section, there is hereby created the choices program. The program shall provide home and community-based services. The choices program shall be operated as a separate medicaid waiver component, as defined in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code, until the United States secretary of health and human services approves the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code. The program shall be part of the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under that section if the United States secretary approves the waiver. The department of aging shall administer the program through a contract entered into with the department of job and family services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code. Subject to federal approval, the program shall be available statewide.~~

~~(C) If the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is created, the departments of aging and job and family services shall work together to determine whether the choices program should continue to operate as a separate medicaid waiver component or be terminated. If the departments determine that the choices program should be terminated, the program shall cease to exist on a date the departments shall specify.~~

Sec. 173.404. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component" means each of the following:

(a) The medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program created under section 173.40 of the Revised Code;

(b) The choices program created under section 173.403 of the Revised Code;

(c) The medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program created under section 5111.89 of the Revised Code.

(2) "PACE program" means the component of the medicaid program the

department of aging administers pursuant to section 173.50 of the Revised Code.

~~(B) The~~ If the department of aging determines that there are insufficient funds to enroll all individuals who have applied and been determined eligible for department of aging-administered medicaid waiver components and the PACE program, the department of aging shall establish a unified waiting list for department of aging-administered medicaid waiver the components and the PACE program. Only individuals eligible for a department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component or the PACE program may be placed on the unified waiting list. An individual who may be enrolled in a department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component or the PACE program through a home first component established under section 173.401, 173.501, or 5111.894 of the Revised Code may be so enrolled without being placed on the unified waiting list.

Sec. 173.41. (A) The department of aging shall promote the development of a statewide aging and disabilities resource network through which older adults, adults with disabilities, and their caregivers are provided with both of the following:

(1) Information on any long-term care service options available to the individuals;

(2) Streamlined access to long-term care services, both publicly funded services and services available through private payment.

(B) Area agencies on aging shall establish the network throughout the state. In doing so, the agencies shall collaborate with centers for independent living and other locally funded organizations to establish a cost-effective and consumer-friendly network that builds on existing, local infrastructures of services that support consumers in their communities.

Sec. 173.42. (A) As used in sections 173.42 to 173.434 of the Revised Code:

(1) "Area agency on aging" means a public or private nonprofit entity designated under section 173.011 of the Revised Code to administer programs on behalf of the department of aging.

(2) "Department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component" means each of the following:

(a) The medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program created under section 173.40 of the Revised Code;

(b) The choices program created under section 173.403 of the Revised Code;

(c) The medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program created under section 5111.89 of the Revised Code;

(d) Any other medicaid waiver component, as defined in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code, that the department of aging administers pursuant to an interagency agreement with the department of job and family services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Home and community-based services covered by medicaid components the department of aging administers" means all of the following:

(a) Medicaid waiver services available to a participant in a department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component;

(b) The following medicaid state plan services available to a participant in a department of aging-administered medicaid waiver component as specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code:

(i) Home health services;

(ii) Private duty nursing services;

(iii) Durable medical equipment;

(iv) Services of a clinical nurse specialist;

(v) Services of a certified nurse practitioner.

(c) Services available to a participant of the PACE program.

(4) "Long-term care consultation" or "consultation" means the consultation service made available by the department of aging or a program administrator through the long-term care consultation program established pursuant to this section.

(5) "Medicaid" means the medical assistance program established under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code.

(6) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(7) "PACE program" means the component of the medicaid program the department of aging administers pursuant to section 173.50 of the Revised Code.

(8) "PASSPORT administrative agency" means an entity under contract with the department of aging to provide administrative services regarding the PASSPORT program.

(9) "Program administrator" means an area agency on aging or other entity under contract with the department of aging to administer the long-term care consultation program in a geographic region specified in the contract.

(10) "Representative" means a person acting on behalf of an individual specified in division (G) of this section. A representative may be a family member, attorney, hospital social worker, or any other person chosen to act on behalf of the individual.

(B) The department of aging shall develop a long-term care consultation program whereby individuals or their representatives are provided with long-term care consultations and receive through these professional consultations information about options available to meet long-term care needs and information about factors to consider in making long-term care decisions. The long-term care consultations provided under the program may be provided at any appropriate time, as permitted or required under this section and the rules adopted under it, including either prior to or after the individual who is the subject of a consultation has been admitted to a nursing facility or granted assistance in receiving home and community-based services covered by medicaid components the department of aging administers.

(C) The long-term care consultation program shall be administered by the department of aging, except that the department may have the program administered on a regional basis by one or more program administrators. The department and each program administrator shall administer the program in such a manner that all of the following are included:

- (1) Coordination and collaboration with respect to all available funding sources for long-term care services;
- (2) Assessments of individuals regarding their long-term care service needs;
- (3) Assessments of individuals regarding their on-going eligibility for long-term care services;
- (4) Procedures for assisting individuals in obtaining access to, and coordination of, health and supportive services, including department of aging-administered medicaid waiver components;
- (5) Priorities for using available resources efficiently and effectively.

(D) The program's long-term care consultations shall be provided by individuals certified by the department under section 173.422 of the Revised Code.

(E) The information provided through a long-term care consultation shall be appropriate to the individual's needs and situation and shall address all of the following:

- (1) The availability of any long-term care options open to the individual;
- (2) Sources and methods of both public and private payment for long-term care services;
- (3) Factors to consider when choosing among the available programs, services, and benefits;
- (4) Opportunities and methods for maximizing independence and self-reliance, including support services provided by the individual's family,

friends, and community.

(F) An individual's long-term care consultation may include an assessment of the individual's functional capabilities. The consultation may incorporate portions of the determinations required under sections 5111.202, 5119.061, and 5123.021 of the Revised Code and may be provided concurrently with the assessment required under section 5111.204 of the Revised Code.

(G)(1) Unless an exemption specified in division (I) of this section is applicable, each of the following shall be provided with a long-term care consultation:

(a) An individual who applies or indicates an intention to apply for admission to a nursing facility, regardless of the source of payment to be used for the individual's care in a nursing facility;

(b) An individual who requests a long-term care consultation;

(c) An individual identified by the department or a program administrator as being likely to benefit from a long-term care consultation.

(2) In addition to the individuals specified in division (G)(1) of this section, a long-term care consultation may be provided to a nursing facility resident regardless of the source of payment being used for the resident's care in the nursing facility.

(H)(1) Except as provided in division (H)(2) or (3) of this section, a long-term care consultation provided pursuant to division (G) of this section shall be provided as follows:

(a) If the individual for whom the consultation is being provided has applied for medicaid and the consultation is being provided concurrently with the assessment required under section 5111.204 of the Revised Code, the consultation shall be completed in accordance with the applicable time frames specified in that section for providing a level of care determination based on the assessment.

(b) In all other cases, the consultation shall be provided not later than five calendar days after the department or program administrator receives notice of the reason for which the consultation is to be provided pursuant to division (G) of this section.

(2) An individual or the individual's representative may request that a long-term care consultation be provided on a date that is later than the date required under division (H)(1)(a) or (b) of this section.

(3) If a long-term care consultation cannot be completed within the number of days required by division (H)(1) or (2) of this section, the department or program administrator may do any of the following:

(a) In the case of an individual specified in division (G)(1) of this

section, exempt the individual from the consultation pursuant to rules that may be adopted under division (L) of this section;

(b) In the case of an applicant for admission to a nursing facility, provide the consultation after the individual is admitted to the nursing facility;

(c) In the case of a resident of a nursing facility, provide the consultation as soon as practicable.

(I) An individual is not required to be provided a long-term care consultation under division (G)(1) of this section if any of the following apply:

(1) The department or program administrator has attempted to provide the consultation, but the individual or the individual's representative refuses to cooperate;

(2) The individual is to receive care in a nursing facility under a contract for continuing care as defined in section 173.13 of the Revised Code;

(3) The individual has a contractual right to admission to a nursing facility operated as part of a system of continuing care in conjunction with one or more facilities that provide a less intensive level of services, including a residential care facility licensed under Chapter 3721. of the Revised Code, an adult care facility licensed under ~~Chapter 3722.~~ sections 5119.70 to 5119.88 of the Revised Code, or an independent living arrangement;

(4) The individual is to receive continual care in a home for the aged exempt from taxation under section 5701.13 of the Revised Code;

(5) The individual is seeking admission to a facility that is not a nursing facility with a provider agreement under section 5111.22, 5111.671, or 5111.672 of the Revised Code;

(6) The individual is exempted from the long-term care consultation requirement by the department or the program administrator pursuant to rules that may be adopted under division (L) of this section.

(J) As part of the long-term care consultation program, the department or program administrator shall assist an individual or individual's representative in accessing all sources of care and services that are appropriate for the individual and for which the individual is eligible, including all available home and community-based services covered by medicaid components the department of aging administers. The assistance shall include providing for the conduct of assessments or other evaluations and the development of individualized plans of care or services under section 173.424 of the Revised Code.

(K) No nursing facility for which an operator has a provider agreement

under section 5111.22, 5111.671, or 5111.672 of the Revised Code shall admit any individual as a resident, unless the nursing facility has received evidence that a long-term care consultation has been completed for the individual or division (I) of this section is applicable to the individual.

(L) The director of aging may adopt any rules the director considers necessary for the implementation and administration of this section. The rules shall be adopted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code and may specify any or all of the following:

(1) Procedures for providing long-term care consultations pursuant to this section;

(2) Information to be provided through long-term care consultations regarding long-term care services that are available;

(3) Criteria and procedures to be used to identify and recommend appropriate service options for an individual receiving a long-term care consultation;

(4) Criteria for exempting individuals from the long-term care consultation requirement;

(5) Circumstances under which it may be appropriate to provide an individual's long-term care consultation after the individual's admission to a nursing facility rather than before admission;

(6) Criteria for identifying nursing facility residents who would benefit from the provision of a long-term care consultation;

(7) A description of the types of information from a nursing facility that is needed under the long-term care consultation program to assist a resident with relocation from the facility;

(8) Standards to prevent conflicts of interest relative to the referrals made by a person who performs a long-term care consultation, including standards that prohibit the person from being employed by a provider of long-term care services;

(9) Procedures for providing notice and an opportunity for a hearing under division (N) of this section.

(M) To assist the department and each program administrator with identifying individuals who are likely to benefit from a long-term care consultation, the department and program administrator may ask to be given access to nursing facility resident assessment data collected through the use of the resident assessment instrument specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code for purposes of the medicaid program. Except when prohibited by state or federal law, the department of health, department of job and family services, or nursing facility holding the data shall grant access to the data on receipt of the request from the department

of aging or program administrator.

(N)(1) The director of aging, after providing notice and an opportunity for a hearing, may fine a nursing facility an amount determined by rules the director shall adopt in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code for any of the following reasons:

(a) The nursing facility admits an individual, without evidence that a long-term care consultation has been provided, as required by this section;

(b) The nursing facility denies a person attempting to provide a long-term care consultation access to the facility or a resident of the facility;

(c) The nursing facility denies the department of aging or program administrator access to the facility or a resident of the facility, as the department or administrator considers necessary to administer the program.

(2) In accordance with section 5111.62 of the Revised Code, all fines collected under division (N)(1) of this section shall be deposited into the state treasury to the credit of the residents protection fund.

Sec. 173.45. As used in this section and in sections 173.46 to 173.49 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Adult care facility" has the same meaning as in section 5119.70 of the Revised Code.

(B) "Community-based long-term care services" has the same meaning as in section 173.14 of the Revised Code.

(C) "Long-term care facility" means a nursing home or residential care facility.

~~(B)~~(D) "Nursing home" and "residential care facility" have the same meanings as in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code.

~~(C)~~(E) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 173.46. (A) The department of aging shall develop and publish a guide to long-term care facilities for use by individuals considering long-term care facility admission and their families, friends, and advisors. The guide, which shall be titled the Ohio long-term care consumer guide, may be published in printed form or in electronic form for distribution over the internet. The guide may be developed as a continuation or modification of the guide published by the department prior to ~~the effective date of this section~~ September 29, 2005, under rules adopted under section 173.02 of the Revised Code.

(B) The Ohio long-term care consumer guide shall include information on each long-term care facility in this state. For each facility, the guide shall include the following information, as applicable to the facility:

(1) Information regarding the facility's compliance with state statutes

and rules and federal statutes and regulations;

(2) Information generated by the centers for medicare and medicaid services of the United States department of health and human services from the quality measures developed as part of its nursing home quality initiative;

(3) Results of the customer satisfaction surveys conducted under section 173.47 of the Revised Code;

(4) Any other information the department specifies in rules adopted under section 173.49 of the Revised Code.

(C) The Ohio long-term care consumer guide may include information on adult care facilities and providers of community-based long-term care services. The department may adopt rules under section 173.49 of the Revised Code to specify the information to be included in the guide pursuant to this division.

Sec. 173.47. (A) For purposes of publishing the Ohio long-term care consumer guide, the department of aging shall conduct or provide for the conduct of an annual customer satisfaction survey of each long-term care facility. The results of the surveys may include information obtained from long-term care facility residents, their families, or both.

~~(B)(1) The department may charge fees for the conduct of annual customer satisfaction surveys. The department may contract with any person or government entity to collect the fees on its behalf. All fees collected under this section shall be deposited in accordance with section 173.48 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(2) The fees charged under this section shall not exceed the following amounts:~~

~~(a) Four hundred dollars for the customer satisfaction survey of a long-term care facility that is a nursing home;~~

~~(b) Three hundred dollars for the customer satisfaction survey pertaining to a long-term care facility that is a residential care facility.~~

~~(3) Fees paid by a long-term care facility that is a nursing facility shall be reimbursed through the medicaid program operated under Chapter 5111 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(C) Each long-term care facility shall cooperate in the conduct of its annual customer satisfaction survey.~~

Sec. 173.48. (A)(1) The department of aging may charge annual fees to long-term care facilities for the publication of the Ohio long-term care consumer guide. The department may contract with any person or government entity to collect the fees on its behalf. All fees collected under this section shall be deposited in accordance with division (B) of this section.

(2) The annual fees charged under this section shall not exceed the following amounts:

(a) Six hundred fifty dollars for each long-term care facility that is a nursing home;

(b) Three hundred dollars for each long-term care facility that is a residential care facility.

(3) Fees paid by a long-term care facility that is a nursing facility shall be reimbursed through the medicaid program operated under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code.

~~(B) There is hereby created in the state treasury the long-term care consumer guide fund. Money collected from the fees charged for the conduct of customer satisfaction surveys~~ publication of the Ohio long-term care consumer guide under division (A) of this section 173.47 of the Revised Code shall be credited to the fund. The department of aging shall use money in the fund for costs associated with publishing the Ohio long-term care consumer guide, including, but not limited to, costs incurred in conducting or providing for the conduct of customer satisfaction surveys.

Sec. 173.501. (A) As used in this section:

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"PACE provider" has the same meaning as in 42 U.S.C. 1396u-4(a)(3).

(B) The department of aging shall establish a home first component of the PACE program under which eligible individuals may be enrolled in the PACE program in accordance with this section. An individual is eligible for the PACE program's home first component if ~~at~~ both of the following apply:

(1) The individual ~~is~~ has been determined to be eligible for the PACE program.

~~(2) The individual is on the unified waiting list established under section 173.404 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(3)~~ At least one of the following applies:

(a) The individual has been admitted to a nursing facility.

(b) A physician has determined and documented in writing that the individual has a medical condition that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PACE program, will require the individual to be admitted to a nursing facility within thirty days of the physician's determination.

(c) The individual has been hospitalized and a physician has determined and documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PACE program, the individual is

to be transported directly from the hospital to a nursing facility and admitted.

(d) Both of the following apply:

(i) The individual is the subject of a report made under section 5101.61 of the Revised Code regarding abuse, neglect, or exploitation or such a report referred to a county department of job and family services under section 5126.31 of the Revised Code or has made a request to a county department for protective services as defined in section 5101.60 of the Revised Code.

(ii) A county department of job and family services and an area agency on aging have jointly documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the PACE program, the individual should be admitted to a nursing facility.

(C) Each month, the department of aging shall identify individuals who are eligible for the home first component of the PACE program. When the department identifies such an individual, the department shall notify the PACE provider serving the area in which the individual resides. The PACE provider shall determine whether the PACE program is appropriate for the individual and whether the individual would rather participate in the PACE program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility. If the PACE provider determines that the PACE program is appropriate for the individual and the individual would rather participate in the PACE program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility, the PACE provider shall so notify the department of aging. On receipt of the notice from the PACE provider, the department of aging shall approve the individual's enrollment in the PACE program in accordance with priorities established in rules adopted under section 173.50 of the Revised Code.

~~(D) Each quarter, the department of aging shall certify to the director of budget and management the estimated increase in costs of the PACE program resulting from enrollment of individuals in the PACE program pursuant to this section.~~

~~Sec. 183.30. (A) Except as provided in division (C) of this section, no more than five per cent of the total disbursements, encumbrances, and obligations of the southern Ohio agricultural and community development foundation in a fiscal year shall be for administrative expenses of the foundation in the same fiscal year.~~

~~(B) Except as provided in division (C) of this section, no more than five per cent of the total disbursements, encumbrances, and obligations of the biomedical research and technology transfer trust fund in a fiscal year shall be for expenses relating to the administration of the trust fund by the third~~

Appendix 2

Ohio Revised Code Ch. 3721

(C) Stimulants

Unless specifically exempted or excluded under federal drug abuse control laws or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation that contains any quantity of the following substances having a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including their salts, isomers, and salts of isomers:

(1) Ephedrine, except as provided in division (K) of section 3719.44 of the Revised Code;

(2) Pyrovalerone.

Sec. 3721.01. (A) As used in sections 3721.01 to 3721.09 and 3721.99 of the Revised Code:

(1)(a) "Home" means an institution, residence, or facility that provides, for a period of more than twenty-four hours, whether for a consideration or not, accommodations to three or more unrelated individuals who are dependent upon the services of others, including a nursing home, residential care facility, home for the aging, and a veterans' home operated under Chapter 5907. of the Revised Code.

(b) "Home" also means both of the following:

(i) Any facility that a person, as defined in section 3702.51 of the Revised Code, proposes for certification as a skilled nursing facility or nursing facility under Title XVIII or XIX of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended, and for which a certificate of need, other than a certificate to recategorize hospital beds as described in section 3702.522 of the Revised Code or division (R)(7)(d) of the version of section 3702.51 of the Revised Code in effect immediately prior to April 20, 1995, has been granted to the person under sections 3702.51 to 3702.62 of the Revised Code after August 5, 1989;

(ii) A county home or district home that is or has been licensed as a residential care facility.

(c) "Home" does not mean any of the following:

(i) Except as provided in division (A)(1)(b) of this section, a public hospital or hospital as defined in section 3701.01 or 5122.01 of the Revised Code;

(ii) A residential facility for mentally ill persons as defined under section 5119.22 of the Revised Code;

(iii) A residential facility as defined in section 5123.19 of the Revised Code;

(iv) An adult care facility as defined in section ~~3722.01~~ 5119.70 of the Revised Code;

(v) An alcohol or drug addiction program as defined in section 3793.01

of the Revised Code;

(vi) A facility licensed to provide methadone treatment under section 3793.11 of the Revised Code;

(vii) A facility providing services under contract with the department of developmental disabilities under section 5123.18 of the Revised Code unless section 5123.192 of the Revised Code makes the facility subject to the requirements of this chapter;

(viii) A facility operated by a hospice care program licensed under section 3712.04 of the Revised Code that is used exclusively for care of hospice patients;

(ix) A facility, infirmary, or other entity that is operated by a religious order, provides care exclusively to members of religious orders who take vows of celibacy and live by virtue of their vows within the orders as if related, and does not participate in the medicare program established under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act" or the medical assistance program established under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code and Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," if on January 1, 1994, the facility, infirmary, or entity was providing care exclusively to members of the religious order;

(x) A county home or district home that has never been licensed as a residential care facility.

(2) "Unrelated individual" means one who is not related to the owner or operator of a home or to the spouse of the owner or operator as a parent, grandparent, child, grandchild, brother, sister, niece, nephew, aunt, uncle, or as the child of an aunt or uncle.

(3) "Mental impairment" does not mean mental illness as defined in section 5122.01 of the Revised Code or mental retardation as defined in section 5123.01 of the Revised Code.

(4) "Skilled nursing care" means procedures that require technical skills and knowledge beyond those the untrained person possesses and that are commonly employed in providing for the physical, mental, and emotional needs of the ill or otherwise incapacitated. "Skilled nursing care" includes, but is not limited to, the following:

(a) Irrigations, catheterizations, application of dressings, and supervision of special diets;

(b) Objective observation of changes in the patient's condition as a means of analyzing and determining the nursing care required and the need for further medical diagnosis and treatment;

(c) Special procedures contributing to rehabilitation;

(d) Administration of medication by any method ordered by a physician, such as hypodermically, rectally, or orally, including observation of the

patient after receipt of the medication;

(e) Carrying out other treatments prescribed by the physician that involve a similar level of complexity and skill in administration.

(5)(a) "Personal care services" means services including, but not limited to, the following:

(i) Assisting residents with activities of daily living;

(ii) Assisting residents with self-administration of medication, in accordance with rules adopted under section 3721.04 of the Revised Code;

(iii) Preparing special diets, other than complex therapeutic diets, for residents pursuant to the instructions of a physician or a licensed dietitian, in accordance with rules adopted under section 3721.04 of the Revised Code.

(b) "Personal care services" does not include "skilled nursing care" as defined in division (A)(4) of this section. A facility need not provide more than one of the services listed in division (A)(5)(a) of this section to be considered to be providing personal care services.

(6) "Nursing home" means a home used for the reception and care of individuals who by reason of illness or physical or mental impairment require skilled nursing care and of individuals who require personal care services but not skilled nursing care. A nursing home is licensed to provide personal care services and skilled nursing care.

(7) "Residential care facility" means a home that provides either of the following:

(a) Accommodations for seventeen or more unrelated individuals and supervision and personal care services for three or more of those individuals who are dependent on the services of others by reason of age or physical or mental impairment;

(b) Accommodations for three or more unrelated individuals, supervision and personal care services for at least three of those individuals who are dependent on the services of others by reason of age or physical or mental impairment, and, to at least one of those individuals, any of the skilled nursing care authorized by section 3721.011 of the Revised Code.

(8) "Home for the aging" means a home that provides services as a residential care facility and a nursing home, except that the home provides its services only to individuals who are dependent on the services of others by reason of both age and physical or mental impairment.

The part or unit of a home for the aging that provides services only as a residential care facility is licensed as a residential care facility. The part or unit that may provide skilled nursing care beyond the extent authorized by section 3721.011 of the Revised Code is licensed as a nursing home.

(9) "County home" and "district home" mean a county home or district

home operated under Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code.

(B) The public health council may further classify homes. For the purposes of this chapter, any residence, institution, hotel, congregate housing project, or similar facility that meets the definition of a home under this section is such a home regardless of how the facility holds itself out to the public.

(C) For purposes of this chapter, personal care services or skilled nursing care shall be considered to be provided by a facility if they are provided by a person employed by or associated with the facility or by another person pursuant to an agreement to which neither the resident who receives the services nor the resident's sponsor is a party.

(D) Nothing in division (A)(4) of this section shall be construed to permit skilled nursing care to be imposed on an individual who does not require skilled nursing care.

Nothing in division (A)(5) of this section shall be construed to permit personal care services to be imposed on an individual who is capable of performing the activity in question without assistance.

(E) Division (A)(1)(c)(ix) of this section does not prohibit a facility, infirmary, or other entity described in that division from seeking licensure under sections 3721.01 to 3721.09 of the Revised Code or certification under Title XVIII or XIX of the "Social Security Act." However, such a facility, infirmary, or entity that applies for licensure or certification must meet the requirements of those sections or titles and the rules adopted under them and obtain a certificate of need from the director of health under section 3702.52 of the Revised Code.

(F) Nothing in this chapter, or rules adopted pursuant to it, shall be construed as authorizing the supervision, regulation, or control of the spiritual care or treatment of residents or patients in any home who rely upon treatment by prayer or spiritual means in accordance with the creed or tenets of any recognized church or religious denomination.

Sec. 3721.011. (A) In addition to providing accommodations, supervision, and personal care services to its residents, a residential care facility may ~~provide~~ do the following:

(1) Provide the following skilled nursing care to its residents ~~as follows~~:

~~(1)(a)~~ Supervision of special diets;

~~(2)(b)~~ Application of dressings, in accordance with rules adopted under section 3721.04 of the Revised Code;

~~(3)(c)~~ Subject to division (B)(1) of this section, administration of medication;

~~(4).~~

(2) Subject to division (C) of this section, provide other skilled nursing care ~~provided~~ on a part-time, intermittent basis for not more than a total of one hundred twenty days in a twelve-month period;

~~(5) Subject to division (D) of this section, (3) Provide~~ skilled nursing care ~~provided~~ for more than one hundred twenty days in a twelve-month period to a ~~hospice patient, as defined in section 3712.01 of the Revised Code~~ resident when the requirements of division (D) of this section are met.

A residential care facility may not admit or retain an individual requiring skilled nursing care that is not authorized by this section. A residential care facility may not provide skilled nursing care beyond the limits established by this section.

(B)(1) A residential care facility may admit or retain an individual requiring medication, including biologicals, only if the individual's personal physician has determined in writing that the individual is capable of self-administering the medication or the facility provides for the medication to be administered to the individual by a home health agency certified under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 620 (1965), 42 U.S.C.A. 1395, as amended; a hospice care program licensed under Chapter 3712. of the Revised Code; or a member of the staff of the residential care facility who is qualified to perform medication administration. Medication may be administered in a residential care facility only by the following persons authorized by law to administer medication:

(a) A registered nurse licensed under Chapter 4723. of the Revised Code;

(b) A licensed practical nurse licensed under Chapter 4723. of the Revised Code who holds proof of successful completion of a course in medication administration approved by the board of nursing and who administers the medication only at the direction of a registered nurse or a physician authorized under Chapter 4731. of the Revised Code to practice medicine and surgery or osteopathic medicine and surgery;

(c) A medication aide certified under Chapter 4723. of the Revised Code;

(d) A physician authorized under Chapter 4731. of the Revised Code to practice medicine and surgery or osteopathic medicine and surgery.

(2) In assisting a resident with self-administration of medication, any member of the staff of a residential care facility may do the following:

(a) Remind a resident when to take medication and watch to ensure that the resident follows the directions on the container;

(b) Assist a resident by taking the medication from the locked area where it is stored, in accordance with rules adopted pursuant to section

3721.04 of the Revised Code, and handing it to the resident. If the resident is physically unable to open the container, a staff member may open the container for the resident.

(c) Assist a physically impaired but mentally alert resident, such as a resident with arthritis, cerebral palsy, or Parkinson's disease, in removing oral or topical medication from containers and in consuming or applying the medication, upon request by or with the consent of the resident. If a resident is physically unable to place a dose of medicine to the resident's mouth without spilling it, a staff member may place the dose in a container and place the container to the mouth of the resident.

(C) ~~A~~ Except as provided in division (D) of this section, a residential care facility may admit or retain individuals who require skilled nursing care beyond the supervision of special diets, application of dressings, or administration of medication, only if the care will be provided on a part-time, intermittent basis for not more than a total of one hundred twenty days in any twelve-month period. In accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, the public health council shall adopt rules specifying what constitutes the need for skilled nursing care on a part-time, intermittent basis. The council shall adopt rules that are consistent with rules pertaining to home health care adopted by the director of job and family services for the ~~medical assistance~~ medicaid program established under Chapter 5111. of the Revised Code. Skilled nursing care provided pursuant to this division may be provided by a home health agency certified under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," a hospice care program licensed under Chapter 3712. of the Revised Code, or a member of the staff of a residential care facility who is qualified to perform skilled nursing care.

A residential care facility that provides skilled nursing care pursuant to this division shall do both of the following:

(1) Evaluate each resident receiving the skilled nursing care at least once every seven days to determine whether the resident should be transferred to a nursing home;

(2) Meet the skilled nursing care needs of each resident receiving the care.

~~(D)~~(1) A residential care facility may admit or retain ~~a hospice patient~~ an individual who requires skilled nursing care for more than one hundred twenty days in any twelve-month period only if the facility has entered into a written agreement with each of the following:

(a) The individual or individual's sponsor;

(b) The individual's personal physician;

(c) Unless the individual's personal physician oversees the skilled

nursing care, the provider of the skilled nursing care:

(d) If the individual is a hospice patient as defined in section 3712.01 of the Revised Code, a hospice care program licensed under Chapter 3712. of the Revised Code. The

(2) The agreement between the residential care facility and hospice program required by division (D)(1) of this section shall include all of the following provisions:

(1)(a) That the hospice patient individual will be provided skilled nursing care in the facility only if a determination has been made that the patient's individual's needs can be met at the facility;

(2)(b) That the hospice patient individual will be retained in the facility only if periodic redeterminations are made that the patient's individual's needs are being met at the facility;

(3)(c) That the redeterminations will be made according to a schedule specified in the agreement;

(4) That the (d) If the individual is a hospice patient, that the individual has been given an opportunity to choose the hospice care program that best meets the patient's individual's needs;

(e) Unless the individual is a hospice patient, that the individual's personal physician has determined that the skilled nursing care the individual needs is routine.

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, a residential care facility in which residents receive skilled nursing care pursuant to this section is not a nursing home.

Sec. 3721.02. (A) The director of health shall license homes and establish procedures to be followed in inspecting and licensing homes. The director may inspect a home at any time. Each home shall be inspected by the director at least once prior to the issuance of a license and at least once every fifteen months thereafter. The state fire marshal or a township, municipal, or other legally constituted fire department approved by the marshal shall also inspect a home prior to issuance of a license, at least once every fifteen months thereafter, and at any other time requested by the director. A home does not have to be inspected prior to issuance of a license by the director, state fire marshal, or a fire department if ownership of the home is assigned or transferred to a different person and the home was licensed under this chapter immediately prior to the assignment or transfer. The director may enter at any time, for the purposes of investigation, any institution, residence, facility, or other structure that has been reported to the director or that the director has reasonable cause to believe is operating as a nursing home, residential care facility, or home for the aging without a valid

license required by section 3721.05 of the Revised Code or, in the case of a county home or district home, is operating despite the revocation of its residential care facility license. The director may delegate the director's authority and duties under this chapter to any division, bureau, agency, or official of the department of health.

(B) A single facility may be licensed both as a nursing home pursuant to this chapter and as an adult care facility pursuant to Chapter ~~3722.~~ 5119. of the Revised Code if the director determines that the part or unit to be licensed as a nursing home can be maintained separate and discrete from the part or unit to be licensed as an adult care facility.

(C) In determining the number of residents in a home for the purpose of licensing, the director shall consider all the individuals for whom the home provides accommodations as one group unless one of the following is the case:

(1) The home is a home for the aging, in which case all the individuals in the part or unit licensed as a nursing home shall be considered as one group, and all the individuals in the part or unit licensed as a rest home shall be considered as another group.

(2) The home is both a nursing home and an adult care facility. In that case, all the individuals in the part or unit licensed as a nursing home shall be considered as one group, and all the individuals in the part or unit licensed as an adult care facility shall be considered as another group.

(3) The home maintains, in addition to a nursing home or residential care facility, a separate and discrete part or unit that provides accommodations to individuals who do not require or receive skilled nursing care and do not receive personal care services from the home, in which case the individuals in the separate and discrete part or unit shall not be considered in determining the number of residents in the home if the separate and discrete part or unit is in compliance with the Ohio basic building code established by the board of building standards under Chapters 3781. and 3791. of the Revised Code and the home permits the director, on request, to inspect the separate and discrete part or unit and speak with the individuals residing there, if they consent, to determine whether the separate and discrete part or unit meets the requirements of this division.

(D)(1) The director of health shall charge the following application fee and annual renewal licensing and inspection fee for each fifty persons or part thereof of a home's licensed capacity:

- (a) For state fiscal year 2010, two hundred twenty dollars;
- (b) For state fiscal year 2011, two hundred seventy dollars;
- (c) For each state fiscal year thereafter, three hundred twenty dollars.

(2) All fees collected by the director for the issuance or renewal of licenses shall be deposited into the state treasury to the credit of the general operations fund created in section 3701.83 of the Revised Code for use only in administering and enforcing this chapter and rules adopted under it.

(E)(1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the results of an inspection or investigation of a home that is conducted under this section, including any statement of deficiencies and all findings and deficiencies cited in the statement on the basis of the inspection or investigation, shall be used solely to determine the home's compliance with this chapter or another chapter of the Revised Code in any action or proceeding other than an action commenced under division (I) of section 3721.17 of the Revised Code. Those results of an inspection or investigation, that statement of deficiencies, and the findings and deficiencies cited in that statement shall not be used in any court or in any action or proceeding that is pending in any court and are not admissible in evidence in any action or proceeding unless that action or proceeding is an appeal of an action by the department of health under this chapter or is an action by any department or agency of the state to enforce this chapter or another chapter of the Revised Code.

(2) Nothing in division (E)(1) of this section prohibits the results of an inspection or investigation conducted under this section from being used in a criminal investigation or prosecution.

Sec. 3721.022. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Deficiency" and "survey" have the same meanings as in section 5111.35 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department of health is hereby designated the state agency responsible for establishing and maintaining health standards and serving as the state survey agency for the purposes of Titles XVIII and XIX of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended. The department shall carry out these functions in accordance with the regulations, guidelines, and procedures issued under Titles XVIII and XIX by the United States secretary of health and human services and with sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code. The director of health shall enter into agreements with regard to these functions with the department of job and family services and the United States department of health and human services. The director may also enter into agreements with the department of job and family services under which the department of health is designated to perform functions under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code.

The director, in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, shall adopt rules necessary to implement the survey and certification requirements for skilled nursing facilities and nursing facilities established by the United States secretary of health and human services under Titles XVIII and XIX of the "Social Security Act," and the survey requirements established under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code. The rules shall include an informal process by which a facility may obtain a review up to two reviews of any deficiencies that have been cited on a statement of deficiencies made by the department of health under ~~section 5111.42 of the Revised Code~~ 42 C.F.R. Part 488 and cause the facility to be in noncompliance as defined in 42 C.F.R. 488.301. The first review shall be conducted by an employee of the department who did not participate in and was not otherwise involved in any way with the survey. ~~If the employee conducting the review determines~~ A facility that is not satisfied with the results of a first review may receive a second review on payment of a fee to the department. The amount of the fee shall be specified in rules adopted under this section. The fee shall be deposited into the state treasury to the credit of the general operations fund created in section 3701.83 of the Revised Code for use in the implementation of this section. The second review shall be conducted by either of the following as selected by the facility: a hearing officer employed by the department or a hearing officer included on a list the department shall provide the facility. A final determination that any deficiency citation is unjustified, that determination shall be reflected clearly in all records relating to the survey.

The director need not adopt as rules any of the regulations, guidelines, or procedures issued under Titles XVIII and XIX of the "Social Security Act" by the United States secretary of health and human services.

Sec. 3721.04. (A) The public health council shall adopt and publish rules governing the operation of homes, which shall have uniform application throughout the state, and shall prescribe standards for homes with respect to, but not limited to, the following matters:

(1) The minimum space requirements for occupants and equipping of the buildings in which homes are housed so as to ensure healthful, safe, sanitary, and comfortable conditions for all residents, so long as they are not inconsistent with Chapters 3781. and 3791. of the Revised Code or with any rules adopted by the board of building standards and by the state fire marshal;

(2) The number and qualifications of personnel, including management and nursing staff, for each class of home, and the qualifications of nurse aides, as defined in section 3721.21 of the Revised Code, used by long-term

care facilities, as defined in that section;

(3) The medical, rehabilitative, and recreational services to be provided by each class of home;

(4) Dietetic services, including but not limited to sanitation, nutritional adequacy, and palatability of food;

(5) The personal and social services to be provided by each class of home;

(6) The business and accounting practices to be followed and the type of patient and business records to be kept by such homes;

(7) The operation of adult day-care programs provided by and on the same site as homes licensed under this chapter;

(8) The standards and procedures to be followed by residential care facilities in admitting and retaining a resident who requires the application of dressings, including requirements for charting and evaluating on a weekly basis;

(9) The requirements for conducting weekly evaluations of residents receiving skilled nursing care in residential care facilities.

(B) The public health council may adopt whatever additional rules are necessary to carry out or enforce the provisions of sections 3721.01 to 3721.09 and 3721.99 of the Revised Code.

(C) The following apply to the public health council when adopting rules under division (A)(1) of this section regarding the equipping of the buildings in which homes are housed:

(1) The rules shall not require that each resident sleeping room, or a percentage of the resident sleeping rooms, have a bathtub or shower that is directly accessible from or exclusively for the room.

(2) The rules shall require that the privacy and dignity of residents be protected when the residents are transported to and from bathing facilities, prepare for bathing, and bathe.

(D) The following apply to the public health council when adopting rules under division (A)(2) of this section regarding the number and qualifications of personnel in homes:

(1) When adopting rules applicable to residential care facilities, the public health council shall take into consideration the effect that the following may have on the number of personnel needed:

(a) Provision of personal care services;

(b) Provision of part-time, intermittent skilled nursing care pursuant to division (C) of section 3721.011 of the Revised Code;

(c) Provision of skilled nursing care to ~~hospice patients~~ residents pursuant to division (D) of section 3721.011 of the Revised Code.

(2) When adopting rules applicable to nursing homes, the public health council shall require each nursing home to do both of the following:

(a) Have sufficient direct care staff on each shift to meet the needs of the residents in an appropriate and timely manner;

(b) Have the following individuals provide a minimum daily average of two and one-half hours of direct care per resident:

(i) Registered nurses, including registered nurses who perform administrative and supervisory duties;

(ii) Licensed practical nurses, including licensed practical nurses who perform administrative and supervisory duties;

(iii) Nurse aides.

(3) The rules prescribing qualifications of nurse aides used by long-term care facilities, as those terms are defined in section 3721.21 of the Revised Code, shall be no less stringent than the requirements, guidelines, and procedures established by the United States secretary of health and human services under sections 1819 and 1919 of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended.

Sec. 3721.16. For each resident of a home, notice of a proposed transfer or discharge shall be in accordance with this section.

(A)(1) The administrator of a home shall notify a resident in writing, and the resident's sponsor in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, in advance of any proposed transfer or discharge from the home. The administrator shall send a copy of the notice to the state department of health. The notice shall be provided at least thirty days in advance of the proposed transfer or discharge, unless any of the following applies:

(a) The resident's health has improved sufficiently to allow a more immediate discharge or transfer to a less skilled level of care;

(b) The resident has resided in the home less than thirty days;

(c) An emergency arises in which the safety of individuals in the home is endangered;

(d) An emergency arises in which the health of individuals in the home would otherwise be endangered;

(e) An emergency arises in which the resident's urgent medical needs necessitate a more immediate transfer or discharge.

In any of the circumstances described in divisions (A)(1)(a) to (e) of this section, the notice shall be provided as many days in advance of the proposed transfer or discharge as is practicable.

(2) The notice required under division (A)(1) of this section shall include all of the following:

(a) The reasons for the proposed transfer or discharge;

(b) The proposed date the resident is to be transferred or discharged;

(c) ~~The Subject to division (A)(3) of this section, a proposed location to which the resident is to be transferred or discharged may relocate and a notice that the resident and resident's sponsor may choose another location to which the resident will relocate;~~

(d) Notice of the right of the resident and the resident's sponsor to an impartial hearing at the home on the proposed transfer or discharge, and of the manner in which and the time within which the resident or sponsor may request a hearing pursuant to section 3721.161 of the Revised Code;

(e) A statement that the resident will not be transferred or discharged before the date specified in the notice unless the home and the resident or, if the resident is not competent to make a decision, the home and the resident's sponsor, agree to an earlier date;

(f) The address of the legal services office of the department of health;

(g) The name, address, and telephone number of a representative of the state long-term care ombudsperson program and, if the resident or patient has a developmental disability or mental illness, the name, address, and telephone number of the Ohio legal rights service.

(3) The proposed location to which a resident may relocate as specified pursuant to division (A)(2)(c) of this section in the proposed transfer or discharge notice shall be capable of meeting the resident's healthcare and safety needs. The proposed location for relocation need not have accepted the resident at the time the notice is issued to the resident and resident's sponsor.

(B) No home shall transfer or discharge a resident before the date specified in the notice required by division (A) of this section unless the home and the resident or, if the resident is not competent to make a decision, the home and the resident's sponsor, agree to an earlier date.

(C) Transfer or discharge actions shall be documented in the resident's medical record by the home if there is a medical basis for the action.

(D) A resident or resident's sponsor may challenge a transfer or discharge by requesting an impartial hearing pursuant to section 3721.161 of the Revised Code, unless the transfer or discharge is required because of one of the following reasons:

(1) The home's license has been revoked under this chapter;

(2) The home is being closed pursuant to section 3721.08, sections 5111.35 to 5111.62, or section 5155.31 of the Revised Code;

(3) The resident is a recipient of medicaid and the home's participation in the medicaid program has been involuntarily terminated or denied by the federal government;

(4) The resident is a beneficiary under the medicare program and the home's certification under the medicare program has been involuntarily terminated or denied by the federal government.

(E) If a resident is transferred or discharged pursuant to this section, the home from which the resident is being transferred or discharged shall provide the resident with adequate preparation prior to the transfer or discharge to ensure a safe and orderly transfer or discharge from the home, and the home or alternative setting to which the resident is to be transferred or discharged shall have accepted the resident for transfer or discharge.

(F) At the time of a transfer or discharge of a resident who is a recipient of medicaid from a home to a hospital or for therapeutic leave, the home shall provide notice in writing to the resident and in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the resident's sponsor, specifying the number of days, if any, during which the resident will be permitted under the medicaid program to return and resume residence in the home and specifying the medicaid program's coverage of the days during which the resident is absent from the home. An individual who is absent from a home for more than the number of days specified in the notice and continues to require the services provided by the facility shall be given priority for the first available bed in a semi-private room.

Sec. 3721.50. As used in sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Bed surrender" means the following:

(1) In the case of a nursing home, the removal of a bed from a nursing home's licensed capacity in a manner that reduces the total licensed capacity of all nursing homes;

(2) In the case of a hospital, the removal of a hospital bed from registration under section 3701.07 of the Revised Code as a skilled nursing facility bed or long-term care bed in a manner that reduces the total number of hospital beds registered under that section as skilled nursing facility beds or long-term care beds.

(B) "Change of operator" means an entering operator becoming the operator of a nursing home or hospital in the place of the exiting operator.

(1) Actions that constitute a change of operator include the following:

(a) A change in an exiting operator's form of legal organization, including the formation of a partnership or corporation from a sole proprietorship;

(b) A transfer of all the exiting operator's ownership interest in the operation of the nursing home or hospital to the entering operator, regardless of whether ownership of any or all of the real property or personal property

associated with the nursing home or hospital is also transferred:

(c) A lease of the nursing home or hospital to the entering operator or the exiting operator's termination of the exiting operator's lease;

(d) If the exiting operator is a partnership, dissolution of the partnership;

(e) If the exiting operator is a partnership, a change in composition of the partnership unless both of the following apply:

(i) The change in composition does not cause the partnership's dissolution under state law.

(ii) The partners agree that the change in composition does not constitute a change in operator.

(f) If the operator is a corporation, dissolution of the corporation, a merger of the corporation into another corporation that is the survivor of the merger, or a consolidation of one or more other corporations to form a new corporation.

(2) The following, alone, do not constitute a change of operator:

(a) A contract for an entity to manage a nursing home or hospital as the operator's agent, subject to the operator's approval of daily operating and management decisions;

(b) A change of ownership, lease, or termination of a lease of real property or personal property associated with a nursing home or hospital if an entering operator does not become the operator in place of an exiting operator;

(c) If the operator is a corporation, a change of one or more members of the corporation's governing body or transfer of ownership of one or more shares of the corporation's stock, if the same corporation continues to be the operator.

(C) "Effective date of a change of operator" means the day an entering operator becomes the operator of a nursing home or hospital.

(D) "Entering operator" means the person or government entity that will become the operator of a nursing home or hospital on the effective date of a change of operator.

(E) "Exiting operator" means an operator that will cease to be the operator of a nursing home or hospital on the effective date of a change of operator.

(F) "Franchise permit fee rate" means the amount determined as follows following:

(1) Determine the difference between the following:

(a) The total net patient revenue, less medicaid per diem payments, of all nursing homes and hospital long-term care units as shown on cost reports filed under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code for the calendar year

~~immediately preceding the fiscal year for which the franchise permit fee is assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code~~ For fiscal year 2012, eleven dollars and forty-seven cents;

~~(b) The total net patient revenue, less medicaid per diem payments, of all nursing homes and hospital long-term care units as shown on cost reports filed under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code for the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year that immediately precedes the fiscal year for which the franchise permit fee is assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(2) Multiply the amount determined under division (A)(1) of this section by five and five-tenths per cent;~~

~~(3) Divide the amount determined under division (A)(2) of this section by the total number of days in the fiscal year for which the franchise permit fee is assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code;~~

~~(4) Subtract eleven dollars and ninety five cents from the amount determined under division (A)(3) of this section;~~

~~(5) Add eleven dollars and ninety five cents to the amount determined under division (A)(4) of this section~~ For fiscal year 2013 and each fiscal year thereafter, eleven dollars and sixty-seven cents.

~~(B)~~(G) "Hospital" has the same meaning as in section 3727.01 of the Revised Code.

~~(C)~~(H) "Hospital long-term care unit" means any distinct part of a hospital in which any of the following beds are located:

(1) Beds registered pursuant to section 3701.07 of the Revised Code as skilled nursing facility beds or long-term care beds;

(2) Beds licensed as nursing home beds under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code.

~~(D)~~(I) "Indirect guarantee percentage" means the percentage specified in section 1903(w)(4)(C)(ii) of the "Social Security Act," 120 Stat. 2994 (2006), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w)(4)(C)(ii) that is to be used in determining whether a class of providers is indirectly held harmless for any portion of the costs of a broad-based health-care-related tax. If the indirect guarantee percentage changes during a fiscal year, the indirect guarantee percentage is the following:

(1) For the part of the fiscal year before the change takes effect, the percentage in effect before the change;

(2) For the part of the fiscal year beginning with the date the indirect guarantee percentage changes, the new percentage.

(J) "Inpatient days" means all days during which a resident of a nursing facility, regardless of payment source, occupies a bed in the nursing facility

that is included in the facility's certified capacity under Title XIX. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code are considered inpatient days proportionate to the percentage of the facility's per resident per day rate paid for those days.

~~(E)~~(K) "Medicaid" has the same meaning as in section 5111.01 of the Revised Code.

~~(F)~~(L) "Medicaid day" means all days during which a resident who is a medicaid recipient occupies a bed in a nursing facility that is included in the facility's certified capacity under Title XIX. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code are considered medicaid days proportionate to the percentage of the nursing facility's per resident per day rate for those days.

~~(G)~~(M) "Medicare" means the program established by Title XVIII.

~~(H)~~(N) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

~~(I)~~(O)(1) "Nursing home" means all of the following:

(a) A nursing home licensed under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code, including any part of a home for the aging licensed as a nursing home;

(b) A facility or part of a facility, other than a hospital, that is certified as a skilled nursing facility under Title XVIII;

(c) A nursing facility, other than a portion of a hospital certified as a nursing facility.

(2) "Nursing home" does not include any of the following:

(a) A county home, county nursing home, or district home operated pursuant to Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code;

(b) A nursing home maintained and operated by the department of veterans services under section 5907.01 of the Revised Code;

(c) A nursing home or part of a nursing home licensed under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code that is certified as an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded under Title XIX.

~~(J)~~(P) "Operator" means the person or government entity responsible for the daily operating and management decisions for a nursing home or hospital.

(Q) "Title XIX" means Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396, as amended.

~~(K)~~(R) "Title XVIII" means Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended.

Sec. 3721.51. The department of job and family services shall do all of the following:

(A) Subject to sections 3721.512 ~~and~~, 3721.513, and 3721.531 of the Revised Code and divisions (C) and (D) of this section and for the purposes specified in ~~sections~~ section 3721.56 ~~and 3721.561~~ of the Revised Code, determine an annual franchise permit fee on each nursing home in an amount equal to the franchise permit fee rate multiplied by the product of the following:

(1) The number of beds licensed as nursing home beds, plus any other beds certified as skilled nursing facility beds under Title XVIII or nursing facility beds under Title XIX on the first day of May of the calendar year in which the fee is determined pursuant to division (A) of section 3721.53 of the Revised Code;

(2) The number of days in the fiscal year beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year in which the fee is determined pursuant to division (A) of section 3721.53 of the Revised Code.

(B) Subject to sections 3721.512 ~~and~~, 3721.513, and 3721.531 of the Revised Code and divisions (C) and (D) of this section and for the purposes specified in ~~sections~~ section 3721.56 ~~and 3721.561~~ of the Revised Code, determine an annual franchise permit fee on each hospital in an amount equal to the franchise permit fee rate multiplied by the product of the following:

(1) The number of beds registered pursuant to section 3701.07 of the Revised Code as skilled nursing facility beds or long-term care beds, plus any other beds licensed as nursing home beds under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code, on the first day of May of the calendar year in which the fee is determined pursuant to division (A) of section 3721.53 of the Revised Code;

(2) The number of days in the fiscal year beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year in which the fee is determined pursuant to division (A) of section 3721.53 of the Revised Code.

(C) If the total amount of the franchise permit fee assessed under divisions (A) and (B) of this section for a fiscal year exceeds ~~five and one-half per cent~~ the indirect guarantee percentage of the actual net patient revenue for all nursing homes and hospital long-term care units for that fiscal year, do both of the following:

(1) Recalculate the assessments under divisions (A) and (B) of this section using a per bed per day rate equal to ~~five and one-half per cent~~ the indirect guarantee percentage of actual net patient revenue for all nursing homes and hospital long-term care units for that fiscal year;

(2) Refund the difference between the amount of the franchise permit fee assessed for that fiscal year under divisions (A) and (B) of this section

and the amount recalculated under division (C)(1) of this section as a credit against the assessments imposed under divisions (A) and (B) of this section for the subsequent fiscal year.

(D) If the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services determines that the franchise permit fee established by sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code is an impermissible health care-related tax under section 1903(w) of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w), as amended, take all necessary actions to cease implementation of sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code in accordance with rules adopted under section 3721.58 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3721.511. (A) Not later than four months after ~~the effective date of this section~~ July 17, 2009, the department of job and family services shall apply to the United States secretary of health and human services for a waiver under 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w)(3)(E) as necessary to do both of the following regarding the franchise permit fee ~~imposed by~~ assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code:

(1) Reduce the franchise permit fee rate to zero dollars for each nursing home licensed under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code to which either of the following applies:

(a) The nursing home:

(i) Is exempt from state taxation under section 140.08 of the Revised Code or is exempt from state taxation as a home for the aged as defined in section 5701.13 of the Revised Code;

(ii) Is exempt from federal income taxation under section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;

(iii) Does not participate in medicaid or medicare; and

(iv) Provides services for the life of each resident without regard to the resident's ability to secure payment for the services.

(b) The nursing home:

(i) Has had a written affiliation agreement with a university in this state for education and research related to Alzheimer's disease for each of the twenty years preceding ~~the effective date of this section~~ July 17, 2009, and has such an agreement on ~~the effective date of this section~~ July 17, 2009;

(ii) Was constructed pursuant to a certificate of need granted under Section 3 of Am. Sub. S.B. 256 of the 116th ~~General Assembly~~ general assembly; and

(iii) Does not participate in medicaid or medicare.

(2) For each nursing facility with more than two hundred beds certified as nursing facility beds under Title XIX, reduce the franchise permit fee rate for a number of the nursing facility's beds specified by the department to the

amount necessary to obtain approval of the waiver sought under this section.

(B) The effective date of the waiver sought under this section shall be the first day of the ~~calendar~~ quarter beginning after the United States secretary approves the waiver.

Sec. 3721.512. If the United States secretary of health and human services approves the waiver sought under section 3721.511 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services shall, for each nursing home and hospital that qualifies for a reduction of its franchise permit fee rate under the waiver, reduce the franchise permit fee rate in accordance with the terms of the waiver. For purposes of the first fiscal year during which the waiver takes effect, the department shall determine the amount of the reduction not later than the effective date of the waiver and shall mail to each nursing home and hospital qualifying for the reduction notice of the reduction not later than the last day of the first month of the ~~calendar~~ quarter that begins after the United States secretary approves the waiver. For purposes of subsequent fiscal years, the department shall make such determinations and mail such notices in accordance with section 3721.53 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3721.513. (A) If the United States secretary of health and human services approves the waiver sought under section 3721.511 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services may do both of the following regarding the franchise permit fee ~~imposed by~~ assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code:

(1) Determine how much money the franchise permit fee would have raised in a fiscal year if not for the waiver;

(2) For each nursing home and hospital subject to the franchise permit fee, other than a nursing home or hospital that has its franchise permit fee rate reduced under section 3721.512 of the Revised Code, uniformly increase the amount of the franchise permit fee rate for a fiscal year to an amount that will have the franchise permit fee raise an amount of money that does not exceed the amount determined under division (A)(1) of this section for that fiscal year.

(B) If the department increases the franchise permit fee rate in accordance with division (A) of this section for the first fiscal year during which the waiver takes effect, the department shall determine the amount of the increase not later than the effective date of the waiver and shall mail to each nursing home and hospital subject to the increase notice of the increase not later than the last day of the first month of the ~~calendar~~ quarter that begins after the United States secretary approves the waiver. If the department increases the franchise permit fee rate in accordance with

division (A) of this section for a subsequent fiscal year, the department shall make such determinations and mail such notices in accordance with section 3721.53 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3721.52. The department of health shall do all of the following:

(A) For the purpose of the fee determinations made under ~~division divisions~~ (A) and (B) of section 3721.51 of the Revised Code, ~~the department of health shall,~~ and not later than the first day of each June, report to the department of job and family services the following:

(1) For each nursing home, the number of beds in ~~each~~ the nursing home licensed on the preceding first day of May under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code or certified on that date under Title XVIII or XIX:

~~(B) For the purpose of the fee under division (B) of section 3721.51 of the Revised Code, the department of health shall, not later than the first day of each June, report to the department of job and family services;~~

(2) For each hospital, the number of beds in ~~each~~ the hospital registered on the preceding first day of May pursuant to section 3701.07 of the Revised Code as skilled nursing facility or long-term care beds or licensed on that date under section 3721.02 or 3721.09 of the Revised Code as nursing home beds.

(B) For the purpose of the redetermination under section 3721.531 of the Revised Code and not later than the fifteenth day of each January, report to the department of job and family services, for each nursing home and hospital, the number of beds for which a bed surrender occurred during the period beginning on the first day of May of the preceding calendar year and ending on the first day of January of the calendar year in which the redetermination is made.

Sec. 3721.53. (A) Not later than the fifteenth day of September of each year, the department of job and family services shall determine the annual franchise permit fee for each nursing home and hospital in accordance with section 3721.51 of the Revised Code and any adjustments made in accordance with sections 3721.512 and 3721.513 of the Revised Code.

(B) Not later than the first day of October of each year, the department shall mail to each nursing home and hospital notice of the amount of the franchise permit fee that has been determined for the nursing home or hospital.

(C) ~~Each~~ Subject to section 3721.531 of the Revised Code, each nursing home and hospital shall pay its fee under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code, as adjusted in accordance with sections 3721.512 and 3721.513 of the Revised Code, to the department in four installment payments not later than

forty-five days after the last day of each October, December, March, and June.

~~(D) No nursing home or hospital shall directly bill its residents for the fee paid under this section, or otherwise directly pass the fee through to its residents.~~

Sec. 3721.531. (A) Not later than the last day of February of each year, the department of job and family services shall redetermine each nursing home's and hospital's franchise permit fee if one or more bed surrenders occur during the period beginning on the first day of May of the preceding calendar year and ending on the first day of January of the calendar year in which the redetermination is made.

(B) In redetermining nursing homes' and hospitals' franchise permit fees under this section, the department shall do both of the following:

(1) Provide for the redetermination to be conducted in a manner consistent with the terms of the waiver sought under section 3721.511 of the Revised Code:

(2) Recalculate each nursing home's and hospital's franchise permit fee in accordance with division (A) or (B) of section 3721.51 of the Revised Code with the following changes:

(a) In the case of a nursing home or hospital for which one or more bed surrenders occurred during the period beginning on the first day of May of the preceding calendar year and ending on the first day of January of the calendar year in which the redetermination is made, the number of beds included in the calculation for the purpose of division (A)(1) or (B)(1) of section 3721.51 of the Revised Code shall exclude the beds for which bed surrenders occurred during that period.

(b) The number of days used in the calculation under division (A)(2) or (B)(2) of section 3721.51 of the Revised Code shall be the number of days in the first half of the calendar year in which the redetermination is made.

(c) The franchise permit fee rate shall reflect adjustments made under sections 3721.512 and 3721.513 of the Revised Code.

(C) Not later than the first day of March of each year, the department shall mail to each nursing home and hospital notice of the amount of its redetermined franchise permit fee.

(D) Each nursing home and hospital shall pay its redetermined fee to the department in two installment payments not later than forty-five days after the last day of March and June of the calendar year in which the redetermination is made.

Sec. 3721.532. If a nursing home or hospital undergoes a change of operator during a fiscal year, the responsibility for paying the franchise

permit fee that was determined for the nursing home or hospital under section 3721.53 of the Revised Code, or redetermined for the nursing home or hospital under section 3721.531 of the Revised Code, for that fiscal year shall be divided proportionally. The exiting operator shall be responsible for paying the amount of the fee that is for the part of the fiscal year that ends on the day before the effective date of the change of operator. The entering operator shall be responsible for paying the amount of the fee that is for the part of the fiscal year that begins on the effective date of the change of operator. The department of job and family services is not required to mail a notice to the entering operator regarding the amount of that fiscal year's fee for which the entering operator is responsible.

Sec. 3721.533. No nursing home or hospital shall directly bill its residents for the franchise permit fee paid under section 3721.53 or 3721.531 of the Revised Code or otherwise directly pass the fee through to its residents.

Sec. 3721.55. (A) A nursing home or hospital may appeal the fee ~~imposed~~ assessed under section 3721.51 of the Revised Code, as adjusted under section 3721.512 or 3721.513 of the Revised Code, and redetermined under section 3721.531 of the Revised Code solely on the grounds that the department of job and family services committed a material error in determining or redetermining the amount of the fee. A request for an appeal must be received by the department not later than fifteen days after the date the department mails the notice of the fee and must include written materials setting forth the basis for the appeal.

(B) If a nursing home or hospital submits a request for an appeal within the time required under division (A) of this section, the department of job and family services shall hold a public hearing in Columbus not later than thirty days after the date the department receives the request for an appeal. The department shall, not later than ten days before the date of the hearing, mail a notice of the date, time, and place of the hearing to the nursing home or hospital. The department may hear all the requested appeals in one public hearing.

(C) On the basis of the evidence presented at the hearing or any other evidence submitted by the nursing home or hospital, the department may adjust a fee. The department's decision is final.

~~Sec. 3721.561~~ 3721.56. (A) There is hereby created in the state treasury the nursing ~~facility stabilization~~ home franchise permit fee fund. All payments and penalties paid by nursing homes and hospitals under sections 3721.53, 3721.531, and 3721.54 of the Revised Code ~~that are not deposited into the home and community-based services for the aged fund~~ shall be

deposited into the fund. The fund shall also consist of money deposited into it pursuant to sections 3769.08 and 3769.26 of the Revised Code. Subject to division (B) of section 3769.08 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services shall use the money in the fund to make medicaid payments to providers of nursing facilities facility services and providers of home and community-based services. Money in the fund may also be used for the residential state supplement program established under section 5119.69 of the Revised Code.

(B) Any money remaining in the nursing ~~facility stabilization~~ home franchise permit fee fund after payments specified in division (A) of this section are made shall be retained in the fund. Any interest or other investment proceeds earned on money in the fund shall be credited to the fund and used to make medicaid payments in accordance with division (A) of this section.

Sec. 3721.58. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to do ~~at~~ both of the following:

(A) Prescribe the actions the department of job and family services will take to cease implementation of sections 3721.50 through 3721.57 of the Revised Code if the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services determines that the franchise permit fee established by those sections is an impermissible health-care related tax under section 1903(w) of the "Social Security Act," 49 105 Stat. ~~620~~ 1793 (~~1935~~ 1991), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w), as amended;

(B) ~~Establish the method of distributing moneys in the home and community-based services for the aged fund created under section 3721.56 of the Revised Code;~~

(~~C~~) Establish any requirements or procedures the director considers necessary to implement sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 3733.41. As used in sections 3733.41 to 3733.49 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Agricultural labor camp" means one or more buildings or structures, trailers, tents, or vehicles, together with any land appertaining thereto, established, operated, or used as temporary living quarters for two or more families or five or more persons intending to engage in or engaged in agriculture or related food processing, whether occupancy is by rent, lease, or mutual agreement. "Agricultural labor camp" does not include a hotel or motel, or a ~~trailer~~ manufactured home park as defined and regulated pursuant to sections section 3733.01 to 3733.08 of the Revised Code, and rules adopted thereunder.

Appendix 3

Ohio Revised Code Ch. 5111

licensee of a center or type A home, the conviction shall constitute grounds for denial, or revocation, ~~or refusal to renew~~ of an application for licensure pursuant to section 5104.04 of the Revised Code. If the offender is a person eighteen years of age or older residing in a center or type A home or is an employee of a center or a type A home and if the licensee had knowledge of, and acquiesced in, the commission of the offense, the conviction shall constitute grounds for denial, or revocation, ~~or refusal to renew~~ of an application for licensure pursuant to section 5104.04 of the Revised Code.

(C) Whoever violates division (C) of section 5104.09 of the Revised Code is guilty of a misdemeanor of the third degree.

Sec. 5111.011. (A) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules establishing eligibility requirements for the medicaid program. The rules shall be adopted pursuant to section 111.15 of the Revised Code and shall be consistent with federal and state law. The rules shall include rules that do all of the following:

(1) Establish standards consistent with federal law for allocating income and resources as income and resources of the spouse, children, parents, or stepparents of a recipient of or applicant for medicaid;

(2) Define the term "resources" as used in division (A)(1) of this section;

(3) Specify the number of months that is to be used for the purpose of the term "look-back date" used in section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code;

(4) Establish processes to be used to determine both of the following:

(a) The date an institutionalized individual's ineligibility for services under section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code is to begin;

(b) The number of months an institutionalized individual's ineligibility for such services is to continue.

(5) ~~Establish exceptions to~~ For the purpose of division (C) of section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code, establish procedures for granting waivers of all or a portion of the period of ineligibility that an institutionalized individual would otherwise be subject to under that section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code and additional reasons for which such waivers may be granted;

(6) Define the term "other medicaid-funded long-term care services" as used in sections 5111.0117 and 5111.0118 of the Revised Code;

(7) For the purpose of division (C)(2)(c) of section 5111.0117 of the Revised Code, establish the process to determine whether the child of an aged, blind, or disabled individual is financially dependent on the individual for housing.

(B) Notwithstanding any provision of state law, including statutes,

administrative rules, common law, and court rules, regarding real or personal property or domestic relations, the standards established under rules adopted under division (A)(1) of this section shall be used to determine eligibility for medicaid.

Sec. 5111.012. ~~The~~ (A) Except as provided in division (B) of this section, the county department of job and family services of each county shall establish the eligibility for medical assistance of persons living in the county, and shall notify the department of job and family services in the manner prescribed by the department. The county shall be reimbursed for administrative expenditures in accordance with sections 5101.16, 5101.161, and 5701.01 of the Revised Code. Expenditures for medical assistance shall be made from funds appropriated to the department of job and family services for public assistance subsidies. The program shall conform to the requirements of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended.

(B) If the department of job and family services elects to enter into agreements with county departments of job and family services pursuant to division (B) of section 5101.47 of the Revised Code, a county department of job and family services shall establish eligibility for medical assistance only if authorized to do so under such an agreement.

Sec. 5111.013. (A) The provision of medical assistance to pregnant women and young children who are eligible for medical assistance under division (A)(3) of section 5111.01 of the Revised Code, but who are not otherwise eligible for medical assistance under that section, shall be known as the healthy start program.

(B) The department of job and family services shall do all of the following with regard to the application procedures for the healthy start program:

(1) Establish a short application form for the program that requires the applicant to provide no more information than is necessary for making determinations of eligibility for the healthy start program, except that the form may require applicants to provide their social security numbers. The form shall include a statement, which must be signed by the applicant, indicating that she does not choose at the time of making application for the program to apply for assistance provided under any other program administered by the department and that she understands that she is permitted at any other time to apply at the county department of job and family services of the county in which she resides for any other assistance administered by the department.

(2) To the extent permitted by federal law, do one or both of the

following:

(a) Distribute the application form for the program to each public or private entity that serves as a women, infants, and children clinic or as a child and family health clinic and to each administrative body for such clinics and train employees of each such agency or entity to provide applicants assistance in completing the form;

(b) In cooperation with the department of health, develop arrangements under which employees of county departments of job and family services are stationed at public or private agencies or entities selected by the department of job and family services that serve as women, infants, and children clinics; child and family health clinics; or administrative bodies for such clinics for the purpose both of assisting applicants for the program in completing the application form and of making determinations at that location of eligibility for the program.

(3) Establish performance standards by which a county department of job and family services' level of enrollment of persons potentially eligible for the program can be measured, and establish acceptable levels of enrollment for each county department.

(4) Direct any county department of job and family services whose rate of enrollment of potentially eligible enrollees in the program is below acceptable levels established under division (B)(3) of this section to implement corrective action. Corrective action may include but is not limited to any one or more of the following to the extent permitted by federal law:

(a) Establishing formal referral and outreach methods with local health departments and local entities receiving funding through the bureau of maternal and child health;

(b) Designating a specialized intake unit within the county department for healthy start applicants;

(c) Establishing abbreviated timeliness requirements to shorten the time between receipt of an application and the scheduling of an initial application interview;

(d) Establishing a system for telephone scheduling of intake interviews for applicants;

(e) Establishing procedures to minimize the time an applicant must spend in completing the application and eligibility determination process, including permitting applicants to complete the process at times other than the regular business hours of the county department and at locations other than the offices of the county department.

(C) To the extent permitted by federal law, local funds, whether from

public or private sources, expended by a county department for administration of the healthy start program shall be considered to have been expended by the state for the purpose of determining the extent to which the state has complied with any federal requirement that the state provide funds to match federal funds for medical assistance, except that this division shall not affect the amount of funds the county is entitled to receive under section 5101.16, 5101.161, or 5111.012 of the Revised Code.

~~(D) The director of job and family services shall do one or both of the following:~~

~~(1) To the extent that federal funds are provided for such assistance, adopt a plan for granting presumptive eligibility for pregnant women applying for healthy start;~~

~~(2) To the extent permitted by federal medicaid regulations, adopt a plan for making same-day determinations of eligibility for pregnant women applying for healthy start.~~

~~(E)~~ A county department of job and family services that maintains offices at more than one location shall accept applications for the healthy start program at all of those locations.

~~(F)~~~~(E)~~ The director of job and family services shall adopt rules in accordance with section 111.15 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.0112. (A) The director of job and family services shall institute a cost-sharing program under the medicaid program. In instituting the cost-sharing program, the director shall comply with federal law. ~~In the case of an individual participating in the children's buy in program established under sections 5101.5211 to 5101.5216 of the Revised Code, the cost sharing program shall be consistent with sections 5101.5213 and 5101.5214 of the Revised Code if the children's buy in program is a component of the medicaid program.~~ The cost-sharing program shall establish a copayment requirement for at least dental services, vision services, nonemergency emergency department services, and prescription drugs, other than generic drugs. The cost-sharing program shall establish requirements regarding premiums, enrollment fees, deductions, and similar charges. The director shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code governing the cost-sharing program.

(B) The cost-sharing program shall, to the extent permitted by federal law, provide for all of the following with regard to any providers participating in the medicaid program:

(1) No provider shall refuse to provide a service to a medicaid recipient who is unable to pay a required copayment for the service.

(2) Division (B)(1) of this section shall not be considered to do either of the following with regard to a medicaid recipient who is unable to pay a required copayment:

(a) Relieve the medicaid recipient from the obligation to pay a copayment;

(b) Prohibit the provider from attempting to collect an unpaid copayment.

(3) Except as provided in division (C) of this section, no provider shall waive a medicaid recipient's obligation to pay the provider a copayment.

(4) No provider or drug manufacturer, including the manufacturer's representative, employee, independent contractor, or agent, shall pay any copayment on behalf of a medicaid recipient.

(5) If it is the routine business practice of the provider to refuse service to any individual who owes an outstanding debt to the provider, the provider may consider an unpaid copayment imposed by the cost-sharing program as an outstanding debt and may refuse service to a medicaid recipient who owes the provider an outstanding debt. If the provider intends to refuse service to a medicaid recipient who owes the provider an outstanding debt, the provider shall notify the individual of the provider's intent to refuse services.

(C) In the case of a provider that is a hospital, the cost-sharing program shall permit the hospital to take action to collect a copayment by providing, at the time services are rendered to a medicaid recipient, notice that a copayment may be owed. If the hospital provides the notice and chooses not to take any further action to pursue collection of the copayment, the prohibition against waiving copayments specified in division (B)(3) of this section does not apply.

(D) The department of job and family services may work with a state agency that is administering, pursuant to a contract entered into under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code, one or more components of the medicaid program or one or more aspects of a component as necessary for the state agency to apply the cost-sharing program to the components or aspects of the medicaid program that the state agency administers.

Sec. 5111.0116. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Assets" include all of an individual's income and resources and those of the individual's spouse, including any income or resources the individual or spouse is entitled to but does not receive because of action by any of the following:

(a) The individual or spouse;

(b) A person or government entity, including a court or administrative

agency, with legal authority to act in place of or on behalf of the individual or spouse;

(c) A person or government entity, including a court or administrative agency, acting at the direction or on the request of the individual or spouse.

(2) "Home and community-based services" means home and community-based services furnished under a medicaid waiver granted by the United States secretary of health and human services under 42 U.S.C. 1396n(c) or (d).

(3) "Institutionalized individual" means a resident of a nursing facility, an inpatient in a medical institution for whom a payment is made based on a level of care provided in a nursing facility, or an individual described in 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(10)(A)(ii)(VI).

(4) "Look-back date" means the date that is a number of months specified in rules adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code immediately before either of the following:

(a) The date an individual becomes an institutionalized individual if the individual is eligible for medicaid on that date;

(b) The date an individual applies for medicaid while an institutionalized individual.

(5) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(6) "Nursing facility equivalent services" means services that are covered by the medicaid program, equivalent to nursing facility services, provided by an institution that provides the same level of care as a nursing facility, and provided to an inpatient of the institution who is a medicaid recipient eligible for medicaid-covered nursing facility equivalent services.

(7) "Nursing facility services" means nursing facility services covered by the medicaid program that a nursing facility provides to a resident of the nursing facility who is a medicaid recipient eligible for medicaid-covered nursing facility services.

(8) "Undue hardship" means being deprived of either of the following:

(a) Medical care such that an individual's health or life is endangered;

(b) Food, clothing, shelter, or other necessities of life.

(B) Except as provided in division (C) of this section and rules adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code, an institutionalized individual is ineligible for nursing facility services, nursing facility equivalent services, and home and community-based services if the individual or individual's spouse disposes of assets for less than fair market value on or after the look-back date. The institutionalized individual's ineligibility shall begin on a date determined in accordance with rules adopted under section 5111.011

of the Revised Code and shall continue for a number of months determined in accordance with such rules.

(C) An institutionalized individual may be granted a waiver of all or a portion of the period of ineligibility to which the individual would otherwise be subjected under division (B) of this section if the ineligibility would cause an undue hardship for the individual. An institutionalized individual shall be granted a waiver of all or a portion of the period of ineligibility if the administrator of the nursing facility in which the individual resides has notified the individual of a proposed transfer or discharge under section 3721.16 of the Revised Code due to failure to pay for the care the nursing facility has provided to the individual, the individual or the individual's sponsor requests a hearing on the proposed transfer or discharge in accordance with section 3721.161 of the Revised Code, and the transfer or discharge is upheld by a final determination that is not subject to further appeal. Waivers shall be granted in accordance with rules adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code.

(D) To secure compliance with this section, the director of job and family services may require an individual, as a condition of initial or continued eligibility for medicaid, to provide documentation of the individual's assets up to five years before the date the individual becomes an institutionalized individual if the individual is eligible for medicaid on that date or the date the individual applies for medicaid while an institutionalized individual. Documentation may include tax returns, records from financial institutions, and real property records.

Sec. 5111.0122. As used in this section, "maintenance of effort requirement" means the requirement established by section 1902(gg) of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 275 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396a(gg), as amended, regarding medicaid eligibility standards, methodologies, and procedures.

Except to the extent, if any, otherwise authorized by the United States secretary of health and human services, the department of job and family services shall comply with the maintenance of effort requirement while the requirement is in effect.

Sec. 5111.0123. (A) Subject to division (B) of this section, the director of job and family services shall adopt rules under sections 5111.011 and 5111.85 of the Revised Code to reduce the complexity of the eligibility determination processes for the medicaid program caused by the different income and resource standards for the numerous medicaid eligibility categories.

(B) In implementing division (A) of this section, both of the following

apply:

(1) Before implementing a revision to an eligibility determination process, the director shall obtain, to the extent necessary, the approval of the United States secretary of health and human services in the form of a federal medicaid waiver, medicaid state plan amendment, or demonstration grant.

(2) The director shall comply with section 5111.0122 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.0124. (A) As used in this section:

"Children's hospital" has the same meaning as in section 2151.86 of the Revised Code.

"Federally-qualified health center" has the same meaning as in 42 U.S.C. 1396d(1)(2)(B).

"Federally qualified health center look-alike" has the same meaning as in section 3701.047 of the Revised Code.

"Presumptive eligibility for pregnant women option" means the option available under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1 to make ambulatory prenatal care available to pregnant women under the medicaid program during presumptive eligibility periods.

"Qualified provider" has the same meaning as in 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1(b)(2).

(B) The director of job and family services shall submit a medicaid state plan amendment to the United States secretary of health and human services to implement the presumptive eligibility for pregnant women option. The director shall include in the medicaid state plan amendment a request to authorize children's hospitals, federally qualified health centers, and federally qualified health center look-alikes, if they are eligible to be qualified providers under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1(b)(2) and request to serve as qualified providers, to serve as qualified providers for purposes of the presumptive eligibility for pregnant women option. The director may include in the medicaid state plan amendment a request to authorize other types of providers that are eligible to be qualified providers under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1(b)(2) and request to serve as qualified providers to serve as qualified providers for purposes of the presumptive eligibility for pregnant women option. The director shall begin to implement the medicaid state plan amendment on the later of April 1, 2012, or a date that is not later than ninety days after the effective date of the approval of the amendment.

The director shall adopt rules under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.0125. (A) As used in this section:

"Children's hospital" has the same meaning as in section 2151.86 of the

Revised Code.

"Federally-qualified health center" has the same meaning as in 42 U.S.C. 1396d(l)(2)(B).

"Federally qualified health center look-alike" has the same meaning as in section 3701.047 of the Revised Code.

"Presumptive eligibility for children option" means the option available under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1a to make medical assistance with respect to health care items and services available to children under the medicaid program during presumptive eligibility periods.

"Qualified entity" has the same meaning as in 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1a(b)(3).

(B) The director of job and family services shall retain the presumptive eligibility for children option that was included in the state medicaid plan on the effective date of this section. The director shall submit a medicaid state plan amendment to the United States secretary of health and human services to authorize children's hospitals, federally qualified health centers, and federally qualified health center look-alikes, if they are eligible to be qualified entities under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1a(b)(3) and request to serve as qualified entities, to serve as qualified entities for purposes of the presumptive eligibility for children option. The director may include in the medicaid state plan amendment a request to authorize other types of entities that are eligible to be qualified entities under 42 U.S.C. 1396r-1a(b)(3) and request to serve as qualified entities to serve as qualified entities for purposes of the presumptive eligibility for children option. The director shall begin to implement the medicaid state plan amendment on the later of April 1, 2012, or a date that is not later than ninety days after the effective date of the approval of the amendment.

The director shall adopt rules under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.021. Under the medicaid program:

(A) Except as otherwise ~~permitted~~ required by federal statute or regulation and ~~at the department's discretion~~, reimbursement by the department of job and family services ~~to~~ shall not reimburse a medical provider for any medical ~~service~~ assistance rendered under the program ~~shall not exceed an amount that exceeds the following:~~

(1) If the provider is a hospital, nursing facility, or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, the limits established under Subpart C of 42 C.F.R. Part 447;

(2) If the provider is other than a provider described in division (A)(1) of this section, the authorized reimbursement ~~level~~ limits for the same service under the medicare program established under Title XVIII of the

"Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended.

(B) Reimbursement for freestanding medical laboratory charges shall not exceed the customary and usual fee for laboratory profiles.

(C) The department may deduct from payments for services rendered by a medicaid provider under the medicaid program any amounts the provider owes the state as the result of incorrect medicaid payments the department has made to the provider.

(D) The department may conduct final fiscal audits in accordance with the applicable requirements set forth in federal laws and regulations and determine any amounts the provider may owe the state. When conducting final fiscal audits, the department shall consider generally accepted auditing standards, which include the use of statistical sampling.

(E) The number of days of inpatient hospital care for which reimbursement is made on behalf of a medicaid recipient to a hospital that is not paid under a diagnostic-related-group prospective payment system shall not exceed thirty days during a period beginning on the day of the recipient's admission to the hospital and ending sixty days after the termination of that hospital stay, except that the department may make exceptions to this limitation. The limitation does not apply to children participating in the program for medically handicapped children established under section 3701.023 of the Revised Code.

(F) The division of any reimbursement between a collaborating physician or podiatrist and a clinical nurse specialist, certified nurse-midwife, or certified nurse practitioner for services performed by the nurse shall be determined and agreed on by the nurse and collaborating physician or podiatrist. In no case shall reimbursement exceed the payment that the physician or podiatrist would have received had the physician or podiatrist provided the entire service.

Sec. 5111.023. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Community mental health agency or facility" means a community mental health agency or facility that has ~~a quality assurance program accredited by the joint commission on accreditation of healthcare organizations or is its community mental health services~~ certified by the department of mental health under section 5119.611 of the Revised Code or by the department of job and family services.

(2) "Mental health professional" means a person qualified to work with mentally ill persons under the standards established by the director of mental health pursuant to section 5119.611 of the Revised Code.

(B) The state medicaid plan ~~shall~~ may include provision of the following mental health services when provided by community mental

health agencies or facilities:

(1) Outpatient mental health services, including, but not limited to, preventive, diagnostic, therapeutic, rehabilitative, and palliative interventions rendered to individuals in an individual or group setting by a mental health professional in accordance with a plan of treatment appropriately established, monitored, and reviewed;

(2) Partial-hospitalization mental health services rendered by persons directly supervised by a mental health professional;

(3) Unscheduled, emergency mental health services of a kind ordinarily provided to persons in crisis when rendered by persons supervised by a mental health professional;

(4) Subject to receipt of federal approval, assertive community treatment and intensive home-based mental health services.

~~(C) The comprehensive annual plan shall certify the availability of sufficient unencumbered community mental health state subsidy and local funds to match federal medicaid reimbursement funds earned by community mental health facilities.~~

~~(D) The department of job and family services shall enter into a separate contract with the department of mental health under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code with regard to the component of the medicaid program provided for by this section.~~

~~(E) Not later than July 21, 2006, the department of job and family services shall request federal approval to provide assertive community treatment and intensive home-based mental health services under medicaid pursuant to this section.~~

~~(F) On receipt of federal approval sought under division (E) of this section, the director of job and family services shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code for assertive community treatment and intensive home-based mental health services provided under medicaid pursuant to this section. The director shall consult with the department of mental health in adopting the rules.~~

Sec. 5111.025. (A) In rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, the director of job and family services shall modify the manner or establish a new manner in which the following are paid under medicaid:

(1) Community mental health agencies or facilities for providing community mental health services included in the state medicaid plan pursuant to section 5111.023 of the Revised Code;

(2) Providers of alcohol and drug addiction services for providing alcohol and drug addiction services included in the medicaid program

pursuant to rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

(B) The director's authority to modify the manner, or to establish a new manner, for medicaid to pay for the services specified in division (A) of this section is not limited by any rules adopted under section 5111.02 or 5119.61 of the Revised Code that are in effect on June 26, 2003, and govern the way medicaid pays for those services. This is the case regardless of what state agency adopted the rules.

Sec. 5111.0212. As necessary to comply with section 1902(a)(13)(A) of the "Social Security Act," 111 Stat. 507 (1997), 42 U.S.C. 1396a(a)(13)(A), as amended, and any other federal law that requires public notice of proposed changes to reimbursement rates for medical assistance provided under the medicaid program, the director of job and family services shall give public notice in the register of Ohio of any change to a method or standard used to determine the medicaid reimbursement rate for medical assistance.

Sec. 5111.0213. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Aide services" means all of the following:

(a) Home health aide services available under the home health services benefit pursuant to 42 C.F.R. 440.70(b)(2);

(b) Home care attendant services available under a home and community-based services medicaid waiver component;

(c) Personal care aide services available under a home and community-based services medicaid waiver component.

(2) "Home and community-based services medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Independent provider" means an individual who personally provides aide services or nursing services and is not employed by, under contract with, or affiliated with another entity that provides those services.

(4) "Nursing services" means all of the following:

(a) Nursing services available under the home health services benefit pursuant to 42 C.F.R. 440.70(b)(1);

(b) Private duty nursing services as defined in 42 C.F.R. 440.80;

(c) Nursing services available under a home and community-based services medicaid waiver component.

(B) The department of job and family services shall do both of the following:

(1) Effective October 1, 2011, reduce the medicaid program's first-hour-unit price for aide services to ninety-seven per cent of the price paid on June 30, 2011, and for nursing services to ninety-five per cent of the price paid on June 30, 2011;

(2) Effective October 1, 2011, pay for a service that is an aide service or a nursing service provided by an independent provider eighty per cent of the price it pays for the same service provided by a provider that is not an independent provider;

(3) Not sooner than July 1, 2012, adjust the medicaid reimbursement rates for aide services and nursing services in a manner that reflects, at a minimum, labor market data, education and licensure status, home health agency and independent provider status, and length of service visit.

(C) The department shall strive to have the adjustment made under division (B)(3) of this section go into effect on July 1, 2012. The reductions made under divisions (B)(1) and (2) of this section shall remain in effect until the adjustment made under division (B)(3) of this section goes into effect.

(D) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under sections 5111.02 and 5111.85 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.0214. The department of job and family services shall not knowingly make a medicaid payment for a provider-preventable condition for which federal financial participation is prohibited by regulations adopted under section 2702 of the "Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act," 124 Stat. 318 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396b-1. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.0215. (A) The department of job and family services may establish a program under which it provides incentive payments, as authorized by the "Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act," 123 Stat. 489 (2009), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(a)(3)(F) and 1396b(t), as amended, to encourage the adoption and use of electronic health record technology by medicaid providers who are identified under that federal law as eligible professionals.

(B) After the department has made a determination regarding the amount of a medicaid provider's electronic health record incentive payment or the denial of an incentive payment, the department shall notify the provider. The provider may request that the department reconsider its determination.

A request for reconsideration shall be submitted in writing to the department not later than fifteen days after the provider receives notification of the determination. The request shall be accompanied by written materials setting forth the basis for, and supporting, the reconsideration request.

On receipt of a timely request, the department shall reconsider the

determination. On the basis of the written materials accompanying the request, the department may uphold, reverse, or modify its original determination. The department shall mail to the provider by certified mail a written notice of the reconsideration decision.

In accordance with Chapter 2505. of the Revised Code, the medicaid provider may appeal the reconsideration decision by filing a notice of appeal with the court of common pleas of Franklin county. The notice shall identify the decision being appealed and the specific grounds for the appeal. The notice of appeal shall be filed not later than fifteen days after the department mails its notice of the reconsideration decision. A copy of the notice of appeal shall be filed with the department not later than three days after the notice is filed with the court.

(C) The director of job and family services may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.031. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Independent provider" has the same meaning as in section 5111.034 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded" and "nursing facility" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Noninstitutional medicaid provider" means any person or entity with a medicaid provider agreement other than a hospital, nursing facility, or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

(4) "Owner" means any person having at least five per cent ownership in a noninstitutional medicaid provider.

(B) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, the department of job and family services shall take action under this section against a noninstitutional medicaid provider or its owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee.

(C) Except as provided in division (D) of this section and in rules adopted by the department under division (H) of this section, on receiving notice and a copy of an indictment that is issued on or after ~~the effective date of this section~~ September 29, 2007, and charges a noninstitutional medicaid provider or its owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee with committing an offense specified in division (E) of this section, the department shall suspend the provider agreement held by the noninstitutional medicaid provider. Subject to division (D) of this section, the department shall also terminate medicaid reimbursement to the provider for services rendered.

The suspension shall continue in effect until the proceedings in the

criminal case are completed through ~~conviction~~, dismissal of the indictment, or through conviction, entry of a guilty plea, or finding of not guilty. If the department commences a process to terminate the suspended provider agreement, the suspension shall also continue in effect until the termination process is concluded. ~~Pursuant~~

Pursuant to section 5111.06 of the Revised Code, the department is not required to take action under this division by issuing an order pursuant to an adjudication conducted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

When subject to a suspension under this division, a provider, owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee shall not own or provide services to any other medicaid provider or risk contractor or arrange for, render, or order services for medicaid recipients during the period of suspension. During the period of suspension, the provider, owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee shall not receive reimbursement in the form of direct payments from the department or indirect payments of medicaid funds in the form of salary, shared fees, contracts, kickbacks, or rebates from or through any participating provider or risk contractor.

(D)(1) The department shall not suspend a provider agreement or terminate medicaid reimbursement under division (C) of this section if the provider or owner can demonstrate through the submission of written evidence that the provider or owner did not directly or indirectly sanction the action of its authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee that resulted in the indictment.

(2) The termination of medicaid reimbursement applies only to payments for medicaid services rendered subsequent to the date on which the notice required under division (F) of this section is sent. Claims for reimbursement for medicaid services rendered by the provider prior to the issuance of the notice may be subject to prepayment review procedures whereby the department reviews claims to determine whether they are supported by sufficient documentation, are in compliance with state and federal statutes and rules, and are otherwise complete.

(E)(1) In the case of a noninstitutional medicaid provider that is not an independent provider, the suspension of a provider agreement under division (C) of this section applies when an indictment charges a person with committing an act that would be a felony or misdemeanor under the laws of this state and the act relates to or results from either of the following:

(a) Furnishing or billing for medical care, services, or supplies under the medicaid program;

(b) Participating in the performance of management or administrative services relating to furnishing medical care, services, or supplies under the medicaid program.

(2) In the case of a noninstitutional medicaid provider that is an independent provider, the suspension of a provider agreement under division (C) of this section applies when an indictment charges a person with committing an act that would constitute one of the offenses specified in division (D) of section 5111.034 of the Revised Code.

(F) Not later than five days after suspending a provider agreement under division (C) of this section, the department shall send notice of the suspension to the affected provider or owner. In providing the notice, the department shall do all of the following:

(1) Describe the indictment that was the cause of the suspension, without necessarily disclosing specific information concerning any ongoing civil or criminal investigation;

(2) State that the suspension will continue in effect until the proceedings in the criminal case are completed through ~~conviction~~, dismissal of the indictment, or through conviction, entry of a guilty plea, or finding of not guilty and, if the department commences a process to terminate the suspended provider agreement, until the termination process is concluded;

(3) Inform the provider or owner of the opportunity to submit to the department, not later than thirty days after receiving the notice, a request for a reconsideration pursuant to division (G) of this section.

(G)(1) ~~A~~ Pursuant to the procedure specified in division (G)(2) of this section, a noninstitutional medicaid provider or owner subject to a suspension under this section may request a reconsideration. The request shall be made not later than thirty days after receipt of the notice provided under division (F) of this section. The reconsideration is not subject to an adjudication hearing pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

(2) In requesting a reconsideration, the provider or owner shall submit written information and documents to the department. The information and documents may pertain to any of the following issues:

(a) Whether the determination to suspend the provider agreement was based on a mistake of fact, other than the validity of the indictment;

(b) Whether any offense charged in the indictment resulted from an offense specified in division (E) of this section;

(c) Whether the provider or owner can demonstrate that the provider or owner did not directly or indirectly sanction the action of its authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee that resulted in the indictment.

(3) The department shall review the information and documents

submitted in a request for reconsideration. After the review, the suspension may be affirmed, reversed, or modified, in whole or in part. The department shall notify the affected provider or owner of the results of the review. The review and notification of its results shall be completed not later than forty-five days after receiving the information and documents submitted in a request for reconsideration.

(H) The department may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement this section. The rules may specify circumstances under which the department would not suspend a provider agreement pursuant to this section.

Sec. 5111.035. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Creditable allegation of fraud" has the same meaning as in 42 C.F.R. 455.2, except that for purposes of this section any reference in that regulation to the "state" or the "state medicaid agency" means the department of job and family services.

(2) "Provider" has the same meaning as in section 5111.032 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Owner" has the same meaning as in section 5111.031 of the Revised Code.

(B)(1) Except as provided in division (C) of this section and in rules adopted by the department of job and family services under division (J) of this section, on determining there is a creditable allegation of fraud for which an investigation is pending under the medicaid program against a provider, the department shall suspend the provider agreement held by the provider. Subject to division (C) of this section, the department shall also terminate medicaid reimbursement to the provider for services rendered.

(2)(a) The suspension shall continue in effect until either of the following is the case:

(i) The department or a prosecuting authority determines that there is insufficient evidence of fraud by the provider;

(ii) The proceedings in any related criminal case are completed through dismissal of the indictment or through conviction, entry of a guilty plea, or finding of not guilty.

(b) If the department commences a process to terminate the suspended provider agreement, the suspension shall also continue in effect until the termination process is concluded.

(3) Pursuant to section 5111.06 of the Revised Code, the department is not required to take action under division (B)(1) of this section by issuing an order pursuant to an adjudication in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

(4) When subject to a suspension under this section, a provider, owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee shall not own or provide services to any other medicaid provider or risk contractor or arrange for, render, or order services to any other medicaid provider or risk contractor or arrange for, render, or order services for medicaid recipients during the period of suspension. During the period of suspension, the provider, owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee shall not receive reimbursement in the form of direct payments from the department or indirect payments of medicaid funds in the form of salary, shared fees, contracts, kickbacks, or rebates from or through any participating provider or risk contractor.

(C) The department shall not suspend a provider agreement or terminate medicaid reimbursement under division (B) of this section if the provider or owner can demonstrate through the submission of written evidence that the provider or owner did not directly or indirectly sanction the action of its authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee that resulted in the creditable allegation of fraud.

(D) The termination of medicaid reimbursement under division (B) of this section applies only to payments for medicaid services rendered subsequent to the date on which the notice required by division (E) of this section is sent. Claims for reimbursement of medicaid services rendered by the provider prior to the issuance of the notice may be subject to prepayment review procedures whereby the department reviews claims to determine whether they are supported by sufficient documentation, are in compliance with state and federal statutes and rules, and are otherwise complete.

(E) After suspending a provider agreement under division (B) of this section, the department shall, as specified in 42 C.F.R. 455.23(b), send notice of the suspension to the affected provider or owner in accordance with the following timeframes:

(1) Not later than five days after the suspension, unless a law enforcement agency makes a written request to temporarily delay the notice;

(2) If a law enforcement agency makes a written request to temporarily delay the notice, not later than thirty days after the suspension occurs subject to the conditions specified in division (F) of this section.

(F) A written request for a temporary delay described in division (E)(2) of this section may be renewed in writing by a law enforcement agency not more than two times except that under no circumstances shall the notice be issued more than ninety days after the suspension occurs.

(G) The notice required by division (E) of this section shall do all of the following:

(1) State that payments are being suspended in accordance with this section and 42 C.F.R. 455.23;

(2) Set forth the general allegations related to the nature of the conduct leading to the suspension, except that it is not necessary to disclose any specific information concerning an ongoing investigation;

(3) State that the suspension continues to be in effect until either of the following is the case:

(a) The department or a prosecuting authority determines that there is insufficient evidence of fraud by the provider;

(b) The proceedings in any related criminal case are completed through dismissal of the indictment or through conviction, entry of a guilty plea, or finding of not guilty and, if the department commences a process to terminate the suspended provider agreement, until the termination process is concluded.

(4) Specify, if applicable, the type or types of medicaid claims or business units of the provider that are affected by the suspension;

(5) Inform the provider or owner of the opportunity to submit to the department, not later than thirty days after receiving the notice, a request for reconsideration of the suspension in accordance with division (H) of this section.

(H)(1) Pursuant to the procedure specified in division (H)(2) of this section, a provider or owner subject to a suspension under this section may request a reconsideration of the suspension. The request shall be made not later than thirty days after receipt of a notice required by division (E) of this section. The reconsideration is not subject to an adjudication hearing pursuant to Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

(2) In requesting a reconsideration, the provider or owner shall submit written information and documents to the department. The information and documents may pertain to any of the following issues:

(a) Whether the determination to suspend the provider agreement was based on a mistake of fact, other than the validity of an indictment in a related criminal case.

(b) If there has been an indictment in a related criminal case, whether any offense charged in the indictment resulted from an offense specified in division (E) of section 5111.031 of the Revised Code.

(c) Whether the provider or owner can demonstrate that the provider or owner did not directly or indirectly sanction the action of its authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee that resulted in the suspension under this section or an indictment in a related criminal case.

(I) The department shall review the information and documents

submitted in a request made under division (H) of this section for reconsideration of a suspension. After the review, the suspension may be affirmed, reversed, or modified, in whole or in part. The department shall notify the affected provider or owner of the results of the review. The review and notification of its results shall be completed not later than forty-five days after receiving the information and documents submitted in a request for reconsideration.

(J) The department may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement this section. The rules may specify circumstances under which the department would not suspend a provider agreement pursuant to this section.

Sec. 5111.051. The director of job and family services may submit a medicaid state plan amendment or request for a federal waiver to the United States secretary of health and human services as necessary to implement, at the director's discretion, a system under which payments for medical assistance provided under the medicaid program are made to an organization on behalf of the providers of the medical assistance. The system may not provide for an organization to receive an amount that exceeds, in aggregate, the amount the department would have paid directly to the providers if not for this section.

Sec. 5111.052. (A) As used in this section, "electronic claims submission process" means any of the following:

- (1) Electronic interchange of data;
- (2) Direct entry of data through an internet-based mechanism implemented by the department of job and family services;
- (3) Any other process for the electronic submission of claims that is specified in rules adopted under this section.

(B) Not later than January 1, 2013, and except as provided in division (C) of this section, each provider of services to medicaid recipients shall do both of the following:

- (1) Use only an electronic claims submission process to submit to the department of job and family services claims for medicaid reimbursement for services provided to medicaid recipients;
- (2) Arrange to receive medicaid reimbursement from the department by means of electronic funds transfer.

(C) Division (B) of this section does not apply to any of the following:

- (1) A nursing facility, as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code;
- (2) An intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code;

(3) A medicaid managed care organization under contract with the department pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code;

(4) Any other provider or type of provider designated in rules adopted under this section.

(D) The department shall not process a medicaid claim submitted on or after January 1, 2013, unless the claim is submitted through an electronic claims submission process in accordance with this section.

(E) The director of job and family services may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as the director considers necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.053. (A) As used in this section, "group practice" has the same meaning as in section 4731.65 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department of job and family services shall establish a process by which a physician assistant may enter into a medicaid provider agreement.

(C)(1) Subject to division (C)(2) of this section, a claim for reimbursement for a service provided by a physician assistant to a medicaid recipient may be submitted by the physician assistant who provided the service or the physician, group practice, clinic, or other health care facility that employs the physician assistant.

(2) A claim for reimbursement may be submitted by the physician assistant who provided the service only if the physician assistant has a valid provider agreement. When submitting the claim, the physician assistant shall use only the medicaid provider number the department has assigned to the physician assistant.

(D) The director of job and family services may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.054. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Federal financial participation" means the federal government's share of expenditures made by an entity in implementing the medicaid program.

(2) "OCHSPS" means the private, not-for-profit corporation known as the Ohio children's hospital solutions for patient safety, which was formed for the purpose of improving pediatric patient care in this state, which performs functions that are included within the functions of a peer review committee as defined in section 2305.25 of the Revised Code, and which consists of all of the following members: Akron children's hospital, Cincinnati children's hospital medical center, Cleveland clinic children's hospital, Dayton children's medical center, mercy children's hospital, nationwide children's hospital, rainbow babies & children's hospital, and

Toledo children's hospital.

(B) If, as authorized by section 5101.10 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services chooses to contract with a person to perform either or both of the following services, it may contract with any qualified person, including OCHSPS, to perform the service or services on the department's behalf:

(1) Review and analyze claims for medical assistance made under this chapter to children in accordance with all state and federal laws governing the confidentiality of patient-identifying information;

(2) Perform quality assurance and quality review functions, other than those described in division (B)(1) of this section, related to medical assistance made under this chapter to children.

The functions specified in division (B)(2) of this section may include those recommended by the best evidence for advancing child health in Ohio now (BEACON) council.

(C) If the department enters into a contract with OCHSPS for OCHSPS to perform either or both of the services described in division (B) of this section, OCHSPS shall, only for purposes of section 5101.11 of the Revised Code, be considered a public entity and the department shall seek federal financial participation for costs incurred by OCHSPS in performing the service or services.

Sec. 5111.06. (A)(1) As used in this section and in sections 5111.061 and ~~5111.062~~ 5111.063 of the Revised Code:

(a) "Provider" means any person, institution, or entity that furnishes medicaid services under a provider agreement with the department of job and family services pursuant to Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended.

(b) "Party" has the same meaning as in division (G) of section 119.01 of the Revised Code.

(c) "Adjudication" has the same meaning as in division (D) of section 119.01 of the Revised Code.

(2) This section does not apply to any action taken by the department of job and family services under sections 5111.16 to 5111.177 or sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code.

(B) Except as provided in division (D) of this section and section 5111.914 of the Revised Code, the department shall do either of the following by issuing an order pursuant to an adjudication conducted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code:

(1) Enter into or refuse to enter into a provider agreement with a provider, or suspend, terminate, renew, or refuse to renew an existing

provider agreement with a provider;

(2) Take any action based upon a final fiscal audit of a provider.

(C) Any party who is adversely affected by the issuance of an adjudication order under division (B) of this section may appeal to the court of common pleas of Franklin county in accordance with section 119.12 of the Revised Code.

(D) The department is not required to comply with division (B)(1) of this section whenever any of the following occur:

(1) The terms of a provider agreement require the provider to hold a license, permit, or certificate or maintain a certification issued by an official, board, commission, department, division, bureau, or other agency of state or federal government other than the department of job and family services, and the license, permit, certificate, or certification has been denied, revoked, not renewed, suspended, or otherwise limited.

(2) The terms of a provider agreement require the provider to hold a license, permit, or certificate or maintain certification issued by an official, board, commission, department, division, bureau, or other agency of state or federal government other than the department of job and family services, and the provider has not obtained the license, permit, certificate, or certification.

(3) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed due to the termination, refusal to renew, or denial of a license, permit, certificate, or certification by an official, board, commission, department, division, bureau, or other agency of this state other than the department of job and family services, notwithstanding the fact that the provider may hold a license, permit, certificate, or certification from an official, board, commission, department, division, bureau, or other agency of another state.

(4) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed pursuant to division (C) or (F) of section 5111.03 of the Revised Code.

(5) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed due to the provider's termination, suspension, or exclusion from the medicare program established under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," or from another state's medicaid program and, in either case, the termination, suspension, or exclusion is binding on the provider's participation in the medicaid program in this state.

(6) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed due to the provider's pleading guilty to or being convicted of a criminal activity materially related to either the medicare or medicaid program.

(7) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or suspended as a result of action by the United States department of health and human

services and that action is binding on the provider's participation in the medicaid program.

(8) ~~The~~ Pursuant to either section 5111.031 or 5111.035 of the Revised Code, the provider agreement is suspended pursuant to section 5111.031 of the Revised Code and payments to the provider are suspended pending indictment of the provider.

(9) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed because the provider or its owner, officer, authorized agent, associate, manager, or employee has been convicted of one of the offenses that caused the provider agreement to be suspended pursuant to section 5111.031 of the Revised Code.

(10) The provider agreement is converted under section 5111.028 of the Revised Code from a provider agreement that is not time-limited to a provider agreement that is time-limited.

(11) The provider agreement is terminated or an application for re-enrollment is denied because the provider has failed to apply for re-enrollment within the time or in the manner specified for re-enrollment pursuant to section 5111.028 of the Revised Code.

(12) The provider agreement is suspended or terminated, or an application for enrollment or re-enrollment is denied, for any reason authorized or required by one or more of the following: 42 C.F.R. 455.106, 455.23, 455.416, 455.434, or 455.450.

(13) The provider agreement is terminated or not renewed because the provider has not billed or otherwise submitted a medicaid claim to the department for two years or longer.

~~(13)~~(14) The provider agreement is denied, terminated, or not renewed because the provider fails to provide to the department the national provider identifier assigned the provider by the national provider system pursuant to 45 C.F.R. 162.408.

In the case of a provider described in division (D)~~(12)~~(13) or ~~(13)~~(14) of this section, the department may take its proposed action against a provider agreement by sending a notice explaining the proposed action to the provider. The notice shall be sent to the provider's address on record with the department. The notice may be sent by regular mail.

(E) The department may withhold payments for services rendered by a medicaid provider under the medicaid program during the pendency of proceedings initiated under division (B)(1) of this section. If the proceedings are initiated under division (B)(2) of this section, the department may withhold payments only to the extent that they equal amounts determined in a final fiscal audit as being due the state. This division does not apply if the

department fails to comply with section 119.07 of the Revised Code, requests a continuance of the hearing, or does not issue a decision within thirty days after the hearing is completed. This division does not apply to nursing facilities and intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.061. (A) ~~The (1) Except as provided in division (A)(2) of this section, the~~ department of job and family services may recover a medicaid payment or portion of a payment made to a provider to which the provider is not entitled if the department notifies the provider of the overpayment during the five-year period immediately following the end of the state fiscal year in which the overpayment was made.

(2) In the case of a hospital provider, if the department determines as a result of a medicare or medicaid cost report settlement that the provider received an amount under the medicaid program to which the provider is not entitled, the department may recover the overpayment if the department notifies the provider of the overpayment during the later of the following:

(a) The five-year period immediately following the end of the state fiscal year in which the overpayment was made;

(b) The one-year period immediately following the date the department receives from the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services a completed, audited, medicare cost report for the provider that applies to the state fiscal year in which the overpayment was made.

(B) Among the overpayments that may be recovered under this section are the following:

(1) Payment for a service, or a day of service, not rendered;

(2) Payment for a day of service at a full per diem rate that should have been paid at a percentage of the full per diem rate;

(3) Payment for a service, or day of service, that was paid by, or partially paid by, a ~~third-party~~ third party, as defined in section 5101.571 of the Revised Code, and the ~~third-party's~~ third party's payment or partial payment was not offset against the amount paid by the medicaid program to reduce or eliminate the amount that was paid by the medicaid program;

(4) Payment when a medicaid recipient's responsibility for payment was understated and resulted in an overpayment to the provider.

(C) The department may recover an overpayment under this section prior to or after any of the following:

(1) Adjudication of a final fiscal audit that section 5111.06 of the Revised Code requires to be conducted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code;

(2) Adjudication of a finding under any other provision of this chapter

or the rules adopted under it;

(3) Expiration of the time to issue a final fiscal audit that section 5111.06 of the Revised Code requires to be conducted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code;

(4) Expiration of the time to issue a finding under any other provision of this chapter or the rules adopted under it.

(D)(1) Subject to division (D)(2) of this section, the recovery of an overpayment under this section does not preclude the department from subsequently doing the following:

(a) Issuing a final fiscal audit in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, as required under section 5111.06 of the Revised Code;

(b) Issuing a finding under any other provision of this chapter or the rules adopted under it.

(2) A final fiscal audit or finding issued subsequent to the recovery of an overpayment under this section shall be reduced by the amount of the prior recovery, as appropriate.

(E) Nothing in this section limits the department's authority to recover overpayments pursuant to any other provision of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.063. For the purpose of raising funds necessary to pay the expenses of implementing the provider screening requirements of subpart E of 42 C.F.R. Part 455, the department of job and family services shall charge an application fee to a provider seeking to enter into or renew a medicaid provider agreement, unless the provider is exempt from paying the application fee under 42 C.F.R. 455.460(a). The application fees shall be deposited into the health care services administration fund created under section 5111.94 of the Revised Code.

The director of job and family services shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section, including a rule establishing the amount of the application fee that is charged under this section. The amount of the application fee shall not be set at an amount that is more than necessary to pay for the expenses of implementing the provider screening requirements.

Sec. 5111.086. As used in this section, "federal upper reimbursement limit" means the limit established pursuant to section 1927(e) of the "Social Security Act," 104 Stat. 1388-151 (1990), 42 U.S.C. 1396r-8(e), as amended.

The medicaid payment for a drug that is subject to a federal upper reimbursement limit shall not exceed, in the aggregate, the federal upper reimbursement limit for the drug. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code as necessary to

implement this section.

Sec. 5111.113. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Adult care facility" has the same meaning as in section ~~3722.04~~ 5119.70 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Commissioner" means a person appointed by a probate court under division (B) of section 2113.03 of the Revised Code to act as a commissioner.

(3) "Home" has the same meaning as in section 3721.10 of the Revised Code.

(4) "Personal needs allowance account" means an account or petty cash fund that holds the money of a resident of an adult care facility or home and that the facility or home manages for the resident.

(B) Except as provided in divisions (C) and (D) of this section, the owner or operator of an adult care facility or home shall transfer to the department of job and family services the money in the personal needs allowance account of a resident of the facility or home who was a recipient of the medical assistance program no earlier than sixty days but not later than ninety days after the resident dies. The adult care facility or home shall transfer the money even though the owner or operator of the facility or home has not been issued letters testamentary or letters of administration concerning the resident's estate.

(C) If funeral or burial expenses for a resident of an adult care facility or home who has died have not been paid and the only resource the resident had that could be used to pay for the expenses is the money in the resident's personal needs allowance account, or all other resources of the resident are inadequate to pay the full cost of the expenses, the money in the resident's personal needs allowance account shall be used to pay for the expenses rather than being transferred to the department of job and family services pursuant to division (B) of this section.

(D) If, not later than sixty days after a resident of an adult care facility or home dies, letters testamentary or letters of administration are issued, or an application for release from administration is filed under section 2113.03 of the Revised Code, concerning the resident's estate, the owner or operator of the facility or home shall transfer the money in the resident's personal needs allowance account to the administrator, executor, commissioner, or person who filed the application for release from administration.

(E) The transfer or use of money in a resident's personal needs allowance account in accordance with division (B), (C), or (D) of this section discharges and releases the adult care facility or home, and the owner or operator of the facility or home, from any claim for the money

from any source.

(F) If, sixty-one or more days after a resident of an adult care facility or home dies, letters testamentary or letters of administration are issued, or an application for release from administration under section 2113.03 of the Revised Code is filed, concerning the resident's estate, the department of job and family services shall transfer the funds to the administrator, executor, commissioner, or person who filed the application, unless the department is entitled to recover the money under the medicaid estate recovery program instituted under section 5111.11 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.13. (A) As used in this section, "cost-effective" and "group health plan" have the same meanings as in section 1906 of the "Social Security Act," 49 104 Stat. ~~620 (1935)~~ 1388-161 (1990), 42 U.S.C.A. 1396e, as amended, and any regulations adopted under that section.

(B) ~~The department of job and family services, pursuant to guidelines issued by~~ may submit a medicaid state plan amendment to the United States secretary of health and human services, ~~shall identify cases in which enrollment of an individual otherwise eligible for medical assistance under this chapter in a group health plan in which the individual is eligible to enroll and payment of the individual's premiums, deductibles, coinsurance, and other cost-sharing expenses is cost effective.~~

~~The department shall require, as a condition of eligibility for medical assistance, individuals identified under this division, or in the case of a child, the child's parent, to apply for enrollment in the group health plan, except that the failure of a parent to enroll self or the parent's child in a group health plan does not affect the child's eligibility under the medical assistance program.~~

~~The department shall pay enrollee premiums and deductibles, coinsurance, and other cost sharing obligations for services and items otherwise covered under the medical assistance program. The department shall treat coverage under the group health plan in the same manner as any other third party liability under the program. If not all members of a family are eligible for medical assistance and enrollment of the eligible members in a group health plan is not possible without also enrolling the members who are ineligible for medical assistance, the department shall pay the premiums for the ineligible members if the payments are cost effective. The department shall not pay deductibles, coinsurance, or other cost sharing obligations of enrolled members who are not eligible for medical assistance.~~

~~The department may make payments under this section to employers, insurers, or other entities. The department may make the payments without entering into a contract with employers, insurers, or other entities.~~

~~(C) To the extent permitted by federal law and regulations, the department of job and family services shall coordinate the medical assistance program with group health plans in such a manner that the medical assistance program serves as a supplement to the group health plans. In its coordination efforts, the department shall consider cost-effectiveness and quality of care. The department may enter into agreements with group health plans as necessary to implement this division for the purpose of implementing a program pursuant to section 1906 of the "Social Security Act," 104 Stat. 1388-161 (1990), 42 U.S.C. 1396e, as amended, for the enrollment of medicaid-eligible individuals in group health plans when the department determines that enrollment is cost-effective.~~

~~(D)~~(C) The director of job and family services shall may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.14. The director of job and family services may submit to the United States secretary of health and human services an amendment to the medicaid state plan in order to implement within the medicaid program a system under which medicaid recipients with chronic conditions are provided with coordinated care through health homes, as authorized by section 1945 of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 319 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396w-4.

The director may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code to implement this section.

~~Sec. 5111.14~~ 5111.141. The department of job and family services may require county departments of job and family services to provide case management of nonemergency transportation services provided under the medical assistance program. County departments shall provide the case management if required by the department in accordance with rules adopted by the director of job and family services.

The department shall determine, for the purposes of claiming federal reimbursement under the medical assistance program, whether it will claim expenditures for nonemergency transportation services as administrative or program expenditures.

Sec. 5111.151. (A)(1) This section applies only to either of the following:

(a) Initial eligibility determinations for ~~all cases involving medicaid provided pursuant to this chapter, qualified medicare beneficiaries, specified low income medicare beneficiaries, qualifying individuals 1, qualifying individuals 2, and medical assistance for covered families and children~~ the medicaid program made by the department of job and family services

pursuant to section 5101.47 of the Revised Code or by a county department of job and family services pursuant to section 5111.012 of the Revised Code;

(b) An appeal from a determination described in division (A)(1)(a) of this section pursuant to section 5101.35 of the Revised Code.

(2)(a) Except as provided in division (A)(2)(b) of this section, this section shall not be used by a court to determine the effect of a trust on an individual's initial eligibility for the medicaid program.

(b) The prohibition in division (A)(2)(a) of this section does not apply to an appeal described in division (A)(1)(b) of this section.

(B) As used in this section:

(1) "Trust" means any arrangement in which a grantor transfers real or personal property to a trust with the intention that it be held, managed, or administered by at least one trustee for the benefit of the grantor or beneficiaries. "Trust" includes any legal instrument or device similar to a trust.

(2) "Legal instrument or device similar to a trust" includes, but is not limited to, escrow accounts, investment accounts, partnerships, contracts, and other similar arrangements that are not called trusts under state law but are similar to a trust and to which all of the following apply:

(a) The property in the trust is held, managed, retained, or administered by a trustee.

(b) The trustee has an equitable, legal, or fiduciary duty to hold, manage, retain, or administer the property for the benefit of the beneficiary.

(c) The trustee holds identifiable property for the beneficiary.

(3) "Grantor" is a person who creates a trust, including all of the following:

(a) An individual;

(b) An individual's spouse;

(c) A person, including a court or administrative body, with legal authority to act in place of or on behalf of an individual or an individual's spouse;

(d) A person, including a court or administrative body, that acts at the direction or on request of an individual or the individual's spouse.

(4) "Beneficiary" is a person or persons, including a grantor, who benefits in some way from a trust.

(5) "Trustee" is a person who manages a trust's principal and income for the benefit of the beneficiaries.

(6) "Person" has the same meaning as in section 1.59 of the Revised Code and includes an individual, corporation, business trust, estate, trust,

partnership, and association.

(7) "Applicant" is an individual who applies for medicaid or the individual's spouse.

(8) "Recipient" is an individual who receives medicaid or the individual's spouse.

(9) "Revocable trust" is a trust that can be revoked by the grantor or the beneficiary, including all of the following, even if the terms of the trust state that it is irrevocable:

(a) A trust that provides that the trust can be terminated only by a court;

(b) A trust that terminates on the happening of an event, but only if the event occurs at the direction or control of the grantor, beneficiary, or trustee.

(10) "Irrevocable trust" is a trust that cannot be revoked by the grantor or terminated by a court and that terminates only on the occurrence of an event outside of the control or direction of the beneficiary or grantor.

(11) "Payment" is any disbursement from the principal or income of the trust, including actual cash, noncash or property disbursements, or the right to use and occupy real property.

(12) "Payments to or for the benefit of the applicant or recipient" is a payment to any person resulting in a direct or indirect benefit to the applicant or recipient.

(13) "Testamentary trust" is a trust that is established by a will and does not take effect until after the death of the person who created the trust.

(C)(1) If an applicant or recipient is a beneficiary of a trust, the county department of job and family services shall determine what type of trust it is and shall treat the trust in accordance with the appropriate provisions of this section and rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing trusts. The county department of job and family services may determine that the trust or portion of the trust ~~is one of the following:~~

~~(1) A countable (a) Is a resource available to the applicant or recipient;~~

~~(2) Countable (b) Contains income available to the applicant or recipient;~~

~~(3) A countable resource and countable income (c) Constitutes both items described in divisions (C)(1)(a) and (b) of this section;~~

~~(4) Not a countable resource or countable income (d) Is neither an item described in division (C)(1)(a) nor (C)(1)(b) of this section.~~

(2) Except as provided in division (F) of this section, a trust or portion of a trust that is a resource available to the applicant or recipient or contains income available to the applicant or recipient shall be counted for purposes of determining medicaid eligibility.

(D)(1) A trust or legal instrument or device similar to a trust shall be

considered a medicaid qualifying trust if all of the following apply:

- (a) The trust was established on or prior to August 10, 1993.
- (b) The trust was not established by a will.
- (c) The trust was established by an applicant or recipient.
- (d) The applicant or recipient is or may become the beneficiary of all or part of the trust.
- (e) Payment from the trust is determined by one or more trustees who are permitted to exercise any discretion with respect to the distribution to the applicant or recipient.

(2) If a trust meets the requirement of division (D)(1) of this section, the amount of the trust that is considered by the county department of job and family services ~~as an available to be a~~ resource available to the applicant or recipient shall be the maximum amount of payments permitted under the terms of the trust to be distributed to the applicant or recipient, assuming the full exercise of discretion by the trustee or trustees. The maximum amount shall include only amounts that are permitted to be distributed but are not distributed from either the income or principal of the trust.

(3) Amounts that are actually distributed from a medicaid qualifying trust to a beneficiary for any purpose shall be treated in accordance with rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing income.

(4) Availability of a medicaid qualifying trust shall be considered without regard to any of the following:

(a) Whether or not the trust is irrevocable or was established for purposes other than to enable a grantor to qualify for medicaid, medical assistance for covered families and children, or as a qualified medicare beneficiary, specified low-income medicare beneficiary, qualifying individual-1, or qualifying individual-2;

(b) Whether or not the trustee actually exercises discretion.

(5) If any real or personal property is transferred to a medicaid qualifying trust that is not distributable to the applicant or recipient, the transfer shall be considered an improper disposition of assets and shall be subject to section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code and rules to implement that section adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code.

(6) The baseline date for the look-back period for disposition of assets involving a medicaid qualifying trust shall be the date on which the applicant or recipient is both institutionalized and first applies for medicaid.

(E)(1) A trust or legal instrument or device similar to a trust shall be considered a self-settled trust if all of the following apply:

(a) The trust was established on or after August 11, 1993.

(b) The trust was not established by a will.

(c) The trust was established by an applicant or recipient, spouse of an applicant or recipient, or a person, including a court or administrative body, with legal authority to act in place of or on behalf of an applicant, recipient, or spouse, or acting at the direction or on request of an applicant, recipient, or spouse.

(2) A trust that meets the requirements of division (E)(1) of this section and is a revocable trust shall be treated by the county department of job and family services as follows:

(a) The corpus of the trust shall be considered a resource available to the applicant or recipient.

(b) Payments from the trust to or for the benefit of the applicant or recipient shall be considered unearned income of the applicant or recipient.

(c) Any other payments from the trust shall be considered an improper disposition of assets and shall be subject to section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code and rules to implement that section adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code.

(3) A trust that meets the requirements of division (E)(1) of this section and is an irrevocable trust shall be treated by the county department of job and family services as follows:

(a) If there are any circumstances under which payment from the trust could be made to or for the benefit of the applicant or recipient, including a payment that can be made only in the future, the portion from which payments could be made shall be considered a resource available to the applicant or recipient. The county department of job and family services shall not take into account when payments can be made.

(b) Any payment that is actually made to or for the benefit of the applicant or recipient from either the corpus or income shall be considered unearned income.

(c) If a payment is made to someone other than to the applicant or recipient and the payment is not for the benefit of the applicant or recipient, the payment shall be considered an improper disposition of assets and shall be subject to section 5111.0116 of the Revised Code and rules to implement that section adopted under section 5111.011 of the Revised Code.

(d) The date of the disposition shall be the later of the date of establishment of the trust or the date of the occurrence of the event.

(e) When determining the value of the disposed asset under this provision, the value of the trust shall be its value on the date payment to the applicant or recipient was foreclosed.

(f) Any income earned or other resources added subsequent to the

foreclosure date shall be added to the total value of the trust.

(g) Any payments to or for the benefit of the applicant or recipient after the foreclosure date but prior to the application date shall be subtracted from the total value. Any other payments shall not be subtracted from the value.

(h) Any addition of assets after the foreclosure date shall be considered a separate disposition.

(4) If a trust is funded with assets of another person or persons in addition to assets of the applicant or recipient, the applicable provisions of this section and rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing trusts shall apply only to the portion of the trust attributable to the applicant or recipient.

(5) The availability of a self-settled trust shall be considered without regard to any of the following:

(a) The purpose for which the trust is established;

(b) Whether the trustees have exercised or may exercise discretion under the trust;

(c) Any restrictions on when or whether distributions may be made from the trust;

(d) Any restrictions on the use of distributions from the trust.

(6) The baseline date for the look-back period for dispositions of assets involving a self-settled trust shall be the date on which the applicant or recipient is both institutionalized and first applies for medicaid.

(F) The principal or income from any of the following shall ~~be exempt from being counted as~~ not be a resource ~~by a county department of job and family services~~ available to the applicant or recipient:

(1)(a) A special needs trust that meets all of the following requirements:

(i) The trust contains assets of an applicant or recipient under sixty-five years of age and may contain the assets of other individuals.

(ii) The applicant or recipient is disabled as defined in rules adopted by the department of job and family services.

(iii) The trust is established for the benefit of the applicant or recipient by a parent, grandparent, legal guardian, or a court.

(iv) The trust requires that on the death of the applicant or recipient the state will receive all amounts remaining in the trust up to an amount equal to the total amount of medicaid paid on behalf of the applicant or recipient.

(b) If a special needs trust meets the requirements of division (F)(1)(a) of this section and has been established for a disabled applicant or recipient under sixty-five years of age, the exemption for the trust granted pursuant to division (F) of this section shall continue after the disabled applicant or recipient becomes sixty-five years of age if the applicant or recipient

continues to be disabled as defined in rules adopted by the department of job and family services. Except for income earned by the trust, the grantor shall not add to or otherwise augment the trust after the applicant or recipient attains sixty-five years of age. An addition or augmentation of the trust by the applicant or recipient with the applicant's own assets after the applicant or recipient attains sixty-five years of age shall be treated as an improper disposition of assets.

(c) Cash distributions to the applicant or recipient shall be counted as unearned income. All other distributions from the trust shall be treated as provided in rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing in-kind income.

(d) Transfers of assets to a special needs trust shall not be treated as an improper transfer of resources. ~~Assets~~ An Asset held prior to the transfer to the trust shall be considered as ~~countable assets or countable~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient, income available to the applicant or recipient, or countable assets both a resource and income available to the individual.

(2)(a) A qualifying income trust that meets all of the following requirements:

(i) The trust is composed only of pension, social security, and other income to the applicant or recipient, including accumulated interest in the trust.

(ii) The income is received by the individual and the right to receive the income is not assigned or transferred to the trust.

(iii) The trust requires that on the death of the applicant or recipient the state will receive all amounts remaining in the trust up to an amount equal to the total amount of medicaid paid on behalf of the applicant or recipient.

(b) No resources shall be used to establish or augment the trust.

(c) If an applicant or recipient has irrevocably transferred or assigned the applicant's or recipient's right to receive income to the trust, the trust shall not be considered a qualifying income trust by the county department of job and family services.

(d) Income placed in a qualifying income trust shall not be counted in determining an applicant's or recipient's eligibility for medicaid. The recipient of the funds may place any income directly into a qualifying income trust without those funds adversely affecting the applicant's or recipient's eligibility for medicaid. Income generated by the trust that remains in the trust shall not be considered as income to the applicant or recipient.

(e) All income placed in a qualifying income trust shall be combined

with any ~~countable~~ income available to the individual that is not placed in the trust to arrive at a base income figure to be used for spend down calculations.

(f) The base income figure shall be used for post-eligibility deductions, including personal needs allowance, monthly income allowance, family allowance, and medical expenses not subject to third party payment. Any income remaining shall be used toward payment of patient liability. Payments made from a qualifying income trust shall not be combined with the base income figure for post-eligibility calculations.

(g) The base income figure shall be used when determining the spend down budget for the applicant or recipient. Any income remaining after allowable deductions are permitted as provided under rules adopted by the department of job and family services shall be considered the applicant's or recipient's spend down liability.

(3)(a) A pooled trust that meets all of the following requirements:

(i) The trust contains the assets of the applicant or recipient of any age who is disabled as defined in rules adopted by the department of job and family services.

(ii) The trust is established and managed by a nonprofit association.

(iii) A separate account is maintained for each beneficiary of the trust but, for purposes of investment and management of funds, the trust pools the funds in these accounts.

(iv) Accounts in the trust are established by the applicant or recipient, the applicant's or recipient's parent, grandparent, or legal guardian, or a court solely for the benefit of individuals who are disabled.

(v) The trust requires that, to the extent that any amounts remaining in the beneficiary's account on the death of the beneficiary are not retained by the trust, the trust pay to the state the amounts remaining in the trust up to an amount equal to the total amount of medicaid paid on behalf of the beneficiary.

(b) Cash distributions to the applicant or recipient shall be counted as unearned income. All other distributions from the trust shall be treated as provided in rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing in-kind income.

(c) Transfers of assets to a pooled trust shall not be treated as an improper disposition of assets. ~~Assets~~ An asset held prior to the transfer to the trust shall be considered as ~~countable assets, countable~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient, income available to the applicant or recipient, or countable assets both a resource and income available to the applicant or recipient.

(4) A supplemental services trust that meets the requirements of section 5815.28 of the Revised Code and to which all of the following apply:

(a) A person may establish a supplemental services trust pursuant to section 5815.28 of the Revised Code only for another person who is eligible to receive services through one of the following agencies:

- (i) The department of developmental disabilities;
- (ii) A county board of developmental disabilities;
- (iii) The department of mental health;
- (iv) A board of alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health services.

(b) A county department of job and family services shall not determine eligibility for another agency's program. An applicant or recipient shall do one of the following:

(i) Provide documentation from one of the agencies listed in division (F)(4)(a) of this section that establishes that the applicant or recipient was determined to be eligible for services from the agency at the time of the creation of the trust;

(ii) Provide an order from a court of competent jurisdiction that states that the applicant or recipient was eligible for services from one of the agencies listed in division (F)(4)(a) of this section at the time of the creation of the trust.

(c) At the time the trust is created, the trust principal does not exceed the maximum amount permitted. The maximum amount permitted in calendar year 2006 is two hundred twenty-two thousand dollars. Each year thereafter, the maximum amount permitted is the prior year's amount plus two thousand dollars.

(d) A county department of job and family services shall review the trust to determine whether it complies with the provisions of section 5815.28 of the Revised Code.

(e) Payments from supplemental services trusts shall be exempt as long as the payments are for supplemental services as defined in rules adopted by the department of job and family services. All supplemental services shall be purchased by the trustee and shall not be purchased through direct cash payments to the beneficiary.

(f) If a trust is represented as a supplemental services trust and a county department of job and family services determines that the trust does not meet the requirements provided in division (F)(4) of this section and section 5815.28 of the Revised Code, the county department of job and family services shall not consider it an exempt trust.

(G)(1) A trust or legal instrument or device similar to a trust shall be considered a trust established by an individual for the benefit of the

applicant or recipient if all of the following apply:

(a) The trust is created by a person other than the applicant or recipient.

(b) The trust names the applicant or recipient as a beneficiary.

(c) The trust is funded with assets or property in which the applicant or recipient has never held an ownership interest prior to the establishment of the trust.

(2) Any portion of a trust that meets the requirements of division (G)(1) of this section shall be ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient only if the trust permits the trustee to expend principal, corpus, or assets of the trust for the applicant's or recipient's medical care, care, comfort, maintenance, health, welfare, general well being, or any combination of these purposes.

(3) A trust that meets the requirements of division (G)(1) of this section shall be considered ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient even if the trust contains any of the following types of provisions:

(a) A provision that prohibits the trustee from making payments that would supplant or replace medicaid or other public assistance;

(b) A provision that prohibits the trustee from making payments that would impact or have an effect on the applicant's or recipient's right, ability, or opportunity to receive medicaid or other public assistance;

(c) A provision that attempts to prevent the trust or its corpus or principal from being ~~counted as an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient.

(4) A trust that meets the requirements of division (G)(1) of this section shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient if at least one of the following circumstances applies:

(a) If a trust contains a clear statement requiring the trustee to preserve a portion of the trust for another beneficiary or remainderman, that portion of the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient. Terms of a trust that grant discretion to preserve a portion of the trust shall not qualify as a clear statement requiring the trustee to preserve a portion of the trust.

(b) If a trust contains a clear statement requiring the trustee to use a portion of the trust for a purpose other than medical care, care, comfort, maintenance, welfare, or general well being of the applicant or recipient, that portion of the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient. Terms of a trust that grant discretion to limit the use of a portion of the trust shall not qualify as a clear statement requiring the trustee to use a portion of the trust for a particular purpose.

(c) If a trust contains a clear statement limiting the trustee to making

fixed periodic payments, the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient and payments shall be treated in accordance with rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing income. Terms of a trust that grant discretion to limit payments shall not qualify as a clear statement requiring the trustee to make fixed periodic payments.

(d) If a trust contains a clear statement that requires the trustee to terminate the trust if it is counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient, the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available resource~~ such. Terms of a trust that grant discretion to terminate the trust do not qualify as a clear statement requiring the trustee to terminate the trust.

(e) If a person obtains a judgment from a court of competent jurisdiction that expressly prevents the trustee from using part or all of the trust for the medical care, care, comfort, maintenance, welfare, or general well being of the applicant or recipient, the trust or that portion of the trust subject to the court order shall not be counted as a resource available to the applicant or recipient.

(f) If a trust is specifically exempt from being counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient by a provision of the Revised Code, rules, or federal law, the trust shall not be counted as ~~a resource~~ such.

(g) If an applicant or recipient presents a final judgment from a court demonstrating that the applicant or recipient was unsuccessful in a civil action against the trustee to compel payments from the trust, the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient.

(h) If an applicant or recipient presents a final judgment from a court demonstrating that in a civil action against the trustee the applicant or recipient was only able to compel limited or periodic payments, the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient and payments shall be treated in accordance with rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing income.

(i) If an applicant or recipient provides written documentation showing that the cost of a civil action brought to compel payments from the trust would be cost prohibitive, the trust shall not be counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient.

(5) Any actual payments to the applicant or recipient from a trust that meet the requirements of division (G)(1) of this section, including trusts that are not counted as ~~an available~~ a resource available to the applicant or recipient, shall be treated as provided in rules adopted by the department of job and family services governing income. Payments to any person other

than the applicant or recipient shall not be considered income to the applicant or recipient. Payments from the trust to a person other than the applicant or recipient shall not be considered an improper disposition of assets.

Sec. 5111.16. (A) As part of the medicaid program, the department of job and family services shall establish a care management system. The department shall submit, if necessary, applications to the United States department of health and human services for waivers of federal medicaid requirements that would otherwise be violated in the implementation of the system.

(B) The department shall implement the care management system in some or all counties and shall designate the medicaid recipients who are required or permitted to participate in the system. In the department's implementation of the system and designation of participants, all of the following apply:

(1) In the case of individuals who receive medicaid on the basis of being included in the category identified by the department as covered families and children, the department shall implement the care management system in all counties. All individuals included in the category shall be designated for participation, except for individuals included in one or more of the medicaid recipient groups specified in 42 C.F.R. 438.50(d). The department shall ensure that all participants are enrolled in health insuring corporations under contract with the department pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code.

(2) In the case of individuals who receive medicaid on the basis of being aged, blind, or disabled, as specified in division (A)(2) of section 5111.01 of the Revised Code, the department shall implement the care management system in all counties. ~~All~~ Except as provided in division (C) of this section, all individuals included in the category shall be designated for participation; ~~except for the individuals specified in divisions (B)(2)(a) to (e) of this section.~~ The department shall ensure that all participants are enrolled in health insuring corporations under contract with the department pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code.

~~In~~ (3) Alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health services covered by medicaid shall not be included in any component of the care management system when the nonfederal share of the cost of those services is provided by a board of alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health services or a state agency other than the department of job and family services, but the recipients of those services may otherwise be designated for participation in the system.

(C)(1) In designating participants who receive medicaid on the basis of being aged, blind, or disabled, the department shall not include any of the following, except as provided under division (C)(2) of this section:

- (a) Individuals who are under twenty-one years of age;
- (b) Individuals who are institutionalized;
- (c) Individuals who become eligible for medicaid by spending down their income or resources to a level that meets the medicaid program's financial eligibility requirements;
- (d) Individuals who are dually eligible under the medicaid program and the medicare program established under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended;
- (e) Individuals to the extent that they are receiving medicaid services through a medicaid waiver component, as defined in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

~~(3) Alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health services covered by medicaid shall not be included in any component of the care management system when the nonfederal share of the cost of those services is provided by a board of alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health services or a state agency other than the department of job and family services, but the recipients of those services may otherwise be designated for participation in the system.~~

(C)(2) If any necessary waiver of federal medicaid requirements is granted, the department may designate any of the following individuals who receive medicaid on the basis of being aged, blind, or disabled as individuals who are permitted or required to participate in the care management system:

- (a) Individuals who are under twenty-one years of age;
- (b) Individuals who reside in a nursing facility, as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code;
- (c) Individuals who, as an alternative to receiving nursing facility services, are participating in a home and community-based services medicaid waiver component, as defined in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code;
- (d) Individuals who are dually eligible under the medicaid program and the medicare program.

(D) Subject to division (B) of this section, the department may do both of the following under the care management system:

- (1) Require or permit participants in the system to obtain health care services from providers designated by the department;
- (2) Require or permit participants in the system to obtain health care services through managed care organizations under contract with the

department pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code.

~~(D)~~(E)(1) The department shall prepare an annual report on the care management system. The report shall address the department's ability to implement the system, including all of the following components:

(a) The required designation of participants included in the category identified by the department as covered families and children;

(b) The required designation of participants included in the aged, blind, or disabled category of medicaid recipients;

(c) The use of any programs for enhanced care management.

(2) The department shall submit each annual report to the general assembly. The first report shall be submitted not later than October 1, 2007.

~~(E)~~(F) The director of job and family services may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.161. (A) As used in this section:

(1) "Children's care network" means any of the following:

(a) A children's hospital;

(b) A group of children's hospitals;

(c) A group of pediatric physicians;

(2) "Children's hospital" has the same meaning as in section 2151.86 of the Revised Code.

(B) If the department of job and family services includes in the care management system, pursuant to section 5111.16 of the Revised Code, individuals under twenty-one years of age included in the category of individuals who receive medicaid on the basis of being aged, blind, or disabled, as specified in division (A)(2) of section 5111.01 of the Revised Code, the department shall develop a system to recognize entities as pediatric accountable care organizations. The purpose of the recognition system shall be to meet the complex medical and behavioral needs of disabled children through new approaches to care coordination. The department shall implement the recognition system not later than July 1, 2012.

An entity recognized by the department as a pediatric accountable care organization may develop innovative partnerships between relevant groups and may contract directly or subcontract with the state to provide services to the medicaid recipients under twenty-one years of age described in this division who are permitted or required to participate in the care management system.

(C)(1) To be recognized by the department as a pediatric accountable care organization, an entity shall meet the standards established in rules

adopted under this section. Unless required by sections 2706 and 3022 of the "Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act," 124 Stat. 325 (2010) and Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 395 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1395jjj, the regulations adopted pursuant to those sections, and the laws of this state, the department shall not require that an entity be a health insuring corporation as a condition of receiving the department's recognition.

(2) Any of the following entities may receive the department's recognition, if the standards for recognition have been met:

(a) A children's care network;

(b) A children's care network that may include one or more other entities, including, but not limited to, health insuring corporations or other managed care organizations;

(c) Any other entity the department determines is qualified.

(D) The department shall consult with all of the following in adopting rules under division (E) of this section necessary for an entity to be recognized by the department as a pediatric accountable care organization:

(1) The superintendent of insurance;

(2) Children's hospitals;

(3) Managed care organizations under contract pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code;

(4) Any other relevant entities, as determined necessary by the department, with interests in pediatric accountable care organizations.

(E) The department shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section. In adopting the rules, the department shall do all of the following:

(1) Establish application procedures to be followed by an entity seeking recognition as a pediatric accountable care organization;

(2) Ensure that the standards for recognition as a pediatric accountable care organization are the same as and do not conflict with those specified in sections 2706 and 3022 of the "Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act," 124 Stat. 325 (2010) and Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 395 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1395jjj or the regulations adopted pursuant to those sections;

(3) Establish requirements regarding the access to pediatric specialty care provided through or by a pediatric accountable care organization;

(4) Establish accountability and financial requirements for an entity recognized as a pediatric accountable care organization;

(5) Establish quality improvement initiatives consistent with any state medicaid quality plan established by the department;

(6) Establish transparency and consumer protection requirements for an

entity recognized as a pediatric accountable care organization:

(7) Establish a process for sharing data.

(F) This section does not limit the authority of the department of insurance to regulate the business of insurance in this state.

Sec. 5111.17. (A) The department of job and family services may enter into contracts with managed care organizations, including health insuring corporations, under which the organizations are authorized to provide, or arrange for the provision of, health care services to medical assistance recipients who are required or permitted to obtain health care services through managed care organizations as part of the care management system established under section 5111.16 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department or its actuary shall base the hospital inpatient capital payment portion of the payment made to managed care organizations on data for services provided to all recipients enrolled in managed care organizations with which the department contracts, as reported by hospitals on relevant cost reports submitted pursuant to rules adopted under this section.

(C) The director of job and family services may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement this section.

~~(C)~~(D) The department of job and family services shall allow a managed care plan organization to use providers to render care upon completion of the managed care plan's organization's credentialing process.

Sec. 5111.172. (A) When contracting under section 5111.17 of the Revised Code with a managed care organization that is a health insuring corporation, the department of job and family services ~~may~~ shall require the health insuring corporation to provide coverage of prescription drugs for medicaid recipients enrolled in the health insuring corporation. In providing the required coverage, the health insuring corporation may, subject to the department's approval and the limitations specified in division (B) of this section, use strategies for the management of drug utilization.

(B) The department shall not permit a health insuring corporation to impose a prior authorization requirement in the case of a drug to which all of the following apply:

(1) The drug is an antidepressant or antipsychotic.

(2) The drug is administered or dispensed in a standard tablet or capsule form, except that in the case of an antipsychotic, the drug also may be administered or dispensed in a long-acting injectable form.

(3) The drug is prescribed by either of the following:

(a) A physician whom the health insuring corporation, pursuant to

division (C) of section 5111.17 of the Revised Code, has credentialed to provide care as a psychiatrist;

(b) A psychiatrist practicing at a community mental health agency certified by the department of mental health under section 5119.611 of the Revised Code.

(4) The drug is prescribed for a use that is indicated on the drug's labeling, as approved by the federal food and drug administration.

(C) As used in this division, "controlled substance" has the same meaning as in section 3719.01 of the Revised Code.

~~¶ The department shall permit a health insuring corporation is required under this section to provide coverage of prescription drugs, the department shall permit the health insuring corporation to develop and implement a pharmacy utilization management program under which prior authorization through the program is established as a condition of obtaining a controlled substance pursuant to a prescription. The program may include processes for requiring medicaid recipients at high risk for fraud or abuse involving controlled substances to have their prescriptions for controlled substances filled by a pharmacy, medical provider, or health care facility designated by the program.~~

Sec. 5111.1711. (A)(1) The department of job and family services shall establish a managed care performance payment program. Under the program, the department may provide payments to managed care organizations under contract with the department pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code that meet performance standards established by the department.

(2) In establishing performance standards, the department may consult any of the following:

(a) Any quality measurements developed under the pediatric quality measures program established pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1320b-9a;

(b) Any core set of adult health quality measures for medicaid eligible adults used for purposes of 42 U.S.C. 1320b-9b and any adult health quality used for purposes of the medicaid quality measurement program when the program is established under 42 U.S.C. 1320b-9b;

(c) The most recent healthcare effectiveness data and information set and quality measurement tool established by the national committee for quality assurance.

(3) The standards that must be met to receive the payments may be specified in the contract the department enters into with a managed care organization.

(4) If a managed care organization meets the performance standards

established by the department, the department shall make one or more performance payments to the organization. The amount of each performance payment, the number of payments, and the schedule for making the payments shall be established by the department. The payments shall be discontinued if the department determines that the organization no longer meets the performance standards. The department shall not make or discontinue payments based on any performance standard that has been in effect as part of the organization's contract for less than six months.

(B) For purposes of the program, the department shall establish an amount that is to be withheld each time a premium payment is made to a managed care organization. The amount shall be established as a percentage of each premium payment. The percentage shall be the same for all managed care organizations under contract with the department. The sum of all withholdings under this division shall not exceed one per cent of the total of all premium payments made to all managed care organizations under contract with the department.

Each managed care organization shall agree to the withholding as a condition of receiving or maintaining its medicaid provider agreement with the department.

When the amount is established and each time the amount is modified thereafter, the department shall certify the amount to the director of budget and management and begin withholding the amount from each premium the department pays to a managed care organization.

(C) There is hereby created in the state treasury the managed care performance payment fund. The fund shall consist of amounts transferred to it by the director of budget and management for the purpose of the program. All investment earnings of the fund shall be credited to the fund. Amounts in the fund shall be used solely to make performance payments to managed care organizations in accordance with this section.

(D) The department may adopt rules as necessary to implement this section. The rules shall be adopted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.20. As used in sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.34~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Allowable costs" are those costs determined by the department of job and family services to be reasonable and do not include fines paid under sections 5111.35 to 5111.61 and section 5111.99 of the Revised Code.

(B) "Ancillary and support costs" means all reasonable costs incurred by a nursing facility other than direct care costs or capital costs. "Ancillary and support costs" includes, but is not limited to, costs of activities, social

services, pharmacy consultants, habilitation supervisors, qualified mental retardation professionals, program directors, medical and habilitation records, program supplies, incontinence supplies, food, enterals, dietary supplies and personnel, laundry, housekeeping, security, administration, medical equipment, utilities, liability insurance, bookkeeping, purchasing department, human resources, communications, travel, dues, license fees, subscriptions, home office costs not otherwise allocated, legal services, accounting services, minor equipment, wheelchairs, resident transportation, maintenance and repairs, help-wanted advertising, informational advertising, start-up costs, organizational expenses, other interest, property insurance, employee training and staff development, employee benefits, payroll taxes, and workers' compensation premiums or costs for self-insurance claims and related costs as specified in rules adopted by the director of job and family services under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, for personnel listed in this division. "Ancillary and support costs" also means the cost of equipment, including vehicles, acquired by operating lease executed before December 1, 1992, if the costs are reported as administrative and general costs on the facility's cost report for the cost reporting period ending December 31, 1992.

(C) "Capital costs" means costs of ownership and, in the case of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, costs of nonextensive renovation.

(1) "Cost of ownership" means the actual expense incurred for all of the following:

(a) Depreciation and interest on any capital assets that cost five hundred dollars or more per item, including the following:

(i) Buildings;

(ii) Building improvements that are not approved as nonextensive renovations under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code;

(iii) Except as provided in division (B) of this section, equipment;

(iv) In the case of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, extensive renovations;

(v) Transportation equipment.

(b) Amortization and interest on land improvements and leasehold improvements;

(c) Amortization of financing costs;

(d) Except as provided in division (K) of this section, lease and rent of land, building, and equipment.

The costs of capital assets of less than five hundred dollars per item may be considered capital costs in accordance with a provider's practice.

(2) "Costs of nonextensive renovation" means the actual expense incurred by an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded for depreciation or amortization and interest on renovations that are not extensive renovations.

(D) "Capital lease" and "operating lease" shall be construed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(E) "Case-mix score" means the measure determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code of the relative direct-care resources needed to provide care and habilitation to a resident of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

(F)(1) "Date of licensure," for a facility originally licensed as a nursing home under Chapter 3721. of the Revised Code, means the date specific beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds under that chapter, regardless of whether they were subsequently licensed as residential facility beds under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code. For a facility originally licensed as a residential facility under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code, "date of licensure" means the date specific beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds under that section.

If nursing home beds licensed under Chapter 3721. of the Revised Code or residential facility beds licensed under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code were not required by law to be licensed when they were originally used to provide nursing home or residential facility services, "date of licensure" means the date the beds first were used to provide nursing home or residential facility services, regardless of the date the present provider obtained licensure.

If a facility adds nursing home beds or residential facility beds or extensively renovates all or part of the facility after its original date of licensure, it will have a different date of licensure for the additional beds or extensively renovated portion of the facility, unless the beds are added in a space that was constructed at the same time as the previously licensed beds but was not licensed under Chapter 3721. or section 5123.19 of the Revised Code at that time.

(2) The definition of "date of licensure" in this section applies in determinations of the medicaid reimbursement rate for a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded but does not apply in determinations of the franchise permit fee for a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

(G) "Desk-reviewed" means that costs as reported on a cost report submitted under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code have been subjected to a desk review under division (A) of section 5111.27 of the Revised Code

and preliminarily determined to be allowable costs.

(H) "Direct care costs" means all of the following:

(1)(a) Costs for registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, and nurse aides employed by the facility;

(b) Costs for direct care staff, administrative nursing staff, medical directors, respiratory therapists, and except as provided in division (H)(2) of this section, other persons holding degrees qualifying them to provide therapy;

(c) Costs of purchased nursing services;

(d) Costs of quality assurance;

(e) Costs of training and staff development, employee benefits, payroll taxes, and workers' compensation premiums or costs for self-insurance claims and related costs as specified in rules adopted by the director of job and family services in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, for personnel listed in divisions (H)(1)(a), (b), and (d) of this section;

(f) Costs of consulting and management fees related to direct care;

(g) Allocated direct care home office costs.

(2) In addition to the costs specified in division (H)(1) of this section, for nursing facilities only, direct care costs include costs of habilitation staff (other than habilitation supervisors), medical supplies, oxygen, over-the-counter pharmacy products, behavioral and mental health services, physical therapists, physical therapy assistants, occupational therapists, occupational therapy assistants, speech therapists, audiologists, habilitation supplies, and universal precautions supplies.

(3) In addition to the costs specified in division (H)(1) of this section, for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded only, direct care costs include both of the following:

(a) Costs for physical therapists and physical therapy assistants, occupational therapists and occupational therapy assistants, speech therapists, audiologists, habilitation staff (including habilitation supervisors), qualified mental retardation professionals, program directors, social services staff, activities staff, off-site day programming, psychologists and psychology assistants, and social workers and counselors;

(b) Costs of training and staff development, employee benefits, payroll taxes, and workers' compensation premiums or costs for self-insurance claims and related costs as specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, for personnel listed in division (H)(3)(a) of this section.

(4) Costs of other direct-care resources that are specified as direct care costs in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

(I) "Fiscal year" means the fiscal year of this state, as specified in section 9.34 of the Revised Code.

(J) "Franchise permit fee" means the following:

(1) In the context of nursing facilities, the fee imposed by sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code;

(2) In the context of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded, the fee imposed by sections 5112.30 to 5112.39 of the Revised Code.

(K) "Indirect care costs" means all reasonable costs incurred by an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded other than direct care costs, other protected costs, or capital costs. "Indirect care costs" includes but is not limited to costs of habilitation supplies, pharmacy consultants, medical and habilitation records, program supplies, incontinence supplies, food, enterals, dietary supplies and personnel, laundry, housekeeping, security, administration, liability insurance, bookkeeping, purchasing department, human resources, communications, travel, dues, license fees, subscriptions, home office costs not otherwise allocated, legal services, accounting services, minor equipment, maintenance and repairs, help-wanted advertising, informational advertising, start-up costs, organizational expenses, other interest, property insurance, employee training and staff development, employee benefits, payroll taxes, and workers' compensation premiums or costs for self-insurance claims and related costs as specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, for personnel listed in this division. Notwithstanding division (C)(1) of this section, "indirect care costs" also means the cost of equipment, including vehicles, acquired by operating lease executed before December 1, 1992, if the costs are reported as administrative and general costs on the facility's cost report for the cost reporting period ending December 31, 1992.

(L) "Inpatient days" means all days during which a resident, regardless of payment source, occupies a bed in a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is included in the facility's certified capacity under Title XIX. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.33 or 5111.331 of the Revised Code are considered inpatient days proportionate to the percentage of the facility's per resident per day rate paid for those days.

(M) "Intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded certified as in compliance with applicable standards for the medicaid program by the director of health in accordance with Title XIX.

(N) "Maintenance and repair expenses" means, except as provided in

division (BB)(2) of this section, expenditures that are necessary and proper to maintain an asset in a normally efficient working condition and that do not extend the useful life of the asset two years or more. "Maintenance and repair expenses" includes but is not limited to the cost of ordinary repairs such as painting and wallpapering.

(O) "Medicaid days" means all days during which a resident who is a ~~Medicaid~~ medicaid recipient eligible for nursing facility services occupies a bed in a nursing facility that is included in the nursing facility's certified capacity under Title XIX. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.33 or 5111.331 of the Revised Code are considered ~~Medicaid~~ medicaid days proportionate to the percentage of the nursing facility's per resident per day rate paid for those days.

(P) "Nursing facility" means a facility, or a distinct part of a facility, that is certified as a nursing facility by the director of health in accordance with Title XIX and is not an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded. "Nursing facility" includes a facility, or a distinct part of a facility, that is certified as a nursing facility by the director of health in accordance with Title XIX and is certified as a skilled nursing facility by the director in accordance with Title XVIII.

(Q) "Operator" means the person or government entity responsible for the daily operating and management decisions for a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

(R) "Other protected costs" means costs incurred by an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded for medical supplies; real estate, franchise, and property taxes; natural gas, fuel oil, water, electricity, sewage, and refuse and hazardous medical waste collection; allocated other protected home office costs; and any additional costs defined as other protected costs in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

(S)(1) "Owner" means any person or government entity that has at least five per cent ownership or interest, either directly, indirectly, or in any combination, in any of the following regarding a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded:

- (a) The land on which the facility is located;
- (b) The structure in which the facility is located;
- (c) Any mortgage, contract for deed, or other obligation secured in whole or in part by the land or structure on or in which the facility is located;
- (d) Any lease or sublease of the land or structure on or in which the facility is located.

(2) "Owner" does not mean a holder of a debenture or bond related to

the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded and purchased at public issue or a regulated lender that has made a loan related to the facility unless the holder or lender operates the facility directly or through a subsidiary.

(T) "Patient" includes "resident."

(U) Except as provided in divisions (U)(1) and (2) of this section, "per diem" means a nursing facility's or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's actual, allowable costs in a given cost center in a cost reporting period, divided by the facility's inpatient days for that cost reporting period.

(1) When calculating indirect care costs for the purpose of establishing rates under section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, "per diem" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's actual, allowable indirect care costs in a cost reporting period divided by the greater of the facility's inpatient days for that period or the number of inpatient days the facility would have had during that period if its occupancy rate had been eighty-five per cent.

(2) When calculating capital costs for the purpose of establishing rates under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code, "per diem" means a facility's actual, allowable capital costs in a cost reporting period divided by the greater of the facility's inpatient days for that period or the number of inpatient days the facility would have had during that period if its occupancy rate had been ninety-five per cent.

(V) "Provider" means an operator with a provider agreement.

(W) "Provider agreement" means a contract between the department of job and family services and the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded for the provision of nursing facility services or intermediate care facility services for the mentally retarded under the medicaid program.

(X) "Purchased nursing services" means services that are provided in a nursing facility by registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, or nurse aides who are not employees of the facility.

(Y) "Reasonable" means that a cost is an actual cost that is appropriate and helpful to develop and maintain the operation of patient care facilities and activities, including normal standby costs, and that does not exceed what a prudent buyer pays for a given item or services. Reasonable costs may vary from provider to provider and from time to time for the same provider.

(Z) "Related party" means an individual or organization that, to a significant extent, has common ownership with, is associated or affiliated

with, has control of, or is controlled by, the provider.

(1) An individual who is a relative of an owner is a related party.

(2) Common ownership exists when an individual or individuals possess significant ownership or equity in both the provider and the other organization. Significant ownership or equity exists when an individual or individuals possess five per cent ownership or equity in both the provider and a supplier. Significant ownership or equity is presumed to exist when an individual or individuals possess ten per cent ownership or equity in both the provider and another organization from which the provider purchases or leases real property.

(3) Control exists when an individual or organization has the power, directly or indirectly, to significantly influence or direct the actions or policies of an organization.

(4) An individual or organization that supplies goods or services to a provider shall not be considered a related party if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The supplier is a separate bona fide organization.

(b) A substantial part of the supplier's business activity of the type carried on with the provider is transacted with others than the provider and there is an open, competitive market for the types of goods or services the supplier furnishes.

(c) The types of goods or services are commonly obtained by other nursing facilities or intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded from outside organizations and are not a basic element of patient care ordinarily furnished directly to patients by the facilities.

(d) The charge to the provider is in line with the charge for the goods or services in the open market and no more than the charge made under comparable circumstances to others by the supplier.

(AA) "Relative of owner" means an individual who is related to an owner of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded by one of the following relationships:

(1) Spouse;

(2) Natural parent, child, or sibling;

(3) Adopted parent, child, or sibling;

(4) Stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother, or stepsister;

(5) Father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law;

(6) Grandparent or grandchild;

(7) Foster caregiver, foster child, foster brother, or foster sister.

(BB) "Renovation" and "extensive renovation" mean:

(1) Any betterment, improvement, or restoration of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded started before July 1, 1993, that meets the definition of a renovation or extensive renovation established in rules adopted by the director of job and family services in effect on December 22, 1992.

(2) In the case of betterments, improvements, and restorations of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded started on or after July 1, 1993:

(a) "Renovation" means the betterment, improvement, or restoration of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded beyond its current functional capacity through a structural change that costs at least five hundred dollars per bed. A renovation may include betterment, improvement, restoration, or replacement of assets that are affixed to the building and have a useful life of at least five years. A renovation may include costs that otherwise would be considered maintenance and repair expenses if they are an integral part of the structural change that makes up the renovation project. "Renovation" does not mean construction of additional space for beds that will be added to a facility's licensed or certified capacity.

(b) "Extensive renovation" means a renovation that costs more than sixty-five per cent and no more than eighty-five per cent of the cost of constructing a new bed and that extends the useful life of the assets for at least ten years.

For the purposes of division (BB)(2) of this section, the cost of constructing a new bed shall be considered to be forty thousand dollars, adjusted for the estimated rate of inflation from January 1, 1993, to the end of the calendar year during which the renovation is completed, using the consumer price index for shelter costs for all urban consumers for the north central region, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics.

The department of job and family services may treat a renovation that costs more than eighty-five per cent of the cost of constructing new beds as an extensive renovation if the department determines that the renovation is more prudent than construction of new beds.

(CC) "Title XIX" means Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396, as amended.

(DD) "Title XVIII" means Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended.

Sec. 5111.21. (A) In order to be eligible for medicaid payments, the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded shall do all of the following:

(1) Enter into a provider agreement with the department as provided in section 5111.22, 5111.671, or 5111.672 of the Revised Code;

(2) Apply for and maintain a valid license to operate if so required by law;

(3) Subject to division (B) of this section, comply with all applicable state and federal laws and rules.

(B) A state rule that requires the operator of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded to have received approval of a plan for the proposed facility pursuant to section 5123.042 of the Revised Code as a condition of the operator being eligible for medicaid payments for the facility does not apply if, under former section 5123.193 of the Revised Code as enacted by Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 128th general assembly or section 5123.197 of the Revised Code, a residential facility license was obtained or modified for the facility without obtaining approval of such a plan.

(C)(1) Except as provided in division (C)(2) of this section, the operator of a nursing facility that elects to obtain and maintain eligibility for payments under the medicaid program shall qualify all of the facility's medicaid-certified beds in the medicare program established by Title XVIII. The director of job and family services may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code to establish the time frame in which a nursing facility must comply with this requirement.

(2) The department of veterans services is not required to qualify all of the medicaid-certified beds in a nursing facility the agency maintains and operates under section 5907.01 of the Revised Code in the medicare program.

Sec. 5111.211. (A) Except as provided in ~~division~~ divisions (C) and (D) of this section, the department of developmental disabilities is responsible for the nonfederal share of claims submitted for services that are covered by the medicaid program and provided to an eligible medicaid recipient by an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded if all of the following are the case:

(1) The services are provided on or after July 1, 2003;

(2) The facility receives initial certification by the director of health as an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded on or after June 1, 2003;

(3) The facility, or a portion of the facility, is licensed by the director of developmental disabilities as a residential facility under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code;

(4) There is a valid provider agreement for the facility.

(B) Each month, the department of job and family services shall invoice the department of developmental disabilities by interagency transfer voucher for the claims for which the department of developmental disabilities is responsible pursuant to this section.

(C) Division (A) of this section does not apply to claims submitted for an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded if, under former section 5123.193 of the Revised Code as enacted by Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 128th general assembly or section 5123.197 of the Revised Code, a residential facility license was obtained or modified for the facility without obtaining approval of a plan for the proposed residential facility pursuant to section 5123.042 of the Revised Code.

(D) Beginning on the date the department of developmental disabilities assumes, under section 5111.226 of the Revised Code, the powers and duties of the department of job and family services regarding the medicaid program's coverage of services provided by intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded, this section shall apply only to the extent, if any, provided in the contract required by that section.

Sec. 5111.212. As used in this section, "effective date of an involuntary termination" and "involuntary termination" have the same meanings as in section 5111.65 of the Revised Code.

Medicaid payments may be made for nursing facility services and intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded services provided not later than thirty days after the effective date of an involuntary termination of the facility that provides the services if the services are provided to a medicaid recipient who is eligible for the services and resided in the facility before the effective date of the involuntary termination.

Sec. 5111.22. A provider agreement between the department of job and family services and the provider of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded shall contain the following provisions:

(A) The department agrees to make payments to the provider, as provided in sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, for medicaid-covered services the facility provides to a resident of the facility who is a medicaid recipient. No payment shall be made for the day a medicaid recipient is discharged from the facility.

(B) The provider agrees to:

(1) Maintain eligibility as provided in section 5111.21 of the Revised Code;

(2) Keep records relating to a cost reporting period for the greater of seven years after the cost report is filed or, if the department issues an audit report in accordance with division (B) of section 5111.27 of the Revised

Code, six years after all appeal rights relating to the audit report are exhausted;

(3) File reports as required by the department;

(4) Open all records relating to the costs of its services for inspection and audit by the department;

(5) Open its premises for inspection by the department, the department of health, and any other state or local authority having authority to inspect;

(6) Supply to the department such information as it requires concerning the facility's services to residents who are or are eligible to be medicaid recipients;

(7) Comply with section 5111.31 of the Revised Code.

The provider agreement may contain other provisions that are consistent with law and considered necessary by the department.

A provider agreement shall be effective for no longer than twelve months, except that if federal statute or regulations authorize a longer term, it may be effective for a longer term so authorized. A provider agreement may be renewed only if the facility is certified by the department of health for participation in the medicaid program.

The department of job and family services, in accordance with rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, may elect not to enter into, not to renew, or to terminate a provider agreement when the department determines that such an agreement would not be in the best interests of medicaid recipients or of the state.

Sec. 5111.221. The department of job and family services shall make its best efforts each year to calculate rates under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code in time to use them to make the payments due to providers by the fifteenth day of August. If the department is unable to calculate the rates so that they can be paid by that date, the department shall pay each provider the rate calculated for the provider's nursing facilities and intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded under those sections at the end of the previous fiscal year. If the department also is unable to calculate the rates to make the payments due by the fifteenth day of September and the fifteenth day of October, the department shall pay the previous fiscal year's rate to make those payments. The department may increase by five per cent the previous fiscal year's rate paid for any facility pursuant to this section at the request of the provider. The department shall use rates calculated for the current fiscal year to make the payments due by the fifteenth day of November.

If the rate paid to a provider for a facility pursuant to this section is lower than the rate calculated for the facility for the current fiscal year, the

department shall pay the provider the difference between the two rates for the number of days for which the provider was paid for the facility pursuant to this section. If the rate paid for a facility pursuant to this section is higher than the rate calculated for it for the current fiscal year, the provider shall refund to the department the difference between the two rates for the number of days for which the provider was paid for the facility pursuant to this section.

Sec. 5111.222. (A) Except as otherwise provided by sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code and by division (B) of this section, the payments that the department of job and family services shall agree to make to the provider of a nursing facility pursuant to a provider agreement shall equal the sum of all of the following:

(1) The rate for direct care costs determined for the nursing facility under section 5111.231 of the Revised Code;

(2) The rate for ancillary and support costs determined for the nursing facility's ancillary and support cost peer group under section 5111.24 of the Revised Code;

(3) The rate for tax costs determined for the nursing facility under section 5111.242 of the Revised Code;

~~(4) The rate for franchise permit fees determined for the nursing facility under section 5111.243 of the Revised Code;~~

~~(5)~~ (5) The quality incentive payment paid to the nursing facility under section 5111.244 of the Revised Code;

~~(6)~~(5) The ~~median~~ rate for capital costs determined for the ~~nursing facilities in the~~ nursing facility's capital costs peer group ~~as determined~~ under section 5111.25 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department shall adjust the rates otherwise determined under ~~divisions~~ division (A)(~~1~~), (~~2~~), (~~3~~), and (~~6~~) of this section as directed by the general assembly through the enactment of law governing medicaid payments to providers of nursing facilities, including any law that ~~does~~ either of the following:

~~(1) Establishes~~ establishes factors by which the rates are to be adjusted;

~~(2) Establishes a methodology for phasing in the rates determined for fiscal year 2006 under uncodified law the general assembly enacts to rates determined for subsequent fiscal years under sections 5111.20 to 5111.33 of the Revised Code.~~

Sec. 5111.224. (A) Except as otherwise provided by sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code and by division (B) of this section, the payments that the department of job and family services shall agree to make to the provider of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded

pursuant to a provider agreement shall equal the sum of all of the following:

(1) The rate for direct care costs determined for the facility under section 5111.23 of the Revised Code;

(2) The rate for other protected costs determined for the facility under section 5111.235 of the Revised Code;

(3) The rate for indirect care costs determined for the facility under section 5111.241 of the Revised Code;

(4) The rate for capital costs determined for the facility under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department shall adjust the total rate otherwise determined under division (A) of this section as directed by the general assembly through the enactment of law governing medicaid payments to providers of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded.

Sec. 5111.225. (A) As used in this section:

"Dual eligible individual" has the same meaning as in section 1915(h)(2)(B) of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 315 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396n(h)(2)(B).

"Medicaid maximum allowable amount" means one hundred per cent of a nursing facility's per diem rate for a medicaid day.

(B) The department of job and family services shall pay the provider of a nursing facility the lesser of the following for nursing facility services the nursing facility provides on or after January 1, 2012, to a dual eligible individual who is eligible for nursing facility services under the medicaid program and post-hospital extended care services under Part A of Title XVIII:

(1) The coinsurance amount for the services as provided under Part A of Title XVIII;

(2) The medicaid maximum allowable amount for the services, less the amount paid under Part A of Title XVIII for the services.

Sec. 5111.226. Subject, if needed, to the approval of the United States secretary of health and human services, the department of job and family services shall enter into a contract with the department of developmental disabilities under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code that provides for the department of developmental disabilities to assume the powers and duties of the department of job and family services with regard to the medicaid program's coverage of services provided by intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded. The contract shall include a schedule for the assumption of the powers and duties. Except as otherwise authorized by the United States secretary of health and human services, no provision of the contract may violate a federal law or regulation governing the medicaid

program. Once the contract goes into effect, all references to the department of job and family services, and all references to the director of job and family services, with regard to intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded that are in law enacted by the general assembly shall be deemed to be references to the department of developmental disabilities and director of developmental disabilities, respectively, to the extent necessary to implement the terms of the contract.

Sec. 5111.23. (A) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded a per resident per day rate for direct care costs established prospectively for each facility. The department shall establish each facility's rate for direct care costs quarterly.

(B) Each facility's rate for direct care costs shall be based on the facility's cost per case-mix unit, subject to the maximum costs per case-mix unit established under division (B)(2) of this section, from the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate is paid. To determine the rate, the department shall do all of the following:

(1) Determine each facility's cost per case-mix unit for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid by dividing the facility's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem direct care costs for that year by its average case-mix score determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code for the same calendar year.

(2)(a) Set the maximum cost per case-mix unit for each peer group of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds specified in rules adopted under division ~~(E)~~(F) of this section at a percentage above the cost per case-mix unit of the facility in the group that has the group's median medicaid inpatient day for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, as calculated under division (B)(1) of this section, that is no less than the percentage calculated under division ~~(D)~~(E)(2) of this section.

(b) Set the maximum cost per case-mix unit for each peer group of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds specified in rules adopted under division ~~(E)~~(F) of this section at a percentage above the cost per case-mix unit of the facility in the group that has the group's median medicaid inpatient day for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, as calculated under division (B)(1) of this section, that is no less than the percentage calculated under division ~~(D)~~(E)(3) of this section.

(c) In calculating the maximum cost per case-mix unit under divisions (B)(2)(a) ~~to~~ and (b) of this section for each peer group, the department shall

exclude from its calculations the cost per case-mix unit of any facility in the group that participated in the medicaid program under the same operator for less than twelve months during the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid.

(3) Estimate the rate of inflation for the eighteen-month period beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid and ending on the thirty-first day of December of the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, using the ~~employment cost index for total compensation, health services component, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics~~ specified in division (C) of this section. If the estimated inflation rate for the eighteen-month period is different from the actual inflation rate for that period, as measured using the same index, the difference shall be added to or subtracted from the inflation rate estimated under division (B)(3) of this section for the following fiscal year.

(4) The department shall not recalculate a maximum cost per case-mix unit under division (B)(2) of this section or a percentage under division ~~(D)~~(E) of this section based on additional information that it receives after the maximum costs per case-mix unit or percentages are set. The department shall recalculate a maximum cost per case-mix units or percentage only if it made an error in computing the maximum cost per case-mix unit or percentage based on information available at the time of the original calculation.

(C) The department shall use the following index for the purpose of division (B)(3) of this section:

(1) The employment cost index for total compensation, health services component, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;

(2) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (C)(1) of this section, the index that is subsequently published by the bureau and covers nursing facilities' staff costs.

(D) Each facility's rate for direct care costs shall be determined as follows for each calendar quarter within a fiscal year:

(1) Multiply the lesser of the following by the facility's average case-mix score determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code for the calendar quarter that preceded the immediately preceding calendar quarter:

(a) The facility's cost per case-mix unit for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, as determined under division (B)(1) of this section;

(b) The maximum cost per case-mix unit established for the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid for the facility's peer group under division (B)(2) of this section;

(2) Adjust the product determined under division ~~(C)~~(D)(1) of this section by the inflation rate estimated under division (B)(3) of this section.

~~(D)~~(E)(1) The department shall calculate the percentage above the median cost per case-mix unit determined under division (B)(1) of this section for the facility that has the median medicaid inpatient day for calendar year 1992 for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds that would result in payment of all desk-reviewed, actual, allowable direct care costs for eighty and one-half per cent of the medicaid inpatient days for such facilities for calendar year 1992.

(2) The department shall calculate the percentage above the median cost per case-mix unit determined under division (B)(1) of this section for the facility that has the median medicaid inpatient day for calendar year 1992 for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds that would result in payment of all desk-reviewed, actual, allowable direct care costs for eighty and one-half per cent of the medicaid inpatient days for such facilities for calendar year 1992.

~~(E)~~(F) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that specify peer groups of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds and intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds, based on findings of significant per diem direct care cost differences due to geography and facility bed-size. The rules also may specify peer groups based on findings of significant per diem direct care cost differences due to other factors which may include case-mix.

~~(F)~~(G) The department, in accordance with division (D) of section 5111.232 of the Revised Code and rules adopted under division ~~(E)~~(F) of that section, may assign case-mix scores or costs per case-mix unit if a provider fails to submit assessment data necessary to calculate an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's case-mix score in accordance with that section.

Sec. 5111.231. (A) As used in this section, ~~"applicable;~~

(1) "Applicable calendar year" means the following:

~~(1)~~(a) For the purpose of the department of job and family services' initial determination under division (D) of this section of each peer group's cost per case-mix unit, calendar year 2003;

~~(2)~~(b) For the purpose of the department's ~~subsequent determinations~~

~~under division (D) of this section of each peer group's cost per case-mix unit rebasings~~, the calendar year the department selects.

(2) "Rebasing" means a redetermination under division (D) of this section of each peer groups' cost per case-mix unit using information from cost reports for an applicable calendar year that is later than the applicable calendar year used for the previous determination of such costs.

(B) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible nursing facilities a per resident per day rate for direct care costs determined semiannually by multiplying the cost per case-mix unit determined under division (D) of this section for the facility's peer group by the facility's semiannual case-mix score determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code.

(C) For the purpose of determining nursing facilities' rate for direct care costs, the department shall establish three peer groups.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group one: Brown, Butler, Clermont, Clinton, Hamilton, and Warren.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group two: Ashtabula, Champaign, Clark, Cuyahoga, Darke, Delaware, Fairfield, Fayette, Franklin, Fulton, Geauga, Greene, Hancock, Knox, Lake, Licking, Lorain, Lucas, Madison, Marion, Medina, Miami, Montgomery, Morrow, Ottawa, Pickaway, Portage, Preble, Ross, Sandusky, Seneca, Summit, Union, and Wood.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group three: Adams, Allen, Ashland, Athens, Auglaize, Belmont, Carroll, Columbiana, Coshocton, Crawford, Defiance, Erie, Gallia, Guernsey, Hardin, Harrison, Henry, Highland, Hocking, Holmes, Huron, Jackson, Jefferson, Lawrence, Logan, Mahoning, Meigs, Mercer, Monroe, Morgan, Muskingum, Noble, Paulding, Perry, Pike, Putnam, Richland, Scioto, Shelby, Stark, Trumbull, Tuscarawas, Van Wert, Vinton, Washington, Wayne, Williams, and Wyandot.

(D)(1) ~~At least once every ten years, the~~ The department shall determine a cost per case-mix unit for each peer group established under division (C) of this section. ~~A~~ The department is not required to conduct a rebasing more than once every ten years. Except as necessary to implement the amendments made by this act to this section, the cost per case-mix unit determined under this division for a peer group shall be used for subsequent years until the department ~~redetermines it~~ conducts a rebasing. To determine a peer group's cost per case-mix unit, the department shall do all of the following:

(a) Determine the cost per case-mix unit for each nursing facility in the peer group for the applicable calendar year by dividing each facility's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem direct care costs for the applicable calendar year by the facility's annual average case-mix score determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code for the applicable calendar year-;

(b) Subject to division (D)(2) of this section, identify which nursing facility in the peer group is at the twenty-fifth percentile of the cost per case-mix units determined under division (D)(1)(a) of this section-;

(c) Calculate the amount that is ~~seven~~ two per cent above the cost per case-mix unit determined under division (D)(1)(a) of this section for the nursing facility identified under division (D)(1)(b) of this section-;

(d) ~~Multiply the amount calculated under division (D)(1)(c) of this section by~~ Using the index specified in division (D)(3) of this section, multiply the rate of inflation for the eighteen-month period beginning on the first day of July of the applicable calendar year and ending the last day of December of the calendar year immediately following the applicable calendar year ~~using the following:~~

(i) ~~In the case of the initial calculation made under division (D)(1)(d) of this section, the employment cost index for total compensation, health services component, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, as the index existed on July 1, 2005;~~

(ii) ~~In the case of subsequent calculations made under division (D)(1)(d) of this section and except as provided in division (D)(1)(d)(iii) of this section, the employment cost index for total compensation, nursing and residential care facilities occupational group, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;~~

(iii) ~~If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (D)(1)(d)(ii) of this section, the index the bureau subsequently publishes that covers nursing facilities' staff costs~~ by the amount calculated under division (D)(1)(c) of this section;

(e) Until the first rebasing occurs, add one dollar and eighty-eight cents to the amount calculated under division (D)(1)(d) of this section.

(2) In making the identification under division (D)(1)(b) of this section, the department shall exclude both of the following:

(a) Nursing facilities that participated in the medicaid program under the same provider for less than twelve months in the applicable calendar year;

(b) Nursing facilities whose cost per case-mix unit is more than one standard deviation from the mean cost per case-mix unit for all nursing facilities in the nursing facility's peer group for the applicable calendar year.

(3) The following index shall be used for the purpose of the calculation made under division (D)(1)(d) of this section:

(a) Until the first rebasing occurs, the employment cost index for total compensation, health services component, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, as the index existed on July 1, 2005:

(b) Effective with the first rebasing and except as provided in division (D)(3)(c) of this section, the employment cost index for total compensation, nursing and residential care facilities occupational group, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics:

(c) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (D)(3)(b) of this section, the index the bureau subsequently publishes that covers nursing facilities' staff costs.

(4) The department shall not redetermine a peer group's cost per case-mix unit under this division based on additional information that it receives after the peer group's per case-mix unit is determined. The department shall redetermine a peer group's cost per case-mix unit only if it made an error in determining the peer group's cost per case-mix unit based on information available to the department at the time of the original determination.

Sec. 5111.232. (A)(1) The department of job and family services shall determine semiannual and annual average case-mix scores for nursing facilities by using all of the following:

(a) Data from a resident assessment instrument specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code pursuant to section 1919(e)(5) of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(e)(5), as amended, for the following residents:

(i) When determining semiannual case-mix scores for fiscal year 2012, each resident who is a medicaid recipient;

(ii) When determining semiannual case-mix scores for fiscal year 2013 and thereafter, each resident who is a medicaid recipient and not placed in either of the two lowest resource utilization groups, excluding any resource utilization group that is a default group used for residents with incomplete assessment data;

(iii) When determining annual average case-mix scores, each resident regardless of payment source.

(b) Except as provided in rules authorized by divisions (A)(2)(a) and (b) of this section, the case-mix values established by the United States department of health and human services;

(c) Except as modified in rules authorized by division (A)(2)(c) of this section, the grouper methodology used on June 30, 1999, by the United

States department of health and human services for prospective payment of skilled nursing facilities under the medicare program established by Title XVIII.

(2) The director of job and family services may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that do any of the following:

(a) Adjust the case-mix values specified in division (A)(1)(b) of this section to reflect changes in relative wage differentials that are specific to this state;

(b) Express all of those case-mix values in numeric terms that are different from the terms specified by the United States department of health and human services but that do not alter the relationship of the case-mix values to one another;

(c) Modify the grouper methodology specified in division (A)(1)(c) of this section as follows:

(i) Establish a different hierarchy for assigning residents to case-mix categories under the methodology;

(ii) Prohibit the use of the index maximizer element of the methodology;

(iii) Incorporate changes to the methodology the United States department of health and human services makes after June 30, 1999;

(iv) Make other changes the department determines are necessary.

(B) The department shall determine case-mix scores for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded using data for each resident, regardless of payment source, from a resident assessment instrument and grouper methodology prescribed in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code and expressed in case-mix values established by the department in those rules.

(C) Each calendar quarter, each provider shall compile complete assessment data, from the resident assessment instrument specified in rules authorized by division (A) or (B) of this section, for each resident of each of the provider's facilities, regardless of payment source, who was in the facility or on hospital or therapeutic leave from the facility on the last day of the quarter. Providers of a nursing facility shall submit the data to the department of health and, if required by rules, the department of job and family services. Providers of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded shall submit the data to the department of job and family services. The data shall be submitted not later than fifteen days after the end of the calendar quarter for which the data is compiled.

Except as provided in division (D) of this section, the department, every six months and after the end of each calendar year, shall calculate a semiannual and annual average case-mix score for each nursing facility

using the facility's quarterly case-mix scores for that six-month period or calendar year. Also except as provided in division (D) of this section, the department, after the end of each calendar year, shall calculate an annual average case-mix score for each intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded using the facility's quarterly case-mix scores for that calendar year. The department shall make the calculations pursuant to procedures specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

(D)(1) If a provider does not timely submit information for a calendar quarter necessary to calculate a facility's case-mix score, or submits incomplete or inaccurate information for a calendar quarter, the department may assign the facility a quarterly average case-mix score that is five per cent less than the facility's quarterly average case-mix score for the preceding calendar quarter. If the facility was subject to an exception review under division (C) of section 5111.27 of the Revised Code for the preceding calendar quarter, the department may assign a quarterly average case-mix score that is five per cent less than the score determined by the exception review. If the facility was assigned a quarterly average case-mix score for the preceding quarter, the department may assign a quarterly average case-mix score that is five per cent less than that score assigned for the preceding quarter.

The department may use a quarterly average case-mix score assigned under division (D)(1) of this section, instead of a quarterly average case-mix score calculated based on the provider's submitted information, to calculate the facility's rate for direct care costs being established under section 5111.23 or 5111.231 of the Revised Code for one or more months, as specified in rules authorized by division (E) of this section, of the quarter for which the rate established under section 5111.23 or 5111.231 of the Revised Code will be paid.

Before taking action under division (D)(1) of this section, the department shall permit the provider a reasonable period of time, specified in rules authorized by division (E) of this section, to correct the information. In the case of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, the department shall not assign a quarterly average case-mix score due to late submission of corrections to assessment information unless the provider fails to submit corrected information prior to the eighty-first day after the end of the calendar quarter to which the information pertains. In the case of a nursing facility, the department shall not assign a quarterly average case-mix score due to late submission of corrections to assessment information unless the provider fails to submit corrected information prior to the earlier of the forty-sixth day after the end of the calendar quarter to

which the information pertains or the deadline for submission of such corrections established by regulations adopted by the United States department of health and human services under Titles XVIII and XIX.

(2) If a provider is paid a rate for a facility calculated using a quarterly average case-mix score assigned under division (D)(1) of this section for more than six months in a calendar year, the department may assign the facility a cost per case-mix unit that is five per cent less than the facility's actual or assigned cost per case-mix unit for the preceding calendar year. The department may use the assigned cost per case-mix unit, instead of calculating the facility's actual cost per case-mix unit in accordance with section 5111.23 or 5111.231 of the Revised Code, to establish the facility's rate for direct care costs for the following fiscal year.

(3) The department shall take action under division (D)(1) or (2) of this section only in accordance with rules authorized by division (E) of this section. The department shall not take an action that affects rates for prior payment periods except in accordance with sections 5111.27 and 5111.28 of the Revised Code.

(E) The director shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that do all of the following:

(1) Specify whether providers of a nursing facility must submit the assessment data to the department of job and family services;

(2) Specify the medium or media through which the completed assessment data shall be submitted;

(3) Establish procedures under which the assessment data shall be reviewed for accuracy and providers shall be notified of any data that requires correction;

(4) Establish procedures for providers to correct assessment data and specify a reasonable period of time by which providers shall submit the corrections. The procedures may limit the content of corrections by providers of nursing facilities in the manner required by regulations adopted by the United States department of health and human services under Titles XVIII and XIX.

(5) Specify when and how the department will assign case-mix scores or costs per case-mix unit under division (D) of this section if information necessary to calculate the facility's case-mix score is not provided or corrected in accordance with the procedures established by the rules. Notwithstanding any other provision of sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, the rules also may provide for the following:

(a) Exclusion of case-mix scores assigned under division (D) of this section from calculation of an intermediate care facility for the mentally

retarded's annual average case-mix score and the maximum cost per case-mix unit for the facility's peer group;

(b) Exclusion of case-mix scores assigned under division (D) of this section from calculation of a nursing facility's semiannual or annual average case-mix score and the cost per case-mix unit for the facility's peer group.

Sec. 5111.235. (A) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded a per resident per day rate for other protected costs established prospectively each fiscal year for each facility. The rate for each facility shall be the facility's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem other protected costs from the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, all adjusted for the estimated inflation rate for the eighteen-month period beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid and ending on the thirty-first day of December of that fiscal year. The department shall estimate inflation using the ~~consumer price index for all urban consumers for nonprescription drugs and medical supplies, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics~~ specified in division (B) of this section. If the estimated inflation rate for the eighteen-month period is different from the actual inflation rate for that period, the difference shall be added to or subtracted from the inflation rate estimated for the following year.

(B) The department shall use the following index for the purpose of division (A) of this section:

(1) The consumer price index for all urban consumers for nonprescription drugs and medical supplies, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;

(2) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (B)(1) of this section, the index that is subsequently published by the bureau and covers nonprescription drugs and medical supplies.

Sec. 5111.24. (A) As used in this section, ~~"applicable;~~

(1) "Applicable calendar year" means the following:

~~(1)(a)~~ (a) For the purpose of the department of job and family services' initial determination under division (D) of this section of each peer group's rate for ancillary and support costs, calendar year 2003;

~~(2)(b)~~ (b) For the purpose of the department's ~~subsequent determinations under division (D) of this section of each peer group's rate for ancillary and support costs~~ rebasings, the calendar year the department selects.

(2) "Rebasing" means a redetermination under division (D) of this section of each peer groups' rate for ancillary and support costs using

information from cost reports for an applicable calendar year that is later than the applicable calendar year used for the previous determination of such rates.

(B) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible nursing facilities a per resident per day rate for ancillary and support costs determined for the nursing facility's peer group under division (D) of this section.

(C) For the purpose of determining nursing facilities' rate for ancillary and support costs, the department shall establish six peer groups.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group one or two: Brown, Butler, Clermont, Clinton, Hamilton, and Warren. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group one. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group two.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group three or four: Ashtabula, Champaign, Clark, Cuyahoga, Darke, Delaware, Fairfield, Fayette, Franklin, Fulton, Geauga, Greene, Hancock, Knox, Lake, Licking, Lorain, Lucas, Madison, Marion, Medina, Miami, Montgomery, Morrow, Ottawa, Pickaway, Portage, Preble, Ross, Sandusky, Seneca, Summit, Union, and Wood. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group three. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group four.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group five or six: Adams, Allen, Ashland, Athens, Auglaize, Belmont, Carroll, Columbiana, Coshocton, Crawford, Defiance, Erie, Gallia, Guernsey, Hardin, Harrison, Henry, Highland, Hocking, Holmes, Huron, Jackson, Jefferson, Lawrence, Logan, Mahoning, Meigs, Mercer, Monroe, Morgan, Muskingum, Noble, Paulding, Perry, Pike, Putnam, Richland, Scioto, Shelby, Stark, Trumbull, Tuscarawas, Van Wert, Vinton, Washington, Wayne, Williams, and Wyandot. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group five. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group six.

(D)(1) ~~At least once every ten years, the~~ The department shall determine the rate for ancillary and support costs for each peer group established under division (C) of this section. The department is not required to conduct a

rebasings more than once every ten years. Except as necessary to implement the amendments made by this act to this section, the rate for ancillary and support costs determined under this division for a peer group shall be used for subsequent years until the department ~~redetermines it~~ conducts a rebasing. To determine a peer group's rate for ancillary and support costs, the department shall do all of the following:

(a) ~~Determine~~ Subject to division (D)(2) of this section, determine the rate for ancillary and support costs for each nursing facility in the peer group for the applicable calendar year by using the greater of the nursing facility's actual inpatient days for the applicable calendar year or the inpatient days the nursing facility would have had for the applicable calendar year if its occupancy rate had been ninety per cent. ~~For the purpose of determining a nursing facility's occupancy rate under division (D)(1)(a) of this section, the department shall include any beds that the nursing facility removes from its medicare-certified capacity unless the nursing facility also removes the beds from its licensed bed capacity.;~~

(b) Subject to division (D)(2)(3) of this section, identify which nursing facility in the peer group is at the twenty-fifth percentile of the rate for ancillary and support costs for the applicable calendar year determined under division (D)(1)(a) of this section.;

(c) ~~Calculate the amount that is three per cent above the rate for ancillary and support costs determined under division (D)(1)(a) of this section for the nursing facility identified under division (D)(1)(b) of this section.~~

(~~d~~) Multiply the amount calculated rate for ancillary and support costs determined under division (D)(1)(~~e~~)(a) of this section for the nursing facility identified under division (D)(1)(b) of this section by the rate of inflation for the eighteen-month period beginning on the first day of July of the applicable calendar year and ending the last day of December of the calendar year immediately following the applicable calendar year using the following:

(i) ~~In the case of the initial calculation made under division (D)(1)(d) of this section~~ Until the first rebasing occurs, the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers for the north central region, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, as that index existed on July 1, 2005;

(ii) ~~In the case of subsequent calculations made under division (D)(1)(d) of this section~~ Effective with the first rebasing and except as provided in division (D)(1)(~~d~~)(c)(iii) of this section, the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers for the midwest region, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;

(iii) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (D)(1)~~(d)~~(c)(ii) of this section, the index the bureau subsequently publishes that covers urban consumers' prices for items for the region that includes this state.

(2) For the purpose of determining a nursing facility's occupancy rate under division (D)(1)(a) of this section, the department shall include any beds that the nursing facility removes from its medicaid-certified capacity unless the nursing facility also removes the beds from its licensed bed capacity.

(3) In making the identification under division (D)(1)(b) of this section, the department shall exclude both of the following:

(a) Nursing facilities that participated in the medicaid program under the same provider for less than twelve months in the applicable calendar year;

(b) Nursing facilities whose ancillary and support costs are more than one standard deviation from the mean desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem ancillary and support cost for all nursing facilities in the nursing facility's peer group for the applicable calendar year.

~~(3)~~(4) The department shall not redetermine a peer group's rate for ancillary and support costs under this division based on additional information that it receives after the rate is determined. The department shall redetermine a peer group's rate for ancillary and support costs only if ~~it~~ the department made an error in determining the rate based on information available to the department at the time of the original determination.

Sec. 5111.241. (A) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded a per resident per day rate for indirect care costs established prospectively each fiscal year for each facility. The rate for each intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded shall be the sum of the following, but shall not exceed the maximum rate established for the facility's peer group under division (B) of this section:

(1) The facility's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem indirect care costs from the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, adjusted for the inflation rate estimated under division (C)(1) of this section;

(2) An efficiency incentive in the following amount:

(a) For fiscal years ending in even-numbered calendar years:

(i) In the case of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds, seven and one-tenth per cent of the maximum rate established for the facility's peer group under division (B) of this section;

(ii) In the case of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds, seven per cent of the maximum rate established for the facility's peer group under division (B) of this section;

(b) For fiscal years ending in odd-numbered calendar years, the amount calculated for the preceding fiscal year under division (A)(2)(a) of this section.

(B)(1) The maximum rate for indirect care costs for each peer group of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds specified in rules adopted under division (D) of this section shall be determined as follows:

(a) For fiscal years ending in even-numbered calendar years, the maximum rate for each peer group shall be the rate that is no less than twelve and four-tenths per cent above the median desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem indirect care cost for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds in the group, excluding facilities in the group whose indirect care costs for that period are more than three standard deviations from the mean desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem indirect care cost for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds, for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, adjusted by the inflation rate estimated under division (C)(1) of this section.

(b) For fiscal years ending in odd-numbered calendar years, the maximum rate for each peer group is the group's maximum rate for the previous fiscal year, adjusted for the inflation rate estimated under division (C)(2) of this section.

(2) The maximum rate for indirect care costs for each peer group of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds specified in rules adopted under division (D) of this section shall be determined as follows:

(a) For fiscal years ending in even-numbered calendar years, the maximum rate for each peer group shall be the rate that is no less than ten and three-tenths per cent above the median desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem indirect care cost for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds in the group, excluding facilities in the group whose indirect care costs are more than three standard deviations from the mean desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem indirect care cost for all intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds, for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, adjusted by the inflation rate estimated under division (C)(1) of this section.

(b) For fiscal years that end in odd-numbered calendar years, the maximum rate for each peer group is the group's maximum rate for the previous fiscal year, adjusted for the inflation rate estimated under division (C)(2) of this section.

(3) The department shall not recalculate a maximum rate for indirect care costs under division (B)(1) or (2) of this section based on additional information that it receives after the maximum rate is set. The department shall recalculate the maximum rate for indirect care costs only if it made an error in computing the maximum rate based on the information available at the time of the original calculation.

(C)(1) When adjusting rates for inflation under divisions (A)(1), (B)(1)(a), and (B)(2)(a) of this section, the department shall estimate the rate of inflation for the eighteen-month period beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid and ending on the thirty-first day of December of the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, ~~using the~~. To estimate the rate of inflation, the department shall use the following:

(a) The consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers for the north central region, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;

(b) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (C)(1)(a) of this section, a comparable index that the bureau publishes and the department determines is appropriate.

(2) When adjusting rates for inflation under divisions (B)(1)(b) and (B)(2)(b) of this section, the department shall estimate the rate of inflation for the twelve-month period beginning on the first day of January of the fiscal year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid and ending on the thirty-first day of December of the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, ~~using the~~. To estimate the rate of inflation, the department shall use the following:

(a) The consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers for the north central region, published by the United States bureau of labor statistics;

(b) If the United States bureau of labor statistics ceases to publish the index specified in division (C)(2)(a) of this section, a comparable index that the bureau publishes and the department determines is appropriate.

(3) If an inflation rate estimated under division (C)(1) or (2) of this section is different from the actual inflation rate for the relevant time period, as measured using the same index, the difference shall be added to or subtracted from the inflation rate estimated pursuant to this division for the

following fiscal year.

(D) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that specify peer groups of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds, and peer groups of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds, based on findings of significant per diem indirect care cost differences due to geography and facility bed-size. The rules also may specify peer groups based on findings of significant per diem indirect care cost differences due to other factors, including case-mix.

Sec. 5111.244. (A) As used in this section, "deficiency" and "standard survey" have the same meanings as in section 5111.35 of the Revised Code.

(B) ~~Each fiscal year, the~~ The department of job and family services shall pay the provider of each nursing facility a quality incentive payment. The amount of a quality incentive payment paid to a provider ~~for a fiscal year~~ shall be based on the number of points the provider's nursing facility is awarded ~~under division (C) of this section for that fiscal year~~ meeting accountability measures. The amount of a quality incentive payment paid to a provider of a nursing facility that is awarded no points may be zero. ~~The mean payment for fiscal year 2007, weighted by medicaid days, shall be three dollars per medicaid day. The department shall adjust the mean payment for subsequent fiscal years by the same adjustment factors the department uses to adjust, pursuant to division (B) of section 5111.222 of the Revised Code, nursing facilities' rates otherwise determined under divisions (A)(1), (2), (3), and (6) of that section.~~

(C)(1) ~~Except as provided by~~ For fiscal year 2012 only and subject to division (C)(2) of this section, the department shall ~~annually~~ award each nursing facility participating in the medicaid program ~~one point~~ points for ~~each of meeting~~ the following accountability measures ~~the facility meets~~:

(a) The facility had no health deficiencies on the facility's most recent standard survey.

(b) The facility had no health deficiencies with a scope and severity level greater than E, as determined under nursing facility certification standards established under Title XIX, on the facility's most recent standard survey.

(c) The facility's resident satisfaction is above the statewide average.

(d) The facility's family satisfaction is above the statewide average.

(e) The number of hours the facility employs nurses is above the statewide average.

(f) The facility's employee retention rate is above the average for the facility's peer group established in division (C) of section 5111.231 of the

Revised Code.

(g) The facility's occupancy rate is above the statewide average.

~~(h) The facility's medicaid utilization rate is above the statewide average.~~

~~(i) The facility's case-mix score is above the statewide average.~~

~~(j) The facility's medicaid utilization rate is above the statewide average.~~

~~(2) A nursing facility shall be awarded one point for each of the accountability measures specified in divisions (C)(1)(a) to (h) of this section that the nursing facility meets. A nursing facility shall be awarded three points for meeting the accountability measure specified in division (C)(1)(i) of this section. The department shall award points pursuant to division (C)(1)(c) or (d) of this section to a nursing facility only for a fiscal year immediately following a calendar year for which if a survey of resident or family satisfaction has been was conducted under section 173.47 of the Revised Code for the nursing facility in calendar year 2010.~~

~~(D)(1) For fiscal year 2013 and thereafter, the department shall award each nursing facility participating in the medicaid program points for meeting accountability measures in accordance with amendments to be made to this section not later than December 31, 2011, that provide for all of the following:~~

~~(a) Meaningful accountability measures of quality of care, quality of life, and nursing facility staffing;~~

~~(b) The maximum number of points that a nursing facility may earn for meeting accountability measures;~~

~~(c) A methodology for calculating the quality incentive payment that recognizes different business and care models in nursing facilities by providing flexibility in nursing facilities' ability to earn the entire quality incentive payment;~~

~~(d) A quality bonus to be paid at the end of a fiscal year in a manner that provides for all funds that the general assembly intends to be used for the quality incentive payment for that fiscal year are distributed to nursing facilities.~~

~~(2) For the purpose of division (D)(1)(d) of this section, the amount of funds that the general assembly intends to be used for the quality incentive payment for a fiscal year shall be the product of the following:~~

~~(a) The number of medicaid days in the fiscal year;~~

~~(b) The maximum quality incentive payment the general assembly has specified in law to be paid to nursing facilities for that fiscal year.~~

~~(E) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.~~

~~The rules shall include rules establishing the system for awarding points under division (C) of this section.~~

Sec. 5111.25. (A) As used in this section, "~~applicable~~:"

(1) "Applicable calendar year" means the following:

~~(1)(a)~~ For the purpose of the department of job and family services' initial determination under division (D) of this section of each peer group's ~~median~~ rate for capital costs, calendar year 2003;

~~(2)(b)~~ For the purpose of the department's ~~subsequent determinations under division (D) of this section of each peer group's median rate for capital costs~~ rebasings, the calendar year the department selects.

(2) "Rebasing" means a redetermination under division (D) of this section of each peer groups' rate for capital costs using information from cost reports for an applicable calendar year that is later than the applicable calendar year used for the previous determination of such rates.

(B) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible nursing facilities a per resident per day rate for capital costs. ~~A nursing facility's rate for capital costs shall be the median rate for capital costs for the nursing facilities in determined for the nursing facility's peer group as determined~~ under division (D) of this section.

(C) For the purpose of determining nursing facilities' rate for capital costs, the department shall establish six peer groups.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group one or two: Brown, Butler, Clermont, Clinton, Hamilton, and Warren. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group one. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group two.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group three or four: Ashtabula, Champaign, Clark, Cuyahoga, Darke, Delaware, Fairfield, Fayette, Franklin, Fulton, Geauga, Greene, Hancock, Knox, Lake, Licking, Lorain, Lucas, Madison, Marion, Medina, Miami, Montgomery, Morrow, Ottawa, Pickaway, Portage, Preble, Ross, Sandusky, Seneca, Summit, Union, and Wood. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group three. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group four.

Each nursing facility located in any of the following counties shall be placed in peer group five or six: Adams, Allen, Ashland, Athens, Auglaize,

Belmont, Carroll, Columbiana, Coshocton, Crawford, Defiance, Erie, Gallia, Guernsey, Hardin, Harrison, Henry, Highland, Hocking, Holmes, Huron, Jackson, Jefferson, Lawrence, Logan, Mahoning, Meigs, Mercer, Monroe, Morgan, Muskingum, Noble, Paulding, Perry, Pike, Putnam, Richland, Scioto, Shelby, Stark, Trumbull, Tuscarawas, Van Wert, Vinton, Washington, Wayne, Williams, and Wyandot. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has fewer than one hundred beds shall be placed in peer group five. Each nursing facility located in any of those counties that has one hundred or more beds shall be placed in peer group six.

(D)(1) ~~At least once every ten years, the~~ The department shall determine the ~~median~~ rate for capital costs for each peer group established under division (C) of this section. ~~The median department is not required to conduct a rebasing more than once every ten years. Except as necessary to implement the amendments made by this act to this section, the~~ rate for capital costs determined under this division for a peer group shall be used for subsequent years until the department ~~redetermines it~~ conducts a rebasing. ~~To determine a~~ A peer group's ~~median~~ rate for capital costs shall be the rate for capital costs determined for the nursing facility in the peer group that is at the twenty-fifth percentile of the rate for capital costs for the applicable calendar year. In identifying that nursing facility, the department shall do both of the following:

(a) Subject to division (D)(2) of this section, use the greater of each nursing facility's actual inpatient days for the applicable calendar year or the inpatient days the nursing facility would have had for the applicable calendar year if its occupancy rate had been one hundred per cent.;

(b) Exclude both of the following:

(i) Nursing facilities that participated in the medicaid program under the same provider for less than twelve months in the applicable calendar year;

(ii) Nursing facilities whose capital costs are more than one standard deviation from the mean desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem capital cost for all nursing facilities in the nursing facility's peer group for the applicable calendar year.

(2) For the purpose of determining a nursing facility's occupancy rate under division (D)(1)(a) of this section, the department shall include any beds that the nursing facility removes from its medicaid-certified capacity after June 30, 2005, unless the nursing facility also removes the beds from its licensed bed capacity.

(3) The department shall not redetermine a peer group's rate for capital costs under this division based on additional information that it receives

after the rate is determined. The department shall redetermine a peer group's rate for capital costs only if the department made an error in determining the rate based on information available to the department at the time of the original determination.

(E) Buildings shall be depreciated using the straight line method over forty years or over a different period approved by the department. Components and equipment shall be depreciated using the straight-line method over a period designated in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, consistent with the guidelines of the American hospital association, or over a different period approved by the department. Any rules authorized by this division that specify useful lives of buildings, components, or equipment apply only to assets acquired on or after July 1, 1993. Depreciation for costs paid or reimbursed by any government agency shall not be included in capital costs unless that part of the payment under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code is used to reimburse the government agency.

(F) The capital cost basis of nursing facility assets shall be determined in the following manner:

(1) Except as provided in division (F)(3) of this section, for purposes of calculating the rates to be paid for facilities with dates of licensure on or before June 30, 1993, the capital cost basis of each asset shall be equal to the desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, capital cost basis that is listed on the facility's cost report for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year during which the rate will be paid.

(2) For facilities with dates of licensure after June 30, 1993, the capital cost basis shall be determined in accordance with the principles of the medicare program established under Title XVIII, except as otherwise provided in sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

(3) Except as provided in division (F)(4) of this section, if a provider transfers an interest in a facility to another provider after June 30, 1993, there shall be no increase in the capital cost basis of the asset if the providers are related parties or the provider to which the interest is transferred authorizes the provider that transferred the interest to continue to operate the facility under a lease, management agreement, or other arrangement. If the previous sentence does not prohibit the adjustment of the capital cost basis under this division, the basis of the asset shall be adjusted by ~~the lesser of~~ the following:

~~(a) One half of the change in construction costs during the time that the transferor held the asset, as calculated by the department of job and family services using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north~~

~~central states," published by Marshall and Swift;~~

~~(b) One-half~~ one-half of the change in the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, during the time that the transferor held the asset.

(4) If a provider transfers an interest in a facility to another provider who is a related party, the capital cost basis of the asset shall be adjusted as specified in division (F)(3) of this section if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The related party is a relative of owner;

(b) Except as provided in division (F)(4)(c)(ii) of this section, the provider making the transfer retains no ownership interest in the facility;

(c) The department of job and family services determines that the transfer is an arm's length transaction pursuant to rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code. The rules shall provide that a transfer is an arm's length transaction if all of the following apply:

(i) Once the transfer goes into effect, the provider that made the transfer has no direct or indirect interest in the provider that acquires the facility or the facility itself, including interest as an owner, officer, director, employee, independent contractor, or consultant, but excluding interest as a creditor.

(ii) The provider that made the transfer does not reacquire an interest in the facility except through the exercise of a creditor's rights in the event of a default. If the provider reacquires an interest in the facility in this manner, the department shall treat the facility as if the transfer never occurred when the department calculates its reimbursement rates for capital costs.

(iii) The transfer satisfies any other criteria specified in the rules.

(d) Except in the case of hardship caused by a catastrophic event, as determined by the department, or in the case of a provider making the transfer who is at least sixty-five years of age, not less than twenty years have elapsed since, for the same facility, the capital cost basis was adjusted most recently under division (F)(4) of this section or actual, allowable cost of ownership was determined most recently under division (G)(9) of this section.

(G) As used in this division:

"Imputed interest" means the lesser of the prime rate plus two per cent or ten per cent.

"Lease expense" means lease payments in the case of an operating lease and depreciation expense and interest expense in the case of a capital lease.

"New lease" means a lease, to a different lessee, of a nursing facility that previously was operated under a lease.

(1) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a lease of a facility that

was effective on May 27, 1992, the entire lease expense is an actual, allowable capital cost during the term of the existing lease. The entire lease expense also is an actual, allowable capital cost if a lease in existence on May 27, 1992, is renewed under either of the following circumstances:

(a) The renewal is pursuant to a renewal option that was in existence on May 27, 1992;

(b) The renewal is for the same lease payment amount and between the same parties as the lease in existence on May 27, 1992.

(2) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a lease of a facility that was in existence but not operated under a lease on May 27, 1992, actual, allowable capital costs shall include the lesser of the annual lease expense or the annual depreciation expense and imputed interest expense that would be calculated at the inception of the lease using the lessor's entire historical capital asset cost basis, adjusted by ~~the lesser of the following amounts:~~

~~(a) One-half of the change in construction costs during the time the lessor held each asset until the beginning of the lease, as calculated by the department using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift;~~

~~(b) One-half one-half of the change in the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, during the time the lessor held each asset until the beginning of the lease.~~

(3) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a lease of a facility with a date of licensure on or after May 27, 1992, that is initially operated under a lease, actual, allowable capital costs shall include the annual lease expense if there was a substantial commitment of money for construction of the facility after December 22, 1992, and before July 1, 1993. If there was not a substantial commitment of money after December 22, 1992, and before July 1, 1993, actual, allowable capital costs shall include the lesser of the annual lease expense or the sum of the following:

(a) The annual depreciation expense that would be calculated at the inception of the lease using the lessor's entire historical capital asset cost basis;

(b) The greater of the lessor's actual annual amortization of financing costs and interest expense at the inception of the lease or the imputed interest expense calculated at the inception of the lease using seventy per cent of the lessor's historical capital asset cost basis.

(4) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a lease of a facility with a date of licensure on or after May 27, 1992, that was not initially operated under a lease and has been in existence for ten years, actual, allowable

capital costs shall include the lesser of the annual lease expense or the annual depreciation expense and imputed interest expense that would be calculated at the inception of the lease using the entire historical capital asset cost basis of the lessor, ~~adjusted by the lesser of the following:~~

~~(a) One-half of the change in construction costs during the time the lessor held each asset until the beginning of the lease, as calculated by the department using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift;~~

~~(b) One-half one-half of the change in the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, during the time the lessor held each asset until the beginning of the lease.~~

(5) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a new lease of a facility that was operated under a lease on May 27, 1992, actual, allowable capital costs shall include the lesser of the annual new lease expense or the annual old lease payment. If the old lease was in effect for ten years or longer, the old lease payment from the beginning of the old lease shall be adjusted by ~~the lesser of the following:~~

~~(a) One-half of the change in construction costs from the beginning of the old lease to the beginning of the new lease, as calculated by the department using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift;~~

~~(b) One-half one-half of the change in the consumer price index for all items for all urban consumers, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, from the beginning of the old lease to the beginning of the new lease.~~

(6) Subject to division (B) of this section, for a new lease of a facility that was not in existence or that was in existence but not operated under a lease on May 27, 1992, actual, allowable capital costs shall include the lesser of annual new lease expense or the annual amount calculated for the old lease under division (G)(2), (3), (4), or (6) of this section, as applicable. If the old lease was in effect for ten years or longer, the lessor's historical capital asset cost basis shall be ~~adjusted by the lesser of the following,~~ for purposes of calculating the annual amount under division (G)(2), (3), (4), or (6) of this section:

~~(a) One-half of the change in construction costs from the beginning of the old lease to the beginning of the new lease, as calculated by the department using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift;~~

~~(b) One-half, adjusted by one-half of the change in the consumer price~~

index for all items for all urban consumers, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, from the beginning of the old lease to the beginning of the new lease.

In the case of a lease under division (G)(3) of this section of a facility for which a substantial commitment of money was made after December 22, 1992, and before July 1, 1993, the old lease payment shall be adjusted for the purpose of determining the annual amount.

(7) For any revision of a lease described in division (G)(1), (2), (3), (4), (5), or (6) of this section, or for any subsequent lease of a facility operated under such a lease, other than execution of a new lease, the portion of actual, allowable capital costs attributable to the lease shall be the same as before the revision or subsequent lease.

(8) Except as provided in division (G)(9) of this section, if a provider leases an interest in a facility to another provider who is a related party or previously operated the facility, the related party's or previous operator's actual, allowable capital costs shall include the lesser of the annual lease expense or the reasonable cost to the lessor.

(9) If a provider leases an interest in a facility to another provider who is a related party, regardless of the date of the lease, the related party's actual, allowable capital costs shall include the annual lease expense, subject to the limitations specified in divisions (G)(1) to (7) of this section, if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The related party is a relative of owner;

(b) If the lessor retains an ownership interest, it is, except as provided in division (G)(9)(c)(ii) of this section, in only the real property and any improvements on the real property;

(c) The department of job and family services determines that the lease is an arm's length transaction pursuant to rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code. The rules shall provide that a lease is an arm's length transaction if all of the following apply:

(i) Once the lease goes into effect, the lessor has no direct or indirect interest in the lessee or, except as provided in division (G)(9)(b) of this section, the facility itself, including interest as an owner, officer, director, employee, independent contractor, or consultant, but excluding interest as a lessor.

(ii) The lessor does not reacquire an interest in the facility except through the exercise of a lessor's rights in the event of a default. If the lessor reacquires an interest in the facility in this manner, the department shall treat the facility as if the lease never occurred when the department calculates its reimbursement rates for capital costs.

(iii) The lease satisfies any other criteria specified in the rules.

(d) Except in the case of hardship caused by a catastrophic event, as determined by the department, or in the case of a lessor who is at least sixty-five years of age, not less than twenty years have elapsed since, for the same facility, the capital cost basis was adjusted most recently under division (F)(4) of this section or actual, allowable capital costs were determined most recently under division (G)(9) of this section.

(10) This division does not apply to leases of specific items of equipment.

Sec. 5111.251. (A) The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded for its reasonable capital costs, a per resident per day rate established prospectively each fiscal year for each intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded. Except as otherwise provided in sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, the rate shall be based on the facility's capital costs for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid. The rate shall equal the sum of the following:

(1) The facility's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem cost of ownership for the preceding cost reporting period, limited as provided in divisions (C) and (F) of this section;

(2) Any efficiency incentive determined under division (B) of this section;

(3) Any amounts for renovations determined under division (D) of this section;

(4) Any amounts for return on equity determined under division ~~(H)~~(H) of this section.

Buildings shall be depreciated using the straight line method over forty years or over a different period approved by the department. Components and equipment shall be depreciated using the straight line method over a period designated by the director of job and family services in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, consistent with the guidelines of the American hospital association, or over a different period approved by the department of job and family services. Any rules authorized by this division that specify useful lives of buildings, components, or equipment apply only to assets acquired on or after July 1, 1993. Depreciation for costs paid or reimbursed by any government agency shall not be included in costs of ownership or renovation unless that part of the payment under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code is used to reimburse the government agency.

(B) The department of job and family services shall pay to a provider

for each of the provider's eligible intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded an efficiency incentive equal to fifty per cent of the difference between any desk-reviewed, actual, allowable cost of ownership and the applicable limit on cost of ownership payments under division (C) of this section. For purposes of computing the efficiency incentive, depreciation for costs paid or reimbursed by any government agency shall be considered as a cost of ownership, and the applicable limit under division (C) of this section shall apply both to facilities with more than eight beds and facilities with eight or fewer beds. The efficiency incentive paid to a provider for a facility with eight or fewer beds shall not exceed three dollars per patient day, adjusted annually for the inflation rate for the twelve-month period beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year preceding the calendar year that precedes the fiscal year for which the efficiency incentive is determined and ending on the thirtieth day of the following June, using the consumer price index for shelter costs for all urban consumers for the north central region, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics.

(C) Cost of ownership payments for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with more than eight beds shall not exceed the following limits:

(1) For facilities with dates of licensure prior to January 1, 1958, not exceeding two dollars and fifty cents per patient day;

(2) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1957, but prior to January 1, 1968, not exceeding:

(a) Three dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was three thousand five hundred dollars or more per bed;

(b) Two dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was less than three thousand five hundred dollars per bed.

(3) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1967, but prior to January 1, 1976, not exceeding:

(a) Four dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was five thousand one hundred fifty dollars or more per bed;

(b) Three dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was less than five thousand one hundred fifty dollars per bed, but exceeds three thousand five hundred dollars per bed;

(c) Two dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was three thousand five hundred dollars or less per bed.

(4) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1975, but prior to January 1, 1979, not exceeding:

(a) Five dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction

was six thousand eight hundred dollars or more per bed;

(b) Four dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was less than six thousand eight hundred dollars per bed but exceeds five thousand one hundred fifty dollars per bed;

(c) Three dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was five thousand one hundred fifty dollars or less per bed, but exceeds three thousand five hundred dollars per bed;

(d) Two dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was three thousand five hundred dollars or less per bed.

(5) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1978, but prior to January 1, 1980, not exceeding:

(a) Six dollars per patient day if the cost of construction was seven thousand six hundred twenty-five dollars or more per bed;

(b) Five dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was less than seven thousand six hundred twenty-five dollars per bed but exceeds six thousand eight hundred dollars per bed;

(c) Four dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was six thousand eight hundred dollars or less per bed but exceeds five thousand one hundred fifty dollars per bed;

(d) Three dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was five thousand one hundred fifty dollars or less but exceeds three thousand five hundred dollars per bed;

(e) Two dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the cost of construction was three thousand five hundred dollars or less per bed.

(6) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1979, but prior to January 1, 1981, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Six dollars per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(7) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1980, but prior to January 1, 1982, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Six dollars and forty-five cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(8) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1981, but prior to January 1, 1983, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Six dollars and seventy-nine cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(9) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1982, but prior to January 1, 1984, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Seven dollars and nine cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(10) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1983, but prior to January 1, 1985, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars and twenty-four cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Seven dollars and twenty-three cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(11) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1984, but prior to January 1, 1986, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars and fifty-three cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Seven dollars and forty cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(12) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1985, but prior to January 1, 1987, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars and seventy cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Seven dollars and fifty cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(13) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1986, but prior to January 1, 1988, not exceeding:

(a) Twelve dollars and ninety-nine cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as residential facility beds by the department of developmental disabilities;

(b) Seven dollars and sixty-seven cents per patient day if the beds were originally licensed as nursing home beds by the department of health.

(14) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1987, but prior to January 1, 1989, not exceeding thirteen dollars and twenty-six cents per patient day;

(15) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1988, but

prior to January 1, 1990, not exceeding thirteen dollars and forty-six cents per patient day;

(16) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1989, but prior to January 1, 1991, not exceeding thirteen dollars and sixty cents per patient day;

(17) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1990, but prior to January 1, 1992, not exceeding thirteen dollars and forty-nine cents per patient day;

(18) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1991, but prior to January 1, 1993, not exceeding thirteen dollars and sixty-seven cents per patient day;

(19) For facilities with dates of licensure after December 31, 1992, not exceeding fourteen dollars and twenty-eight cents per patient day.

(D) Beginning January 1, 1981, regardless of the original date of licensure, the department of job and family services shall pay a rate for the per diem capitalized costs of renovations to intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded made after January 1, 1981, not exceeding six dollars per patient day using 1980 as the base year and adjusting the amount annually until June 30, 1993, for fluctuations in construction costs calculated by the department using the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift. The payment provided for in this division is the only payment that shall be made for the capitalized costs of a nonextensive renovation of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded. Nonextensive renovation costs shall not be included in cost of ownership, and a nonextensive renovation shall not affect the date of licensure for purposes of division (C) of this section. This division applies to nonextensive renovations regardless of whether they are made by an owner or a lessee. If the tenancy of a lessee that has made renovations ends before the depreciation expense for the renovation costs has been fully reported, the former lessee shall not report the undepreciated balance as an expense.

For a nonextensive renovation to qualify for payment under this division, both of the following conditions must be met:

(1) At least five years have elapsed since the date of licensure or date of an extensive renovation of the portion of the facility that is proposed to be renovated, except that this condition does not apply if the renovation is necessary to meet the requirements of federal, state, or local statutes, ordinances, rules, or policies.

(2) The provider has obtained prior approval from the department of job and family services. The provider shall submit a plan that describes in detail

the changes in capital assets to be accomplished by means of the renovation and the timetable for completing the project. The time for completion of the project shall be no more than eighteen months after the renovation begins. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that specify criteria and procedures for prior approval of renovation projects. No provider shall separate a project with the intent to evade the characterization of the project as a renovation or as an extensive renovation. No provider shall increase the scope of a project after it is approved by the department of job and family services unless the increase in scope is approved by the department.

(E) The amounts specified in divisions (C) and (D) of this section shall be adjusted beginning July 1, 1993, for the estimated inflation for the twelve-month period beginning on the first day of July of the calendar year preceding the calendar year that precedes the fiscal year for which rate will be paid and ending on the thirtieth day of the following June, using the consumer price index for shelter costs for all urban consumers for the north central region, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics.

(F)(1) For facilities of eight or fewer beds that have dates of licensure or have been granted project authorization by the department of developmental disabilities before July 1, 1993, and for facilities of eight or fewer beds that have dates of licensure or have been granted project authorization after that date if the providers of the facilities demonstrate that they made substantial commitments of funds on or before that date, cost of ownership shall not exceed eighteen dollars and thirty cents per resident per day. The eighteen-dollar and thirty-cent amount shall be increased by the change in the "Dodge building cost indexes, northeastern and north central states," published by Marshall and Swift, during the period beginning June 30, 1990, and ending July 1, 1993, and by the change in the consumer price index for shelter costs for all urban consumers for the north central region, as published by the United States bureau of labor statistics, annually thereafter.

(2) For facilities with eight or fewer beds that have dates of licensure or have been granted project authorization by the department of developmental disabilities on or after July 1, 1993, for which substantial commitments of funds were not made before that date, cost of ownership payments shall not exceed the applicable amount calculated under division (F)(1) of this section, if the department of job and family services gives prior approval for construction of the facility. If the department does not give prior approval, cost of ownership payments shall not exceed the amount specified in division (C) of this section.

(3) Notwithstanding divisions (D) and (F)(1) and (2) of this section, the total payment for cost of ownership, cost of ownership efficiency incentive, and capitalized costs of renovations for an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds shall not exceed the sum of the limitations specified in divisions (C) and (D) of this section.

(G) Notwithstanding any provision of this section or section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, the director of job and family services may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that provide for a calculation of a combined maximum payment limit for indirect care costs and cost of ownership for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded with eight or fewer beds.

~~(H) After the date on which a transaction of sale is closed, the provider shall refund to the department the amount of excess depreciation paid to the provider for the facility by the department for each year the provider has operated the facility under a provider agreement and prorated according to the number of medicaid patient days for which the provider has received payment for the facility. For the purposes of this division, "depreciation paid to the provider for the facility" means the amount paid to the provider for the intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded for cost of ownership pursuant to this section less any amount paid for interest costs. For the purposes of this division, "excess depreciation" is the intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's depreciated basis, which is the provider's cost less accumulated depreciation, subtracted from the purchase price but not exceeding the amount of depreciation paid to the provider for the facility.~~

~~(I)~~ The department of job and family services shall pay a provider for each of the provider's eligible proprietary intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded a return on the facility's net equity computed at the rate of one and one-half times the average of interest rates on special issues of public debt obligations issued to the federal hospital insurance trust fund for the cost reporting period. No facility's return on net equity paid under this division shall exceed one dollar per patient day.

In calculating the rate for return on net equity, the department shall use the greater of the facility's inpatient days during the applicable cost reporting period or the number of inpatient days the facility would have had during that period if its occupancy rate had been ninety-five per cent.

~~(I)~~(I)(1) Except as provided in division ~~(I)~~(I)(2) of this section, if a provider leases or transfers an interest in a facility to another provider who is a related party, the related party's allowable cost of ownership shall include the lesser of the following:

(a) The annual lease expense or actual cost of ownership, whichever is applicable;

(b) The reasonable cost to the lessor or provider making the transfer.

(2) If a provider leases or transfers an interest in a facility to another provider who is a related party, regardless of the date of the lease or transfer, the related party's allowable cost of ownership shall include the annual lease expense or actual cost of ownership, whichever is applicable, subject to the limitations specified in divisions (B) to ~~(H)~~(H) of this section, if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The related party is a relative of owner;

(b) In the case of a lease, if the lessor retains any ownership interest, it is, except as provided in division ~~(I)(2)(d)(ii)~~ of this section, in only the real property and any improvements on the real property;

(c) In the case of a transfer, the provider making the transfer retains, except as provided in division ~~(I)(2)(d)(iv)~~ of this section, no ownership interest in the facility;

(d) The department of job and family services determines that the lease or transfer is an arm's length transaction pursuant to rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code. The rules shall provide that a lease or transfer is an arm's length transaction if all of the following, as applicable, apply:

(i) In the case of a lease, once the lease goes into effect, the lessor has no direct or indirect interest in the lessee or, except as provided in division ~~(I)(2)(b)~~ of this section, the facility itself, including interest as an owner, officer, director, employee, independent contractor, or consultant, but excluding interest as a lessor.

(ii) In the case of a lease, the lessor does not reacquire an interest in the facility except through the exercise of a lessor's rights in the event of a default. If the lessor reacquires an interest in the facility in this manner, the department shall treat the facility as if the lease never occurred when the department calculates its reimbursement rates for capital costs.

(iii) In the case of a transfer, once the transfer goes into effect, the provider that made the transfer has no direct or indirect interest in the provider that acquires the facility or the facility itself, including interest as an owner, officer, director, employee, independent contractor, or consultant, but excluding interest as a creditor.

(iv) In the case of a transfer, the provider that made the transfer does not reacquire an interest in the facility except through the exercise of a creditor's rights in the event of a default. If the provider reacquires an interest in the facility in this manner, the department shall treat the facility as if the transfer

never occurred when the department calculates its reimbursement rates for capital costs.

(v) The lease or transfer satisfies any other criteria specified in the rules.

(e) Except in the case of hardship caused by a catastrophic event, as determined by the department, or in the case of a lessor or provider making the transfer who is at least sixty-five years of age, not less than twenty years have elapsed since, for the same facility, allowable cost of ownership was determined most recently under this division.

Sec. 5111.254. (A) The department of job and family services shall establish initial rates for a nursing facility with a first date of licensure that is on or after July 1, 2006, including a facility that replaces one or more existing facilities, or for a nursing facility with a first date of licensure before that date that was initially certified for the medicaid program on or after that date, in the following manner:

(1) The rate for direct care costs shall be the product of the cost per case-mix unit determined under division (D) of section 5111.231 of the Revised Code for the facility's peer group and the nursing facility's case-mix score. For the purpose of division (A)(1) of this section, the nursing facility's case-mix score shall be the following:

(a) Unless the nursing facility replaces an existing nursing facility that participated in the medicaid program immediately before the replacement nursing facility begins participating in the medicaid program, the median annual average case-mix score for the nursing facility's peer group;

(b) If the nursing facility replaces an existing nursing facility that participated in the medicaid program immediately before the replacement nursing facility begins participating in the medicaid program, the semiannual case-mix score most recently determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code for the replaced nursing facility as adjusted, if necessary, to reflect any difference in the number of beds in the replaced and replacement nursing facilities.

(2) The rate for ancillary and support costs shall be the rate for the facility's peer group determined under division (D) of section 5111.24 of the Revised Code.

(3) The rate for capital costs shall be the ~~median~~ rate for the facility's peer group determined under division (D) of section 5111.25 of the Revised Code.

(4) The rate for tax costs as defined in section 5111.242 of the Revised Code shall be the median rate for tax costs for the facility's peer group in which the facility is placed under division (C) of section 5111.24 of the Revised Code.

(5) The quality incentive payment shall be the mean payment ~~specified in division (B) of~~ made to nursing facilities under section 5111.244 of the Revised Code.

(B) Subject to division (C) of this section, the department shall adjust the rates established under division (A) of this section effective the first day of July, to reflect new rate calculations for all nursing facilities under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

(C) If a rate for direct care costs is determined under this section for a nursing facility using the median annual average case-mix score for the nursing facility's peer group, the rate shall be redetermined to reflect the replacement nursing facility's actual semiannual case-mix score determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code after the nursing facility submits its first two quarterly assessment data that qualify for use in calculating a case-mix score in accordance with rules authorized by division (E) of section 5111.232 of the Revised Code. If the nursing facility's quarterly submissions do not qualify for use in calculating a case-mix score, the department shall continue to use the median annual average case-mix score for the nursing facility's peer group in lieu of the nursing facility's semiannual case-mix score until the nursing facility submits two consecutive quarterly assessment data that qualify for use in calculating a case-mix score.

Sec. 5111.255. (A) The department of job and family services shall establish initial rates for an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded with a first date of licensure that is on or after January 1, 1993, including a facility that replaces one or more existing facilities, or for an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded with a first date of licensure before that date that was initially certified for the medicaid program on or after that date, in the following manner:

(1) The rate for direct care costs shall be determined as follows:

(a) If there are no cost or resident assessment data as necessary to calculate a rate under section 5111.23 of the Revised Code, the rate shall be the median cost per case-mix unit calculated under division (B)(1) of that section for the relevant peer group for the calendar year preceding the fiscal year in which the rate will be paid, multiplied by the median annual average case-mix score for the peer group for that period and by the rate of inflation estimated under division (B)(3) of that section. This rate shall be recalculated to reflect the facility's actual quarterly average case-mix score, in accordance with that section, after it submits its first quarterly assessment data that qualifies for use in calculating a case-mix score in accordance with rules authorized by division (E) of section 5111.232 of the Revised Code. If

the facility's first two quarterly submissions do not contain assessment data that qualifies for use in calculating a case-mix score, the department shall continue to calculate the rate using the median annual case-mix score for the peer group in lieu of an assigned quarterly case-mix score. The department shall assign a case-mix score or, if necessary, a cost per case-mix unit under division (D) of section 5111.232 of the Revised Code for any subsequent submissions that do not contain assessment data that qualifies for use in calculating a case-mix score.

(b) If the facility is a replacement facility and the facility or facilities that are being replaced are in operation immediately before the replacement facility opens, the rate shall be the same as the rate for the replaced facility or facilities, proportionate to the number of beds in each replaced facility. If one or more of the replaced facilities is not in operation immediately before the replacement facility opens, its proportion shall be determined under division (A)(1)(a) of this section.

(2) The rate for other protected costs shall be one hundred fifteen per cent of the median rate for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded calculated for the fiscal year under section 5111.235 of the Revised Code.

(3) The rate for indirect care costs shall be the applicable maximum rate for the facility's peer group as specified in division (B) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code.

(4) The rate for capital costs shall be determined under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code using the greater of actual inpatient days or an imputed occupancy rate of eighty per cent.

(B) The department shall adjust the rates established under division (A) of this section at both of the following times:

(1) Effective the first day of July, to reflect new rate calculations for all facilities under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code;

(2) Following the provider's submission of the facility's cost report under division (A)(1)(b) of section 5111.26 of the Revised Code.

The department shall pay the rate adjusted based on the cost report beginning the first day of the calendar quarter that begins more than ninety days after the department receives the cost report.

Sec. 5111.258. (A) Notwithstanding sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code (except section 5111.259 of the Revised Code), the director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that establish a methodology for calculating the prospective rates that will be paid each fiscal year to a provider for each of the provider's eligible nursing facilities and intermediate care facilities for

the mentally retarded, and discrete units of the provider's nursing facilities or intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded, that serve residents who have diagnoses or special care needs that require direct care resources that are not measured adequately by the applicable assessment instrument specified in rules authorized by section 5111.232 of the Revised Code, or who have diagnoses or special care needs specified in the rules as otherwise qualifying for consideration under this section. The facilities and units of facilities whose rates are established under this division may include, but shall not be limited to, any of the following:

(1) In the case of nursing facilities, facilities and units of facilities that serve medically fragile pediatric residents, residents who are dependent on ventilators, or residents who have severe traumatic brain injury, end-stage Alzheimer's disease, or end-stage acquired immunodeficiency syndrome;

(2) In the case of intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded, facilities and units of facilities that serve residents who have complex medical conditions or severe behavioral problems.

The department shall use the methodology established under this division to pay for services rendered by such facilities and units after June 30, 1993.

The rules authorized by this division shall specify the criteria and procedures the department will apply when designating facilities and units that qualify for calculation of rates under this division. The criteria shall include consideration of whether all of the allowable costs of the facility or unit would be paid by rates established under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, and shall establish a minimum bed size for a facility or unit to qualify to have its rates established under this division. The criteria shall not be designed to require that residents be served only in facilities located in large cities. The methodology established by the rules shall consider the historical costs of providing care to the residents of the facilities or units.

The rules may require that a facility designated under this division or containing a unit designated under this division receive authorization from the department to admit or retain a resident to the facility or unit and shall specify the criteria and procedures the department will apply when granting that authorization.

Notwithstanding any other provision of sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code (except section 5111.259 of the Revised Code), the costs incurred by facilities or units whose rates are established under this division shall not be considered in establishing payment rates for other facilities or units.

(B) The director may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code under which the department, notwithstanding any other provision of sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code (except section 5111.259 of the Revised Code), may adjust the rates determined under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code for a facility that serves a resident who has a diagnosis or special care need that, in the rules authorized by division (A) of this section, would qualify a facility or unit of a facility to have its rate determined under that division, but who is not in such a unit. The rules may require that a facility that qualifies for a rate adjustment under this division receive authorization from the department to admit or retain a resident who qualifies the facility for the rate adjustment and shall specify the criteria and procedures the department will apply when granting that authorization.

Sec. 5111.259. The director of job and family services may submit a request to the United States secretary of health and human services for approval to establish a centers of excellence component of the medicaid program. The purpose of the centers of excellence component is to increase the efficiency and quality of nursing facility services provided to medicaid recipients with complex nursing facility service needs. If federal approval for the centers of excellence component is granted, the director may adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code governing the component, including rules that establish a method of determining the medicaid reimbursement rates for nursing facilities providing nursing facility services to medicaid recipients participating in the component. The rules may specify the extent to which, if any, of the provisions of section 5111.258 of the Revised Code are to apply to the centers of excellence component. If such rules are adopted, the nursing facilities that provide nursing facility services to medicaid recipients participating in the centers of excellence component shall be paid for those services in accordance with the method established in the rules notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.261. (A) Except as provided in division (B) of this section and not later than three years after a provider files a cost report with the department of job and family services under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code, the provider may amend the cost report if the provider discovers a material error in the cost report or additional information to be included in the cost report. The department shall review the amended cost report for accuracy and notify the provider of its determination.

(B) A provider may not amend a cost report if the department has notified the provider that an audit of the cost report or a cost report of the

provider for a subsequent cost reporting period is to be conducted under section 5111.27 of the Revised Code. The provider may, however, provide the department information that affects the costs included in the cost report. Such information may not be provided after the adjudication of the final settlement of the cost report.

Sec. 5111.262. No person, other than the provider of a nursing facility, shall submit a claim for medicaid reimbursement for a service provided to a nursing facility resident if the service is included in a medicaid payment made to the provider of a nursing facility under sections 5111.20 to 5111.33 of the Revised Code or in the reimbursable expenses reported on a provider's cost report for a nursing facility. No provider of a nursing facility shall submit a separate claim for medicaid reimbursement for a service provided to a resident of the nursing facility if the service is included in a medicaid payment made to the provider under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code or in the reimbursable expenses on the provider's cost report for the nursing facility.

Sec. ~~5111.264~~ 5111.263. Except as otherwise provided in section 5111.264 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services, in determining whether an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's direct care costs and indirect care costs are allowable, shall place no limit on specific categories of reasonable costs other than compensation of owners, compensation of relatives of owners, and compensation of administrators.

Compensation cost limits for owners and relatives of owners shall be based on compensation costs for individuals who hold comparable positions but who are not owners or relatives of owners, as reported on facility cost reports. As used in this section, "comparable position" means the position that is held by the owner or the owner's relative, if that position is listed separately on the cost report form, or if the position is not listed separately, the group of positions that is listed on the cost report form and that includes the position held by the owner or the owner's relative. In the case of an owner or owner's relative who serves the facility in a capacity such as corporate officer, proprietor, or partner for which no comparable position or group of positions is listed on the cost report form, the compensation cost limit shall be based on civil service equivalents and shall be specified in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

Compensation cost limits for administrators shall be based on compensation costs for administrators who are not owners or relatives of owners, as reported on facility cost reports. Compensation cost limits for administrators of four or more intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded shall be the same as the limits for administrators of intermediate

care facilities for the mentally retarded with one hundred fifty or more beds.

Sec. 5111.27. (A) The department of job and family services shall conduct a desk review of each cost report it receives under section 5111.26 of the Revised Code. Based on the desk review, the department shall make a preliminary determination of whether the reported costs are allowable costs. The department shall notify each provider of whether any of the reported costs are preliminarily determined not to be allowable, the rate calculation under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code that results from that determination, and the reasons for the determination and resulting rate. The department shall allow the provider to verify the calculation and submit additional information.

(B) The department may conduct an audit, as defined by rule adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, of any cost report ~~and shall notify the provider of its findings.~~

~~Audits shall be conducted by auditors under contract with or employed by the department.~~ The decision whether to conduct an audit and the scope of the audit, which may be a desk or field audit, ~~shall~~ may be determined based on prior performance of the provider ~~and may be based on,~~ a risk analysis, or other evidence that gives the department reason to believe that the provider has reported costs improperly. A desk or field audit may be performed annually, but is required whenever a provider does not pass the risk analysis tolerance factors. An audit shall be conducted by auditors under contract with or employed by the department. The department shall notify a provider of the findings of an audit by issuing an audit report. An audit report regarding a nursing facility shall include notice of any fine imposed under section 5111.271 of the Revised Code. The department shall issue the audit report no later than three years after the cost report is filed, or upon the completion of a desk or field audit on the report or a report for a subsequent cost reporting period, whichever is earlier. ~~During the time within which the department may issue an audit report, the provider may amend the cost report upon discovery of a material error or material additional information. The department shall review the amended cost report for accuracy and notify the provider of its determination.~~

The department may establish a contract for the auditing of facilities by outside firms. Each contract entered into by bidding shall be effective for one to two years. The department shall establish an audit manual and program which shall require that all field audits, conducted either pursuant to a contract or by department employees:

(1) Comply with the applicable rules prescribed pursuant to Titles XVIII and XIX;

(2) Consider generally accepted auditing standards prescribed by the American institute of certified public accountants;

(3) Include a written summary as to whether the costs included in the report examined during the audit are allowable and are presented ~~fairly~~ in accordance with ~~generally accepted accounting principles and department rules~~ state and federal laws and regulations, and whether, in all material respects, allowable costs are documented, reasonable, and related to patient care;

(4) Are conducted by accounting firms or auditors who, during the period of the auditors' professional engagement or employment and during the period covered by the cost reports, do not have nor are committed to acquire any direct or indirect financial interest in the ownership, financing, or operation of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded in this state;

(5) Are conducted by accounting firms or auditors who, as a condition of the contract or employment, shall not audit any facility that has been a client of the firm or auditor;

(6) Are conducted by auditors who are otherwise independent as determined by the standards of independence ~~established by~~ included in the American institute of certified public accountants government auditing standards produced by the United States government accountability office;

(7) Are completed within the time period specified by the department;

(8) Provide to the provider complete written interpretations that explain in detail the application of all relevant contract provisions, regulations, auditing standards, rate formulae, and departmental policies, with explanations and examples, that are sufficient to permit the provider to calculate with reasonable certainty those costs that are allowable and the rate to which the provider's facility is entitled.

For the purposes of division (B)(4) of this section, employment of a member of an auditor's family by a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that the auditor does not review does not constitute a direct or indirect financial interest in the ownership, financing, or operation of the facility.

(C) The department, pursuant to rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, may conduct an exception review of assessment data submitted under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code. The department may conduct an exception review based on the findings of a certification survey conducted by the department of health, a risk analysis, or prior performance of the provider.

Exception reviews shall be conducted at the facility by appropriate

health professionals under contract with or employed by the department of job and family services. The professionals may review resident assessment forms and supporting documentation, conduct interviews, and observe residents to identify any patterns or trends of inaccurate assessments and resulting inaccurate case-mix scores.

The rules shall establish an exception review program that requires that exception reviews do all of the following:

- (1) Comply with Titles XVIII and XIX;
- (2) Provide a written summary that states whether the resident assessment forms have been completed accurately;
- (3) Are conducted by health professionals who, during the period of their professional engagement or employment with the department, neither have nor are committed to acquire any direct or indirect financial interest in the ownership, financing, or operation of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded in this state;
- (4) Are conducted by health professionals who, as a condition of their engagement or employment with the department, shall not review any provider that has been a client of the professional.

For the purposes of division (C)(3) of this section, employment of a member of a health professional's family by a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that the professional does not review does not constitute a direct or indirect financial interest in the ownership, financing, or operation of the facility.

If an exception review is conducted before the effective date of the rate that is based on the case-mix data subject to the review and the review results in findings that exceed tolerance levels specified in the rules adopted under this division, the department, in accordance with those rules, may use the findings to recalculate individual resident case-mix scores, quarterly average facility case-mix scores, and annual average facility case-mix scores. The department may use the recalculated quarterly and annual facility average case-mix scores to calculate the facility's rate for direct care costs for the appropriate calendar quarter or quarters.

(D) The department shall prepare a written summary of any audit disallowance or exception review finding that is made after the effective date of the rate that is based on the cost or case-mix data. Where the provider is pursuing judicial or administrative remedies in good faith regarding the disallowance or finding, the department shall not withhold from the provider's current payments any amounts the department claims to be due from the provider pursuant to section 5111.28 of the Revised Code.

(E) The department shall not reduce rates calculated under sections

5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code on the basis that the provider charges a lower rate to any resident who is not eligible for the medicaid program.

(F) The department shall adjust the rates calculated under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code to account for reasonable additional costs that must be incurred by intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded to comply with requirements of federal or state statutes, rules, or policies enacted or amended after January 1, 1992, or with orders issued by state or local fire authorities.

Sec. 5111.271. (A) Subject to division (D) of this section, the department of job and family services shall fine the provider of a nursing facility if the report of an audit conducted under division (B) of section 5111.27 of the Revised Code regarding a cost report for the nursing facility includes either of the following:

(1) Adverse findings that exceed three per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report;

(2) Adverse findings that exceed twenty per cent of medicaid-reimbursable costs for a particular cost center reported in the cost report.

(B) A fine issued under this section shall equal the greatest of the following:

(1) If the adverse findings exceed three per cent but do not exceed ten per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report, the greater of three per cent of those reported costs or ten thousand dollars;

(2) If the adverse findings exceed ten per cent but do not exceed twenty per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report, the greater of six per cent of those reported costs or twenty-five thousand dollars;

(3) If the adverse findings exceed twenty per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report, the greater of ten per cent of those reported costs or fifty thousand dollars;

(4) If the adverse findings exceed twenty per cent but do not exceed twenty-five per cent of medicaid-reimbursable costs for a particular cost center reported in the cost report, the greater of three per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report or ten thousand dollars;

(5) If the adverse findings exceed twenty-five per cent but do not exceed thirty per cent of medicaid-reimbursable costs for a particular cost center reported in the cost report, the greater of six per cent of the total amount of

medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report or twenty-five thousand dollars;

(6) If the adverse findings exceed thirty per cent of medicaid-reimbursable costs for a particular cost center reported in the cost report, the greater of ten per cent of the total amount of medicaid-reimbursable costs reported in the cost report or fifty thousand dollars.

(C) Fines paid under this section shall be deposited into the health care services administration fund created under section 5111.94 of the Revised Code.

(D) The department may not collect a fine under this section until all appeal rights relating to the audit report that is the basis for the fine are exhausted.

Sec. 5111.28. (A) If a provider properly amends its cost report under section ~~5111.27~~ 5111.261 of the Revised Code and the amended report shows that the provider received a lower rate under the original cost report than it was entitled to receive, the department of job and family services shall adjust the provider's rate prospectively to reflect the corrected information. The department shall pay the adjusted rate beginning two months after the first day of the month after the provider files the amended cost report. If the department finds, from an exception review of resident assessment information conducted after the effective date of the rate for direct care costs that is based on the assessment information, that inaccurate assessment information resulted in the provider receiving a lower rate than it was entitled to receive, the department prospectively shall adjust the provider's rate accordingly and shall make payments using the adjusted rate for the remainder of the calendar quarter for which the assessment information is used to determine the rate, beginning one month after the first day of the month after the exception review is completed.

(B) If the provider properly amends its cost report under section ~~5111.27~~ 5111.261 of the Revised Code, the department makes a finding based on an audit under ~~that~~ section 5111.27 of the Revised Code, or the department makes a finding based on an exception review of resident assessment information conducted under ~~that~~ section 5111.27 of the Revised Code after the effective date of the rate for direct care costs that is based on the assessment information, any of which results in a determination that the provider has received a higher rate than it was entitled to receive, the department shall recalculate the provider's rate using the revised information. The department shall apply the recalculated rate to the periods when the provider received the incorrect rate to determine the amount of the

overpayment. The provider shall refund the amount of the overpayment.

In addition to requiring a refund under this division, the department may charge the provider interest at the applicable rate specified in this division from the time the overpayment was made.

(1) If the overpayment resulted from costs reported for calendar year 1993, the interest shall be no greater than one and one-half times the average bank prime rate.

(2) If the overpayment resulted from costs reported for subsequent calendar years:

(a) The interest shall be no greater than two times the average bank prime rate if the overpayment was equal to or less than one per cent of the total medicaid payments to the provider for the fiscal year for which the incorrect information was used to establish a rate.

(b) The interest shall be no greater than two and one-half times the current average bank prime rate if the overpayment was greater than one per cent of the total medicaid payments to the provider for the fiscal year for which the incorrect information was used to establish a rate.

(C) The department also may impose the following penalties:

(1) If a provider does not furnish invoices or other documentation that the department requests during an audit within sixty days after the request, no more than the greater of one thousand dollars per audit or twenty-five per cent of the cumulative amount by which the costs for which documentation was not furnished increased the total medicaid payments to the provider during the fiscal year for which the costs were used to establish a rate;

(2) If an exiting operator or owner fails to provide notice of a facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation in the medicaid program as required by section 5111.66 of the Revised Code, or an exiting operator or owner and entering operator fail to provide notice of a change of operator as required by section 5111.67 of the Revised Code, no more than the current average bank prime rate plus four per cent of the last two monthly payments.

(D) If the provider continues to participate in the medicaid program, the department shall deduct any amount that the provider is required to refund under this section, and the amount of any interest charged or penalty imposed under this section, from the next available payment from the department to the provider. The department and the provider may enter into an agreement under which the amount, together with interest, is deducted in installments from payments from the department to the provider.

(E) The department shall transmit refunds and penalties to the treasurer of state for deposit in the general revenue fund.

(F) For the purpose of this section, the department shall determine the average bank prime rate using statistical release H.15, "selected interest rates," a weekly publication of the federal reserve board, or any successor publication. If statistical release H.15, or its successor, ceases to contain the bank prime rate information or ceases to be published, the department shall request a written statement of the average bank prime rate from the federal reserve bank of Cleveland or the federal reserve board.

Sec. 5111.29. (A) The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code that establish a process under which a provider, or a group or association of providers, may seek reconsideration of rates established under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, including a rate for direct care costs recalculated before the effective date of the rate as a result of an exception review of resident assessment information conducted under section 5111.27 of the Revised Code.

(1) Except as provided in divisions (A)(2) to (4) of this section, the only issue that a provider, group, or association may raise in the rate reconsideration shall be whether the rate was calculated in accordance with sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code and the rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code. The rules shall permit a provider, group, or association to submit written arguments or other materials that support its position. The rules shall specify time frames within which the provider, group, or association and the department must act. If the department determines, as a result of the rate reconsideration, that the rate established for one or more facilities of a provider is less than the rate to which the facility is entitled, the department shall increase the rate. If the department has paid the incorrect rate for a period of time, the department shall pay the provider the difference between the amount the provider was paid for that period for the facility and the amount the provider should have been paid for the facility.

(2) The rules shall provide that during a fiscal year, the department, by means of the rate reconsideration process, may increase the rate determined for an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded as calculated under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code if the provider of the facility demonstrates that the facility's actual, allowable costs have increased because of extreme circumstances. A facility may qualify for a rate increase only if the facility's per diem, actual, allowable costs have increased to a level that exceeds its total rate. The rules shall specify the circumstances that would justify a rate increase under division (A)(2) of this section. The rules shall provide that the extreme circumstances include

natural disasters, renovations approved under division (D) of section 5111.251 of the Revised Code, an increase in workers' compensation experience rating of greater than five per cent for a facility that has an appropriate claims management program, increased security costs for an inner-city facility, and a change of ownership that results from bankruptcy, foreclosure, or findings of violations of certification requirements by the department of health. An increase under division (A)(2) of this section is subject to any rate limitations or maximum rates established by sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code for specific cost centers. Any rate increase granted under division (A)(2) of this section shall take effect on the first day of the first month after the department receives the request.

(3) The rules shall provide that the department, through the rate reconsideration process, may increase an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's rate as calculated under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code if the department, in the department's sole discretion, determines that the rate as calculated under those sections works an extreme hardship on the facility.

(4) The rules shall provide that when beds certified for the medicaid program are added to an existing intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded or replaced at the same site, the department, through the rate reconsideration process, shall increase the intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded's rate for capital costs proportionately, as limited by any applicable limitation under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code, to account for the costs of the beds that are added or replaced. The department shall make this increase one month after the first day of the month after the department receives sufficient documentation of the costs. Any rate increase granted under division (A)(4) of this section after June 30, 1993, shall remain in effect until the effective date of a rate calculated under section 5111.251 of the Revised Code that includes costs incurred for a full calendar year for the bed addition or bed replacement. The facility shall report double accumulated depreciation in an amount equal to the depreciation included in the rate adjustment on its cost report for the first year of operation. During the term of any loan used to finance a project for which a rate adjustment is granted under division (A)(4) of this section, if the facility is operated by the same provider, the provider shall subtract from the interest costs it reports on its cost report an amount equal to the difference between the following:

- (a) The actual, allowable interest costs for the loan during the calendar year for which the costs are being reported;
- (b) The actual, allowable interest costs attributable to the loan that were

used to calculate the rates paid to the provider for the facility during the same calendar year.

(5) The department's decision at the conclusion of the reconsideration process shall not be subject to any administrative proceedings under Chapter 119. or any other provision of the Revised Code.

(B) All of the following are subject to an adjudication conducted in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code:

(1) Any audit disallowance that the department makes as the result of an audit under section 5111.27 of the Revised Code;

(2) Any adverse finding that results from an exception review of resident assessment information conducted under section 5111.27 of the Revised Code after the effective date of the facility's rate that is based on the assessment information;

(3) Any medicaid payment deemed an overpayment under section 5111.683 of the Revised Code;

(4) Any penalty the department imposes under division (C) of section 5111.28 of the Revised Code or section 5111.683 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.291. Notwithstanding sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services may compute the rate for intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded operated by the department of developmental disabilities or the department of mental health according to the reasonable cost principles of Title XVIII.

Sec. 5111.33. Reimbursement to a provider of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.32~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code shall include payments to the provider, at a rate equal to the percentage of the per resident per day rates that the department of job and family services has established for the provider's ~~nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded~~ under sections 5111.20 to ~~5111.33~~ 5111.331 of the Revised Code for the fiscal year for which the cost of services is reimbursed, to reserve a bed for a recipient during a temporary absence under conditions prescribed by the department, to include hospitalization for an acute condition, visits with relatives and friends, and participation in therapeutic programs outside the facility, when the resident's plan of care provides for such absence and federal participation in the payments is available. The maximum period during which payments may be made to reserve a bed shall not exceed the maximum period specified under federal regulations, and shall not be more than thirty days during any calendar year for hospital stays, visits with relatives and friends, and participation in therapeutic programs.

Recipients ~~who have been identified by the department as requiring the~~

~~level of care of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded shall not be subject to a maximum period during which payments may be made to reserve a bed in an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded if prior authorization of the department is obtained for hospital stays, visits with relatives and friends, and participation in therapeutic programs. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code establishing conditions under which prior authorization may be obtained.~~

Sec. 5111.331. (A) The department of job and family services may make payments to a provider of a nursing facility under sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code to reserve a bed for a recipient during a temporary absence under conditions prescribed by the department, to include hospitalization for an acute condition, visits with relatives and friends, and participation in therapeutic programs outside the facility, when the resident's plan of care provides for such absence and federal participation in the payments is available.

(B) The maximum period for which payments may be made to reserve a bed in a nursing facility shall not exceed thirty days in a calendar year.

(C) The department shall establish the per diem rates to be paid to providers of nursing facilities for reserving beds under this section. In establishing the per diem rates, the department shall do the following:

(1) In the case of a payment to reserve a bed for a day during calendar year 2011, set the per diem rate at an amount not exceeding fifty per cent of the per diem rate the provider would be paid if the recipient were not absent from the nursing facility that day;

(2) In the case of a payment to reserve a bed for a day during calendar year 2012 and each calendar year thereafter, set the per diem rate at an amount equal to the following:

(a) In the case of a nursing facility that had an occupancy rate in the preceding calendar year exceeding ninety-five per cent, an amount not exceeding fifty per cent of the per diem rate the provider would be paid if the recipient were not absent from the nursing facility that day;

(b) In the case of a nursing facility that had an occupancy rate in the preceding calendar year not exceeding ninety-five per cent, an amount not exceeding eighteen per cent of the per diem rate the provider would be paid if the recipient were not absent from the nursing facility that day.

Sec. 5111.35. As used in this section "a resident's rights" means the rights of a nursing facility resident under sections 3721.10 to 3721.17 of the Revised Code and subsection (c) of section 1819 or 1919 of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended, and

regulations issued under those subsections.

As used in sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Certification requirements" means the requirements for nursing facilities established under sections 1819 and 1919 of the "Social Security Act."

(B) "Compliance" means substantially meeting all applicable certification requirements.

(C) "Contracting agency" means a state agency that has entered into a contract with the department of job and family services under section 5111.38 of the Revised Code.

(D)(1) "Deficiency" means a finding cited by the department of health during a survey, on the basis of one or more actions, practices, situations, or incidents occurring at a nursing facility, that constitutes a severity level three finding, severity level four finding, scope level three finding, or scope level four finding. Whenever the finding is a repeat finding, "deficiency" also includes any finding that is a severity level two and scope level one finding, a severity level two and scope level two finding, or a severity level one and scope level two finding.

(2) "Cluster of deficiencies" means deficiencies that result from noncompliance with two or more certification requirements and are causing or resulting from the same action, practice, situation, or incident.

(E) "Emergency" means either of the following:

(1) A deficiency or cluster of deficiencies that creates a condition of immediate jeopardy;

(2) An unexpected situation or sudden occurrence of a serious or urgent nature that creates a substantial likelihood that one or more residents of a nursing facility may be seriously harmed if allowed to remain in the facility, including the following:

(a) A flood or other natural disaster, civil disaster, or similar event;

(b) A labor strike that suddenly causes the number of staff members in a nursing facility to be below that necessary for resident care.

(F) "Finding" means a finding of noncompliance with certification requirements determined by the department of health under section 5111.41 of the Revised Code.

(G) "Immediate jeopardy" means that one or more residents of a nursing facility are in imminent danger of serious physical or life-threatening harm.

(H) "Medicaid eligible resident" means a person who is a resident of a nursing facility, or is applying for admission to a nursing facility, and is eligible to receive financial assistance under the medical assistance program for the care the person receives in such a facility.

(I) "Noncompliance" means failure to substantially meet all applicable certification requirements.

(J) "Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(K) "Provider" means a person, institution, or entity that furnishes nursing facility services under a medical assistance program provider agreement.

(L) "Provider agreement" means a contract between the department of job and family services and a provider for the provision of nursing facility services under the medicaid program.

~~(M)~~ (M) "Repeat finding" or "repeat deficiency" means a finding or deficiency cited pursuant to a survey, to which both of the following apply:

(1) The finding or deficiency involves noncompliance with the same certification requirement, and the same kind of actions, practices, situations, or incidents caused by or resulting from the noncompliance, as were cited in the immediately preceding standard survey or another survey conducted subsequent to the immediately preceding standard survey of the facility. For purposes of this division, actions, practices, situations, or incidents may be of the same kind even though they involve different residents, staff, or parts of the facility.

(2) The finding or deficiency is cited subsequent to a determination by the department of health that the finding or deficiency cited on the immediately preceding standard survey, or another survey conducted subsequent to the immediately preceding standard survey, had been corrected.

~~(M)~~(N) (1) "Scope level one finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility in which the actions, situations, practices, or incidents causing or resulting from the noncompliance affect one or a very limited number of facility residents and involve one or a very limited number of facility staff members.

(2) "Scope level two finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility in which the actions, situations, practices, or incidents causing or resulting from the noncompliance affect more than a limited number of facility residents or involve more than a limited number of facility staff members, but the number or percentage of facility residents affected or staff members involved and the number or frequency of the actions, situations, practices, or incidents in short succession does not establish any reasonable degree of predictability of similar actions, situations, practices, or incidents occurring in the future.

(3) "Scope level three finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a

nursing facility in which the actions, situations, practices, or incidents causing or resulting from the noncompliance affect more than a limited number of facility residents or involve more than a limited number of facility staff members, and the number or percentage of facility residents affected or staff members involved or the number or frequency of the actions, situations, practices, or incidents in short succession establishes a reasonable degree of predictability of similar actions, situations, practices, or incidents occurring in the future.

(4) "Scope level four finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility causing or resulting from actions, situations, practices, or incidents that involve a sufficient number or percentage of facility residents or staff members or occur with sufficient regularity over time that the noncompliance can be considered systemic or pervasive in the facility.

~~(N)~~(Q)(1) "Severity level one finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility that has not caused and, if continued, is unlikely to cause physical harm to a facility resident, mental or emotional harm to a resident, or a violation of a resident's rights that results in physical, mental, or emotional harm to the resident.

(2) "Severity level two finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility that, if continued over time, will cause, or is likely to cause, physical harm to a facility resident, mental or emotional harm to a resident, or a violation of a resident's rights that results in physical, mental, or emotional harm to the resident.

(3) "Severity level three finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility that has caused physical harm to a facility resident, mental or emotional harm to a resident, or a violation of a resident's rights that results in physical, mental, or emotional harm to the resident.

(4) "Severity level four finding" means a finding of noncompliance by a nursing facility that has caused life-threatening harm to a facility resident or caused a resident's death.

~~(O)~~(P) "State agency" has the same meaning as in section 1.60 of the Revised Code.

~~(P)~~(Q) "Substandard care" means care furnished in a facility in which the department of health has cited a deficiency or deficiencies that constitute one of the following:

- (1) A severity level four finding, regardless of scope;
- (2) A severity level three and scope level four finding, in the quality of care provided to residents;
- (3) A severity level three and scope level three finding, in the quality of care provided to residents.

~~(Q)~~(R)(1) "Survey" means a survey of a nursing facility conducted under section 5111.39 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Standard survey" means a survey conducted by the department of health under division (A) of section 5111.39 of the Revised Code and includes an extended survey.

(3) "Follow-up survey" means a survey conducted by the department of health to determine whether a nursing facility has substantially corrected deficiencies cited in a previous survey.

Sec. 5111.511. (A) If the department of job and family services determines that a nursing facility is experiencing or is likely to experience a serious financial loss or failure that jeopardizes or is likely to jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of its residents, the department, subject to the provider's consent, may appoint a temporary resident safety assurance manager in the nursing facility to take actions the department determines are appropriate to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the residents.

(B) A temporary resident safety assurance manager appointed under this section is vested with the authority necessary to take actions the department of job and family services determines are appropriate to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the residents.

(C) A temporary resident safety assurance manager appointed under this section may use any of the following funds to pay for costs the manager incurs on behalf of the nursing facility:

(1) Medicaid payments made in accordance with the provider agreement for the nursing facility;

(2) Funds from the residents protection fund that the department provides the manager under section 5111.62 of the Revised Code;

(3) Other funds the department determines are appropriate if such use of the funds is consistent with the appropriations that authorize the use of the funds and all other state and federal laws governing the use of the funds.

(D) The provider is liable to the department for the amount of any payments the department makes to the temporary resident safety assurance manager, other than payments specified in division (C)(1) of this section. The department may recover the amount the provider owes the department by doing any of the following:

(1) Offsetting medicaid payments made to the provider in accordance with the provider agreement;

(2) Placing a lien on any of the provider's real and personal property;

(3) Initiating other collection actions.

(E) No action the department takes under this section is subject to appeal under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

(F) In rules adopted under section 5111.36 of the Revised Code, the director of job and family services may establish all of the following:

(1) Qualifications persons must meet to be appointed temporary resident safety assurance managers under this section;

(2) Procedures for maintaining a list of qualified temporary resident safety assurance managers;

(3) Procedures consistent with federal law for paying for the services of temporary resident safety assurance managers;

(4) Accounting and reporting requirements for temporary resident safety assurance managers;

(5) Other procedures and requirements the director determines are necessary to implement this section.

Sec. 5111.52. (A) As used in this section:

~~(1) "Provider agreement" means a contract between the department of job and family services and a nursing facility for the provision of nursing facility services under the medical assistance program.~~

~~(2) "Terminating", "terminating" includes not renewing.~~

(B) A nursing facility's participation in the medical assistance program shall be terminated under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code as follows:

(1) If the department of job and family services is terminating the facility's participation, it shall issue an order terminating the facility's provider agreement.

(2) If the department of health, acting as a contracting agency, is terminating the facility's participation, it shall issue an order terminating certification of the facility's compliance with certification requirements. When the department of health terminates certification, the department of job and family services shall terminate the facility's provider agreement. The department of job and family services is not required to provide an adjudication hearing when it terminates a provider agreement following termination of certification by the department of health.

(3) If a state agency other than the department of health, acting as a contracting agency, is terminating the facility's participation, it shall notify the department of job and family services, and the department of job and family services shall issue an order terminating the facility's provider agreement. The contracting agency shall conduct any administrative proceedings concerning the order.

(C) If the following conditions are met, the department of job and family services may make medical assistance payments to a nursing facility for a period not exceeding thirty days after the effective date of termination

under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code of the facility's participation in the medical assistance program:

(1) The payments are for medicaid eligible residents admitted to the facility prior to the effective date of the termination;

(2) The provider is making reasonable efforts to transfer medicaid eligible residents to other care settings.

The period during which payments may be made under this division begins on the later of the effective date of the termination or, if the facility has appealed a termination order, the date of issuance of the adjudication order upholding termination.

Sec. 5111.54. (A) A temporary manager of a nursing facility appointed by the department of job and family services or a contracting agency under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code shall meet all of the following qualifications:

(1) Be licensed as a nursing home administrator under Chapter 4751. of the Revised Code;

(2) Have demonstrated competence as a nursing home administrator;

(3) Have had no disciplinary action taken against the temporary manager by any licensing board or professional society in this state.

(B) The salary of a temporary manager or special master appointed under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code shall be paid by the facility and set by the department of job and family services or contracting agency, in the case of a temporary manager, or by the court, in the case of a special master, at a rate not to exceed the maximum allowable compensation for an administrator under the medical assistance program. The extent to which this compensation is allowable under the medical assistance program is subject to and limited by this chapter and rules of the department.

Subject to division (C) of this section, any costs incurred on behalf of a nursing facility by a temporary manager or special master appointed under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code shall be paid by the facility. The allowability of these costs under the medical assistance program shall be subject to and governed by this chapter and the rules of the department. This division does not prohibit a facility from applying for or receiving any waiver of cost ceilings available under rules of the department.

(C) No temporary manager or special master appointed under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code shall enter into any employment contract on behalf of a facility, or purchase any capital goods using facility funds totaling more than ten thousand dollars, unless the temporary manager or special master has obtained prior approval for the contract or purchase

from either the provider or the court.

(D)(1) A temporary manager appointed for a nursing facility under section 5111.46 of the Revised Code is hereby vested, subject to division (C) of this section, with the legal authority necessary to correct any deficiency or cluster of deficiencies at a facility, bring the facility into compliance with certification requirements, and otherwise ensure the health and safety of the residents.

(2) A temporary manager appointed under section 5111.51 of the Revised Code is hereby vested, subject to division (C) of this section, with the authority necessary to eliminate the emergency, bring the facility into compliance with certification requirements, and otherwise ensure the health and safety of the residents.

(3) A temporary manager appointed under section 5111.53 of the Revised Code is hereby vested, subject to division (C) of this section, with the authority necessary to ensure the transfer of medicaid eligible residents to other appropriate care settings and, if applicable, the orderly closure of the facility, and to otherwise ensure the health and safety of the residents.

(E) Prior to acting under division (A)(1)(b) or (2)(b) of section 5111.46 of the Revised Code to appoint a temporary manager or apply for a special master, the department of job and family services or contracting agency shall order the facility to substantially correct the deficiency or deficiencies within five days after receiving the statement and inform the facility, in the statement it provides pursuant to division (B) of section 5111.49 of the Revised Code, of the order and that it will not take that action unless the facility fails to substantially correct the deficiency or deficiencies within that five-day period. At the end of the five-day period, the department of health shall conduct a follow-up survey that focuses on the deficiency or deficiencies. If the department of health determines that the facility has substantially corrected the deficiency or deficiencies within that time, the department of job and family services or contracting agency shall not appoint a temporary manager or apply for a special master. If the department of health determines that the facility has failed to substantially correct the deficiency or deficiencies within that time, the department of job and family services or contracting agency may proceed with appointment of the temporary manager or application for a special master. Until the statement required under division (B) of section 5111.49 of the Revised Code is actually delivered, no action taken by the department or agency to appoint a temporary manager or apply for a temporary manager under division (A)(1)(b) or (2)(b) of section 5111.46 of the Revised Code shall have any legal effect. No action taken by a facility under this division to substantially

correct a deficiency or deficiencies shall be considered an admission by the facility of the existence of a deficiency or deficiencies.

(F) Appointment of a temporary manager under division (A)(1)(b) or (2)(b) of section 5111.46 or division (A)(1)(d) of section 5111.51 of the Revised Code shall expire at the end of the seventh day following the appointment. If the department of job and family services or contracting agency finds that the deficiency or deficiencies that prompted the appointment under division (A)(1)(b) or (2)(b) of section 5111.46 of the Revised Code cannot be substantially corrected, or the condition of immediate jeopardy that prompted the appointment under division (A)(1)(d) of section 5111.51 of the Revised Code cannot be eliminated, prior to the expiration of the appointment, it may take one of the following actions:

(1) Appoint, subject to the continuing consent of the provider, a temporary manager for the facility;

(2) Apply to the common pleas court of the county in which the facility is located for an order appointing a special master who, under the authority and direct supervision of the court and subject to divisions (B) and (C) of this section, may take such additional actions as are necessary to correct the deficiency or deficiencies or eliminate the condition of immediate jeopardy and bring the facility into compliance with certification requirements.

(G) The court, on finding that the deficiency or deficiencies for which a special master was appointed under division (F)(2) of this section or division (A)(1)(b) or (2)(b) of section 5111.46 of the Revised Code has been substantially corrected, or the emergency for which a special master was appointed under division (F)(2) of this section or division (A)(1)(b) or (B)(2) of section 5111.51 of the Revised Code has been eliminated, that the facility has been brought into compliance with certification requirements, and that the provider has established the management capability to ensure continued compliance with the certification requirements, shall immediately terminate its jurisdiction over the facility and return control and management of the facility to the provider. If the deficiency or deficiencies cannot be substantially corrected, or the emergency cannot be eliminated practicably within a reasonable time following appointment of the special master, the court may order the special master to close the facility and transfer all residents to other nursing facilities or other appropriate care settings.

(H) This section does not apply to temporary resident safety assurance managers appointed under section 5111.511 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.62. The proceeds of all fines, including interest, collected under sections 5111.35 to 5111.62 of the Revised Code shall be deposited in

the state treasury to the credit of the residents protection fund, which is hereby created. The proceeds of all fines, including interest, collected under section 173.42 of the Revised Code shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the residents protection fund.

~~Moneys~~ Money in the fund shall be used for the protection of the health or property of residents of nursing facilities in which the department of health finds deficiencies, including payment for the costs of relocation of residents to other facilities, maintenance of operation of a facility pending correction of deficiencies or closure, and reimbursement of residents for the loss of money managed by the facility under section 3721.15 of the Revised Code. Money in the fund may also be used to make payments under section 5111.511 of the Revised Code.

The fund shall be maintained and administered by the department of job and family services under rules developed in consultation with the departments of health and aging and adopted by the director of job and family services under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.65. As used in sections 5111.65 to 5111.689 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Affiliated operator" means an operator affiliated with either of the following:

(1) The exiting operator for whom the affiliated operator is to assume liability for the entire amount of the exiting operator's debt under the medicaid program or the portion of the debt that represents the franchise permit fee the exiting operator owes;

(2) The entering operator involved in the change of operator with the exiting operator specified in division (A)(1) of this section.

(B) "Change of operator" means an entering operator becoming the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded in the place of the exiting operator.

(1) Actions that constitute a change of operator include the following:

(a) A change in an exiting operator's form of legal organization, including the formation of a partnership or corporation from a sole proprietorship;

(b) A transfer of all the exiting operator's ownership interest in the operation of the facility to the entering operator, regardless of whether ownership of any or all of the real property or personal property associated with the facility is also transferred;

(c) A lease of the facility to the entering operator or the exiting operator's termination of the exiting operator's lease;

(d) If the exiting operator is a partnership, dissolution of the partnership;

(e) If the exiting operator is a partnership, a change in composition of the partnership unless both of the following apply:

(i) The change in composition does not cause the partnership's dissolution under state law.

(ii) The partners agree that the change in composition does not constitute a change in operator.

(f) If the operator is a corporation, dissolution of the corporation, a merger of the corporation into another corporation that is the survivor of the merger, or a consolidation of one or more other corporations to form a new corporation.

(2) The following, alone, do not constitute a change of operator:

(a) A contract for an entity to manage a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded as the operator's agent, subject to the operator's approval of daily operating and management decisions;

(b) A change of ownership, lease, or termination of a lease of real property or personal property associated with a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded if an entering operator does not become the operator in place of an exiting operator;

(c) If the operator is a corporation, a change of one or more members of the corporation's governing body or transfer of ownership of one or more shares of the corporation's stock, if the same corporation continues to be the operator.

(C) "Effective date of a change of operator" means the day the entering operator becomes the operator of the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

(D) "Effective date of a facility closure" means the last day that the last of the residents of the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded resides in the facility.

(E) "Effective date of an involuntary termination" means the following:

(1) In the context of a nursing facility, the date the department of job and family services terminates the operator's provider agreement for the nursing facility;

(2) In the context of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, the date the department terminates the operator's provider agreement for the facility or the last day that such a provider agreement is in effect when the department cancels or refuses to renew it.

(F) "Effective date of a voluntary termination" means the day the intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded ceases to accept medicaid patients.

~~(F)~~(G) "Effective date of a voluntary withdrawal of participation" means

the day the nursing facility ceases to accept new medicaid patients other than the individuals who reside in the nursing facility on the day before the effective date of the voluntary withdrawal of participation.

~~(G)~~(H) "Entering operator" means the person or government entity that will become the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded when a change of operator occurs or following an involuntary termination.

~~(H)~~(I) "Exiting operator" means any of the following:

(1) An operator that will cease to be the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded on the effective date of a change of operator;

(2) An operator that will cease to be the operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded on the effective date of a facility closure;

(3) An operator of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is undergoing or has undergone a voluntary termination;

(4) An operator of a nursing facility that is undergoing or has undergone a voluntary withdrawal of participation;

(5) An operator of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is undergoing or has undergone an involuntary termination.

~~(I)~~(J)(1) "Facility Subject to divisions (J)(2) and (3) of this section, "facility closure" means ~~discontinuance~~ either of the following:

(a) Discontinuance of the use of the building, or part of the building, that houses the facility as a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that results in the relocation of all of the facility's residents;

(b) Conversion of the building, or part of the building, that houses a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded to a different use with any necessary license or other approval needed for that use being obtained and one or more of the facility's residents remaining in the facility to receive services under the new use. A

(2) A facility closure occurs regardless of any of the following:

(a) The operator completely or partially replacing the facility by constructing a new facility or transferring the facility's license to another facility;

(b) The facility's residents relocating to another of the operator's facilities;

(c) Any action the department of health takes regarding the facility's certification under Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286

(1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396, as amended, that may result in the transfer of part of the facility's survey findings to another of the operator's facilities;

(d) Any action the department of health takes regarding the facility's license under Chapter 3721. of the Revised Code;

(e) Any action the department of developmental disabilities takes regarding the facility's license under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

~~(2)~~(3) A facility closure does not occur if all of the facility's residents are relocated due to an emergency evacuation and one or more of the residents return to a medicaid-certified bed in the facility not later than thirty days after the evacuation occurs.

~~(J)~~(K) "Fiscal year," "franchise permit fee," "intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded," "nursing facility," "operator," "owner," and "provider agreement" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

~~(K)~~(L) "Involuntary termination" means the following:

(1) In the context of a nursing facility, the department of job and family services' termination of the operator's provider agreement for the nursing facility when the termination is not taken at the operator's request;

(2) In the context of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded, the department's termination of, cancellation of, or refusal to renew the operator's provider agreement for the facility when such action is not taken at the operator's request.

(M) "Voluntary termination" means an operator's voluntary election to terminate the participation of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded in the medicaid program but to continue to provide service of the type provided by a residential facility as defined in section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

~~(L)~~(N) "Voluntary withdrawal of participation" means an operator's voluntary election to terminate the participation of a nursing facility in the medicaid program but to continue to provide service of the type provided by a nursing facility.

Sec. 5111.66. An exiting operator or owner of a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded participating in the medicaid program shall provide the department of job and family services written notice of a facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation not less than ninety days before the effective date of the facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation. The written notice shall be provided to the department in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code.

The written notice shall include all of the following:

(A) The name of the exiting operator and, if any, the exiting operator's authorized agent;

(B) The name of the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is the subject of the written notice;

(C) The exiting operator's medicaid provider agreement number for the facility that is the subject of the written notice;

(D) The effective date of the facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation;

(E) The signature of the exiting operator's or owner's representative.

Sec. 5111.67. (A) An exiting operator or owner and entering operator shall provide the department of job and family services written notice of a change of operator if the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded participates in the medicaid program and the entering operator seeks to continue the facility's participation. The written notice shall be provided to the department in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code. The written notice shall be provided to the department not later than forty-five days before the effective date of the change of operator if the change of operator does not entail the relocation of residents. The written notice shall be provided to the department not later than ninety days before the effective date of the change of operator if the change of operator entails the relocation of residents. ~~The~~

The written notice shall include all of the following:

(1) The name of the exiting operator and, if any, the exiting operator's authorized agent;

(2) The name of the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is the subject of the change of operator;

(3) The exiting operator's ~~medicaid provider agreement~~ seven-digit medicaid legacy number and ten-digit national provider identifier number for the facility that is the subject of the change of operator;

(4) The name of the entering operator;

(5) The effective date of the change of operator;

(6) The manner in which the entering operator becomes the facility's operator, including through sale, lease, merger, or other action;

(7) If the manner in which the entering operator becomes the facility's operator involves more than one step, a description of each step;

(8) Written authorization from the exiting operator or owner and entering operator for the department to process a provider agreement for the entering operator;

(9) The names and addresses of the persons to whom the department should send initial correspondence regarding the change of operator;

(10) If the nursing facility also participates in the medicare program, notification of whether the entering operator intends to accept assignment of the exiting operator's medicare provider agreement;

(11) The signature of the exiting operator's or owner's representative.

~~(B) The entering operator shall include a completed application for a provider agreement with the written notice to the department. The entering operator shall attach to the application the following:~~

~~(1) If the written notice is provided to the department before the date the exiting operator or owner and entering operator complete the transaction for the change of operator, all the proposed leases, management agreements, merger agreements and supporting documents, and sales contracts and supporting documents relating to the facility's change of operator;~~

~~(2) If the written notice is provided to the department on or after the date the exiting operator or owner and entering operator complete the transaction for the change of operator, copies of all the executed leases, management agreements, merger agreements and supporting documents, and sales contracts and supporting documents relating to the facility's change of operator. An exiting operator or owner and entering operator immediately shall provide the department written notice of any changes to information included in a written notice of a change of operator that occur after that notice is provided to the department. The notice of the changes shall be provided to the department in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code.~~

Sec. 5111.671. The department of job and family services may enter into a provider agreement with an entering operator that goes into effect at 12:01 a.m. on the effective date of the change of operator if all of the following requirements are met:

(A) The department receives a properly completed written notice required by section 5111.67 of the Revised Code on or before the date required by that section.

~~(B) The entering operator furnishes to the department copies of all the fully executed leases, management agreements, merger agreements and supporting documents, and sales contracts and supporting documents relating to the change of operator not later than ten days after the effective date of the change of operator receives both of the following in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code and not later than ten days after the effective date of the change of operator:~~

(1) From the entering operator, a completed application for a provider agreement and all other forms and documents specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code;

(2) From the exiting operator or owner, all forms and documents specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code.

(C) The entering operator is eligible for medicaid payments as provided in section 5111.21 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.672. (A) The department of job and family services may enter into a provider agreement with an entering operator that goes into effect at 12:01 a.m. on the date determined under division (B) of this section if all of the following are the case:

(1) The department receives a properly completed written notice required by section 5111.67 of the Revised Code.

~~(2) The entering operator furnishes to the department copies of all the fully executed leases, management agreements, merger agreements and supporting documents, and sales contracts and supporting documents relating to the change of operator~~ receives, from the entering operator and in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code, a completed application for a provider agreement and all other forms and documents specified in rules adopted under that section.

(3) The department receives, from the exiting operator or owner and in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code, all forms and documents specified in rules adopted under that section.

~~(3) The~~ (4) One or more of the following apply:

(a) The requirement of division (A)(1) of this section is met after the time required by section 5111.67 of the Revised Code, ~~the;~~

(b) The requirement of division (A)(2) of this section is met more than ten days after the effective date of the change of operator, ~~or both;~~

(c) The requirement of division (A)(3) of this section is met more than ten days after the effective date of the change of operator.

~~(4)(5)~~ (5) The entering operator is eligible for medicaid payments as provided in section 5111.21 of the Revised Code.

(B) The department shall determine the date a provider agreement entered into under this section is to go into effect as follows:

(1) The effective date shall give the department sufficient time to process the change of operator, assure no duplicate payments are made, and make the withholding required by section 5111.681 of the Revised Code; ~~and withhold the final payment to the exiting operator until one hundred~~

eighty days after either of the following:

~~(a) The date that the exiting operator submits to the department a properly completed cost report under section 5111.682 of the Revised Code;~~

~~(b) The date that the department waives the cost report requirement of section 5111.682 of the Revised Code.~~

(2) The effective date shall be not earlier than the ~~later~~ latest of the following:

(a) The effective date of the change of operator or the;

(b) The date that the exiting operator or owner and entering operator ~~comply~~ complies with section 5111.67 of the Revised Code and division (A)(2) of this section;

(c) The date that the exiting operator or owner complies with section 5111.67 of the Revised Code and division (A)(3) of this section.

(3) The effective date shall be not later than the following after the later of the dates specified in division (B)(2) of this section:

(a) Forty-five days if the change of operator does not entail the relocation of residents;

(b) Ninety days if the change of operator entails the relocation of residents.

Sec. 5111.68. (A) On receipt of a written notice under section 5111.66 of the Revised Code of a facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation ~~or, on receipt of~~ on receipt of a written notice under section 5111.67 of the Revised Code of a change of operator, or on the effective date of an involuntary termination, the department of job and family services shall estimate the amount of any overpayments made under the medicaid program to the exiting operator, including overpayments the exiting operator disputes, and other actual and potential debts the exiting operator owes or may owe to the department and United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program, including a franchise permit fee.

(B) In estimating the exiting operator's other actual and potential debts to the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program, the department shall use a debt estimation methodology the director of job and family services shall establish in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code. The methodology shall provide for estimating all of the following that the department determines are applicable:

(1) Refunds due the department under section 5111.27 of the Revised Code;

(2) Interest owed to the department and United States centers for

medicare and medicaid services;

(3) Final civil monetary and other penalties for which all right of appeal has been exhausted;

(4) Money owed the department and United States centers for medicare and medicaid services from any outstanding final fiscal audit, including a final fiscal audit for the last fiscal year or portion thereof in which the exiting operator participated in the medicaid program;

(5) Other amounts the department determines are applicable.

(C) The department shall provide the exiting operator written notice of the department's estimate under division (A) of this section not later than thirty days after the department receives the notice under section 5111.66 of the Revised Code of the facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation ~~or~~; the department receives the notice under section 5111.67 of the Revised Code of the change of operator; or the effective date of the involuntary termination. The department's written notice shall include the basis for the estimate.

Sec. 5111.681. (A) Except as provided in divisions (B) ~~and~~, (C), and (D) of this section, the department of job and family services may withhold from payment due an exiting operator under the medicaid program the total amount specified in the notice provided under division (C) of section 5111.68 of the Revised Code that the exiting operator owes or may owe to the department and United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program.

(B) In the case of a change of operator and subject to division ~~(D)~~(E) of this section, the following shall apply regarding a withholding under division (A) of this section if the exiting operator or entering operator or an affiliated operator executes a successor liability agreement meeting the requirements of division ~~(E)~~(F) of this section:

(1) If the exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability for the total, actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program as determined under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code, the department shall not make the withholding.

(2) If the exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability for only the portion of the amount specified in division (B)(1) of this section that represents the franchise permit fee the exiting operator owes, the department shall withhold not more than the difference between the total amount specified in the notice provided under division (C) of section 5111.68 of the Revised Code and the amount for which the

exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability.

(C) In the case of a voluntary termination, voluntary withdrawal of participation, or facility closure and subject to division ~~(D)~~(E) of this section, the following shall apply regarding a withholding under division (A) of this section if the exiting operator or an affiliated operator executes a successor liability agreement meeting the requirements of division ~~(E)~~(F) of this section:

(1) If the exiting operator or affiliated operator assumes liability for the total, actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program as determined under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code, the department shall not make the withholding.

(2) If the exiting operator or affiliated operator assumes liability for only the portion of the amount specified in division (C)(1) of this section that represents the franchise permit fee the exiting operator owes, the department shall withhold not more than the difference between the total amount specified in the notice provided under division (C) of section 5111.68 of the Revised Code and the amount for which the exiting operator or affiliated operator assumes liability.

(D) In the case of an involuntary termination and subject to division (E) of this section, the following shall apply regarding a withholding under division (A) of this section if the exiting operator, the entering operator, or an affiliated operator executes a successor liability agreement meeting the requirements of division (F) of this section and the department approves the successor liability agreement:

(1) If the exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability for the total, actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program as determined under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code, the department shall not make the withholding.

(2) If the exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability for only the portion of the amount specified in division (D)(1) of this section that represents the franchise permit fee the exiting operator owes, the department shall withhold not more than the difference between the total amount specified in the notice provided under division (C) of section 5111.68 of the Revised Code and the amount for which the exiting operator, entering operator, or affiliated operator assumes liability.

(E) For an exiting operator or affiliated operator to be eligible to enter into a successor liability agreement under division (B) ~~or~~, (C), or (D) of this

section, both of the following must apply:

(1) The exiting operator or affiliated operator must have one or more valid provider agreements, other than the provider agreement for the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is the subject of the involuntary termination, voluntary termination, voluntary withdrawal of participation, facility closure, or change of operator;

(2) During the twelve-month period preceding either the effective date of the involuntary termination or the month in which the department receives the notice of the voluntary termination, voluntary withdrawal of participation, or facility closure under section 5111.66 of the Revised Code or the notice of the change of operator under section 5111.67 of the Revised Code, the average monthly medicaid payment made to the exiting operator or affiliated operator pursuant to the exiting operator's or affiliated operator's one or more provider agreements, other than the provider agreement for the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is the subject of the involuntary termination, voluntary termination, voluntary withdrawal of participation, facility closure, or change of operator, must equal at least ninety per cent of the sum of the following:

(a) The average monthly medicaid payment made to the exiting operator pursuant to the exiting operator's provider agreement for the nursing facility or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is the subject of the involuntary termination, voluntary termination, voluntary withdrawal of participation, facility closure, or change of operator;

(b) Whichever of the following apply:

(i) If the exiting operator or affiliated operator has assumed liability under one or more other successor liability agreements, the total amount for which the exiting operator or affiliated operator has assumed liability under the other successor liability agreements;

(ii) If the exiting operator or affiliated operator has not assumed liability under any other successor liability agreements, zero.

~~(E)~~(F) A successor liability agreement executed under this section must comply with all of the following:

(1) It must provide for the operator who executes the successor liability agreement to assume liability for either of the following as specified in the agreement:

(a) The total, actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program as determined under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code;

(b) The portion of the amount specified in division ~~(E)~~(F)(1)(a) of this

section that represents the franchise permit fee the exiting operator owes.

(2) It may not require the operator who executes the successor liability agreement to furnish a surety bond.

(3) It must provide that the department, after determining under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code the actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program, may deduct the lesser of the following from medicaid payments made to the operator who executes the successor liability agreement:

(a) The total, actual amount of debt the exiting operator owes the department and the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services under the medicaid program as determined under section 5111.685 of the Revised Code;

(b) The amount for which the operator who executes the successor liability agreement assumes liability under the agreement.

(4) It must provide that the deductions authorized by division ~~(E)~~(F)(3) of this section are to be made for a number of months, not to exceed six, agreed to by the operator who executes the successor liability agreement and the department or, if the operator who executes the successor liability agreement and department cannot agree on a number of months that is less than six, a greater number of months determined by the attorney general pursuant to a claims collection process authorized by statute of this state.

(5) It must provide that, if the attorney general determines the number of months for which the deductions authorized by division ~~(E)~~(F)(3) of this section are to be made, the operator who executes the successor liability agreement shall pay, in addition to the amount collected pursuant to the attorney general's claims collection process, the part of the amount so collected that, if not for division ~~(G)~~(H) of this section, would be required by section 109.081 of the Revised Code to be paid into the attorney general claims fund.

~~(F)~~(G) Execution of a successor liability agreement does not waive an exiting operator's right to contest the amount specified in the notice the department provides the exiting operator under division (C) of section 5111.68 of the Revised Code.

~~(G)~~(H) Notwithstanding section 109.081 of the Revised Code, the entire amount that the attorney general, whether by employees or agents of the attorney general or by special counsel appointed pursuant to section 109.08 of the Revised Code, collects under a successor liability agreement, other than the additional amount the operator who executes the agreement is required by division ~~(E)~~(F)(5) of this section to pay, shall be paid to the

department of job and family services for deposit into the appropriate fund. The additional amount that the operator is required to pay shall be paid into the state treasury to the credit of the attorney general claims fund created under section 109.081 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.687. The department of job and family services, at its sole discretion, may release the amount withheld under division (A) of section 5111.681 of the Revised Code if the exiting operator submits to the department written notice of a postponement of a change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation and the transactions leading to the change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation are postponed for at least thirty days but less than ninety days after the date originally proposed for the change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation as reported in the written notice required by section 5111.66 or 5111.67 of the Revised Code. The department shall release the amount withheld if the exiting operator submits to the department written notice of a cancellation or postponement of a change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation and the transactions leading to the change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation are canceled or postponed for more than ninety days after the date originally proposed for the change of operator, facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation as reported in the written notice required by section 5111.66 or 5111.67 of the Revised Code. A written notice shall be provided to the department in accordance with the method specified in rules adopted under section 5111.689 of the Revised Code.

After the department receives a written notice regarding a cancellation or postponement of a facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation, the exiting operator or owner shall provide new written notice to the department under section 5111.66 of the Revised Code regarding any transactions leading to a facility closure, voluntary termination, or voluntary withdrawal of participation at a future time. After the department receives a written notice regarding a cancellation or postponement of a change of operator, the exiting operator or owner and entering operator shall provide new written notice to the department under section 5111.67 of the Revised Code regarding any transactions leading to a change of operator at a future time.

Sec. 5111.689. The director of job and family services shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code to implement sections 5111.65

to 5111.689 of the Revised Code, including rules applicable to an exiting operator that provides written notification under section 5111.66 of the Revised Code of a voluntary withdrawal of participation. Rules adopted under this section shall comply with section 1919(c)(2)(F) of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396r(c)(2)(F), regarding restrictions on transfers or discharges of nursing facility residents in the case of a voluntary withdrawal of participation. The rules may prescribe a medicaid reimbursement methodology and other procedures that are applicable after the effective date of a voluntary withdrawal of participation that differ from the reimbursement methodology and other procedures that would otherwise apply. The rules shall specify all of the following:

(A) The method by which written notices to the department required by sections 5111.65 to 5111.689 of the Revised Code are to be provided;

(B) The forms and documents that are to be provided to the department under sections 5111.671 and 5111.672 of the Revised Code, which shall include, in the case of such forms and documents provided by entering operators, all the fully executed leases, management agreements, merger agreements and supporting documents, and fully executed sales contracts and any other supporting documents culminating in the change of operator;

(C) The method by which the forms and documents identified in division (B) of this section are to be provided to the department.

Sec. 5111.83. (A) Not later than January 1, 2012, the director of job and family services shall apply to the United States secretary of health and human services for approval of a medicaid administrative claiming program under which federal financial participation is received as reimbursement for administrative costs incurred by the department of health and the Arthur G. James and Richard J. Solove research institute of the Ohio state university in analyzing and evaluating both of the following pursuant to sections 3701.261 to 3701.236 of the Revised Code:

(1) Cancer reports under the Ohio cancer incidence surveillance system;

(2) The incidence, prevalence, costs, and medical consequences of cancer on medicaid recipients and other low-income populations.

(B) The director of job and family services shall consult with the director of health in seeking approval of the medicaid administrative claiming program. The directors shall cooperate in seeking the approval to the extent they find the approval necessary for the effective and efficient administration of the medicaid program.

Sec. 5111.85. (A) As used in this section and sections 5111.851 to 5111.856 of the Revised Code:

"Home and community-based services medicaid waiver component"

means a medicaid waiver component under which home and community-based services are provided as an alternative to hospital, nursing facility, or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded services.

"Hospital" has the same meaning as in section 3727.01 of the Revised Code.

"Intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"Medicaid waiver component" means a component of the medicaid program authorized by a waiver granted by the United States department of health and human services under section 1115 or 1915 of the "Social Security Act," 49 Stat. 620 (1935), 42 U.S.C.A. 1315 or 1396n. "Medicaid waiver component" does not include a care management system established under section 5111.16 of the Revised Code.

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(B) The director of job and family services may adopt rules under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code governing medicaid waiver components that establish all of the following:

- (1) Eligibility requirements for the medicaid waiver components;
- (2) The type, amount, duration, and scope of services the medicaid waiver components provide;
- (3) The conditions under which the medicaid waiver components cover services;
- (4) The amount the medicaid waiver components pay for services or the method by which the amount is determined;
- (5) The manner in which the medicaid waiver components pay for services;
- (6) Safeguards for the health and welfare of medicaid recipients receiving services under a medicaid waiver component;
- (7) Procedures for ~~both of the following:~~
 - ~~(a) Identifying individuals who meet all of the following requirements:~~
 - ~~(i) Are prioritizing and approving for enrollment individuals who are eligible for a home and community-based services medicaid waiver component and on a waiting list for the component;~~
 - ~~(ii) Are receiving inpatient hospital services or residing in an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded or nursing facility (as appropriate for the component);~~
 - ~~(iii) Choose choose to be enrolled in the component.~~
 - ~~(b) Approving the enrollment of individuals identified under the procedures established under division (B)(7)(a) of this section into the home~~

~~and community-based services medicaid waiver component.;~~

(8) Procedures for enforcing the rules, including establishing corrective action plans for, and imposing financial and administrative sanctions on, persons and government entities that violate the rules. Sanctions shall include terminating medicaid provider agreements. The procedures shall include due process protections.

(9) Other policies necessary for the efficient administration of the medicaid waiver components.

(C) The director of job and family services may adopt different rules for the different medicaid waiver components. The rules shall be consistent with the terms of the waiver authorizing the medicaid waiver component.

(D) ~~Any~~ The following apply to procedures established under division (B)(7) of this section:

(1) Any such procedures established for the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program shall be consistent with section 173.401 of the Revised Code. ~~Any~~

(2) Any such procedures established for the Ohio home care program shall be consistent with section 5111.862 of the Revised Code.

(3) Any such procedures established for the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver program shall be consistent with section 5111.865 of the Revised Code.

(4) Any such procedures established ~~under division (B)(7) of this section~~ for the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program shall be consistent with section 5111.894 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.861. (A) As used in this section:

"Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"Unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of the Revised Code.

(B) Subject to division (C) of this section, there is hereby created the Ohio home care program. The program shall provide home and community-based services. The department of job and family services shall administer the program.

(C) If the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is created, the departments of aging and job and family services shall work together to determine whether the Ohio home care program should continue to operate as a separate medicaid waiver component or be terminated. If the departments determine that the Ohio home care program should be terminated, the program shall cease to exist on a date the

departments shall specify.

Sec. 5111.862. (A) As used in this section:

"Hospital long-term care unit" has the same meaning as in section 3721.50 of the Revised Code.

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"Ohio home care program" means the medicaid waiver component created under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code.

"Residential treatment facility" means a residential facility licensed by the department of mental health under section 5119.22 of the Revised Code that serves children and either has more than sixteen beds or is part of a campus of multiple facilities that, combined, have a total of more than sixteen beds.

(B) Subject to division (C) of section 5111.861 of the Revised Code, the department of job and family services shall establish a home first component for the Ohio home care program. An individual is eligible for the Ohio home care program's home first component if the individual has been determined to be eligible for the Ohio home care program and at least one of the following applies:

(1) If the individual is under twenty-one years of age, the individual received inpatient hospital services for at least fourteen consecutive days, or had at least three inpatient hospital stays during the twelve months, immediately preceding the date the individual applies for the Ohio home care program.

(2) If the individual is at least twenty-one but less than sixty years of age, the individual received inpatient hospital services for at least fourteen consecutive days immediately preceding the date the individual applies for the Ohio home care program.

(3) The individual received private duty nursing services under the medicaid program for at least twelve consecutive months immediately preceding the date the individual applies for the Ohio home care program.

(4) The individual does not reside in a nursing facility or hospital long-term care unit at the time the individual applies for the Ohio home care program but is at risk of imminent admission to a nursing facility or hospital long-term care unit due to a documented loss of a primary caregiver.

(5) The individual resides in a nursing facility at the time the individual applies for the Ohio home care program.

(6) At the time the individual applies for the Ohio home care program, the individual participates in the money follows the person demonstration project authorized by section 6071 of the "Deficit Reduction Act of 2005."

Pub. L. No. 109-171, as amended, and either resides in a residential treatment facility or inpatient hospital setting.

(C) An individual determined to be eligible for the home first component of the Ohio home care program shall be enrolled in the Ohio home care program in accordance with rules adopted under section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.863. (A) As used in this section:

"Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"Unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of the Revised Code.

(B) Subject to division (C) of this section, there is hereby created the Ohio transitions II aging carve-out program. The program shall provide home and community-based services. The department of job and family services shall administer the program.

(C) If the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is created, the departments of aging and job and family services shall work together to determine whether the Ohio transitions II aging carve-out program should continue to operate as a separate medicaid waiver component or be terminated. If the departments determine that the Ohio transitions II aging carve-out program should be terminated, the program shall cease to exist on a date the departments shall specify.

Sec. 5111.864. (A) As used in this section:

"Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

(B) The director of job and family services shall submit a request to the United States secretary of health and human services pursuant to section 1915n of the "Social Security Act," 95 Stat. 809 (1981), 42 U.S.C. 1396n, as amended, to obtain approval to create a unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component to provide home and community-based services to eligible individuals of any age who require the level of care provided by nursing facilities. The director of job and family services shall work with the director of aging in seeking approval of the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component and, if the approval is obtained, in creating and implementing the component.

If the request to create the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is approved, the director of job and family

services, working with the director of aging, shall adopt rules under section 5111.85 of the Revised Code to implement the component. The rules may authorize the director of aging to adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code governing aspects of the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component.

Sec. 5111.865. (A) As used in this section, "unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver program" or "program" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of the Revised Code.

(B) If the United States secretary of health and human services approves the request submitted under section 5111.864 of the Revised Code to create the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver program, the department of job and family services shall establish a home first component for the program. The home first component shall be similar to the home first component of the medicaid-funded component of the PASSPORT program established under section 173.401 of the Revised Code, the home first component of the Ohio home care program established under section 5111.862 of the Revised Code, and the home first component of the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program established under section 5111.894 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.871. The department of job and family services shall enter into a contract with the department of developmental disabilities under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code with regard to one or more of the ~~medicaid waiver components of the medicaid program~~ established by the department of job and family services under ~~one or more of the medicaid waivers sought under~~ section 5111.87 of the Revised Code. Subject, if needed, to the approval of the United States secretary of health and human services, the contract shall include the medicaid waiver component known as the transitions developmental disabilities waiver. The contract shall provide for the department of developmental disabilities to administer the components in accordance with the terms of the waivers. The contract shall include a schedule for the department of developmental disabilities to begin administering the transitions developmental disabilities waiver. The directors of job and family services and developmental disabilities shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code governing the components.

If the department of developmental disabilities or the department of job and family services denies an individual's application for home and community-based services provided under any of these medicaid components, the department that denied the services shall give timely notice to the individual that the individual may request a hearing under section

5101.35 of the Revised Code.

The departments of developmental disabilities and job and family services may approve, reduce, deny, or terminate a service included in the individualized service plan developed for a medicaid recipient eligible for home and community-based services provided under any of these medicaid components. The departments shall consider the recommendations a county board of developmental disabilities makes under division (A)(1)(c) of section 5126.055 of the Revised Code. If either department approves, reduces, denies, or terminates a service, that department shall give timely notice to the medicaid recipient that the recipient may request a hearing under section 5101.35 of the Revised Code.

If supported living, as defined in section 5126.01 of the Revised Code, is to be provided as a service under any of these components, any person or government entity with a current, valid medicaid provider agreement and a current, valid certificate under section 5123.161 of the Revised Code may provide the service.

If a service is to be provided under any of these components by a residential facility, as defined in section 5123.19 of the Revised Code, any person or government entity with a current, valid medicaid provider agreement and a current, valid license under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code may provide the service.

Sec. 5111.872. ~~When (A)~~ Subject to division (B) of this section, when the department of developmental disabilities allocates enrollment numbers to a county board of developmental disabilities for home and community-based services specified in division (B)(1) of section 5111.87 of the Revised Code and provided under any of the medicaid waiver components ~~of the medicaid program~~ that the department administers under section 5111.871 of the Revised Code, the department shall consider all of the following:

~~(A)(1)~~ (1) The number of individuals with mental retardation or other developmental disability who are on a waiting list the county board establishes under ~~division (C) of~~ section 5126.042 of the Revised Code for those services and are given priority on the waiting list ~~pursuant to division (D) or (E) of that section;~~

~~(B)(2)~~ (2) The implementation component required by division (A)(3) of section 5126.054 of the Revised Code of the county board's plan approved under section 5123.046 of the Revised Code;

~~(C)(3)~~ (3) Anything else the department considers necessary to enable county boards to provide those services to individuals in accordance with the priority requirements ~~of divisions (D) and (E) of~~ for waiting lists

established under section 5126.042 of the Revised Code for those services.

(B) Division (A) of this section applies to home and community-based services provided under the medicaid waiver component known as the transitions developmental disabilities waiver only to the extent, if any, provided by the contract required by section 5111.871 of the Revised Code regarding the waiver.

~~Sec. 5111.873. (A) Not later than the effective date of the first of any medicaid waivers the United States secretary of health and human services grants pursuant to a request made under section 5111.87 of the Revised Code~~ Subject to division (D) of this section, the director of job and family services shall adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code establishing statewide fee schedules the amount of reimbursement or the methods by which amounts of reimbursement are to be determined for home and community-based services specified in division (B)(1) of section 5111.87 of the Revised Code and provided under the components of the medicaid program that the department of developmental disabilities administers under section 5111.871 of the Revised Code. ~~The~~ With respect to these rules shall provide for, all of the following apply:

(1) The rules shall establish procedures for the department of developmental disabilities to follow in arranging for the initial and ongoing collection of cost information from a comprehensive, statistically valid sample of persons and government entities providing the services at the time the information is obtained;

(2) The rules shall establish procedures for the collection of consumer-specific information through an assessment instrument the department of developmental disabilities shall provide to the department of job and family services;

(3) With the information collected pursuant to divisions (A)(1) and (2) of this section, an analysis of that information, and other information the director determines relevant, methods and the rules shall establish reimbursement standards for calculating the fee schedules that do all of the following:

(a) Assure that the fees are reimbursement is consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care;

(b) Consider the intensity of consumer resource need;

(c) Recognize variations in different geographic areas regarding the resources necessary to assure the health and welfare of consumers;

(d) Recognize variations in environmental supports available to consumers.

(B) As part of the process of adopting rules under this section, the

director shall consult with the director of developmental disabilities, representatives of county boards of developmental disabilities, persons who provide the home and community-based services, and other persons and government entities the director identifies.

(C) The directors of job and family services and developmental disabilities shall review the rules adopted under this section at times they determine are necessary to ensure that the ~~methods and amount of reimbursement or the methods by which the amounts of reimbursement are to be determined~~ continue to meet the reimbursement standards established by the rules for calculating the fee schedules ~~continue to do everything that under~~ division (A)(3) of this section ~~requires~~.

(D) This section applies to home and community-based services provided under the medicaid waiver component known as the transitions developmental disabilities waiver only to the extent, if any, provided by the contract required by section 5111.871 of the Revised Code regarding the waiver.

Sec. 5111.874. (A) As used in sections 5111.874 to 5111.8710 of the Revised Code:

"Home and community-based services" has the same meaning as in section 5123.01 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR services" means intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded services covered by the medicaid program that an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded provides to a resident of the facility who is a medicaid recipient eligible for medicaid-covered intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded services.

"Intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded that is certified as in compliance with applicable standards for the medicaid program by the director of health in accordance with Title XIX of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396, as amended, and licensed as a residential facility under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

"Residential facility" has the same meaning as in section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

(B) For the purpose of increasing the number of slots available for home and community-based services and subject to sections 5111.877 and 5111.878 of the Revised Code, the operator of an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded may convert some or all of the beds in the facility from providing ICF/MR services to providing home and community-based services if all of the following requirements are met:

(1) The operator provides the directors of health, job and family

services, and developmental disabilities at least ninety days' notice of the operator's intent to ~~relinquish the facility's certification as an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded and to begin providing home and community-based services~~ make the conversion.

(2) The operator complies with the requirements of sections 5111.65 to 5111.689 of the Revised Code regarding a voluntary termination as defined in section 5111.65 of the Revised Code if those requirements are applicable.

(3) ~~The~~ If the operator intends to convert all of the facility's beds, the operator notifies each of the facility's residents that the facility is to cease providing ICF/MR services and inform each resident that the resident may do either of the following:

(a) Continue to receive ICF/MR services by transferring to another facility that is an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded willing and able to accept the resident if the resident continues to qualify for ICF/MR services;

(b) Begin to receive home and community-based services instead of ICF/MR services from any provider of home and community-based services that is willing and able to provide the services to the resident if the resident is eligible for the services and a slot for the services is available to the resident.

(4) If the operator intends to convert some but not all of the facility's beds, the operator notifies each of the facility's residents that the facility is to convert some of its beds from providing ICF/MR services to providing home and community-based services and inform each resident that the resident may do either of the following:

(a) Continue to receive ICF/MR services from any provider of ICF/MR services that is willing and able to provide the services to the resident if the resident continues to qualify for ICF/MR services;

(b) Begin to receive home and community-based services instead of ICF/MR services from any provider of home and community-based services that is willing and able to provide the services to the resident if the resident is eligible for the services and a slot for the services is available to the resident.

(5) The operator meets the requirements for providing home and community-based services, including the following:

(a) Such requirements applicable to a residential facility if the operator maintains the facility's license as a residential facility;

(b) Such requirements applicable to a facility that is not licensed as a residential facility if the operator surrenders the facility's residential facility license under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

~~(5)~~(6) The ~~director~~ directors of developmental disabilities ~~approves and job and family services approve~~ the conversion.

(C) A decision by the directors to approve or refuse to approve a proposed conversion of beds is final. In making a decision, the directors shall consider all of the following:

(1) The fiscal impact on the facility if some but not all of the beds are converted;

(2) The fiscal impact on the medical assistance program;

(3) The availability of home and community-based services.

(D) The notice provided to the directors under division (B)(1) of this section shall specify whether some or all of the facility's beds are to be converted. If some but not all of the beds are to be converted, the notice shall specify how many of the facility's beds are to be converted and how many of the beds are to continue to provide ICF/MR services. The notice to the director of developmental disabilities ~~under division (B)(1) of this section~~ shall specify whether the operator wishes to surrender the facility's license as a residential facility under section 5123.19 of the Revised Code.

~~(D)~~(E)(1) If the ~~director~~ directors of developmental disabilities ~~approves and job and family services approve~~ a conversion under division ~~(B)~~(C) of this section, the director of health shall ~~terminate~~ do the following:

(a) Terminate the certification of the intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded if the notice specifies that all of the facility's beds are to be converted;

(b) Reduce the facility's certified capacity by the number of beds being converted if the notice specifies that some but not all of the beds are to be converted. The

(2) The director of health shall notify the director of job and family services of the termination or reduction. On receipt of the director of health's notice, the director of job and family services shall ~~terminate~~ do the following:

(a) Terminate the operator's medicaid provider agreement that authorizes the operator to provide ICF/MR services at the facility if the facility's certification was terminated;

(b) Amend the operator's medicaid provider agreement to reflect the facility's reduced certified capacity if the facility's certified capacity is reduced. The

(3) In the case of action taken under division (E)(2)(a) of this section, the operator is not entitled to notice or a hearing under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code before the director of job and family services terminates the medicaid provider agreement.

Sec. 5111.877. The director of job and family services may seek approval from the United States secretary of health and human services for not more than a total of ~~one~~ two hundred slots for home and community-based services for the purposes of sections 5111.874, 5111.875, and 5111.876 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.88. (A) As used in sections 5111.88 to 5111.8811 of the Revised Code:

(1) "Adult" means an individual at least eighteen years of age.

(2) "Authorized representative" means the following:

(a) In the case of a consumer who is a minor, the consumer's parent, custodian, or guardian;

(b) In the case of a consumer who is an adult, an individual selected by the consumer pursuant to section 5111.8810 of the Revised Code to act on the consumer's behalf for purposes regarding home care attendant services.

(3) "Authorizing health care professional" means a health care professional who, pursuant to section 5111.887 of the Revised Code, authorizes a home care attendant to assist a consumer with self-administration of medication, nursing tasks, or both.

(4) "Consumer" means an individual to whom all of the following apply:

(a) The individual is enrolled in a participating medicaid waiver component.

(b) The individual has a medically determinable physical impairment to which both of the following apply:

(i) It is expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve months.

(ii) It causes the individual to require assistance with activities of daily living, self-care, and mobility, including either assistance with self-administration of medication or the performance of nursing tasks, or both.

(c) In the case of an individual who is an adult, the individual is mentally alert and is, or has an authorized representative who is, capable of selecting, directing the actions of, and dismissing a home care attendant.

(d) In the case of an individual who is a minor, the individual has an authorized representative who is capable of selecting, directing the actions of, and dismissing a home care attendant.

(5) "Controlled substance" has the same meaning as in section 3719.01 of the Revised Code.

(6) "Custodian" has the same meaning as in section 2151.011 of the Revised Code.

(7) "Gastrostomy tube" means a percutaneously inserted catheter that terminates in the stomach.

(8) "Guardian" has the same meaning as in section 2111.01 of the Revised Code.

(9) "Health care professional" means a physician or registered nurse.

(10) "Home care attendant" means an individual holding a valid medicaid provider agreement in accordance with section 5111.881 of the Revised Code that authorizes the individual to provide home care attendant services to consumers.

(11) "Home care attendant services" means all of the following as provided by a home care attendant:

- (a) Personal care aide services;
- (b) Assistance with the self-administration of medication;
- (c) Assistance with nursing tasks.

(12) "Jejunostomy tube" means a percutaneously inserted catheter that terminates in the jejunum.

(13) "Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

(14) "Medication" means a drug as defined in section 4729.01 of the Revised Code.

(15) "Minor" means an individual under eighteen years of age.

(16) "Participating medicaid waiver component" means both of the following:

(a) ~~The medicaid waiver component known as Ohio home care that the department of job and family services administers~~ program created under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code;

(b) ~~The medicaid waiver component known as Ohio transitions II aging carve-out that the department of job and family services administers~~ program created under section 5111.863 of the Revised Code.

(17) "Physician" means an individual authorized under Chapter 4731. of the Revised Code to practice medicine and surgery or osteopathic medicine and surgery.

(18) "Practice of nursing as a registered nurse," "practice of nursing as a licensed practical nurse," and "registered nurse" have the same meanings as in section 4723.01 of the Revised Code. "Registered nurse" includes an advanced practice nurse, as defined in section 4723.01 of the Revised Code.

(19) "Schedule II," "schedule III," "schedule IV," and "schedule V" have the same meanings as in section 3719.01 of the Revised Code.

(B) The director of job and family services may submit requests to the United States secretary of health and human services to amend the federal

medicaid waivers authorizing the participating medicaid waiver components to have those components cover home care attendant services in accordance with sections 5111.88 to 5111.8810 and rules adopted under section 5111.8811 of the Revised Code. Notwithstanding sections 5111.881 to 5111.8811 of the Revised Code, those sections shall be implemented regarding a participating medicaid waiver component only if the secretary approves a waiver amendment for the component.

Sec. 5111.89. (A) As used in sections 5111.89 to 5111.894 of the Revised Code:

"Area agency on aging" has the same meaning as in section 173.14 of the Revised Code.

"Assisted living program" means the program created under this section.

"Assisted living services" means the following home and community-based services: personal care, homemaker, chore, attendant care, companion, medication oversight, and therapeutic social and recreational programming.

"Assisted living waiver" means the federal medicaid waiver granted by the United States secretary of health and human services that authorizes the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program.

"County or district home" means a county or district home operated under Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code.

"Long-term care consultation program" means the program the department of aging is required to develop under section 173.42 of the Revised Code.

"Long-term care consultation program administrator" or "administrator" means the department of aging or, if the department contracts with an area agency on aging or other entity to administer the long-term care consultation program for a particular area, that agency or entity.

"Medicaid waiver component" has the same meaning as in section 5111.85 of the Revised Code.

"Nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"Residential care facility" has the same meaning as in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code.

~~"State administrative agency" means the department of job and family services if the department of job and family services administers the assisted living program or the department of aging if the department of aging administers the assisted living program.~~

"Unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component" means the medicaid waiver component authorized by section 5111.864 of

the Revised Code.

~~(B) There is hereby created the assisted living program. The program shall provide assisted living services to individuals who meet the program's applicable eligibility requirements established under section 5111.891 of the Revised Code. The Subject to division (C) of this section, the program may not serve more individuals than the number that is set by the United States secretary of health and human services when the medicaid waiver authorizing the program is approved shall have a medicaid-funded component and a state-funded component.~~

(C)(1) Unless the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program is terminated under division (C)(2) of this section, all of the following apply:

(a) The department of aging shall administer the medicaid-funded component through a contract entered into with the department of job and family services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code.

(b) The contract shall include an estimate of the medicaid-funded component's costs. The program

(c) The medicaid-funded component shall be operated as a separate medicaid waiver component until the United States secretary approves the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code. The program shall be part of the consolidated federal medicaid waiver sought under that section if the United States secretary approves the waiver.

~~If the director of budget and management approves the contract, the department of job and family services shall enter into a contract with the department of aging under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code that provides for the department of aging to administer the assisted living program. The contract shall include an estimate of the program's costs.~~

The (d) The medicaid-funded component may not serve more individuals than is set by the United States secretary of health and human services in the assisted living waiver.

(e) The director of job and family services may adopt rules under section 5111.85 of the Revised Code regarding the assisted living program medicaid-funded component. The

(f) The director of aging may adopt rules under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code regarding the program medicaid-funded component that the rules adopted by the director of job and family services under division (C)(1)(e) of this section authorize the director of aging to adopt.

(2) If the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component is created, the departments of aging and job and family services

shall work together to determine whether the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program should continue to operate as a separate medicaid waiver component or be terminated. If the departments determine that the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program should be terminated, the medicaid-funded component shall cease to exist on a date the departments shall specify.

(D) The department of aging shall administer the state-funded component of the assisted living program. The state-funded component shall not be administered as part of the medicaid program.

An individual who is eligible for the state-funded component may participate in the component for not more than three months.

The director of aging shall adopt rules in accordance with section 111.15 of the Revised Code to implement the state-funded component.

Sec. 5111.891. To be eligible for the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program, an individual must meet all of the following requirements:

(A) Need an intermediate level of care as determined under rule 5101:3-3-06 of the Administrative Code;

~~(B) At the time the individual applies for the assisted living program, be one of the following:~~

~~(1) A nursing facility resident who is seeking to move to a residential care facility and would remain in a nursing facility for long-term care if not for the assisted living program;~~

~~(2) A participant of any of the following medicaid waiver components who would move to a nursing facility if not for the assisted living program:~~

~~(a) The PASSPORT program created under section 173.40 of the Revised Code;~~

~~(b) The choices program created under section 173.403 of the Revised Code;~~

~~(c) A medicaid waiver component that the department of job and family services administers.~~

~~(3) A resident of a residential care facility who has resided in a residential care facility for at least six months immediately before the date the individual applies for the assisted living program.~~

~~(C) At the time the individual receives While receiving assisted living services under the assisted living program medicaid-funded component, reside in a residential care facility that is authorized by a valid medicaid provider agreement to participate in the assisted living program component, including both of the following:~~

~~(1) A residential care facility that is owned or operated by a~~

metropolitan housing authority that has a contract with the United States department of housing and urban development to receive an operating subsidy or rental assistance for the residents of the facility;

(2) A county or district home licensed as a residential care facility.

~~(D)~~(C) Meet all other eligibility requirements for the ~~assisted living program~~ medicaid-funded component established in rules adopted ~~under~~ pursuant to division (C) of section 5111.85 5111.89 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.892. To be eligible for the state-funded component of the assisted living program, an individual must meet all of the following requirements:

(A) The individual must need an intermediate level of care as determined under rule 5101:3-3-06 of the Administrative Code;

(B) The individual must have an application for the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of section 5111.89 of the Revised Code, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) pending and the department or the department's designee must have determined that the individual meets the nonfinancial eligibility requirements of the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of section 5111.89 of the Revised Code, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component) and not have reason to doubt that the individual meets the financial eligibility requirements of the medicaid-funded component (or, if the medicaid-funded component is terminated under division (C)(2) of section 5111.89 of the Revised Code, the unified long-term services and support medicaid waiver component).

(C) While receiving assisted living services under state-funded component, the individual must reside in a residential care facility that is authorized by a valid provider agreement to participate in the component, including both of the following:

(1) A residential care facility that is owned or operated by a metropolitan housing authority that has a contract with the United States department of housing and urban development to receive an operating subsidy or rental assistance for the residents of the facility;

(2) A county or district home licensed as a residential care facility.

(D) The individual must meet all other eligibility requirements for the state-funded component established in rules adopted under division (D) of section 5111.89 of the Revised Code.

Sec. 5111.892 5111.893. A residential care facility providing services covered by the assisted living program to an individual enrolled in the

program shall have staff on-site twenty-four hours each day who are able to do all of the following:

(A) Meet the scheduled and unpredicted needs of the individuals enrolled in the assisted living program in a manner that promotes the individuals' dignity and independence;

(B) Provide supervision services for those individuals;

(C) Help keep the individuals safe and secure.

Sec. 5111.894. (A) ~~The state administrative agency~~ Subject to division (C)(2) of section 5111.89 of the Revised Code, the department of aging shall establish a home first component of the assisted living program under which eligible individuals may be enrolled in the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program in accordance with this section. An individual is eligible for the assisted living program's home first component if ~~all~~ both of the following apply:

(1) ~~The individual is~~ has been determined to be eligible for the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program.

(2) ~~The individual is on the unified waiting list established under section 173.404 of the Revised Code.~~

(3) ~~At least one of the following applies:~~

(a) The individual has been admitted to a nursing facility.

(b) A physician has determined and documented in writing that the individual has a medical condition that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the assisted living program, will require the individual to be admitted to a nursing facility within thirty days of the physician's determination.

(c) The individual has been hospitalized and a physician has determined and documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the assisted living program, the individual is to be transported directly from the hospital to a nursing facility and admitted.

(d) Both of the following apply:

(i) The individual is the subject of a report made under section 5101.61 of the Revised Code regarding abuse, neglect, or exploitation or such a report referred to a county department of job and family services under section 5126.31 of the Revised Code or has made a request to a county department for protective services as defined in section 5101.60 of the Revised Code.

(ii) A county department of job and family services and an area agency on aging have jointly documented in writing that, unless the individual is enrolled in home and community-based services such as the assisted living

program, the individual should be admitted to a nursing facility.

(e) The individual resided in a residential care facility for at least six months immediately before applying for the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program and is at risk of imminent admission to a nursing facility because the costs of residing in the residential care facility have depleted the individual's resources such that the individual is unable to continue to afford the cost of residing in the residential care facility.

(B) Each month, each area agency on aging shall identify individuals residing in the area that the area agency on aging serves who are eligible for the home first component of the assisted living program. When an area agency on aging identifies such an individual and determines that there is a vacancy in a residential care facility participating in the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program that is acceptable to the individual, the agency shall notify the long-term care consultation program administrator serving the area in which the individual resides. The administrator shall determine whether the assisted living program is appropriate for the individual and whether the individual would rather participate in the assisted living program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility. If the administrator determines that the assisted living program is appropriate for the individual and the individual would rather participate in the assisted living program than continue or begin to reside in a nursing facility, the administrator shall so notify the ~~state administrative agency~~ department of aging. On receipt of the notice from the administrator, the ~~state administrative agency~~ department shall approve the individual's enrollment in the medicaid-funded component of the assisted living program regardless of the unified waiting list established under section 173.404 of the Revised Code, unless the enrollment would cause the ~~assisted living program component~~ program component to exceed any limit on the number of individuals who may participate in the program component as set by the United States secretary of health and human services ~~when the medicaid waiver authorizing in the program is approved~~ assisted living waiver.

~~(C) Each quarter, the state administrative agency shall certify to the director of budget and management the estimated increase in costs of the assisted living program resulting from enrollment of individuals in the assisted living program pursuant to this section.~~

Sec. 5111.911. Any contract the department of job and family services enters into with the department of mental health or department of alcohol and drug addiction services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code is subject to the approval of the director of budget and management and shall require or specify all of the following:

(A) In the case of a contract with the department of mental health, that section 5111.912 of the Revised Code be complied with;

(B) In the case of a contract with the department of alcohol and drug addiction services, that section 5111.913 of the Revised Code be complied with;

(C) How providers will be paid for providing the services;

(D) The department of mental health's or department of alcohol and drug addiction services' responsibilities for reimbursing with regard to providers, including program oversight and quality assurance.

Sec. 5111.912. If the department of job and family services enters into a contract with the department of mental health under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code, the department of ~~mental health and boards of alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health~~ job and family services shall pay the nonfederal share of any medicaid payment to a provider for services under the component, or aspect of the component, the department of mental health administers. If necessary, the director of job and family services shall submit a medicaid state plan amendment to the United States secretary of health and human services regarding the department of job and family services' duty under this section.

Sec. 5111.913. If the department of job and family services enters into a contract with the department of alcohol and drug addiction services under section 5111.91 of the Revised Code, the department of ~~alcohol and drug addiction services and boards of alcohol, drug addiction, and mental health~~ job and family services shall pay the nonfederal share of any medicaid payment to a provider for services under the component, or aspect of the component, the department of alcohol and drug addiction services administers. If necessary, the director of job and family services shall submit a medicaid state plan amendment to the United States secretary of health and human services regarding the department of job and family services' duty under this section.

Sec. 5111.94. (A) As used in this section, "vendor offset" means a reduction of a medicaid payment to a medicaid provider to correct a previous, incorrect medicaid payment to that provider.

(B) There is hereby created in the state treasury the health care services administration fund. Except as provided in division (C) of this section, all the following shall be deposited into the fund:

(1) Amounts deposited into the fund pursuant to sections 5111.92 and 5111.93 of the Revised Code;

(2) The amount of the state share of all money the department of job and family services, in fiscal year 2003 and each fiscal year thereafter, recovers

pursuant to a tort action under the department's right of recovery under section 5101.58 of the Revised Code that exceeds the state share of all money the department, in fiscal year 2002, recovers pursuant to a tort action under that right of recovery;

(3) Subject to division (D) of this section, the amount of the state share of all money the department of job and family services, in fiscal year 2003 and each fiscal year thereafter, recovers through audits of medicaid providers that exceeds the state share of all money the department, in fiscal year 2002, recovers through such audits;

(4) Amounts from assessments on hospitals under section 5112.06 of the Revised Code and intergovernmental transfers by governmental hospitals under section 5112.07 of the Revised Code that are deposited into the fund in accordance with the law;

(5) Amounts that the department of education pays to the department of job and family services, if any, pursuant to an interagency agreement entered into under section 5111.713 of the Revised Code;

(6) The application fees charged to providers under section 5111.063 of the Revised Code;

(7) The fines collected under section 5111.271 of the Revised Code.

(C) No funds shall be deposited into the health care services administration fund in violation of federal statutes or regulations.

(D) In determining under division (B)(3) of this section the amount of money the department, in a fiscal year, recovers through audits of medicaid providers, the amount recovered in the form of vendor offset shall be excluded.

(E) The director of job and family services shall use funds available in the health care services administration fund to pay for costs associated with the administration of the medicaid program.

Sec. 5111.941. ~~(A) The medicaid revenue and collections fund is hereby created in the state treasury. Except as otherwise provided by statute or as authorized by the controlling board, both of the following shall be credited to the fund:~~

~~(1) The the nonfederal share of all medicaid-related revenues, collections, and recoveries;~~

~~(2) The monthly premiums charged under the children's buy-in program pursuant to section 5101.5213 of the Revised Code shall be credited to the fund.~~

~~(B) The department of job and family services shall use money credited to the medicaid revenue and collections fund to pay for medicaid services and contracts and the children's buy-in program established under sections~~

~~5101.5211 to 5101.5216 of the Revised Code.~~

Sec. 5111.944. (A) As used in this section:

"Dual eligible individual" has the same meaning as in section 1915(h)(2)(B) of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 315 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396n(h)(2)(B).

"Dual eligible integrated care demonstration project" means the demonstration project authorized by section 5111.981 of the Revised Code.

"Medicare program" means the program created under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended.

(B) There is created in the state treasury the integrated care delivery systems fund. If the terms of the federal approval for the dual eligible integrated care demonstration project provide for the state to receive a portion of the amounts that the demonstration project saves the medicare program, such amounts shall be deposited into the fund. The department of job and family services shall use the money in the fund to further develop integrated delivery systems and improved care coordination for dual eligible individuals.

Sec. 5111.945. There is created in the state treasury the health care special activities fund. The department of job and family services shall deposit all funds it receives pursuant to the administration of the medicaid program into the fund, other than any such funds that are required by law to be deposited into another fund. The department shall use the money in the fund to pay for expenses related to the services provided under, and the administration of, the medicaid program.

~~Sec. 5111.97. (A) As used in this section and in section 5111.971 of the Revised Code, "nursing facility" has the same meaning as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.~~

~~(B) To the extent funds are available, the director of job and family services may establish the Ohio access success project to help medicaid recipients make the transition from residing in a nursing facility to residing in a community setting. The ~~program project~~ may be established as a separate ~~non-medicaid nonmedicaid~~ program or integrated into a new or existing program of medicaid-funded home and community-based services authorized by a waiver approved by the United States department of health and human services. The director shall permit any recipient of medicaid-funded nursing facility services to apply for participation in the ~~program project~~, but may limit the number of ~~program project~~ participants. If an application is received before the applicant has been a recipient of medicaid-funded nursing facility services for six months, the~~

The director shall ensure that an assessment of an applicant is conducted

as soon as practicable to determine whether the applicant is eligible for participation in the ~~program~~ project. To the maximum extent possible, the assessment and eligibility determination shall be completed not later than the date that occurs six months after the applicant became a recipient of medicaid-funded nursing facility services.

(C) To be eligible for benefits under the project, a medicaid recipient must satisfy all of the following requirements:

(1) ~~Be~~ The medicaid recipient must be a recipient of medicaid-funded nursing facility services, at the time of applying for the project benefits;

(2) ~~Need the level of care provided by nursing facilities;~~

~~(3) For participation in a non-medicaid~~ If the project is established as a nonmedicaid program, receive services the medicaid recipient must be able to remain in the community with a as a result of receiving project benefits and the projected cost of the benefits to the project does not exceeding exceed eighty per cent of the average monthly medicaid cost of a medicaid recipient in a nursing facility;

~~(4) For participation in a program established as part of.~~

(3) If the project is integrated into a medicaid-funded home and community-based services waiver program, the medicaid recipient must meet waiver enrollment criteria.

(D) If the director establishes the Ohio access success project, the benefits provided under the project may include payment of all of the following:

(1) The first month's rent in a community setting;

(2) Rental deposits;

(3) Utility deposits;

(4) Moving expenses;

(5) Other expenses not covered by the medicaid program that facilitate a medicaid recipient's move from a nursing facility to a community setting.

(E) If the project is established as a ~~non-medicaid~~ nonmedicaid program, no participant may receive more than two thousand dollars worth of benefits under the project.

(F) The director may submit a request to the United States secretary of health and human services pursuant to section 1915 of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1396n, as amended, to create a medicaid home and community-based services waiver program to serve individuals who meet the criteria for participation in the Ohio access success project. The director may adopt rules under Chapter 119. of the Revised Code for the administration and operation of the ~~program~~ project.

Sec. 5111.981. (A) As used in this section:

"Dual eligible individual" has the same meaning as in section 1915(h)(2)(B) of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 315 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396n(h)(2)(B).

"Medicare program" means the program created under Title XVIII of the "Social Security Act," 79 Stat. 286 (1965), 42 U.S.C. 1395, as amended.

(B) Subject to division (C) of this section, the director of job and family services may implement a demonstration project to test and evaluate the integration of the care that dual eligible individuals receive under the medicare and medicaid programs. No provision of Title LI of the Revised Code applies to the demonstration project if that provision implements or incorporates a provision of federal law governing the medicaid program and that provision of federal law does not apply to the demonstration project.

(C) Before implementing the demonstration project under division (B) of this section, the director shall obtain the approval of the United States secretary of health and human services in the form of a federal medicaid waiver, medicaid state plan amendment, or demonstration grant. The director is required to seek the federal approval only if the director seeks to implement the demonstration project. The director shall implement the demonstration project in accordance with the terms of the federal approval, including the terms regarding the duration of the demonstration project.

Sec. 5112.30. As used in sections 5112.30 to 5112.39 of the Revised Code:

(A) "Franchise permit fee rate" means the following:

(1) ~~Until August 1, 2009, eleven dollars and ninety-eight cents;~~

~~(2) For the period beginning August 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2010, fourteen dollars and seventy-five cents;~~

~~(3) For fiscal year 2011 2012, thirteen seventeen dollars and fifty-five ninety-nine cents;~~

~~(4)(2) For fiscal year 2012 2013 and each fiscal year thereafter, the rate used for the immediately preceding fiscal year as adjusted in accordance with the composite inflation factor established in rules adopted under section 5112.39 of the Revised Code eighteen dollars and thirty-two cents.~~

(B) "Indirect guarantee percentage" means the percentage specified in section 1903(w)(4)(C)(ii) of the "Social Security Act," 120 Stat. 2994 (2006), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w)(4)(C)(ii), as amended, that is to be used in determining whether a class of providers is indirectly held harmless for any portion of the costs of a broad-based health-care-related tax. If the indirect guarantee percentage changes during a fiscal year, the indirect guarantee percentage is the following:

(1) For the part of the fiscal year before the change takes effect, the

Appendix 4

Ohio Dept. of Aging Uncodified Law

SECTION 209.10. AGE DEPARTMENT OF AGING

General Revenue Fund

GRF 490321	Operating Expenses	\$	1,501,616	\$	1,502,442
GRF 490410	Long-Term Care Ombudsman	\$	482,271	\$	482,271
GRF 490411	Senior Community Services	\$	7,130,952	\$	7,131,236
GRF 490414	Alzheimer's Respite	\$	1,917,740	\$	1,917,757
GRF 490423	Long Term Care Budget - State	\$	3,419,250	\$	3,419,250
GRF 490506	National Senior Service Corps	\$	241,413	\$	241,413
TOTAL GRF General Revenue Fund		\$	14,693,242	\$	14,694,369

General Services Fund Group

4800 490606	Senior Community Outreach and Education	\$	372,518	\$	372,523
TOTAL GSF General Services Fund Group		\$	372,518	\$	372,523

Federal Special Revenue Fund Group

3220 490618	Federal Aging Grants	\$	14,000,000	\$	14,000,000
3C40 490623	Long Term Care Budget	\$	3,525,000	\$	3,525,000
3M40 490612	Federal Independence Services	\$	63,655,080	\$	63,655,080
TOTAL FED Federal Special Revenue Fund Group		\$	81,180,080	\$	81,180,080

State Special Revenue Fund Group

4C40 490609	Regional Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program	\$	935,000	\$	935,000
5BA0 490620	Ombudsman Support	\$	750,000	\$	750,000
5K90 490613	Long Term Care Consumers Guide	\$	1,059,400	\$	1,059,400
5W10 490616	Resident Services Coordinator Program	\$	344,692	\$	344,700
TOTAL SSR State Special Revenue Fund Group		\$	3,089,092	\$	3,089,100
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS		\$	99,334,932	\$	99,336,072

SECTION 209.20. LONG-TERM CARE

Pursuant to an interagency agreement, the Department of Job and Family Services shall designate the Department of Aging to perform assessments under section 5111.204 of the Revised Code. The Department of Aging shall provide long-term care consultations under section 173.42 of the Revised Code to assist individuals in planning for their long-term health care needs.

The Department of Aging shall administer the Medicaid waiver-funded PASSPORT Home Care Program, the Choices Program, the Assisted Living Program, and the PACE Program as delegated by the Department of Job and

Family Services in an interagency agreement. The foregoing appropriation items 490423, Long Term Care Budget - State, and 490623, Long Term Care Budget, may be used to support the Department of Aging's administrative costs associated with operating the PASSPORT, Choices, Assisted Living, and PACE programs.

SECTION 209.30. LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN

The foregoing appropriation item 490410, Long-Term Care Ombudsman, shall be used for a program to fund ombudsman program activities as authorized in sections 173.14 to 173.27 and section 173.99 of the Revised Code.

SENIOR COMMUNITY SERVICES

The foregoing appropriation item 490411, Senior Community Services, shall be used for services designated by the Department of Aging, including, but not limited to, home-delivered and congregate meals, transportation services, personal care services, respite services, adult day services, home repair, care coordination, and decision support systems. Service priority shall be given to low income, frail, and cognitively impaired persons 60 years of age and over. The department shall promote cost sharing by service recipients for those services funded with senior community services funds, including, when possible, sliding-fee scale payment systems based on the income of service recipients.

ALZHEIMER'S RESPITE

The foregoing appropriation item 490414, Alzheimer's Respite, shall be used to fund only Alzheimer's disease services under section 173.04 of the Revised Code.

SENIOR COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND EDUCATION

The foregoing appropriation item 490606, Senior Community Outreach and Education, may be used to provide training to workers in the field of aging pursuant to division (G) of section 173.02 of the Revised Code.

TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS - FEDERAL INDEPENDENCE SERVICES AND FEDERAL AGING GRANTS

At the request of the Director of Aging, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer appropriation between appropriation items 490612, Federal Independence Services, and 490618, Federal Aging Grants. The amounts transferred shall not exceed 30 per cent of the appropriation from which the transfer is made. Any transfers shall be reported by the Department of Aging to the Controlling Board at the next scheduled meeting of the board.

REGIONAL LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN PROGRAM

The foregoing appropriation item 490609, Regional Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program, shall be used to pay the costs of operating the regional long-term care ombudsman programs designated by the Long-Term Care Ombudsman.

TRANSFER OF RESIDENT PROTECTION FUNDS

In each fiscal year, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$750,000 cash from the Resident Protection Fund (Fund 4E30), which is used by the Department of Job and Family Services, to the Ombudsman Support Fund (Fund 5BA0), which is used by the Department of Aging. The moneys in the Ombudsman Support Fund may be used by the state office of the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program and by regional ombudsman programs to promote person-centered care in nursing homes.

On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Department of Aging shall certify to the Director of Budget and Management the amount of the cash balance in the Ombudsman Support Fund at the end of fiscal year 2011.

LONG-TERM CARE CONSUMERS GUIDE

The foregoing appropriation item 490613, Long-Term Care Consumers Guide, shall be used to conduct annual customer satisfaction surveys and to pay for other administrative expenses related to the publication of the Ohio Long-Term Care Consumer Guide.

During fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Department of Aging shall identify methods and tools for assessing consumer satisfaction with adult care facilities and with the providers of home and community-based services. The Department shall also consider the development of a provider fee structure to support the inclusion of information about adult care facilities and providers of home and community-based services among the types of providers reviewed in the Ohio Long-Term Care Consumer Guide.

SECTION 209.40. UNIFIED LONG-TERM CARE SYSTEM ADVISORY WORKGROUP

(A) As used in this section, "long-term care services" means both of the following:

(1) Services of long-term care facilities as defined in section 173.14 of the Revised Code;

(2) Community-based long-term care services as defined in section 173.14 of the Revised Code.

(B) There is hereby created for fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013 the Unified Long-Term Care System Advisory Workgroup. The Workgroup shall consist of the following members:

- (1) The Director of Aging, or the Director's designee;
- (2) The following persons appointed by the Governor:
 - (a) Advocates for individuals who use long-term care services;
 - (b) Representatives of providers of long-term care services;
 - (c) Representatives of managed care organizations under contract with the Department of Job and Family Services under section 5111.17 of the Revised Code;
 - (d) State policy makers.
- (3) One member of the House of Representatives from the majority party and one member of the House of Representatives from the minority party, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives;
- (4) One member of the Senate from the majority party and one member of the Senate from the minority party, appointed by the President of the Senate.

(C) Members of the Workgroup shall be appointed not later than fifteen days after the effective date of this section. Except to the extent that serving on the Workgroup is part of a member's regular employment duties, a member of the Workgroup shall not be paid for the member's service on the Workgroup. Members of the Workgroup shall not be reimbursed for their expenses incurred in serving on the Workgroup.

(D) The Director of Aging or the Director's designee shall serve as chairperson of the Workgroup. The Departments of Aging and Job and Family Services shall provide staff and other support services for the Workgroup.

(E) The Workgroup shall serve in an advisory capacity in the implementation of a unified system of long-term care services that facilitates all of the following:

- (1) Providing consumers choices of long-term care services that meet their health-care needs and improve their quality of life;
- (2) Providing a continuum of long-term care services that meets consumers' needs throughout life and promotes consumers' independence and autonomy;
- (3) Assuring that the state has a system of long-term care services that is cost effective and connects disparate services across agencies and jurisdictions.

(F) The Workgroup, with the assistance of the Directors of Job and Family Services and Budget and Management, shall submit two reports to the General Assembly in accordance with section 101.68 of the Revised Code regarding a unified system of long-term care services. The first report is due not later than July 1, 2012. The second report is due not later than

July 1, 2013. A report due before the unified system of long-term care services is established shall discuss the progress being made in establishing the system. A report due after the system is established shall discuss the system's effectiveness.

SECTION 209.50. UNIFIED LONG-TERM CARE SYSTEM ADVISORY WORKGROUP SUBCOMMITTEES

The Unified Long-Term Care System Advisory Workgroup shall convene four subcommittees.

The first subcommittee shall study the current and future capacity of nursing facilities in this state, the configuration of that capacity, and strategies for addressing nursing facility capacity, including the ability of nursing facility operators to determine the number of beds to certify for participation in the Medicaid program. The subcommittee shall complete a report of the part of the study regarding the ability of nursing facility operators to determine the number of beds to certify for participation in the Medicaid program not later than September 1, 2011.

For purposes related to division (D) of section 5111.244 of the Revised Code, the second subcommittee shall study the quality incentive payments to be paid to nursing facilities under the Medicaid program for fiscal year 2013, including accountability measures to be used in awarding points for the quality incentive payments and the methodology for calculating the quality incentive payments. The subcommittee shall complete a report of its study not later than September 1, 2011.

The third subcommittee shall study the process of making Medicaid eligibility determinations for individuals seeking nursing facility services. The subcommittee shall complete a report of its study not later than December 31, 2011.

The fourth subcommittee shall study Medicaid reimbursement for nursing facility services, including issues related to the composition of peer groups, methodologies used to calculate reimbursement for capital costs, and the proportion of the total nursing facility reimbursement rate that should be based on the quality of care nursing facilities provide. The subcommittee shall complete a report of its study not later than December 31, 2012.

Each subcommittee shall submit its report to the General Assembly in accordance with section 101.68 of the Revised Code and to the Directors of Aging, Health, and Job and Family Services. A subcommittee shall cease to exist on the submission of its report.

Appendix 5

Ohio Dept. of Health Uncodified Law

3022

R048 440625	Refunds, Grants Reconciliation, and Audit Settlements	\$	20,000	\$	20,000
TOTAL 090 Holding Account Redistribution Fund Group					
		\$	64,986	\$	64,986
Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement Fund Group					
5BX0 440656	Tobacco Use Prevention	\$	1,000,000	\$	1,000,000
TOTAL TSF Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement Fund Group					
		\$	702,038,677	\$	705,517,491
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS					

SECTION 291.20. IMMUNIZATIONS

Of the foregoing appropriation item 440418, Immunizations, \$2,500,000 in fiscal year 2013 shall be used to purchase pneumococcal conjugate vaccines.

HIV/AIDS PREVENTION/TREATMENT

The foregoing appropriation item 440444, AIDS Prevention and Treatment, shall be used to assist persons with HIV/AIDS in acquiring HIV-related medications and to administer educational prevention initiatives.

PUBLIC HEALTH LABORATORY

A portion of the foregoing appropriation item 440451, Public Health Laboratory, shall be used for coordination and management of prevention program operations and the purchase of drugs for sexually transmitted diseases.

HELP ME GROW

The foregoing appropriation item 440459, Help Me Grow, shall be used by the Department of Health to implement the Help Me Grow Program. Funds shall be distributed to counties through contracts, grants, or subsidies in accordance with section 3701.61 of the Revised Code. Appropriation item 440459, Help Me Grow, may be used in conjunction with Early Intervention funding from the Department of Developmental Disabilities, and in conjunction with other early childhood funds and services to promote the optimal development of young children and family-centered programs and services that acknowledge and support the social, emotional, cognitive, intellectual, and physical development of children and the vital role of families in ensuring the well-being and success of children. The Department of Health shall enter into an interagency agreement with the Department of Education, Department of Developmental Disabilities, Department of Job and Family Services, and Department of Mental Health to ensure that all early childhood programs and initiatives are coordinated and school linked.

Of the foregoing appropriation item 440459, Help Me Grow, if a county

Family and Children First Council selects home-visiting programs, the home-visiting program shall only be eligible for funding if it serves pregnant women, or parents or other primary caregivers and the parent or other primary caregiver's child or children under three years of age, through quality programs of early childhood home visitation and if the home visitations are performed by nurses, social workers, child development specialists or other well-trained and competent staff, as demonstrated by education or training and the provision of ongoing specific training and supervision in the model of service being delivered. The home-visiting program also shall be required to have outcome and research standards that demonstrate ongoing positive outcomes for children, parents, and other primary caregivers that enhance child health and development, and conform to a clear consistent home visitation model that has been in existence for at least three years. The home visitation model shall be research-based; grounded in relevant, empirically based knowledge; linked to program-determined outcomes; associated with a national organization or institution of higher education that has comprehensive home visitation program standards that ensure high quality service delivery and continuous program improvement; and have demonstrated significant positive outcomes when evaluated using well-designed and rigorous randomized, controlled, or quasi-experimental research designs, and the evaluation results have been published in a peer-reviewed journal.

For fiscal year 2012, the Department of Health shall support a county's need for a transition period to meet expected service levels for the Help Me Grow Home Visiting Program and the Part C Program by distributing funds for home visiting through a subsidy agreement that allows the county Family and Children First Council discretion to use a percentage of those funds for Part C services, so long as the services are provided in accordance with the "Individuals with Disability Education Act," 118 Stat. 2744 (2004), 20 U.S.C. 1431 et seq. and section 3701.61 of the Revised Code. The county Family and Children First council may use up to one hundred per cent of the funds allocated for the first quarter, with decreasing percentages determined by the Department of Health for the remaining quarters of fiscal year 2012, for Part C services.

The foregoing appropriation item 440459, Help Me Grow, may also be used for the Developmental Autism and Screening Program.

FEDERALLY QUALIFIED HEALTH CENTERS

For fiscal year 2012, any undisbursed funds previously provided under subsidy agreements between the Department of Health and the Ohio Association of Community Health Centers, or its predecessor organization,

pursuant to section 183.18 of the Revised Code, shall be available to federally qualified health centers in the same manner as those funds in appropriation item 440465, Federally Qualified Health Centers.

TARGETED HEALTH CARE SERVICES OVER 21

The foregoing appropriation item 440507, Targeted Health Care Services Over 21, shall be used to administer the Cystic Fibrosis Program and to implement the Hemophilia Insurance Premium Payment Program.

The foregoing appropriation item 440507, Targeted Health Care Services Over 21, shall also be used to provide essential medications and to pay the copayments for drugs approved by the Department of Health and covered by Medicare Part D that are dispensed to Bureau for Children with Medical Handicaps (BCMH) participants for the Cystic Fibrosis Program.

The Department shall expend all of these funds.

GENETICS SERVICES

The foregoing appropriation item 440608, Genetics Services (Fund 4D60), shall be used by the Department of Health to administer programs authorized by sections 3701.501 and 3701.502 of the Revised Code. None of these funds shall be used to counsel or refer for abortion, except in the case of a medical emergency.

MEDICALLY HANDICAPPED CHILDREN AUDIT

The Medically Handicapped Children Audit Fund (Fund 4770) shall receive revenue from audits of hospitals and recoveries from third-party payers. Moneys may be expended for payment of audit settlements and for costs directly related to obtaining recoveries from third-party payers and for encouraging Medically Handicapped Children's Program recipients to apply for third-party benefits. Moneys also may be expended for payments for diagnostic and treatment services on behalf of medically handicapped children, as defined in division (A) of section 3701.022 of the Revised Code, and Ohio residents who are twenty-one or more years of age and who are suffering from cystic fibrosis or hemophilia. Moneys may also be expended for administrative expenses incurred in operating the Medically Handicapped Children's Program.

CASH TRANSFER FROM LIQUOR CONTROL FUND TO ALCOHOL TESTING AND PERMIT FUND

The Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$551,018 in cash from the Liquor Control Fund (Fund 7043) to the Alcohol Testing and Permit Fund (Fund 5C00) in fiscal year 2012 to meet the operating needs of the Alcohol Testing and Permit Program.

The Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$551,018 in cash in fiscal year 2012 to the Alcohol Testing and Permit Fund (Fund

5C00) from the Liquor Control Fund (Fund 7043) created in section 4301.12 of the Revised Code determined by a transfer schedule set by the Department of Health.

MEDICALLY HANDICAPPED CHILDREN - COUNTY ASSESSMENTS

The foregoing appropriation item 440607, Medically Handicapped Children - County Assessments (Fund 6660), shall be used to make payments under division (E) of section 3701.023 of the Revised Code.

NURSING FACILITY TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer, cash from the Resident Protection Fund (Fund 4E30), which is used by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services, to the Nursing Facility Technical Assistance Program Fund (Fund 5L10), which is used by the Ohio Department of Health, to be used under section 3721.026 of the Revised Code. The transfers shall be up to \$698,595 in each fiscal year of the biennium.

GENERAL REVENUE FUND TRANSFER TO THE TOBACCO USE PREVENTION FUND

On July 1, 2012, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer up to \$500,000 cash from the General Revenue Fund to the Tobacco Use Prevention Fund (Fund 5BX0), used by the Department of Health.

SECTION 291.30. EARLY INTERVENTION WORKGROUP

(A) The Department of Health shall convene a workgroup to develop recommendations for eligibility criteria for early intervention services to be provided pursuant to Part C of the "Individuals with Disability Education Act," 118 Stat. 2744 (2004), 20 U.S.C. 1431 et seq. The recommendations shall be based on available funds and national data related to the identification of infants and toddlers who have developmental delays or are most at risk for developmental delays and, in either case, would benefit from early intervention services.

(B) The workgroup shall be facilitated by the Department and shall be composed of all of the following members:

- (1) A representative from the Department of Developmental Disabilities;
- (2) A representative from the Department of Education;
- (3) A representative from the Department of Mental Health;
- (4) A representative from the Help Me Grow Advisory Council;
- (5) A parent member of the Help Me Grow Advisory Council;

(6) A representative from the Ohio Family and Children First Cabinet Council;

(7) A representative from the Ohio Family and Children First Association;

(8) A county Help Me Grow project director;

(9) A representative from the Ohio Council of Behavioral Health and Family Services Providers;

(10) A representative from the Ohio Association for Infant Mental Health;

(11) A representative from the Ohio Association of County Boards of Developmental Disabilities;

(12) A representative from the Ohio Superintendents of County Boards of Developmental Disabilities;

(13) A representative from the Ohio chapter of the American Academy of Pediatrics;

(14) A public health nurse from a board of health of a city or general health district, or an authority having the duties of a board of health;

(15) A representative from the Department of Job and Family Services;

(16) The executive director of the Ohio Developmental Disabilities Council or the director's designee;

(17) A representative of the County Commissioners Association of Ohio.

(C) The Department shall convene the workgroup not later than July 15, 2011. The workgroup shall present to the Director of Health its recommendations for eligibility criteria for Part C early intervention services not later than October 1, 2011. After the recommendations are submitted, the Director may accept the recommendations in whole or in part and implement eligibility criteria accordingly.

SECTION 291.40. CERTIFICATE OF NEED FOR NEW NURSING HOME

(A) As used in this section:

"Nursing home" and "residential care facility" have the same meanings as in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code.

"Population" means that shown by the 2000 regular federal census.

(B) The Director of Health shall accept, for review under section 3702.52 of the Revised Code, a certificate of need application for the establishment, development, and construction of a new nursing home if all of the following conditions are met:

(1) The application is submitted to the Director not later than one

hundred eighty days after the effective date of this section.

(2) The new nursing home is to be located in a county that has a population of at least thirty thousand persons and not more than forty-one thousand persons.

(3) The new nursing home is to be located on a campus that has been in operation for at least twelve years and both of the following are also located on the campus on the effective date of this section:

(a) At least one existing residential care facility with at least twenty-five residents;

(b) At least one existing independent living dwelling for seniors with at least seventy-five residents.

(4) The new nursing home is to have not more than thirty beds to which both of the following apply:

(a) All of the beds are to be transferred from an existing nursing home in the state.

(b) All of the beds are proposed to be licensed as nursing home beds under Chapter 3721. of the Revised Code.

(C) In reviewing certificate of need applications accepted under this section, the Director shall neither deny an application on the grounds that the new nursing home is to have less than fifty beds nor require an applicant to obtain a waiver of the minimum fifty-bed requirement established by division (I) of rule 3701-12-23 of the Administrative Code.

SECTION 291.50. EXEMPTION FROM CERTIFICATE OF NEED REQUIREMENT

(A) As used in this section:

"2010 bed need determination" means the determination of each county's bed need that the Director of Health made in calendar year 2010.

"Bed need" means the number of long-term care beds that a county needs as determined by the Director of Health pursuant to division (B)(3) of section 3702.593 of the Revised Code.

"Bed need excess" means that a county's bed need is such that one or more long-term care beds could be relocated from the county according to the 2010 bed need determination and regardless of any subsequent bed need determination.

"Bed need shortage" means that a county's bed need is such that one or more long-term care beds could be relocated into the county according to the 2010 bed need determination and regardless of any subsequent bed need determination.

"Bed need shortage quantity" means the number of long-term care beds

that could be relocated into a county with a bed need shortage according to the 2010 bed need determination and regardless of any subsequent bed need determination.

"Existing bed" means a county home bed that is used, or available for use, for skilled nursing care by a resident of the county home on the effective date of this section.

"Skilled nursing care" has the same meaning as in section 3721.01 of the Revised Code.

(B) Notwithstanding sections 3702.51 to 3702.62 of the Revised Code and until January 1, 2014, a county home is not required to obtain a certificate of need to obtain Medicare or Medicaid certification for one or more of the county home's existing beds if all of the following apply:

- (1) The county home is located in a county that has a bed need shortage.
- (2) No county that borders the county in which the county home is located has a bed need excess or bed need shortage.
- (3) The number of the county home's existing beds for which Medicare or Medicaid certification is sought does not exceed the bed need shortage quantity of the county in which the county home is located and the county home obtains Medicare or Medicaid certification for those existing beds not later than December 31, 2013.

SECTION 293.10. HEF HIGHER EDUCATIONAL FACILITY COMMISSION

Agency Fund Group

4610 372601	Operating Expenses	\$	12,500	\$	12,500
TOTAL AGY Agency Fund Group		\$	12,500	\$	12,500
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS		\$	12,500	\$	12,500

SECTION 295.10. SPA COMMISSION ON HISPANIC/LATINO AFFAIRS

General Revenue Fund

GRF 148100	Personal Services	\$	230,000	\$	230,000
GRF 148200	Maintenance	\$	50,000	\$	50,000
GRF 148402	Community Projects	\$	37,005	\$	44,922
TOTAL GRF General Revenue Fund		\$	317,005	\$	324,922

General Services Fund Group

6010 148602	Gifts and Miscellaneous	\$	4,558	\$	4,558
TOTAL GSF General Services Fund Group		\$	4,558	\$	4,558
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS		\$	321,563	\$	329,480

Appendix 6

ODJFS Uncodified Law

3035

5S30	600629	MR/DD Medicaid Administration and Oversight	\$	9,252,738	\$	9,147,791
5U30	600654	Health Care Services Administration	\$	24,400,000	\$	24,400,000
5U60	600663	Children and Family Support	\$	4,000,000	\$	4,000,000
6510	600649	Hospital Care Assurance Program Fund	\$	212,526,123	\$	217,008,050
TOTAL SSR State Special Revenue Fund Group			\$	1,194,041,402	\$	1,207,722,286
Agency Fund Group						
1920	600646	Support Intercept - Federal	\$	130,000,000	\$	130,000,000
5830	600642	Support Intercept - State	\$	16,000,000	\$	16,000,000
5B60	600601	Food Assistance Intercept	\$	2,000,000	\$	2,000,000
TOTAL AGY Agency Fund Group			\$	148,000,000	\$	148,000,000
Holding Account Redistribution Fund Group						
R012	600643	Refunds and Audit Settlements	\$	2,200,000	\$	2,200,000
R013	600644	Forgery Collections	\$	10,000	\$	10,000
TOTAL 090 Holding Account Redistribution Fund Group			\$	2,210,000	\$	2,210,000
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS			\$	22,170,511,132	\$	23,350,617,320

SECTION 309.20. SUPPORT SERVICES

SECTION 309.20.10. ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATING

On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$535,300 cash from the TANF Quality Control Reinvestments Fund (Fund 5Z90) to the Administration and Operating Fund (Fund 5DM0). Upon completion of the transfer, Fund 5Z90 is abolished.

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600633, Administration and Operating, the Department of Job and Family Services shall use up to \$535,300 to pay for one-time contract expenses.

SECTION 309.20.20. TRANSFER TO STATE AND COUNTY SHARED SERVICES FUND

Within thirty days of the effective date of this act, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer the unencumbered cash balance in the County Technologies Fund (Fund 5N10) to the State and County Shared Services Fund (Fund 5HL0). The transferred cash is hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.20.30. AGENCY FUND GROUP

The Agency Fund Group and Holding Account Redistribution Fund Group shall be used to hold revenues until the appropriate fund is determined or until the revenues are directed to the appropriate governmental agency other than the Department of Job and Family Services. If receipts credited to the Support Intercept – Federal Fund (Fund 1920), the Support Intercept – State Fund (Fund 5830), the Food Stamp Offset Fund (Fund 5B60), the Refunds and Audit Settlements Fund (Fund R012), or the Forgery Collections Fund (Fund R013) exceed the amounts appropriated from the fund, the Director of Job and Family Services may request the Director of Budget and Management to authorize expenditures from the fund in excess of the amounts appropriated. Upon the approval of the Director of Budget and Management, the additional amounts are hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.30. MEDICAID**SECTION 309.30.10. HEALTH CARE/MEDICAID**

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, shall not be limited by section 131.33 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.30.13. MEDICAID RESERVE FUND

There is hereby created in the state treasury the Medicaid Reserve Fund. The Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$129,113,790 cash from the General Revenue Fund to the Medicaid Reserve Fund during the FY 2012-FY 2013 biennium. Money in the fund may be used for the Medicaid Program upon request of the Director of Job and Family Services and approval of the Director of Budget and Management. As necessary, the Director of Budget and Management is authorized to transfer cash from the Medicaid Reserve Fund to the General Revenue Fund. Appropriations in appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, shall be increased by the amounts of such transfers and corresponding federal matching funds. Such amounts are hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.30.20. UNIFIED LONG TERM CARE

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, may

be used to provide the preadmission screening and resident review (PASRR), which includes screening, assessments, and determinations made under sections 5111.204, 5119.061, and 5123.021 of the Revised Code.

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, may be used to assess and provide long-term care consultations under section 173.42 of the Revised Code to clients regardless of Medicaid eligibility.

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, may be used to provide nonwaiver funded PASSPORT and assisted living services to persons who the state department has determined to be eligible to participate in the nonwaiver funded PASSPORT and assisted living programs, who applied for but have not yet been determined to be financially eligible to participate in the Medicaid waiver component of the PASSPORT Home Care Program or the Assisted Living Program by a county department of job and family services, and to persons who are not eligible for Medicaid but were enrolled in the PASSPORT Program prior to July 1, 1990.

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, shall be used to provide the required state match for federal Medicaid funds supporting the Medicaid waiver-funded PASSPORT Home Care Program, the Choices Program, the Assisted Living Program, and the PACE Program.

The foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, shall be used to provide the federal matching share of program costs determined by the Department of Job and Family Services to be eligible for Medicaid reimbursement for the Medicaid waiver-funded PASSPORT Home Care Program, the Choices Program, the Assisted Living Program, and the PACE Program.

SECTION 309.30.21. ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES FOR PASSPORT, CHOICES, ASSISTED LIVING, AND PACE PROGRAMS

(A) Of the funds appropriated to the Department of Job and Family Services for health care services, it is estimated that \$618,772,607 in fiscal year 2012 and \$662,261,174 in fiscal year 2013 will be expended on the Medicaid waiver-funded PASSPORT Home Care Program, the Choices Program, the Assisted Living Program, and the PACE Program.

(B) The Department of Job and Family Services and the Department of Aging shall jointly monitor the expenditures made under division (A) of this section at regular intervals, and shall use the following criteria in monitoring such expenditures:

(1) For fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, per member per month spending for PASSPORT and Choices services will be provided at

approximately the same levels as provided during fiscal year 2011;

(2) For fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, per member per month spending for PASSPORT Administrative Agency case management functions will be maintained at fiscal year 2011 levels;

(3) For fiscal year 2012, spending for PASSPORT Administrative Agency site operation functions will be ninety-five per cent of the level provided in fiscal year 2011. For fiscal year 2013, spending for PASSPORT Administrative Agency site operation functions will be ninety-five per cent of the level provided in fiscal year 2012.

(C) The Department of Job and Family Services and the Department of Aging shall identify any significant variance in expenditures from the overall funding levels provided under divisions (A) and (B) of this section, and shall take corrective action where variances may adversely affect the delivery of Medicaid waiver-funded PASSPORT Home Care, Choices, Assisted Living, and PACE services.

SECTION 309.30.23. HATTIE LARLHAM COMMUNITY LIVING

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, \$62,500 in each fiscal year shall be awarded to Hattie Larlham Community Living.

SECTION 309.30.30. REDUCTION IN MEDICAID PAYMENT RATES

(A) As used in this section, "charge high trim point" means a measure, excluding the measure established by paragraph (A)(6) of rule 5101:3-2-07.9 of the Administrative Code, used to determine whether a claim for a hospital inpatient service qualifies for a cost outlier payment under the Medicaid program.

(B) For fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Director of Job and Family Services shall implement purchasing strategies and rate reductions for hospital and other Medicaid-covered services, as determined by the Director, that result in payment rates for those services being at least two per cent less than the respective payment rates for fiscal year 2011. In implementing the purchasing strategies and rate reductions, the Director shall do the following:

(1) Notwithstanding the section of this act titled "CONTINUATION OF MEDICAID RATES FOR HOSPITAL INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES," modernize hospital inpatient and outpatient reimbursement methodologies by doing the following:

(a) Modifying the inpatient hospital capital reimbursement

methodology;

(b) Establishing new diagnosis-related groups in a cost-neutral manner;

(c) For hospital discharges that occur during the period beginning October 1, 2011, and ending January 1, 2012, modifying charge high trim points, as in effect on January 1, 2011, by a factor of 13.6%;

(d) For hospital discharges that occur during the period beginning January 1, 2012, and ending on the effective date of the first of the new diagnosis-related groups established under division (B)(1)(b) of this section, modifying charge high trim points, as in effect on October 1, 2011, by a factor of 9.72%;

(e) Implementing other changes the Director considers appropriate.

(2) Establish selective contracting and prior authorization requirements for types of medical assistance the Director identifies.

(C) The Director shall adopt rules under section 5111.02 and 5111.85 of the Revised Code as necessary to implement this section.

(D) This section does not apply to nursing facility and intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded services provided under the Medicaid program.

SECTION 309.30.31. FISCAL YEAR 2012 MEDICARE COPAYMENT FOR DIALYSIS SERVICES PROVIDED TO MEDICAID RECIPIENTS

(A) As used in this section, "dual eligible individual" has the same meaning as in section 1915(h)(2)(B) of the "Social Security Act," 124 Stat. 315 (2010), 42 U.S.C. 1396n(h)(2)(B).

(B) Notwithstanding any conflicting provision of section 5111.021 of the Revised Code or any other conflicting provision of the Revised Code or this act, in fiscal year 2012, for dialysis services provided to a dual eligible individual, the Department of Job and Family Services shall pay under the Medicaid program an amount equal to the Medicare copayment amount that applies to the service, as that amount was paid by the Department immediately prior to the effective date of this section.

SECTION 309.30.32. FISCAL YEAR 2013 MEDICAID RATE FOR DIALYSIS SERVICES

In fiscal year 2013, the Department of Job and Family Services may adjust the Medicaid rates that are paid for dialysis services by an amount sufficient to achieve aggregate savings of not more than \$9 million in state share expenditures under the Medicaid program. The aggregate savings shall include any savings that may be achieved through measures taken with

regard to dialysis services under the section of this act titled "REDUCTION IN MEDICAID PAYMENT RATES.

SECTION 309.30.33. HOSPITAL INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SUPPLEMENTAL UPPER PAYMENT LIMIT PROGRAM; MEDICAID MANAGED CARE HOSPITAL INCENTIVE PAYMENT PROGRAM

(A) As used in this section:

(1) "Hospital" has the same meaning as in section 5112.40 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Hospital Assessment Fund" means the fund created under section 5112.45 of the Revised Code.

(3) "Medicaid managed care organization" means an entity under contract pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code to provide or arrange services for Medicaid recipients who are required or permitted to participate in the Medicaid care management system.

(B) The Department of Job and Family Services shall submit to the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services a Medicaid state plan amendment to do both of the following:

(1) Continue the Hospital Inpatient and Outpatient Supplemental Upper Payment Limit Program that was established pursuant to Section 309.30.17 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 128th General Assembly, with any modifications necessary to implement the program as described under division (D) of this section;

(2) Create the Medicaid Managed Care Hospital Incentive Payment Program, as described under division (E) of this section.

(C) Of the amounts deposited into the Hospital Assessment Fund in fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013:

(1) Up to \$432,432,725 (state and federal) in fiscal year 2012 and up to \$415,162,388 (state and federal) in fiscal year 2013 shall be used for the Hospital Inpatient and Outpatient Supplemental Upper Payment Limit Program;

(2) Up to \$162,000,000 (state and federal) in each fiscal year shall be used for the Medicaid Managed Care Hospital Incentive Payment Program;

(3) Up to \$176,021,111 (state and federal) in fiscal year 2012 and up to \$195,158,394 (state and federal) in fiscal year 2013 shall be used for the program authorized by the section of this act titled "CONTINUATION OF MEDICAID RATES FOR HOSPITAL INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES."

(D)(1) If the Medicaid state plan amendment submitted under division (B)(1) of this section is approved, the Department shall implement the

Hospital Inpatient and Outpatient Supplemental Upper Payment Limit Program during fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013. Under the Program, subject to division (D)(2) of this section, supplemental Medicaid payments shall be made to hospitals for Medicaid-covered inpatient and outpatient services. The Department shall make the payments through amounts that are made available for the Program under division (C) of this section and any federal financial participation available for the Program.

(2) The Department shall take all actions necessary to cease implementation of the Program if the United States Secretary determines that the assessment imposed under section 5112.41 of the Revised Code is an impermissible healthcare-related tax under section 1903(w) of the "Social Security Act," 105 Stat. 1793 (1991), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w), as amended.

(E)(1) If the Medicaid state plan amendment submitted under division (B)(2) of this section is approved, the Department shall implement the Medicaid Managed Care Hospital Incentive Payment Program. The purpose of the Program is to increase access to hospital services for Medicaid recipients who are enrolled in Medicaid managed care organizations.

Under the Program, subject to division (E)(3) of this section, funds shall be provided to Medicaid managed care organizations, which shall use the funds to increase payments to hospitals for providing services to Medicaid recipients who are enrolled in the organizations. The Department shall provide the funds through amounts that are made available for the Program under division (C) of this section and any federal financial participation available for the Program.

(2) Not later than July 1, 2012, the Department shall select an actuary to conduct a study of the contracted reimbursement rates between Medicaid managed care organizations and hospitals. The actuary shall determine if a reduction in the capitation rates paid to Medicaid managed care organizations in fiscal year 2013 is appropriate as a result of the contracted reimbursement rates between the organizations and hospitals. The actuary shall notify the Department of its determination.

If the actuary determines that a reduction in the capitation rates paid to Medicaid managed care organizations in fiscal year 2013 will not achieve \$22 million in state savings in fiscal year 2013, the state shall receive the difference between what the actuary determines the state will save and \$22 million. The Department, in consultation with the Ohio Association of Health Plans and the Ohio Hospital Association, shall establish a methodology under which the difference is paid equally by Medicaid managed care organizations and hospitals in this state.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary specified in division (E)(3)(b)

or (c) of this section, the Medicaid managed care organizations and hospitals shall pay the amounts determined under the methodology, unless the Department waives the requirement to make the payments. The requirement may be waived if spending for the Medicaid program in fiscal year 2013 is less than the amount that is budgeted for that fiscal year. If payments are made, the amount received by the Department shall be deposited into the state treasury to the credit of the Health Care Compliance Fund created under section 5111.171 of the Revised Code.

(3)(a) The Department shall not provide funds to Medicaid managed care organizations under the Program unless an actuary selected by the Department certifies that the Program would not violate the actuarial soundness of the capitation rates paid to Medicaid managed care organizations.

(b) The Department shall not implement the Program in a manner that causes a hospital to receive less money from the Hospital Assessment Fund than the hospital would have received if the Program were not implemented.

(c) The Department shall not implement the Program in a manner that causes a Medicaid managed care organization to receive a lower capitation payment rate solely because funds are made available to the organization under the Program.

(d) The Department shall take all necessary actions to cease implementation of the Program if the United States Secretary determines that the assessment imposed under section 5112.41 of the Revised Code is an impermissible healthcare-related tax under section 1903(w) of the "Social Security Act," 105 Stat. 1793 (1991), 42 U.S.C. 1396b(w), as amended.

(F) The Director of Budget and Management may authorize additional expenditures from appropriation item 600623, Health Care Federal, appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, and appropriation item 600656, Medicaid-Hospital, in order to implement the programs authorized by this section and to implement the section of this act titled "CONTINUATION OF MEDICAID RATES FOR HOSPITAL INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES." Any amounts authorized are hereby appropriated.

(G) Nothing in this section reduces payments to children's hospitals authorized under the section of this act titled "CHILDREN'S HOSPITALS SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING."

SECTION 309.30.35. CONTINUATION OF MEDICAID RATES FOR HOSPITAL INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES

The Director of Job and Family Services shall amend rules adopted

under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code as necessary to continue, for fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Medicaid reimbursement rates in effect on June 30, 2011, for Medicaid-covered hospital inpatient services and hospital outpatient services that are paid under the prospective payment system established in those rules.

SECTION 309.30.38. CHILDREN'S HOSPITALS SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING

(A) As used in this section, "children's hospital" means a children's hospital, as defined in section 3702.51 of the Revised Code, that is located in this state, primarily serves patients eighteen years of age and younger, is subject to the Medicaid prospective payment system for hospitals established in rules adopted under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code, and is excluded from Medicare prospective payment in accordance with 42 C.F.R. 412.23(d).

(B) For fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Director of Job and Family Services shall make additional Medicaid payments to children's hospitals for inpatient services to compensate children's hospitals for the high percentage of Medicaid recipients they serve. The additional payments shall be made under a program modeled after the program the Department of Job and Family Services was required to create for fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2007 in Section 206.66.79 of Am. Sub. H.B. 66 of the 126th General Assembly. The program may be the same as the program the Director used for making the payments to children's hospitals for fiscal year 2010 and fiscal year 2011 under Section 309.30.15 of Am. Sub. H.B. 1 of the 128th General Assembly.

(C) All of the following shall be used to make additional Medicaid payments to children's hospitals under division (B) of this section:

(1) Of the foregoing appropriation item 600537, Children's Hospital, up to \$6 million in each fiscal year plus the corresponding federal match;

(2) Of the amounts deposited into the Hospital Assessment Fund created under section 5112.45 of the Revised Code, \$4.4 million in fiscal year 2012, plus the corresponding federal match, and \$4 million in fiscal year 2013, plus the corresponding federal match.

SECTION 309.30.40. MANAGED CARE PERFORMANCE PAYMENT PROGRAM

At the beginning of each quarter, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Job and Family Services shall certify to the Director of Budget

and Management the amount withheld in accordance with section 5111.1711 of the Revised Code for purposes of the Managed Care Performance Payment Program. Upon receiving certification, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer cash in the amount certified from the General Revenue Fund to the Managed Care Performance Payment Fund. The transferred cash is hereby appropriated. Appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, is hereby reduced by the amount of the transfer.

SECTION 309.30.50. COORDINATION OF CARE FOR COVERED FAMILIES AND CHILDREN PENDING MEDICAID MANAGED CARE ENROLLMENT

(A) As used in this section, "Medicaid managed care" means the care management system established under section 5111.16 of the Revised Code.

(B) The departments of Job and Family Services and Health shall work together on the issue of achieving efficiencies in the delivery of medical assistance provided under Medicaid to families and children.

(C) As part of their work under division (B) of this section, the departments shall develop a proposal for coordinating medical assistance provided to families and children under Medicaid while they wait to be enrolled in Medicaid managed care. In developing the proposal, the departments may do the following:

(1) Conduct research on the status of families and children waiting to be enrolled in Medicaid managed care, including research on the reasons for the wait and the utilization of medical assistance during the waiting period;

(2) Conduct a review of ways to help families and children receive medical assistance in the most appropriate setting while they wait to be enrolled in Medicaid managed care;

(3) Develop recommendations for a coordinated, cost-effective system of helping families and children waiting to be enrolled in Medicaid managed care find the medical assistance they need during the waiting period;

(4) For the purpose of reducing the waiting period for enrollment in Medicaid managed care, develop recommendations for improving the enrollment processes.

(D) As part of the work that is done under division (B) of this section, the Department of Job and Family Services may submit to the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services a request for a Medicaid state plan amendment to authorize payment for Medicaid-reimbursable targeted case management services that are provided in connection with the Help Me Grow Program and for services provided under the Program. Each quarter during fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013 following approval of the

Medicaid state plan amendment, the Department of Job and Family Services shall certify to the Director of Budget and Management the state and federal share of the amount the Department of Job and Family Services has expended that quarter for services under this section. On receipt of each quarterly certification to the Director of Budget and Management shall decrease appropriation from appropriation item 440459, Help Me Grow, an amount equal to the state share of the certified expenditures and increase appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid by an equal amount and adjust the Federal share accordingly. This transfer is not intended to reduce General Revenue Funds appropriated for the Help Me Grow Program, but is done solely for the purpose of drawing down the federal share of Medicaid reimbursement.

SECTION 309.30.53. MEDICAID MANAGED CARE EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding section 5111.16 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, the Department of Job and Family Services shall not include in the care management system established under that section in either fiscal year 2012 or fiscal year 2013 any individual receiving services through the program for medically handicapped children established under section 3701.023 of the Revised Code who has one or more of the following conditions and who was not receiving services through the care management system immediately before the effective date of this section:

- (1) Cystic fibrosis;
- (2) Hemophilia;
- (3) Cancer.

SECTION 309.30.55. PRIOR AUTHORIZATION FOR COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

(A) As used in this section, "community mental health services" means mental health services included in the state Medicaid plan pursuant to section 5111.023 of the Revised Code.

(B) For fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, a Medicaid recipient who is under twenty-one years of age automatically satisfies all requirements for any prior authorization process for community mental health services provided under a component of the Medicaid program administered by the Department of Mental Health pursuant to an interagency agreement authorized by section 5111.91 of the Revised Code if any of the following apply to the recipient:

- (1) The recipient is in the temporary custody or permanent custody of a

public children services agency or private child placing agency or is in a planned permanent living arrangement.

(2) The recipient has been placed in protective supervision by a juvenile court.

(3) The recipient has been committed to the Department of Youth Services.

(4) The recipient is an alleged or adjudicated delinquent or unruly child receiving services under the Felony Delinquent Care and Custody Program operated under section 5139.43 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.30.60. FISCAL YEAR 2012 MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENT SYSTEM FOR NURSING FACILITIES

(A) As used in this section:

"Franchise permit fee," "Medicaid days," "nursing facility," and "provider" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"Nursing facility services" means nursing facility services covered by the Medicaid program that a nursing facility provides to a resident of the nursing facility who is a Medicaid recipient eligible for Medicaid-covered nursing facility services.

(B) Except as otherwise provided by this section, the provider of a nursing facility that has a valid Medicaid provider agreement on June 30, 2011, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement during fiscal year 2012 shall be paid, for nursing facility services the nursing facility provides during fiscal year 2012, the rate calculated for the nursing facility under sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code with the following adjustments:

(1) For the purpose of determining the nursing facility's rate for direct care costs under section 5111.231 of the Revised Code, the nursing facility's semiannual case-mix score for the period beginning July 1, 2011, and ending January 1, 2012, shall be the same as the semiannual case-mix score, as determined under section 5111.232 of the Revised Code, used in calculating the nursing facility's June 30, 2011, rate for direct care costs.

(2) The cost per case mix-unit calculated under section 5111.231 of the Revised Code, the rate for ancillary and support costs calculated under section 5111.24 of the Revised Code, the rate for tax costs calculated under section 5111.242 of the Revised Code, and the rate for capital costs calculated under section 5111.25 of the Revised Code shall each be increased by 5.08 per cent.

(3) The per resident per day rate paid under section 5111.243 of the Revised Code for the franchise permit fee shall be \$11.47.

(4) The mean payment used in the calculation of the quality incentive payment made under section 5111.244 of the Revised Code shall be, weighted by Medicaid days, \$3.03 per Medicaid day.

(C) If the rate determined for a nursing facility under division (B) of this section for nursing facility services provided during fiscal year 2012 is less than 90 per cent of the rate the provider is paid for nursing facility services the nursing facility provides on June 30, 2011, the Department of Job and Family Services, except as provided in division (D) of this section, shall provide for the nursing facility's rate for fiscal year 2012 to be the percentage determined as follows less than its June 30, 2011, rate:

(1) Determine the percentage difference between the nursing facility's June 30, 2011, rate and the rate determined for the nursing facility under division (B) of this section;

(2) Reduce the percentage determined under division (C)(1) of this section by ten percentage points;

(3) Divide the percentage determined under division (C)(2) of this section by two;

(4) Increase the percentage determined under division (C)(3) of this section by ten percentage points.

(D) If the franchise permit fee must be reduced or eliminated to comply with federal law, the Department of Job and Family Services shall reduce the amount it pays providers of nursing facility services under this section as necessary to reflect the loss to the state of the revenue and federal financial participation generated from the franchise permit fee.

(E) The Department of Job and Family Services shall follow this section in determining the rate to be paid to the provider of a nursing facility that has a valid Medicaid provider agreement on June 30, 2011, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement during fiscal year 2012 notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.30.70. FISCAL YEAR 2013 MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENT SYSTEM FOR NURSING FACILITIES

(A) As used in this section:

"Franchise permit fee," "Medicaid days," "nursing facility," and "provider" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"Low resource utilization resident" means a Medicaid recipient residing in a nursing facility who, for purposes of calculating the nursing facility's Medicaid reimbursement rate for direct care costs, is placed in either of the

two lowest resource utilization groups, excluding any resource utilization group that is a default group used for residents with incomplete assessment data.

"Nursing facility services" means nursing facility services covered by the Medicaid program that a nursing facility provides to a resident of the nursing facility who is a Medicaid recipient eligible for Medicaid-covered nursing facility services.

(B) Except as otherwise provided by this section, the provider of a nursing facility that has a valid Medicaid provider agreement on June 30, 2012, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement during fiscal year 2013 shall be paid, for nursing facility services the nursing facility provides during fiscal year 2013, the rate calculated for the nursing facility under sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code with the following adjustments:

(1) The cost per case mix-unit calculated under section 5111.231 of the Revised Code, the rate for ancillary and support costs calculated under section 5111.24 of the Revised Code, the rate for tax costs calculated under section 5111.242 of the Revised Code, and the rate for capital costs calculated under section 5111.25 of the Revised Code shall each be increased by 5.08 per cent;

(2) The maximum quality incentive payment made under section 5111.244 of the Revised Code shall be \$16.44 per Medicaid day.

(C) The rate determined under division (B) of this section shall not be paid for nursing facility services provided to low resource utilization residents. Except as provided in division (D) of this section, the provider of a nursing facility that has a valid Medicaid provider agreement on June 30, 2012, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement during fiscal year 2013 shall be paid, for nursing facility services the nursing facility provides during fiscal year 2013 to low resource utilization residents, \$130.00 per Medicaid day.

(D) If the franchise permit fee must be reduced or eliminated to comply with federal law, the Department of Job and Family Services shall reduce the amount it pays providers of nursing facility services under this section as necessary to reflect the loss to the state of the revenue and federal financial participation generated from the franchise permit fee.

(E) The Department of Job and Family Services shall follow this section in determining the rate to be paid to the provider of a nursing facility that has a valid Medicaid provider agreement on June 30, 2012, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement during fiscal year 2013 notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.30.73. JOINT LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE FOR UNIFIED LONG-TERM SERVICES AND SUPPORTS

(A) There is hereby created the Joint Legislative Committee for Unified Long-Term Services and Supports. The Committee shall consist of the following members:

(1) Two members of the House of Representatives from the majority party, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives;

(2) One member of the House of Representatives from the minority party, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives;

(3) Two members of the Senate from the majority party, appointed by the President of the Senate;

(4) One member of the Senate from the minority party, appointed by the President of the Senate.

(B) The Speaker of the House of Representatives shall designate one of the members of the Committee appointed under division (A)(1) of this section to serve as co-chairperson of the Committee. The President of the Senate shall designate one of the members of the Committee appointed under division (A)(3) of this section to serve as the other co-chairperson of the Committee. The Committee shall meet at the call of the co-chairpersons. The co-chairpersons may request assistance for the Committee from the Legislative Service Commission.

(C) The Committee may examine the following issues:

(1) The implementation of the dual eligible integrated care demonstration project authorized by section 5111.981 of the Revised Code;

(2) The implementation of a unified long-term services and support Medicaid waiver component under section 5111.864 of the Revised Code;

(3) Providing consumers choices regarding a continuum of services that meet their health-care needs, promote autonomy and independence, and improve quality of life;

(4) Ensuring that long-term care services and supports are delivered in a cost effective and quality manner;

(5) Subjecting county homes, county nursing homes, and district homes operated pursuant to Chapter 5155. of the Revised Code to the franchise permit fee under sections 3721.50 to 3721.58 of the Revised Code;

(6) Other issues of interest to the committee.

(D) The co-chairpersons of the Committee shall provide for the Director of the Office of Ohio Health Plans in the Department of Job and Family Services to testify before the Committee not later than September 30, 2011, and at least quarterly thereafter regarding the issues that the Committee

examines.

SECTION 309.30.80. STUDY OF ICF/MR ISSUES

(A) As used in this section:

"Home and community-based services" has the same meaning as in section 5123.01 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR services" means services covered by the Medicaid program that an ICF/MR provides to a Medicaid recipient eligible for the services.

(B) The Departments of Job and Family Services and Developmental Disabilities shall study issues regarding Medicaid reimbursement for ICF/MR services. In conducting the study, the Departments shall examine the following:

(1) Revising the Individual Assessment Form Answer Sheet in a manner that provides a more accurate assessment of the acuity and care needs of individuals who need ICF/MR services, especially the acuity and care needs of such individuals who have intensive behavioral or medical needs;

(2) Revising the Medicaid reimbursement formula for ICF/MR services to accomplish the following:

(a) Ensure that reimbursement for capital costs is adequate for maintaining the capital assets of ICFs/MR in a manner that promotes the well-being of the residents;

(b) Provide capital incentives for reducing the capacity of ICFs/MR as necessary to achieve goals regarding the optimal capacity of ICFs/MR;

(c) Ensure that wages paid individuals who provide direct care services to ICF/MR residents are sufficient for ICFs/MR to meet staffing and quality requirements;

(d) Provide incentives for high quality services;

(e) Achieve other goals developed for the purpose of improving the appropriateness and sufficiency of Medicaid reimbursements for ICF/MR services.

(C) The Departments shall examine the issue of revising the Individual Assessment Form Answer Sheet before examining the issue of revising the Medicaid reimbursement formula for ICF/MR services. The Departments shall prepare a report of the study conducted under this section and submit the report to the Governor and, in accordance with section 101.68 of the Revised Code, the General Assembly.

(D) At the same time that the Departments conduct the study under this section, they shall work with the Governor's Office of Health

Transformation and persons interested in the issue of ICF/MR services to develop recommendations regarding the following:

(1) Goals regarding the ratio of home and community-based services and ICF/MR services provided under the Medicaid program that take into account goals regarding the optimal capacity of ICFs/MR;

(2) The roles and responsibilities of both of the following:

(a) ICFs/MR owned and operated by the Department of Developmental Disabilities;

(b) Providers of home and community-based services.

(3) Simplifying and eliminating duplicate regulations regarding ICFs/MR in a manner that lowers the cost of ICF/MR services.

SECTION 309.30.90. FISCAL YEAR 2012 MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENT SYSTEM FOR ICFs/MR

(A) As used in this section:

"Capped per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under division (D) of this section.

"Change of operator," "entering operator," and "exiting operator" have the same meanings as in section 5111.65 of the Revised Code.

"Franchise permit fee" and "provider" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR services" means services covered by the Medicaid program that an ICF/MR provides to a Medicaid recipient eligible for the services.

"Medicaid days" means all days during which a resident who is a Medicaid recipient occupies a bed in an ICF/MR that is included in the ICF/MR's Medicaid-certified capacity. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.33 of the Revised Code are considered Medicaid days proportionate to the percentage of the ICF/MR's per resident per day rate paid for those days.

"Modified per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under division (C) of this section.

"Unmodified per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

(B) This section applies to each provider of an ICF/MR to which either of the following applies:

(1) The provider has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR on June 30, 2011, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR during fiscal year 2012.

(2) The ICF/MR undergoes a change of operator that takes effect during fiscal year 2012, the exiting operator has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR on the day immediately preceding the effective date of the change of operator, and the entering operator has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR during fiscal year 2012.

(C) An ICF/MR's total modified per diem rate for fiscal year 2012 shall be the ICF/MR's total unmodified per diem rate for that fiscal year with the following modifications:

(1) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise made under section 5111.235 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem other protected costs, excluding the franchise permit fee, from calendar year 2010 shall be multiplied by 1.0123.

(2) In place of the maximum cost per case-mix unit established for the ICF/MR's peer group under division (B)(2) of section 5111.23 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's maximum costs per case-mix unit shall be the following:

(a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$108.21;

(b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$102.21.

(3) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise calculated under division (B)(3) of section 5111.23 of the Revised Code for the purpose of division (C)(2) of that section, an inflation adjustment of 1.0123 shall be used.

(4) In place of the maximum rate for indirect care costs established for the ICF/MR's peer group under division (B) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, the maximum rate for indirect care costs for the ICF/MR's peer group shall be the following:

(a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$68.98;

(b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$59.60.

(5) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise calculated under division (C)(1) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code for the purpose of division (A)(1) of that section only, an inflation adjustment of 1.0123 shall be used.

(6) In place of the efficiency incentive otherwise calculated under division (A)(2) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's efficiency incentive for indirect care costs shall be the following:

(a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$3.69;

(b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$3.19.

(7) The ICF/MR's efficiency incentive for capital costs, as determined under division (B) of section 5111.251 of the Revised Code, shall be reduced by 50 per cent.

(D) An ICF/MR's total capped per diem rate for fiscal year 2012 shall be the ICF/MR's total unmodified per diem rate for that fiscal year reduced by the percentage by which the mean total unmodified per diem rates for all ICFs/MR in this state for fiscal year 2012, weighted by May 2011 Medicaid days and calculated as of July 1, 2011, exceeds \$282.59.

(E) Except as otherwise provided by this section, the provider of an ICF/MR to which this section applies shall be paid, for ICF/MR services the ICF/MR provides during fiscal year 2012, a total per diem rate determined as follows:

(1) Add the ICF/MR's total modified per diem rate to the ICF/MR's total capped per diem rate;

(2) Divide the amount determined under division (E)(1) of this section by two.

(F) If the mean total per diem rate for all ICFs/MR to which this section applies, weighted by May 2011 Medicaid days and determined under division (E) of this section as of July 1, 2011, is other than \$282.59, the Department of Job and Family Services shall adjust, for fiscal year 2012, the total per diem rate for each ICF/MR to which this section applies by a percentage that is equal to the percentage by which the mean total per diem rate is greater or less than \$282.59.

(G) If the United States Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services requires that the franchise permit fee be reduced or eliminated, the Department of Job and Family Services shall reduce the amount it pays providers of ICF/MR services under this section as necessary to reflect the loss to the state of the revenue and federal financial participation generated from the franchise permit fee.

(H) The Department of Job and Family Services shall follow this section in determining the rate to be paid providers of ICF/MR services subject to this section notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.33.10. FISCAL YEAR 2013 MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENT SYSTEM FOR ICFs/MR

(A) As used in this section:

"Capped per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under division (D) of this section.

"Change of operator," "entering operator," and "exiting operator" have the same meanings as in section 5111.65 of the Revised Code.

"Franchise permit fee" and "provider" have the same meanings as in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR" means an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded as defined in section 5111.20 of the Revised Code.

"ICF/MR services" means services covered by the Medicaid program that an ICF/MR provides to a Medicaid recipient eligible for the services.

"Medicaid days" means all days during which a resident who is a Medicaid recipient occupies a bed in an ICF/MR that is included in the ICF/MR's Medicaid-certified capacity. Therapeutic or hospital leave days for which payment is made under section 5111.33 of the Revised Code are considered Medicaid days proportionate to the percentage of the ICF/MR's per resident per day rate paid for those days.

"Modified per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under division (C) of this section.

"Unmodified per diem rate" means the per diem rate calculated for an ICF/MR under sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

(B) This section applies to each provider of an ICF/MR to which either of the following applies:

(1) The provider has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR on June 30, 2012, and a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR during fiscal year 2013.

(2) The ICF/MR undergoes a change of operator that takes effect during fiscal year 2013, the exiting operator has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR on the day immediately preceding the effective date of the change of operator, and the entering operator has a valid Medicaid provider agreement for the ICF/MR during fiscal year 2013.

(C) An ICF/MR's total modified per diem rate for fiscal year 2013 shall be the ICF/MR's total unmodified per diem rate for that fiscal year with the following modifications:

(1) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise made under section 5111.235 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's desk-reviewed, actual, allowable, per diem other protected costs, excluding the franchise permit fee, from calendar year 2011 shall be multiplied by 1.0123.

(2) In place of the maximum cost per case-mix unit established for the ICF/MR's peer group under division (B)(2) of section 5111.23 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's maximum costs per case-mix unit shall be the following:

(a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$108.21;

(b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$102.21.

(3) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise calculated under division (B)(3) of section 5111.23 of the Revised Code for the purpose of division (C)(2) of that section, an inflation adjustment of 1.0123 shall be

used.

(4) In place of the maximum rate for indirect care costs established for the ICF/MR's peer group under division (B) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, the maximum rate for indirect care costs for the ICF/MR's peer group shall be the following:

- (a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$68.98;
- (b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$59.60.

(5) In place of the inflation adjustment otherwise calculated under divisions (C)(1) and (2) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code for the purpose of division (A)(1) of that section only, an inflation adjustment of 1.0123 shall be used.

(6) In place of the efficiency incentive otherwise calculated under division (A)(2) of section 5111.241 of the Revised Code, the ICF/MR's efficiency incentive for indirect care costs shall be the following:

- (a) In the case of an ICF/MR with more than eight beds, \$3.69;
- (b) In the case of an ICF/MR with eight or fewer beds, \$3.19.

(7) The ICF/MR's efficiency incentive for capital costs, as determined under division (B) of section 5111.251 of the Revised Code, shall be reduced by 50 per cent.

(D) An ICF/MR's total capped per diem rate for fiscal year 2013 shall be the ICF/MR's total unmodified per diem rate for that fiscal year reduced by the percentage by which the mean total unmodified per diem rates for all ICFs/MR in this state for fiscal year 2013, weighted by May 2012 Medicaid days and calculated as of July 1, 2012, exceeds \$282.92.

(E) Except as otherwise provided by this section, the provider of an ICF/MR to which this section applies shall be paid, for ICF/MR services the ICF/MR provides during fiscal year 2013, a total per diem rate determined as follows:

(1) Add the ICF/MR's total modified per diem rate to the ICF/MR's total capped per diem rate;

(2) Divide the amount determined under division (E)(1) of this section by two.

(F) If the mean total per diem rate for all ICFs/MR to which this section applies, weighted by May 2012 Medicaid days and determined under division (E) of this section as of July 1, 2012, is other than \$282.92, the Department of Job and Family Services shall adjust, for fiscal year 2013, the total per diem rate for each ICF/MR to which this section applies by a percentage that is equal to the percentage by which the mean total per diem rate is greater or less than \$282.92.

(G) If the United States Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

requires that the franchise permit fee be reduced or eliminated, the Department of Job and Family Services shall reduce the amount it pays providers of ICF/MR services under this section as necessary to reflect the loss to the state of the revenue and federal financial participation generated from the franchise permit fee.

(H) The Department of Job and Family Services shall follow this section in determining the rate to be paid providers of ICF/MR services subject to this section notwithstanding anything to the contrary in sections 5111.20 to 5111.331 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.33.20. ICF/MR AND WAIVER SERVICES TRANSFERRED TO DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

The Director of Budget and Management shall establish line items for use by the Department of Developmental Disabilities for purposes regarding the Department's assumption of powers and duties under section 5111.226 of the Revised Code regarding the Medicaid program's coverage of ICF/MR services and, under section 5111.871 of the Revised Code, the Medicaid waiver component known as the Transitions Developmental Disabilities Waiver. The Department of Developmental Disabilities shall certify to the Director of Budget and Management and the Director of Job and Family Services the appropriation amounts, in fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, necessary for the Department of Developmental Disabilities to fulfill its obligations regarding the new powers and duties without duplicating administration or services that remain with the Department of Job and Family Services.

Once the certification required under this section has been submitted and approved by the Directors of Budget and Management and Job and Family Services, the appropriation items established under this section are hereby appropriated in the amounts approved by the Director of Budget and Management. The Director of Budget and Management may reduce the amount of one or more of the Department of Job and Family Services' appropriation items if the Director determines that the reduction is necessary and appropriate because of the appropriation items established under this section for the Department of Developmental Disabilities. The appropriations are hereby reduced by the amount as determined by the Director of Budget and Management.

SECTION 309.33.30. ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES RELATED TO

TERMINATION OF MEDICAID WAIVER PROGRAMS

(A) As used in this section, "ODJFS or ODA Medicaid waiver component" means the following:

(1) The Medicaid waiver component of the PASSPORT program created under section 173.40 of the Revised Code;

(2) The Choices program created under section 173.403 of the Revised Code;

(3) The Ohio Home Care program created under section 5111.861 of the Revised Code;

(4) The Ohio Transitions II Aging Carve-Out program created under section 5111.863 of the Revised Code;

(5) The Medicaid waiver component of the Assisted Living program created under section 5111.89 of the Revised Code.

(B) If an ODJFS or ODA Medicaid waiver component is terminated under section 173.40, 173.403, 5111.861, 5111.863, or 5111.89 of the Revised Code, all of the following apply:

(1) All applicable statutes, and all applicable rules, standards, guidelines, or orders issued by the Director or Department of Job and Family Services or Director or Department of Aging before the component is terminated, shall remain in full force and effect on and after that date, but solely for purposes of concluding the component's operations, including fulfilling the Departments' legal obligations for claims arising from the component relating to eligibility determinations, covered medical assistance provided to eligible persons, and recovering erroneous overpayments.

(2) Notwithstanding the termination of the component, the right of subrogation for the cost of medical assistance given under section 5101.58 of the Revised Code to the Department of Job and Family Services and an assignment of the right to medical assistance given under section 5101.59 of the Revised Code to the Department continue to apply with respect to the component and remain in force to the full extent provided under those sections.

(3) The Departments of Job and Family Services and Aging may use appropriated funds to satisfy any claims or contingent claims for medical assistance provided under the component before the component's termination.

(4) Neither department has liability under the component to reimburse any provider or other person for claims for medical assistance rendered under the component after it is terminated.

(C) The Directors of Job and Family Services and Aging may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code to implement

this section.

SECTION 309.33.40. BEACON QUALITY IMPROVEMENT INITIATIVES

Building on the quality improvement work of the Best Evidence for Advancing Child Health in Ohio Now (BEACON) Council, the Departments of Health, Mental Health, and Job and Family Services, in conjunction with the Governor's Office of Health Transformation, may seek assistance from, and work with, the BEACON Council and hospitals and other provider groups to identify specific targets and initiatives to reduce the cost, and improve the quality, of medical assistance provided under the Medicaid program to children. At a minimum, the targets and initiatives shall focus on reducing all of the following:

- (A) Avoidable hospitalizations;
- (B) Inappropriate emergency room utilization;
- (C) Use of multiple medications when not medically indicated;
- (D) The state's rate of premature births;
- (E) The state's rate of elective, preterm births.

If the Departments of Health, Mental Health, and Job and Family Services identify initiatives under this section, they shall make the initiatives available on their internet web sites. The Departments shall also make a list of hospitals and other provider groups involved in the initiatives available on their internet web sites.

SECTION 309.33.50. EXPANSION AND EVALUATION OF PACE PROGRAM

(A) In order to effectively administer and manage growth within the PACE Program, the Director of Aging, in consultation with the Director of Job and Family Services, may expand the PACE Program to regions of the state beyond those currently served by the PACE Program if all of the following apply:

- (1) Funding is available for the expansion.
- (2) The Directors of Aging and Job and Family Services mutually determine, taking into consideration the results of the evaluation conducted under division (B) of this section, that the PACE Program is a cost effective alternative to nursing home care.
- (3) The United States Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services agrees to share with the state any savings to the Medicare program resulting from an expansion of the PACE Program.

(B) The Director of Aging shall contract with Miami University's Scripps Gerontology Center for an evaluation of the PACE program.

(C) If the PACE Program is expanded, the Director of Aging may not decrease the number of individuals in Cuyahoga and Hamilton counties and parts of Butler, Clermont, and Warren counties who are participants in the PACE Program below the number of individuals in those counties and parts of counties who were participants in the PACE Program on July 1, 2011.

SECTION 309.33.60. REPEAL OF THE CHILDREN'S BUY-IN PROGRAM

(A) Notwithstanding sections 5101.5211 to 5101.5216 of the Revised Code and all references in the Revised Code to those sections or the Children's Buy-In Program, no person may enroll in the Program on or after the effective date of this section.

Notwithstanding this act's repeal on October 1, 2011, of the statutes under which the Program is operated, persons enrolled in the Program immediately prior to that date may continue to receive services under the Program, as if those statutes were not repealed. Such persons may receive the services through December 31, 2011, as long as they remain eligible for the Program.

(B) Commencing on the effective date of this section, the Director of Job and Family Services shall take steps as necessary to transition persons enrolled in the Program to other health coverage options and otherwise conclude Program operations.

All Program-related rules, standards, guidelines, or orders issued by the Director or Department of Job and Family Services prior to October 1, 2011, shall remain in full force and effect on and after that date, but solely for purposes of concluding the Program's operations. Such purposes include permitting eligible persons to receive services under the Program through December 31, 2011, as authorized by this section, and fulfilling the Department's legal obligations for claims arising from the Program relating to eligibility determinations, covered medical services rendered to eligible persons, and recovering erroneous overpayments.

(C) Notwithstanding this act's repeal of the statutes authorizing the Program, the right of subrogation for the cost of medical services and care given under section 5101.58 of the Revised Code to the Department and an assignment of the right to medical support given under section 5101.59 of the Revised Code to the Department continue to apply with respect to the Program and remain in force to the full extent provided under those sections.

(D) The Department may use appropriated funds to satisfy any claims or

contingent claims for services rendered to Program participants prior to October 1, 2011, and to eligible persons who receive services under the Program through December 31, 2011, as authorized by this section. The Department has no liability under the Program to reimburse any provider or other person for claims for services rendered on or after January 1, 2012.

(E) The Department may adopt rules in accordance with section 111.15 of the Revised Code to implement this section.

SECTION 309.33.70. CONTINUATION OF DISPENSING FEE FOR NONCOMPOUNDED DRUGS

The Medicaid dispensing fee for each noncompounded drug covered by the Medicaid program shall be \$1.80 for the period beginning July 1, 2011, and ending on the effective date of a rule, or an amendment to a rule, changing the amount of the fee that the Director of Job and Family Services adopts or amends under section 5111.02 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.33.80. MONEY FOLLOWS THE PERSON ENHANCED REIMBURSEMENT FUND

The Money Follows the Person Enhanced Reimbursement Fund, created by Section 751.20 of Am. Sub. H.B. 562 of the 127th General Assembly, shall continue to exist in the state treasury for fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013. The federal payments made to the state under subsection (e) of section 6071 of the "Deficit Reduction Act of 2005," Pub. L. No. 109-171, as amended, shall be deposited into the fund. The Department of Job and Family Services shall continue to use money deposited into the fund for system reform activities related to the Money Follows the Person demonstration project.

SECTION 309.33.90. MEDICARE PART D

The foregoing appropriation item 600526, Medicare Part D, may be used by the Department of Job and Family Services for the implementation and operation of the Medicare Part D requirements contained in the "Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003," Pub. L. No. 108-173, as amended. Upon the request of the Department of Job and Family Services, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer the state share of appropriations between appropriation item 600525, Health Care/Medicaid, or appropriation item 600526, Medicare Part D. If the state share of appropriation item 600525,

Health Care/Medicaid, is adjusted, the Director of Budget and Management shall adjust the federal share accordingly. The Department of Job and Family Services shall provide notification to the Controlling Board of any transfers at the next scheduled Controlling Board meeting.

SECTION 309.35.10. REBALANCING LONG-TERM CARE

(A) As used in this section:

"Balancing Incentive Payments Program" means the program established under section 10202 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.

"Long-term services and supports" has the same meaning as in section 10202(f)(1) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.

"Non-institutionally-based long-term services and supports" has the same meaning as in section 10202(f)(1)(B) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.

"Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act" means Public Law 111-148.

(B) The Departments of Job and Family Services, Aging, and Developmental Disabilities shall continue efforts to achieve a sustainable and balanced delivery system for long-term services and supports. In so doing, the Departments shall strive to realize the following goals by June 30, 2013:

(1) Having at least fifty per cent of Medicaid recipients who are sixty years of age or older and need long-term services and supports utilize non-institutionally-based long-term services and supports;

(2) Having at least sixty per cent of Medicaid recipients who are less than sixty years of age and have cognitive or physical disabilities for which long-term services and supports are needed utilize non-institutionally-based long-term services and supports.

(C) If the Department of Job and Family Services determines that participating in the Balancing Incentive Payments Program will assist in achieving the goals specified in division (B) of this section, the Department may apply to the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services to participate in the program. Any funds the state receives as the result of the enhanced federal financial participation provided to states participating in the Balancing Incentive Payments Program shall be deposited into the Balancing Incentive Payments Program Fund, which is hereby created in the state treasury. The Department of Job and Family Services shall use the money in the fund in accordance with section 10202(c)(4) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.

SECTION 309.35.20. BALANCING INCENTIVE PAYMENTS PROGRAM FUND

The Director of Job and Family Services may seek Controlling Board approval to make expenditures from the Balancing Incentive Payments Program Fund.

SECTION 309.35.30. DUAL ELIGIBLE INTEGRATED CARE DEMONSTRATION PROJECT

The Director of Job and Family Services may seek Controlling Board approval to make expenditures from the Integrated Care Delivery Systems Fund.

SECTION 309.35.40. OHIO ACCESS SUCCESS PROJECT AND IDENTIFICATION OF OVERPAYMENTS

(A) Notwithstanding any limitations in sections 3721.51 and 3721.56 of the Revised Code, in each fiscal year, cash from the Nursing Home Franchise Permit Fee Fund (Fund 5R20) may be used by the Department of Job and Family Services for the following purposes:

(1) Up to \$3,000,000 in each fiscal year to fund the state share of audits or limited reviews of Medicaid providers;

(2) Up to \$450,000 in each fiscal year to provide one-time transitional benefits under the Ohio Access Success Project that the Director of Job and Family Services may establish under section 5111.97 of the Revised Code.

(B) On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer the cash balance in the Home and Community-Based Services for the Aged Fund (Fund 4J50) to the Nursing Home Franchise Permit Fee Fund (Fund 5R20). The transferred cash is hereby appropriated. Upon completion of the transfer, Fund 4J50 is abolished. The Director shall cancel any existing encumbrances against appropriation item 600613, Nursing Facility Bed Assessments, and appropriation item 600618, Residential State Supplement Payments, and reestablish them against appropriation item 600608, Medicaid - Nursing Facilities.

SECTION 309.35.50. PROVIDER FRANCHISE FEE OFFSETS

(A) At least quarterly, the Director of Job and Family Services shall certify to the Director of Budget and Management both of the following:

(1) The amount of offsets withheld under section 3721.541 of the Revised Code from payments made from the General Revenue Fund.

(2) The amount of offsets withheld under section 5112.341 of the Revised Code from payments made from the General Revenue Fund.

(B) The Director of Budget and Management may transfer cash from the General Revenue Fund to all of the following:

(1) The Nursing Home Franchise Permit Fee Fund (Fund 5R20), in accordance with section 3721.56 of the Revised Code;

(2) The ICF/MR Bed Assessments Fund (Fund 4K10).

(C) Amounts transferred pursuant to this section are hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.35.60. TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO THE DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

The Department of Job and Family Services may transfer cash in each fiscal year from the ICF/MR Bed Assessments Fund (Fund 4K10) to the Home and Community-Based Services Fund (Fund 4K80), used by the Department of Developmental Disabilities. The amount to be transferred shall be agreed to by both departments. The transfer may occur on a quarterly basis or on a schedule developed and agreed to by both departments. The transfer may be made using an intrastate transfer voucher.

SECTION 309.35.70. HOSPITAL CARE ASSURANCE MATCH

The foregoing appropriation item 600650, Hospital Care Assurance Match, shall be used by the Department of Job and Family Services solely for distributing funds to hospitals under section 5112.08 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.35.73. HEALTHCARE COMPLIANCE APPROPRIATION

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 5111.171 of the Revised Code specifying the uses of the HealthCare Compliance Fund, appropriations in appropriation item 600625, HealthCare Compliance, may be used for expenses incurred in implementation or operation of Health Home programs and for the creation, modification, or replacement of any federally funded Medicaid healthcare systems in fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013.

SECTION 309.35.80. HEALTH CARE SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FUND

Of the amount received by the Department of Job and Family Services during fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013 from the first installment of assessments paid under section 5112.06 of the Revised Code and intergovernmental transfers made under section 5112.07 of the Revised Code, the Director of Job and Family Services shall deposit \$350,000 in each fiscal year into the state treasury to the credit of the Health Care Services Administration Fund (Fund 5U30).

SECTION 309.35.90. TRANSFERS OF OFFSETS TO THE HEALTH CARE SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FUND

(A) As used in this section:

"Hospital offset" means an offset from a hospital's Medicaid payment authorized by section 5112.991 of the Revised Code.

"Vendor offset" means a reduction of a Medicaid payment to a Medicaid provider to correct a previous, incorrect Medicaid payment.

(B) At least quarterly during fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Director of Job and Family Services shall certify to the Director of Budget and Management the amount of hospital offsets and vendor offsets for the period covered by the certification and the particular funds that would have been used to make the extra payments to providers if not for the offsets. The certification shall specify how much extra would have been taken from each of the funds if not for the hospital offsets and vendor offsets.

(C) On receipt of a certification under division (B) of this section, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer cash from the funds identified in the certification to the Health Care Services Administration Fund (Fund 5U30). The amount transferred from a fund shall equal the amount that would have been taken from the fund if not for the hospital offsets and vendor offsets as specified in the certification. The transferred cash is hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.37.10. PROVIDER APPLICATION FEES

If receipts credited to the Health Care Services Administration Fund (Fund 5U30) exceed the amounts appropriated from the fund, the Director of Job and Family Services may seek Controlling Board approval to increase the appropriations in appropriation item 600654, Health Care Services

Administration.

SECTION 309.37.20. INTERAGENCY REIMBURSEMENT

The Director of Job and Family Services may request the Director of Budget and Management to increase appropriation item 600655, Interagency Reimbursement. Upon the approval of the Director of Budget and Management, the additional amounts are hereby appropriated.

SECTION 309.37.30. MEDICAID PROGRAM SUPPORT FUND - STATE

The foregoing appropriation item 600671, Medicaid Program Support, shall be used by the Department of Job and Family Services to pay for Medicaid services and contracts. The Department may also deposit to the Medicaid Program Support Fund (Fund 5C90) revenues received from other state agencies for Medicaid services under the terms of interagency agreements between the Department and other state agencies.

SECTION 309.37.40. TRANSFERS OF IMD/DSH CASH TO THE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH

The Department of Job and Family Services shall transfer cash from the Medicaid Program Support Fund (Fund 5C90), to the Behavioral Health Medicaid Services Fund (Fund 4X50), used by the Department of Mental Health, in accordance with an interagency agreement that delegates authority from the Department of Job and Family Services to the Department of Mental Health to administer specified Medicaid services. The transfer shall be made using an intrastate transfer voucher.

SECTION 309.37.50. PRESCRIPTION DRUG COVERAGE UNDER MEDICAID MANAGED CARE

(A) As used in this section:

(1) "Controlled substance" has the same meaning as in section 3719.01 of the Revised Code.

(2) "Licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs" has the same meaning as in section 4729.01 of the Revised Code.

(B) Not later than October 1, 2011, the Department of Job and Family Services shall enter into new contracts or amend existing contracts with health insuring corporations, pursuant to section 5111.17 of the Revised Code, as the Department considers necessary to require, in accordance with

section 5111.172 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, that each health insuring corporation participating in the Medicaid care management system include coverage of prescription drugs for the Medicaid recipients who are enrolled in the health insuring corporation.

(C) For a period of thirty days immediately following the effective date of the inclusion of prescription drug coverage under a new or amended contract with a health insuring corporation pursuant to division (B) of this section, if, immediately prior to the effective date of the coverage, a Medicaid recipient enrolled in the health insuring corporation was being treated with a controlled substance prescribed by a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs, and the drug is not an antidepressant or antipsychotic described in division (B)(2) of section 5111.172 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, the health insuring corporation shall provide coverage of the controlled substance without using drug utilization or management techniques, including any prior authorization requirements, that are more stringent than the utilization or management techniques, if any, that the Medicaid recipient was subject to immediately prior to the effective date of the coverage.

(D) For a period of ninety days immediately following the effective date of the inclusion of prescription drug coverage under a new or amended contract with a health insuring corporation pursuant to division (B) of this section, if, immediately prior to the effective date of the coverage, a Medicaid recipient enrolled in the health insuring corporation was being treated with a drug prescribed by a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs, and the drug is not a controlled substance and the drug is not an antidepressant or antipsychotic described in division (B)(2) of section 5111.172 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, the health insuring corporation shall provide coverage of the drug without using drug utilization or management techniques, including any prior authorization requirements, that are more stringent than the utilization or management techniques, if any, that the Medicaid recipient was subject to immediately prior to the effective date of the coverage.

(E) For a period of one hundred twenty days immediately following the effective date of the inclusion of prescription drug coverage under a new or amended contract with a health insuring corporation pursuant to division (B) of this section, both of the following apply:

(1) If, immediately prior to the effective date of the coverage, a Medicaid recipient enrolled in the health insuring corporation was being treated with an antidepressant or antipsychotic described in division (B)(2) of section 5111.172 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, the health

insuring corporation shall provide coverage of the drug without imposing a prior authorization requirement.

(2) Notwithstanding division (B)(3) of section 5111.172 of the Revised Code, as amended by this act, the health insuring corporation shall permit the health professional who was prescribing the drug to continue prescribing the drug for the Medicaid recipient, regardless of whether the prescriber is a psychiatrist as described in division (B)(3)(a) or (b) of that section.

SECTION 309.37.53. PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT MEDICAID PROVIDER AGREEMENTS, CLAIMS SUBMISSIONS, AND FISCAL YEAR 2013 REIMBURSEMENT RATES

(A) With respect to section 5111.053 of the Revised Code, as enacted by this act, regarding Medicaid provider agreements for physician assistants and submission of Medicaid claims for physician assistant services, the Department of Job and Family Services shall implement the provisions of that section when the Department determines that the computer system improvements necessary to implement those provisions are in place. The Department shall ensure that the necessary improvements are in place not later than July 1, 2012.

(B) The Medicaid reimbursement rates for services provided by physician assistants during fiscal year 2013 shall not be greater than the Medicaid reimbursement rates for such services provided on June 30, 2012.

SECTION 309.40. FAMILY STABILITY

SECTION 309.40.10. FOOD STAMPS TRANSFER

On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management may transfer up to \$1,000,000 cash from the Food Stamp Program Fund (Fund 3840), to the Food Assistance Fund (Fund 5ES0).

SECTION 309.40.20. NAME OF FOOD STAMP PROGRAM

The Director of Job and Family Services is not required to amend rules regarding the Food Stamp Program to change the name of the program to the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program. The Director may refer to the program as the Food Stamp Program or the Food Assistance Program in rules and documents of the Department of Job and Family Services.

SECTION 309.40.30. OHIO ASSOCIATION OF SECOND HARVEST FOOD BANKS

The foregoing appropriation item 600540, Second Harvest Food Banks, shall be used to provide funds to the Ohio Association of Second Harvest Food Banks to purchase and distribute food products.

Notwithstanding section 5101.46 of the Revised Code and any other provision in this bill, in addition to funds designated for the Ohio Association of Second Harvest Food Banks in this section, in fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, the Director of Job and Family Services shall provide assistance from eligible funds to the Ohio Association of Second Harvest Food Banks in an amount up to or equal to the assistance provided in state fiscal year 2011 from all funds used by the Department, except the General Revenue Fund.

Eligible nonfederal expenditures made by member food banks of the Association shall be counted by the Department of Job and Family Services toward the TANF maintenance of effort requirements of 42 U.S.C. 609(a)(7). The Director of Job and Family Services shall enter into an agreement with the Ohio Association of Second Harvest Food Banks, in accordance with sections 5101.80 and 5101.801 of the Revised Code, to carry out the requirements under this section.

SECTION 309.40.40. PUBLIC ASSISTANCE ACTIVITIES/TANF MOE

The foregoing appropriation item 600658, Public Assistance Activities, shall be used by the Department of Job and Family Services to meet the TANF maintenance of effort requirements of 42 U.S.C. 609(a)(7). When the state is assured that it will meet the maintenance of effort requirement, the Department of Job and Family Services may use funds from appropriation item 600658, Public Assistance Activities, to support public assistance activities.

SECTION 309.40.50. INDEPENDENT LIVING INITIATIVE

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600689, TANF Block Grant, up to \$2,000,000 in each fiscal year shall be used, in accordance with sections 5101.80 and 5101.801 of the Revised Code, to support the Independent Living Initiative, including life skills training and work supports for older children in foster care and those who have recently aged out of foster care.

SECTION 309.40.60. KINSHIP PERMANENCY INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600689, TANF Block Grant, \$1,200,000 in each fiscal year shall be used to support the activities of the Kinship Permanency Incentive Program established in section 5101.802 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.40.63. OHIO COMMISSION ON FATHERHOOD

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600689, TANF Block Grant, \$1,000,000 in each fiscal year shall be provided to the Ohio Commission on Fatherhood.

SECTION 309.40.70. SWIPE CARD PILOT PROGRAM

During fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013, if the Department of Job and Family Services implements a program that utilizes a swipe card system and point of service device to track attendance and submit invoices for payment for publicly funded child care, both of the following apply:

(A) Misuse of the system by a child care provider participating in the program constitutes a reason for which the provider's license or certification may be revoked.

(B) Misuse of the system by a caretaker parent participating in the program constitutes a reason for which the caretaker parent may lose eligibility for publicly funded child care.

SECTION 309.50. CHILD WELFARE

SECTION 309.50.10. DIFFERENTIAL RESPONSE

In accordance with an independent evaluation of the Ohio Alternative Response Pilot Program that recommended statewide implementation, the Department of Job and Family Services shall plan the statewide expansion of the Ohio Alternative Response Pilot Program on a county by county basis, through a schedule determined by the Department. The program shall be known as the "differential response" approach as defined in section 2151.011 of the Revised Code. Notwithstanding provisions of Chapter 2151. of the Revised Code that refer to "differential response," "traditional response," and "alternative response," those provisions shall become

effective on the scheduled date of expansion of the differential response approach to that county. Prior to statewide implementation, the Department may adopt rules in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code as necessary to carry out the purposes of this section.

SECTION 309.50.20. FLEXIBLE FUNDING FOR FAMILIES AND CHILDREN

In collaboration with the county family and children first council, a county department of job and family services or public children services agency that receives an allocation from the Department of Job and Family Services from the foregoing appropriation item 600523, Children and Families Services, or 600533, Child, Family, and Adult Community & Protective Services, may transfer a portion of either or both allocations to a flexible funding pool as authorized by the section of this act titled "FAMILY AND CHILDREN FIRST FLEXIBLE FUNDING POOL."

SECTION 309.50.30. CHILD, FAMILY, AND ADULT COMMUNITY AND PROTECTIVE SERVICES

(A) The foregoing appropriation item 600533, Child, Family, and Adult Community & Protective Services, shall be distributed to each county department of job and family services using the formula the Department of Job and Family Services uses when distributing Title XX funds to county departments of job and family services under section 5101.46 of the Revised Code. County departments shall use the funds distributed to them under this section as follows, in accordance with the written plan of cooperation entered into under section 307.983 of the Revised Code:

(1) To assist individuals achieve or maintain self-sufficiency, including by reducing or preventing dependency among individuals with family income not exceeding two hundred per cent of the federal poverty guidelines;

(2) Subject to division (B) of this section, to respond to reports of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of children and adults, including through the differential response approach program developed under Section 309.50.10 of this act;

(3) To provide outreach and referral services regarding home and community-based services to individuals at risk of placement in a group home or institution, regardless of the individuals' family income and without need for a written application;

(4) To provide outreach, referral, application assistance, and other

services to assist individuals receive assistance, benefits, or services under Medicaid; Title IV-A programs, as defined in section 5101.80 of the Revised Code; the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program; and other public assistance programs.

(B) Protective services may be provided to a child or adult as part of a response, under division (A)(2) of this section, to a report of abuse, neglect, or exploitation without regard to a child or adult's family income and without need for a written application. The protective services may be provided if the case record documents circumstances of actual or potential abuse, neglect, or exploitation.

SECTION 309.50.33. CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES ACTIVITIES

The foregoing appropriation item 600609, Children and Family Services Activities, shall be used to expend miscellaneous foundation funds and grants to support children and family services activities.

SECTION 309.50.40. ADOPTION ASSISTANCE LOAN

Of the foregoing appropriation item 600634, Adoption Assistance Loan, the Department of Job and Family Services may use up to ten per cent for administration of adoption assistance loans pursuant to section 3107.018 of the Revised Code.

SECTION 309.60. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

SECTION 309.60.10. FEDERAL UNEMPLOYMENT PROGRAMS

All unexpended funds remaining at the end of fiscal year 2011 that were appropriated and made available to the state under section 903(d) of the Social Security Act, as amended, in the foregoing appropriation item 600678, Federal Unemployment Programs (Fund 3V40), are hereby appropriated to the Department of Job and Family Services. Upon the request of the Director of Job and Family Services, the Director of Budget and Management may increase the appropriation for fiscal year 2012 by the amount remaining unspent from the fiscal year 2011 appropriation and may increase the appropriation for fiscal year 2013 by the amount remaining unspent from the fiscal year 2012 appropriation. The appropriation shall be used under the direction of the Department of Job and Family Services to pay for administrative activities for the Unemployment Insurance Program,

employment services, and other allowable expenditures under section 903(d) of the Social Security Act, as amended.

The amounts obligated pursuant to this section shall not exceed at any time the amount by which the aggregate of the amounts transferred to the account of the state under section 903(d) of the Social Security Act, as amended, exceeds the aggregate of the amounts obligated for administration and paid out for benefits and required by law to be charged against the amounts transferred to the account of the state.

SECTION 309.60.20. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION INTEREST CONTINGENCY FUND

The General Health and Human Service Pass-Through Fund (Fund 5HC0) is hereby renamed the Unemployment Compensation Interest Contingency Fund. On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Director of Budget and Management shall transfer \$23,000,000 cash from the Child and Adult Protective Services Fund (Fund 5GV0), used by the Department of Job and Family Services, to the Unemployment Compensation Interest Contingency Fund. The Director of Budget and Management may seek Controlling Board approval to establish appropriations for payment of interest costs paid to the United States Secretary of the Treasury for the repayment of accrued interest related to federal unemployment account borrowing.

SECTION 311.10. JCR JOINT COMMITTEE ON AGENCY RULE REVIEW

General Revenue Fund

GRF 029321	Operating Expenses	\$	435,168	\$	435,168
TOTAL GRF General Revenue Fund		\$	435,168	\$	435,168
TOTAL ALL BUDGET FUND GROUPS		\$	435,168	\$	435,168

OPERATING GUIDANCE

The Chief Administrative Officer of the House of Representatives and the Clerk of the Senate shall determine, by mutual agreement, which of them shall act as fiscal agent for the Joint Committee on Agency Rule Review. Members of the Committee shall be paid in accordance with section 101.35 of the Revised Code.

OPERATING EXPENSES

On July 1, 2011, or as soon as possible thereafter, the Executive Director of the Joint Committee on Agency Rule Review may certify to the Director of Budget and Management the amount of the unexpended, unencumbered balance of the foregoing appropriation item 029321,